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) 15,890.1 18,047.5 19,178.4 17,270.4 24,241.5
) 2,581.4 2,372.9 2,022.8 1,791.3 2,693.4
) 398.9 411.1 257.2 395.5 442.1
) 1,335.7 1,036.5 419.3 631.8 1,548.9
) 970.9 721.4 4.7 (327.4) 1,179.9
) 46.1 609.0 (643.5) 918.6 1,744.2
) 3,340.1 3,340.1 3,467.6 3,467.6 3,467.6
) ) 10,677,727,611 |10,568,697,011 [10,649,855,722 |10,964,088,390 |10,964,086,390
) 14,041.9 13,262.7 12,460.3 12,788.5 12,938.5
) 71,344.4 76,727.1 69,908.4 73,863.6 72,342.8
3.24 2.30 (1.78) (3.38) 4.97
3.24 2.30 (1.78) (3.38) 4.97
CH)C ) 19.7 17.3 17.8 17.3 17.9
) )( 1.32 1.25 1.17 1.17 1.18
« ) 5.0 4.0 - 2.5 3.0
2,257.8 2,769.8 3,042.7 3,010.3 1,544.2

)
, (2,163.0) (4,448.6) (3,043.0) (1,109.5) (907.3)
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) 11,601.6 11,763.8 11,100.1 13,652.6 11,296.7
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277.4 298.4 169.6 239.9 154.7
3,340.1 3,340.1 3,467.6 3,467.6 3,467.6
6,807.4 6,228.9 6,086.7 6,307.8 6,192.8
10,937.8 |  10,230.3 |  10,369.7 10,663.6 10,543.8
291.1 399.2 (54.4) 40.2 95.8
(27.9) (43.5) 42.4 87.6 132.0
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(Sg. )
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(
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KL
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(
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LCS 20,000,000 77.04
LCS 20,000,000 77.04
LCS 1,202,058 77.04
LMCB 225,000,002 77.04
250,002 98.04
3,595,817,375 77.04
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(

)
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30,000,000 98.04
1,014,300,000,000 98.04
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1,000,000 98.04
21,000,000 77.04
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)
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18,597,228
)
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500,000 98.04
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6,550,000
4,650,502
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)
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60,601,230
)
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66,052,000
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60,000,000 65.22
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(

4,250,000 )
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90,988,000.00
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1,050,000 )

1,000,000 93.17

500,000.00 93.17

(
500,000 )
28,454,000.00

28,454,000 )

8,000,001.00 93.17

(
8,000,001 )
258,039,000.00

258,039,000 )

5,000,000 93.17

(
5,000,000 )
614,000.00

614,000 )

2.00 93.17
( )

129,128,000.00

129,128,000 )

93.17

11,742 93.17
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38,336 11,022,762,340 (1,306,414) (107,425)
3,467,555,698.54
2020 31 11,022,762,340 (107,425)
3,467,555,698.54
2020 30 11,022,762,340 (107,425)
3,467,555,698.54
2021 30 11,022,762,340 (107,425)
2022 30 3,467,555,698.54
11,022,762,340 (107.425)
O)
@ 315,757,000
() 0.50
©) 157,878,500.00
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OoOoOoOoOodno
(i)
) 8,790,000
) 0.53
© 4,658,700.00
(iii)
@
®
©
)
(2022 30
(@D)
32,673 1,431,709,092 13.06
367 5,807,150,161 52.97
9,164 1,801,724,687 16.43
885 1,923,502,450 17.54
43,089 10,964,086, 390 100.00
67 A(3)(c)
11,022,762,340 58,675,950

3,467,555,698.54
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®)
2022 20
)
)
55100 4,861,307,766 44.34
205
33
)
50450 575,170,171 5.25
165
8
SS0-DOC MY
HSBC 50100 506,561,781 4.62
No
RHB 50400 475,333,333 4.34
RHB
)
293,712,438 2.68
50400
201-A
23 PNB
048543 270,524,927 2.47
No. 06-01
048543 224,314,344 2.05
No. 06-01
048543 203,356,233 1.85
No. 06-01
048543 189,190,672 1.73
No. 06-01
10 59000 142,138,041 1.30
SA
No.1
11 55100 119,058,456 1.09
55
11
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@
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€Y)

2017 SC

2022 6 30

2022 30 CG

www. ytl.com

https://www.bursamalaysia.com
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2022 30

2016 235 (2)(a)
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2016
www.ytl.com
2022 6 27
(www. ytl.com)
(_ABC )
ABC
2020 6 1 2009

MACC 17 A
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ooooood
ABC 2020 2 20
YTL MACC 17 A
) ABC
3 ABC
www.ytl.com
ABC
COVID-19
2
ABC
(integrity pledge)
ABC 1
( ESG ) ESG
YTL ESG
YTL 2022 www.ytl._com/sustainability
YTL YTL
YTL GSC YTL GSC ESG
ESG
YTL ESG YTL GSC 1
YTL

YTL www.ytl.com/sustainability
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YTL GSC
ESG ESG
Nominating Committee

Statement

ESG

8 4 12
33.3
2022 6 30
50.20 2016
1
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39 AGM

AGM

www.ytl.com

25.0 3
30
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RC

RC

RC

RC

www.ytl.com
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RC

YTL

YTL

www.ytl.com
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RC 1 2021 9 13

INED

INED
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www.ytl.com.my www . ytlcommunity.com

(circular)
2016 21

2021 12 38
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30

2021 12
38

30
https://ww.ytl.com/meetings
38 CoVID-19
Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn
Bhd THH (https://tiih.com.my)
CoVID-19 / 39
CG 2022 8 25
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@
(2022 12 26 )
25
1954 23 68 1984
1988
(Executive Chairman) 2018 29
2004
2014
1988
YTL
YTL REIT
YTL
YTL L&D 2018
29
YTL
YTL
SGX-ST
YTL
REIT
YTL
YTL
REIT
YTL
2012
2022 10
YTL
2016
16
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2005 2012
25
2002
2010 CNBC
2006
(CBE) 2019 (KBE)
2008
2010 Primus
Inter Pares Honouree
2015
2016
2017

2017 Asian Power Awards
2018
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(Managing Director)

1957

17

65 1984
29
1981
«C ) 2017
1984
(UK)
YTL
YTL L&D
2018 29 YTL
YTL L&D
YTL
YTL
YTL
YL
REIT

24
2018

REIT
YTL

SGX-ST
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ooooOoog
1948 10 27 74 2004 30
(Independent
Non-Executive Director)

2003 12

1956 13 66 1984 24

(Executive Director) C )
1990
12
1N
YTL
YTL
YTL
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oooooono
1959 22 63 1985 19
(Executive Director) 1982
« )
YTL
Cl0B 2010
YTL
YTL
46
2021 56
YTL YTL L&D
YTL
YTL
YTL YTL
1960 10 20 62 1985 19
1983
(Executive Director)
YTL
YTL YTL L&D
YTL YTL
YTL
2021 10 14
GCCA 2020 1 22 2021
10 22 The World Cement
Association
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1963 10 59 1996 16
(Executive Director) 1986
YTL
1992
2012
YTL
YTL
YTL
AFCM
CNCA
YTL
WSF
WOSM WSF
1965 14 57 1995 22
LLB
(Executive Director) 1988
( ) 2014
1989 YTL
YTL
UK PT
YTL
YTL
REIT
YTL L& YTL
YTL

121/624

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oooooog
1950 24 72 2015 11 26
(Independent
Non-Executive Director) 1973
1973
Lembaga
Penggalakan Pelanchongan Malaysia, Malaysia
Industry- Government Group for High Technology
YTL
YTL REIT YTL
1954 14 68 1999 10 20
1977
( ) ( )
(Executive Director) 1984 1994
1994
11 1996
MIDF
YTL
YTL
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ooooOoog
1958 23 64 2011 12
(Independent Non-Executive 1982,
Director) ACCA
1993 1999 1982
The New Straits Times Press (M) Berhad
NSTP 1999 2003
2003
2006 2007
YTL
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1958 12 13 63 2019

MARA Institute of Technology Twinning

(Independent Non-Executive Programme
Director) 2008
(ICLIF)
30
2018 12 2015
2018 CIMB
2007 2015 CIMB Investment
Bank Berhad( CIMB 1B )
GAM CIMB
CIMB GAM
CIMBMapletree
CIMB JP Morgan
JP Morgan
10

As-Salihin Trustee Berhad Ncell Axiatal
Limited

MASCOT
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2022 30
()
PSM, KBE 150,344,946 1.37
58,508,722 0.53
56,902,999 0.52
54,173,305 0.49
58,087,165 0.53
23,232,200 0.21
9,911,955 0.09
2022
90,399,000 882,000
2022 2022 ESOS
(
)
( ) ( )
1,869 890
48,501 1,218
* 87 49
4,981 146
450
55,888 2,303

*S0CSO
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®
HLB PLT  HLB
2 3
2022 30 HLB
HLB 244 2,467
HLB 16 360
HLB 12 329

28 689
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HLB PLT
( )
244,000 16,000 244,000 16,000
9,326,000 689,000 9,907,000 1,118,000
9,570,000 705,000 10,151,000 1,134,000

4)

@

¢)
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**

9,594

9,594

**

Q)
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30

2022 12

(
38 59

132
2022 2021 30

)
193
C D
134
30.98

UFJ
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) 2022 2021
) 131
133
2022 2021 30
( ( 23 103 )
100  3.228



€))

(2022

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

30 )
2022 2021
4 24,241,503 751,001,763 17,270,419 535,037,581
5 (20,618,658) (638,766,025) (14,111,193) (437,164,759)
3,622,845 112,235,738 3,159,226 97,872,821
1,666,990 51,643,350 1,015,062 31,446,621
(588,833) (18,242,046) (496, 336) (15,376,489)
(1,205,583) (37,348,961) (1,167,496) (36,169,026)
(801,961) (24,844,752) (719,138) (22,278,895)
6 (1,586,572) (49,152,001) (1,555,047) (48,175,356)
442,051 13,694,740 395,523 12,253,303
7 1,548,937 47,986,068 631,794 19,572,978
8 (369,003) (11,431,713) (959,178) (29,715,334)
1,179,934 36,554,355 (327,384) (10,142,356)
545,394 16,896,306 (367,664) (11,390,231)
634,540 19,658,049 40,280 1,247,874
1,179,934 36,554,355 (327,384) (10,142,356)
9 4.97 2 (3-38) @
9 4.97 2 (3.38) [H)
10 2.50 1 — —
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

30 o )
2022 2021
396,617 12,287,195 469,976 14,559,856
396,617 12,287,195 469,976 14,559,856
10,522 325,972 19,931 617,462
(69,045) (2,139,014) (76,310) (2,364,084)
(170,989) (5,297,239) (170,672) (5,287,419)
167,105 5,176,913 242,925 7,525,817
(12,455) (385, 856) (3,073) (95,202)
154,650 4,791,057 239,852 7,430,615
154,650 4,791,057 239,852 7,430,615
154,650 4,791,057 239,852 7,430,615
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) (2022 30 )
2022 2021
«C ) 1,179,934 36,554,355 (327,384) (10,142,356)
C )
408,354 12,650,807 354,623 10,986,221
(65,685) (2,034,921) (91,770) (2,843,035)
(106,903) (3,311,855) 208,870 6,470,793
284,748 8,821,493 453,671 14,054,728
38,452 1,191,243 — —
14,992 464,452 368,445 11,414,426
(9,659) (299,236) (47,875) (1,483,168)
564,299 17,481,983 1,245,964 38,599,965
1,744,233 54,036,338 918,580 28,457,608
894,368 27,707,521 312,310 9,675,364
849,865 26,328,818 606,270 18,782,245
1,744,233 54,036,338 918,580 28,457,608
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OooooOodd
) (2022 30 Y )
2022 2021
( ) 154,650 4,791,057 239,852 7,430,615
C )
154,650 4,791,057 239,852 7,430,615
154,650 4,791,057 239,852 7,430,615
154,650 4,791,057 239,852 7,430,615
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OooooOodd
®) (2022 30 )
2022 2021

11 31,943,103 989,597,331 32,120,318 995,087,452
12 1,552,929 48,109,740 1,712,517 53,053,777
13 1,976,595 61,234,913 1,976,498 61,231,908
14 806,353 24,980,816 1,067,428 33,068,919
15 — — — —
16 3,704,323 114,759,927 4,243,074 131,450,433
17 272,936 8,455,557 162,048 5,020,247
18 341,528 10,580,537 305,718 9,471,144
19 8,689,945 269,214,496 8,500,075 263,332,324
20 2,766,228 85,697,743 1,812,014 56,136,194
24 2,097 64,965 168 5,205
35 174,802 5,415,366 — —
21 20,607 638,405 26,461 819,762
52,251,446 1,618,749,797 51,926,319 1,608,677,363

22 1,249,409 38,706,691 1,136,927 35,221,998
23 303,826 9,412,529 232,249 7,195,074
20 4,727,914 146,470,776 3,706,772 114,835,797
24 230,355 7,136,398 217,590 6,740,938
21 415,891 12,884,303 263,719 8,170,015
163,352 5,060,645 134,979 4,181,649

25 101,465 3,143,386 92,910 2,878,352
18 1,500,569 46,487,628 2,473,454 76,627,605
26 8,230,733 254,988,108 11,522,776 356,975,600
26 3,167,824 98,139,188 2,155,871 66,788,884
20,091,338 622,429,651 21,937,247 679,615,912

72,342,784 2,241,179,448 73,863,566 2,288,293,275
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OooooOodd
©) (2022 30 Y )
2022 2021
27 3,467,555 107,424,854 3,467,555 107,424,854
28 993,435 30,776,616 892,399 27,646,521
8,531,991 264,321,081 8,482,982 262,802,782
27(2) (54,452) (1,686,923) (54,451) (1,686,892)
12,938,529 400,835,628 12,788,485 396,187,265
4,580,735 141,911,170 3,549,476 109,962,766
17,519,264 542,746,799 16,337,961 506,150,032
29 1,521,938 47,149,639 1,464,641 45,374,578
24 28,638 887,205 31,958 990,059
30 17,582,938 544,719,419 20,756,133 643,025,000
31 17,761,959 550,265,490 14,654,414 453,993,746
32 1,245,678 38,591,104 1,303,867 40,393,800
33 620,655 19,227,892 661,614 20,496,802
34 3,068,801 95,071,455 3,060,349 94,809, 612
35 36,959 1,144,990 481,682 14,922,508
36 21,645 670,562 27,752 859,757
21 1,367 42,350 713 22,089
41,890,578 1,297,770,106 42,443,123 1,314,887,951
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®) (2022 30 Y )
2022 2021

37 4,525,099 140,187,567 3,695,939 114,500,190
24 914,715 28,337,871 1,182,102 36,621,520
21 21,740 673,505 34,074 1,055,613
25 35,531 1,100,750 38,411 1,189,973
30 2,630,000 81,477,400 2,571,924 79,678,206
31 4,281,285 132,634,209 7,091,972 219,709,293
32 170,939 5,295,690 180,091 5,579,219
36 140,972 4,367,313 121,229 3,755,674
35 6,620 205,088 7,048 218,347
206,041 6,383,150 159,692 4,947,258

12,932,942 400,662,543 15,082,482 467,255,292

54,823,520 1,698,432,650 57,525,605 1,782,143,243

72,342,784 2,241,179,448 73,863,566 2,288,293,275
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®3) (2022 30 )(
2022 2021

11 4,011 124,261 3,720 115,246
12 8,903 275,815 15,580 482,668
13 — — — —
14 — — — —
15 8,233,329 255,068,532 7,764,294 240,537,828
16 564,021 17,473,371 564,021 17,473,371
17 — — — —
18 23,751 735,806 53,899 1,669,791
19 — — — —
20 — — — —
24 _ — —_ —
35 — — — —
21 — — — —
8,834,015 273,677,785 8,401,514 260,278,904

22 — — — —
23 — — — —
20 8,288 256,762 7,827 242,480
24 — — — —
21 — — — —
7,977 247,127 6,687 207,163

25 951,154 29,466,751 1,342,599 41,593,717
18 545,668 16,904,795 654,708 20,282,854
26 160,328 4,966,961 247,147 7,656,614
26 36,371 1,126,774 3,071 95,140
1,709,786 52,969,170 2,262,039 70,077,968

10,543,801 326,646,955 10,663,553 330,356,872

138/624



®

(2022

27
28

27(a)

29
24
30
31
32
33
34
35

36

21

30 )(
2022 2021
3,467,555 107,424,854 3,467,555 107,424,854
7,234 224,109 2,759 85,474
2,772,420 85,889,572 2,891,977 89,593,447
(54,452) (1,686,923) (54,451) (1,686,892)
6,192,757 191,851,612 6,307,840 195,416,883
6,192,757 191,851,612 6,307,840 195,416,883
2,240,000 69,395,200 3,240,000 100,375,200
55 1,704 — _
2,339 72,462 9,056 280,555
113 3,501 113 3,501
2,242,507 69,472,867 3,249,169 100,659, 256
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®) (2022 30 )(
2022 2021
37 27,917 864,869 28,058 869,237
24 — — — —
21 — — — —
25 6,542 202,671 4,460 138,171
30 1,000,000 30,980,000 — —
31 1,066,908 33,052,810 1,066,995 33,055,505
32 6,844 212,027 6,716 208,062
36 — — — —
35 326 10,099 315 9,759
2,108,537 65,322,476 1,106,544 34,280,733
4,351,044 134,795,343 4,355,713 134,939,989
10,543,801 326,646,955 10,663,553 330,356,872
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2022

2021

ICULS

2022 30

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoooooO
(2022 30 )
C 2 28) ( 27()

3,467,555 892,399 8,482,982 (54,451) 12,788,485 3,549,476 16,337,961
— — 545,394 — 545,394 634,540 1,179,934
— 122,068 226,906 — 348,974 215,325 564,299
— 122,068 772,300 — 894,368 849,865 1,744,233
— — (461,464) — (461,464) 572,926 111,462
— (27,023) 12,490 — (14,533) 10,756 3,777)
— 166 (215) — (49) 49 —
— — (274,102) — (274,102) (402,337) (676,439)
— 5,825 — — 5,825 — 5,825
— — — @ @ — @

3,467,555 993,435 8,531,991 (54,452) 12,938,529 4,580,735 17,519,264
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EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoooooO
(2022 30 )
C D g ( 27()

107,424,854 27,646,521 262,802,782 (1,686,892) 396,187,265 109,962,766 506,150,032
— — 16,896,306 — 16,896,306 19,658,049 36,554,355
— 3,781,667 7,029,548 — 10,811,215 6,670,769 17,481,983
— 3,781,667 23,925,854 — 27,707,521 26,328,818 54,036,338
— —  (14,296,155) —  (14,296,155) 17,749,247 3,453,093
— (837,173) 386,940 — (450,232) 333,221 (117,011)
— 5,143 (6,661) — (1,518) 1,518 —
— — (8,491,680) — (8,491,680)  (12,464,400)  (20,956,080)
— 180,459 — — 180,459 — 180,459
— — — (€1D) (€3D) — (€3D)

107,424,854 30,776,616 264,321,081 (1,686,923) 400,835,628 141,911,170 542,746,799

1421624
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Ooooooog
(2022 30 )(
C 2 28) (27
2021
3,467,555 512,535 8,982,083 (501,837) 12,460,336 3,149,593 15,609,929
— — (367,664) — (367,664) 40,280 (327,384)
— 482,902 197,072 — 679,974 565,990 1,245,964
) — 482,902 (170,592) — 312,310 606,270 918,580
— — 28,860 — 28,860 68,653 97,513
— 8,313 (8,333) — (20) — (20)
— — — — — (271,239) (271,239)
— — (477,700) 477,700 — — —
— 13,512 — — 13,512 — 13,512
— (91,580) 91,580 — — _ _
— (33,283) 37,084 — 3,801 (3.801) —
— — — (30,314) (30,314) — (30,314)
30 3,467,555 892,399 8,482,982 (54,451) 12,788,485 3,549,476 16,337,961
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( 2 ( 2 27(a))
2021
107,424,854 15,878,334 278,264,931  (15,546,910) 386,021,209 97,574,391 483,595,600
— —  (11,390,231) —  (11,390,231) 1,247,874 (10,142,356)
— 14,960,304 6,105,291 — 21,065,595 17,534,370 38,599,965
¢ — 14,960,304 (5,284,940) — 9,675,364 18,782,245 28,457,608
— — 894,083 — 894,083 2,126,870 3,020,953
— 257,537 (258,156) — (620) — (620)
— — — — — (8,402,984)  (8,402,984)
— —  (14,799,146) 14,799,146 — — —
— 418,602 — — 418,602 — 418,602
—  (2,837,148) 2,837,148 — — — —
—  (1,031,107) 1,148,862 — 117,755 (117,755) —
— — — (939,128) (939,128) — (939,128)
30 107,424,854 27,646,521 262,802,782 (1,686,892) 396,187,265 109,962,766 506,150,032
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2022

2021 3,467,555 2,759 2,891,977 (54,451) 6,307,840
— — 154,650 — 154,650
— — (274,102) — (274,102)
— 105 (105) — —
— 4,370 — — 4,370
— — — @ @

2022 30 3,467,555 7,234 2,772,420 (54,452) 6,192,757

145/624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooooood
() (2022 30 Y )
( 20 28) (  27(2)
2022

2021 107,424,854 85,474 89,593,447 (1,686,892) 195,416,883
— — 4,791,057 — 4,791,057
— — (8,491,680) — (8,491,680)
— 3,253 (3,253) — _
— 135,383 — — 135,383
— — — 31) 31

2022 30 107,424,854 224,100 85,889,572 (1,686,923) 191,851,612
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27 (28 ( 27(a)
2021

2020 3,467,555 82,781 3,038,245 (501,837) 6,086,744
— — 239,852 — 239,852
— — (477,700) 477,700 —
— 11,558 — — 11,558
— (91,580) 91,580 — —
_ — — (30,314) (30,314)

2021 30 3,467,555 2,759 2,891,977 (54,451) 6,307,840
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2021

2020 107,424,854 2,564,555 94,124,830 (15,546,910) 188,567,329
— — 7,430,615 — 7,430,615
— — (14,799,146) 14,799,146 —
— 358,067 — — 358,067
— (2,837,148) 2,837,148 — —
_ — — (939,128) (939,128)

2021 30 107,424,854 85,474 89,593,447 (1,686,892) 195,416,883
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2022 2021
1,548,937 47,986,068 631,794 19,572,978
(3,617) (112,055) (70,707) (2,190,503)
1,537 47,616 3,043 94,272
(6,008) (186,128) (5,924) (183,526)
(18,999) (588,589) (21,548) (667,557)
68,762 2,130,247 79,508 2,463,158
(4,640) (143,747) (3,930) (121,751)
2,704 83,770 1,327 41,110
1,606,957 49,783,528 1,641,525 50,854,445
186,754 5,785,639 183,038 5,670,517
(4,092) (126,770) (11,290) (349,764)
93,114 2,884,672 382,186 11,840,122
(17,479) (541,499) (21,718) (672,824)
() (76,620) (2,373,688) (43,735) (1,354,910)
(1,271,456) (39,389,707) — —
(4,916) (152,298) (407,641) (12,628,718)
(855) (26,488) (934) (28,935)
(991) (30,701) (575) (17,814)
296,826 9,195,669 49,822 1,543,486
1,586,572 49,152,001 1,555,047 48,175,356
(163,924) (5,078,366) (161,732) (5,010,457)
1,490 46,160 997 30,887
— — 8,916 276,218
1 31 — —
63,921 1,980,273 5,335 165,278
20,543 636,422 12,411 384,493
54,894 1,700,616 63,329 1,961,932
21,003 650,673 (7,304) (226,278)
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2022 2021

(1,062) (32,901) — —
6,988 216,488 15,071 466,900
(442,051) (13,694,740) (395,523) (12,253,303)
(29,851) (924,784) (34,519) (1,069,399)
3,514,442 108,877,413 3,446,269 106,765,414
(113,599) (3,519,297) 137,830 4,269,973
2,917 90,369 (67,063) (2,077,612)
(1,276,029) (39,531,378) (826,177) (25,594,963)
(16,768) (519,473) 29,194 904,430
(356,294) (11,037,988) 544,271 16,861,516
1,024,720 31,745,826 928,656 28,769,763
(11,435) (354,256) (40,017) (1,239,727)
2,767,954 85,751,215 4,152,963 128,658,794
488,722 15,140,608 471,677 14,612,553
(1,446,680) (44,818,146) (1,364,148) (42,261,305)
167,719 5,195,935 162,829 5,044,442
(135,796) (4,206,960) (136,007) (4,213,497)
(300,401) (9,306,423) (287,272) (8.,899,687)
2,638 81,725 10,261 317,886
1,544,156 47,837,953 3,010,303 93,259,187
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2022 2021
(1,000) (30,980) — —
§ (854,000) (26,456,920) — —
(78,113) (2,419,941) (23,984) (743,024)
(27,210) (842,966) (31,745) (983,460)
90 — — 544,576 16,870,964
32,002 994,210 38,482 1,192,172
(426,221) (13,204,327) (80,808) (2,503,432)
1,977,117 61,251,085 419,136 12,984,833
) 953,102 29,527,100 (301,958) (9,354,659)
(498,165) (15,433,152) — —
101,615 3,148,033 87,443 2,708,984
148,828 4,610,691 216,563 6,709,122
4,805 148,859 4,766 147,651
(68,800) (2,131,424) (31,164) (965,461)
(1,740) (53,905) (37,065) (1,148,274)
(1,906,348) (59,058,661) (1,910,842) (59,197,885)
(260,231) (8,061,956) (2,887) (89,439)
(3,054) (94,613) — _
(907,323) (28,108,867) (1,109,487) (34,371,907)
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2022 2021
(274,102) (8,491, 680) — —
(402,337) (12,464 ,400) (271,239) (8,402,984)
(1,960) (60,721) — —
[€)) (31) (30,314) (939,128)
[€)) (31) (38,047) (1,178,696)
5,000 154,900 2,407,070 74,571,029
6,406,467 198,472,348 1,142,376 35,390,808
— — 237,150 7,346,907
(1,687,525) (52,279,525) — —
(6.,719,896) (208,182,378) (2,901,744) (89,896,029)
(260,057) (8,056,566) (238,856) (7,399,759)
(82,808) (2,565,392) (7.,479) (231,699)
(3,017,220) (93,473,476) 298,917 9,260,449
(2,380,387) (73,744,389) 2,199,733 68,147,728
24,456 757,647 352,797 10,929,651
13,652,596 422,957,424 11,100,066 343,880,045
11,296,665 349,970,682 13,652,596 422,957,424
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2022 2021
1,906,348 59,058,661 1,910,842 59,197,885
5,698 176,524 — _
36,306 1,124,760 23,733 735,248
43,528 1,348,497 — —
15,254 472,569 3,868 119,831
— — 11,501 356,301
2,007,134 62,181,011 1,949,944 60,409,265
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2022 2021
45,074,443 1,396,406,244 43,586,244 1,350,301,839
(1,446,680) (44,818,146) (1,360,225) (42,139,771)
5,000 154,900 2,407,070 74,571,029
6,406,467 198,472,348 1,142,376 35,390,808
(82,808) (2,565,392) (7,479) (231,699)
(1,687,525) (52,279,525) — —
(6,719,896) (208,182,378) (2,901,744) (89,896,029)
an (527) (3,923) (121,535)
193,899 6,006,991 110,363 3,419,046
81,491 2,524,591 (22,491) (696,771)
2,417) (74,879) — _
— — (526,749) (16,318,684)
355 10,998 — —
1,492,505 46,237,805 1,448,839 44,885,032
(1,058,635) (32,796,512) 1,202,162 37,242,979
42,256,182 1,309,096,518 45,074,443 1,396,406,244
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2022 2021
1,483,958 45,973,019 1,603,481 49,675,841
(260,057) (8,056,566) (238,856) (7,399,759)
138,681 4,296,337 115,874 3,589,777
— — (113) (3,501)
87,879 2,722,491 92,316 2,859,950
47,773 1,480,008 (44,286) (1,371,980)
(26,425) (818,647) (21,156) (655,413)
(13,272) (411,167) (30,485) (944,425)
(41,920) (1,298,682) 7,183 222,529
1,416,617 43,886,795 1,483,958 45,973,019
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2022 2021
167,105 5,176,913 242,925 7,525,817
_ _ (50) (1,549)
222 6,878 781 24,195
6,677 206,853 6,719 208,155
(381,823) (11,828,877) (446,865) (13,843,878)
7,405 229,407 4,480 138,790
(2,183) (67,629) (2,088) (64,686)
() (36) (1,115) 2 62
— — (129) (3,996)
1,387 42,969 278 8,612
170,989 5,297,239 170,672 5,287,419
(14,567) (451,286) (22,855) (708,048)
1 31 — —

«C )

156/624



©)

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
(2022 30 o )
2022 2021

2,117 65,585 4,695 145,451
(42,706) (1,323,032) (41,435) (1,283,656)
(461) (14,282) (1,674) (51,861)
(130) (4,027) 10,632 329,379
(72,055) (2,232,264) (220,113) (6,819,101)
(115,352) (3,573,605) (252,590) (7,825,238)
381,823 11,828,877 446,865 13,843,878
(170,504) (5,282,214) (170,108) (5,269,946)
13,626 422,133 22,855 708,048
(13,745) (425,820) (6,829) (211,562)
95,848 2,969,371 40,193 1,245,179
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2022 2021
(76) (2,354) (279) (8,643)
( _ _ _ _

)

90 — — — —
N _ _ _ _
« D _ _ _ _
58 1,797 10 310
132,395 4,101,597 88,554 2,743,403
(376) (11,648) (661) (20,478)
( ) 132,001 4,089,391 87,624 2,714,592
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2022 2021
(274,102) (8.491,680) — —
@ (31) (30,314) (939,128)
— — 740,000 22,925,200
(191) (5,917) (684,210) (21,196,826)
(7,074) (219,153) (7,074) (219,153)
(281,368) (8,716,781) 18,402 570,094
(53,519) (1,658,019) 146,219 4,529,865
250,218 7,751,754 103,999 3,221,889
196,699 6,093,735 250,218 7,751,754
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376 11,648 661 20,478
159 4,926 — —
535 16,574 661 20,478
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2022 2021

4,306,995 133,430,705 4,251,205 131,702,331

(170,504) (5,282,214) (170,108) (5,269,946)
— — 740,000 22,925,200

(191) (5,917) (684,210) (21,196,826)
ICULS — — — —
159 4,926 — —
170,504 5,282,214 170,108 5,269,946
30 4,306,963 133,429,714 4,306,995 133,430,705
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2022 2021
15,772 488,617 9,182 284,458
(7,074) (219, 153) (7,074) (219,153)
— — 20,031 620,560
485 15,025 564 17,473
— — (6,931) (214,722)
9,183 284,489 15,772 488,617
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MFRS MFRS 139 MFRS MFRS MFRS 16 2021
MFRS 16 2021 30 CovID-19 2021
IC
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MFRS 2022
MFRS 116 2022
MFRS 137 2022
MFRS 2018 -2020

MFRS 2022
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Q)
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2022 2021 2022 2021
24,044,845 17,067,803 227 256
196,658 202,616 396,390 469,720
24,241,503 17,270,419 396,617 469,976

@

2022 2021 2022 2021
12,172,047 5,876,292 — —
4,108,545 3,772,223 — —
251,186 182,630 — —
660,288 524,826 — —_
297,017 216,146 — —
17,489,083 10,572,117 — —
3,850,546 4,076,215 — —
40,415 15,855 — —
3,890,961 4,092,070 — —
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2022 2021 2022 2021
1,136,228 1,514,505 — —
684,556 416,107 — —_
16,132 8,054 — —
700,688 424,161 — —
76,683 — — —_
5,736 — — —
103,345 229,833 — —
402,494 26,501 — —
16,480 14,485 — —
604,738 270,819 — —
97,634 111,173 — —
21,150 — — —_
66,449 66,326 — —
7,316 3,854 — —
3,173 3,175 — —
27,425 9,603 227 256
223,147 194,131 227 256
24,044,845 17,067,803 227 256
100,988 88,491 — —_
92,401 103,372 14,567 22,855
3,269 10,753 381,823 446,865
196,658 202,616 396,390 469,720
24,241,503 17,270,419 396,617 469,976
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(b)

2022 2021 2022 2021
5,044,362 4,683,512 — —
19,000,483 12,384,291 227 256
24,044,845 17,067,803 227 256

2022 2021

2,778,154 2,430,224
1,017,301 1,254,029
12,967,759 6,191,220
6,272 —
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2022 2021 2022 2021
877,636 797,732 141,390 139,188

651,175 674,840 29,114 30,920

6,188 13,892 — —

87,879 92,316 485 564

1,622,878 1,578,780 170,989 170,672

11 (36,306) (23,733) — —
1,586,572 1,555,047 170,989 170,672
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2022 2021 2022 2021
( ) (

24 1,537 3,043 — —
19 68,762 79,508 — —
10,253 9,716 244 244
(102) (146) — —
1,134 705 16 16
2,704 1,327 — —
(331,254) (60,144) — —
63,921 5,335 - —
11 1,606,957 1,641,525 222 781
12 186,754 183,038 6,677 6,719
53,569 30,880 1,413 741
1,869 1,840 890 890
450 762 — 204
7,171 2,869 — —

38(d) - — (79,680) (194)
38(d) 206 623 — —
38(d) 270 — — —
19 174,000 1,269 — —
38(d) 122,115 6,596 - —
5,262 — 1,570 472
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(

)

11

13

11

13

33

Ogoooood
2022 2021 2022 2021
— — 79,497 —
5,273 — — —
— 41,425 — —
117,144 126,922 — —
— 8,916 — —
1 — 1 —
1,490 997 — —
79,099 73,935 101 161
2,317 2,797 — —
54,736 11,468 1,455 949
51,152 12,078 — —
(12,403) 380,785 — —
20,543 12,411 — —
149,450 175,657 — —
6,988 15,071 2,117 4,695
) (

3,617 70,707 — —
6,008 5,924 — —
18,999 21,548 — —
4,640 3,930 — 50
17,479 21,718 2,183 2,088

76,620 43,735 36 ©)
1,271,456 — — _
4,916 407,641 — _

205/624
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OooooOodd
2022 2021 2022 2021

12,226 46,188 4,208 1,411
81,003 46,597 — —
991 575 — 129
855 934 — —
823 537 — —
21,266 29,089 — —
55,340 49,475 — _
15,502 8,312 — —
681 573 — —

18 (105,517) (1,401) (7,405) (4,480)
409 549 — _
9,047 11,681 — —
11 10,300 — — —
38(d) — 91 — —
36 (21,003) 7,304 — —
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2022 30 2021 30
2022
¢ 330 14,204 — 1,189 4 148 15,875
PSM  KBE g g g
209 6,939 — 759 3 92 8,002
— 5,347 — 597 1 36 5,981
— 5,695 — 639 1 25 6,360
— 5,710 — 621 2 51 6,384
— 4,848 — 582 2 49 5,481
— 5,110 — 568 3 23 5,704
— 648 — 26 * 26 700
) 230 — — — 14 — 244
420 — — — 20 — 440
460 — — — 28 — 488
220 — — — 9 — 229
1,869 48,501 — 4,981 87 450 55,888
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2022

PSM  KBE
— 1,218 — 146 1 — 1,365

230 — — — 14 — 244

210 — — — 11 — 221

230 — — — 14 — 244

220 — — — 9 — 229

890 1,218 — 146 49 — 2,303

208/624
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oOoOooodn

2021

oSl KBE 307 9,223 — 594 1 219 10,344
193 3,901 — 390 1 242 4,727

— 2,855 — 298 1 63 3,217

— 3,029 — 319 3 59 3,410

— 3,285 123 338 1 54 3,801

— 2,441 — 291 1 37 2,770

— 2,736 — 284 3 62 3,085

— 648 — 26 1 26 701

) 230 — — — 17 — 247
430 — — — 23 — 453

460 — — — 35 — 495

220 — — — 12 — 232

1,840 28,118 123 2,540 99 762 33,482
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2021

PSM  KBE - - - - - 115 115
— 609 — 73 — 47 729
_ — — — — a2 )
, 230 — — — 17 — 247
210 — — — 13 — 223
230 — — — 17 — 247
220 — — — 12 — 232
890 609 — 73 59 204 1,835

2022 2021 2022 2021

( )

1,004,853 1,004,547 17,329 17,839
104,650 116,361 1,916 1,997
54,894 63,329 — _
46,816 44,173 807 646
1,211,213 1,228,410 20,052 20,482

210/624
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2022 2021 2022 2021
198,981 192,628 12,455 3,073
117,744 154,869 — —

52,278 611,681 — —
369,003 959,178 12,455 3,073
333,558 385,484 3,207 5,601
(16,833) (37,987) 9,248 (2,528)

52,278 611,681 — —
369,003 959,178 12,455 3,073
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30

24 (2021
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oOoOooodn

2022 2021 2022 2021
1,548,937 631,794 167,105 242,925
371,745 151,631 40,105 58,302
510,580 556,541 56,659 57,719
(388,328) (180,967) (93,557) (110, 420)
(28,715) (65,632) — —
— 540,507 — _
(1,081) (811) — —
(16,833) (37,987) 9,248 (2,528)
(106,092) (94,926) — —
27,727 90,822 — —
369,003 959,178 12,455 3,073
540.5 2021
(2023 ) 2021 30
25
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)

2022 2021
) 545,394 (367,664)
10,964,088 10,864,161
4.97 (3.38)

« )

2022 2021
) 545,394 (367,664)
10,964,088 10,864,161
1,168 —
10,965, 256 10,864,161
4.97 (3.38)
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2021 30
2021 10 12
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2022 30

30

2022 2021
) )
2.5 274,102 — —
2.5 274,102 — —
3.0
2022 11 11 11 29
2023 30
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Oooooooo
11
.
2022
2021 11,848,653 10,004,992 25,007,809 2,250,370 1,036,248 3,385,037 1,400,408 55,024,417
123,481 — 670,654 23 691 — — 794,849
441,039 42,410 16,391 24,911 23,995 1,257 1,457,131 2,007,134
(506,819)  (735,942)  (581,559)  (98,036)  (20,033) —  (107,164) (2,049,553)
(283) @) (59,592) (2.860)  (92,681) (144) (443)  (156,006)
(5.954)  (67,391) (9,506) (83) — — (20,028)  (102,962)
10,300 — — — — — — 10,300
137,379 361,965 665,964 38,630 25,384 44,461 (1,273,783) —
13 — — (25,381) — — — 109,764 84,383
N C 12 1505 — — — — (11,501) — 3,574
14 200,002 — — — — — — 200,002
(7,905) (3,916)  (51,255)  (59,469) (233) (103) (5,765  (128,646)
2022 30 12,254,968 9,602,115 25,633,525 2,153,486 973,371 3,419,907 1,560,120 55,687,492
2021 3,712,361 934,728 15,101,093 1,191,626 725,557 1,238,734 — 22,904,009
250,006 86,986 931,843 145,227 64,858 137,206 — 1,616,126
(126,910)  (69,497)  (283,582)  (46,214) (9,406) — —  (535,609)
(2,270) (6,461) (1,894) (83) — — — (10,708)
— @) (53,807) (2.821)  (74,380) — —  (31,011)
3,865 — 1,924 (1,041) (4,748) — — —
N C 1 1387 — — — — (4,281) — 9,595
(3,412) (934)  (46,598)  (57.266) (121) 228 —  (108,103)
2022 30 3,847,516 944,819 15,648,079 1,229,428 701,760 1,371,887 — 23,744,389
2022 30 8,407,452 8,747,296 9,984,546 924,058 271,611 2,048,020 1,560,120 31,943,103
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2020
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2021 30
2020
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2021 30
2021 30

14

12

12
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oooooog
.

11,633,752 8,944,577 24,954,429 2,062,754 1,060,267 3,078,916 1,142,842 52,877,537
98,501 29 34,301 26,700 10,198 12,548 1,767,667 1,949,944
371,185 854,220 931,493 103,214 (14,160) — 122,029 2,367,981
(333,999) (7,175)  (906,219) (11,352) (62,453) (415) (60) (1,321,673)
(101,545) — (231,517) (1,945) (1,180) — — (336,187)
25,767 — — — — — — 25,767
398,917 333,631 536,583 96,147 43,576 218,369  (1,627,223) —
_ _ _ — — — (1,890) (1,890)
— (30,290) — — — — — (30,290)
(237,509) — — — — 86,695 — (150,814)
(6,416) — (311,261) (25,148) — (10,176) (2,957)  (355,958)
11,848,653 10,094,992 25,007,809 2,250,370 1,036,248 3,385,937 1,400,408 55,024,417
3,814,964 781,062 14,952,357 1,033,909 735,870 1,084,121 — 22,402,283
248,953 87,566 945,669 153,558 70,034 145,016 — 1,650,796
66,953 73,275 538,504 38,496 (26,049) — — 691,179
(318,262) (7.175)  (889,951) (9,119) (53,377) (81) —  (1,277,965)
(64,028) — (204,014) 1,722) 921) — — (270,685)
5,426 — 61,766 — — — — 67,192
(34,853) — — — — 19,699 — (15,154)
(6,792) — (303,238) (23,496) — (10,021) — (343,547)
3,712,361 934,728 15,101,093 1,191,626 725,557 1,238,734 — 22,904,099
8,136,292 9,160,264 9,906,716 1,058,744 310,691 2,147,203 1,400,408 32,120,318

216/624
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2022
2021
940,023 8,015,275 1,789,498 1,076,247
6,083 2,509 — —
946,106 8,017,784 1,789,498 1,076,247
9,265 6,176 — 108,040
428,899 7,561 4,131 448
(26,126) (482,089) 12,048 (10,652)
(258) (25) — —
— (5,954) — _
— 10,300 — —
193,706 830,035 (235,116) (437,015)
— (7,693) 13) (199)
2022 30 1,551,592 8,376,095 1,570,548 736,869
1,545,767 8,373,586 1,570,548 736,869
5,825 2,509 — —
2022 30 1,551,592 8,376,095 1,570,548 736,869
2021
40 2,645,957 673,704 384,104
— 845 — —
40 2,646,802 673,704 384,104
— 194,948 39,059 15,239
— (145,320) 10,255 8,155
— (2,270) — —
— 68,094 5,541 (56,043)
— (3,200) 13) (199)
2022 30 40 2,759,054 728,546 351,256
1,545,727 5,615,402 842,002 385,613
5,825 1,639 — —
2022 30 1,551,552 5,617,041 842,002 385,613
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11,840,061
8,592

11,848,653
123,481
441,039

(506,819)
(283)
(5,954)
10,300
352,456
(7,905)

12,254,968

12,246,634
8,334

12,254,968

3,711,516
845

3,712,361
250,006
(126,910)
(2,270)
17,741
(3,412)

3,847,516

8,399,988
7,464

202 ( )

2021
19,018
19,01;
i
2022 30 19,8;;
19,864
2022 30 19,8;;

2021
7,711
7,7;;
760
o
2022 30 8,6;;
11,244
2022 30 11,2;;

8,407,452
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2021
2020
929,367 7,811,313 1,941,916 923,116
6,083 2,509 — —
935,450 7,813,822 1,941,916 923,116
52 4,601 2,098 91,750
15,979 418,081 (47,575) (15,300)
— — (101,545) —
(1,586) (330,090) (1,931) (392)
— 25,767 — —
(3,789) 85,638 (3,434) 82,993
— (35) @31 (5,920)
2021 30 946,106 8,017,784 1,789,498 1,076,247
940,023 8,015,275 1,789,498 1,076,247
6,083 2,509 — —
2021 30 946,106 8,017,784 1,789,498 1,076,247
2020
40 2,677,090 766,700 362,906
— 797 — —
40 2,677,887 766,700 362,906
— 172,111 47,439 28,696
— 130,864 (62,725) (1,186)
_ — (64,028) —
— (316,830) (1,040) (392)
— — 5,426 —
— (17,213) (17,640) —
— an (428) (5,920)
2021 30 40 2,646,802 673,704 384,104
939,983 5,369,318 1,115,794 692,143
6,083 1,664 — —
2021 30 946,066 5,370,982 1,115,794 692,143

219/624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

11,625,160
8,592

11,633,752
98,501
371,185
(101,545)
(333,999)
25,767
161,408
(6,416)

11,848,653

11,840,061
8,592

11,848,653

3,814,167
797

3,814,964
248,953
66,953
(64,028)
(318,262)
5,426
(34,853)
(6,792)

3,712,361

8,128,545
7,747

2021 ()

2020
19,448
19,448
(430)
2021 30 19,018
19,018
2021 30 19,018

2020
7,431
7,431
707
427)
2021 30 7,711
11,307
2021 30 11,307

8,136,292

220/624
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2022

2021

2022

2022

2020

2021

2020

2021

2021

2022

2021

30

30

30

30

30

30
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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7,627 9,083 16,710
358 177 535
— (108) (108)
7,985 9,152 17,137
7,346 5,644 12,990
129 93 222
— (86) (86)
7,475 5,651 13,126
510 3,501 4,011
7,395 9,292 16,687
232 429 661
— (638) (638)
7,627 9,083 16,710
7,116 5,719 12,835
230 551 781
— (626) (626)
7,346 5,644 12,990
281 3,439 3,720
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2022 2021 2022
1,606,957 1,641,525 222 781
24(c) 9,169 9,271 — —
1,616,126 1,650,796 222 781
2022 2021 2022
— 17,489 — —
8,156 2,544 170 973
8,156 20,033 170 973
2022 2021
152,124 157,962
1,652,384 1,229,752
1,804,508 1,387,714
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36.306

2021

( PPE
@
( ol
( FVLCD )

( EBITDA )

FVLCD

13

2022 30 ol
el
(2021 )

(2021
(2021 12 )

(2021

(2021

2021

24

168

14

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
23.733 )
30 5.3
PPE
FVLCD
2022 2021
9.1 7.6
19.7 27.6
31.4 53.1
PPE
) 2.5 (2021 2.5 )
(2021 25 )
168 (2021 47
2.0 (2021 3.0 ) 249
) EBITDA
76 (2021 60
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COVID-19
PPE

67.192

2022

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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2021

6.5 7.4

0.1 6.6

2241624
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2022
2021
13
1
«
2022 30
2022 30

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oooooog

91,699 396,231 590,302 1,037 3,133 629,912 203 1,712,517
14,716 47,276 62,838 2,081 114 1,600 — 128,625
— — — — — 17,658 — 17,658
(19,071)  (114,833) (31,130) (1,128) (166) (20,423) (3)  (186,754)
993 — (16,073) (80) (145) (6,315) — (21,620)

— (18,387) (7,408) @) (1,362) — — (27,628)
1,378 39,005 — — — (629) — 39,844
— — (115,734) — — — — (115,734)

— 7,220 (1,199) — — — — 6,021
89,715 356,602 481,596 1,439 1,574 621,803 200 1,552,929
145,805 1,246,218 566,150 2,307 7,703 938,499 209 2,906,891
(56,090)  (889,616) (84,554) (868) (6,129)  (316,696) © (1,353,962)
89,715 356,602 481,596 1,439 1,574 621,803 200 1,552,929

225/624



2021
2020
« )
2021 30
2021 30

13

11

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooooodo

104,089 564,135 391,052 2,480 5,293 568,619 367 1,636,035
12,800 21,421 38,998 — 1,546 13,289 — 88,054
(19,041)  (106,987) (31,987) (926) (3,422) (20,518) (157)  (183,038)
305 — 21,806 7 331 3,968 — 26,417

— — (99) — — (7.675) — (7,774)
(6,981) (5,474) (59) (524) (615) — ) (13,660)
(2,434) (9,868) ©) — — — — (12,309)
— — (759) — — — — (759)
2,961 (66,996) 171,357 — — 28,338 — 135,660
— — — — — 43,891 — 43,891
91,699 396,231 590,302 1,037 3,133 629,912 203 1,712,517
128,440 1,202,943 668,145 2,965 12,942 923,573 209 2,939,217
(36,741)  (806,712) (77,843) (1,928) (9,809)  (293,661) (6) (1,226,700)
91,699 396,231 590,302 1,037 3,133 629,912 203 1,712,517

226/624
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30

100 2021 80

13
623.163

12
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2022 2021
15,580 9,069
— 20,031
(6,677) (6,719)
— (6,801)
8,903 15,580
20,031 20,031
(11,128) (4,451)
8,903 15,580

(2021 525.083

2271624
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2022
11
12
2021
12

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

1,412,763 563,735 1,976,498
115 1,625 1,740
38,443 (16,223) 22,220
(9,190) (9,413) (18,603)
9,190 9,413 18,603
(42,009) — (42,009)
(84,383) — (84,383)
115,734 — 115,734
(13,205) — (13,205)
1,427,458 549,137 1,976,595
1,244,366 566,760 1,811,126
37,065 — 37,065
92,032 (3,281) 88,751
(8,890) (9,154) (18,044)
8,890 9,154 18,044
47,713 — 47,713
— 759 759
(8,413) (503) (8,916)
1,412,763 563,735 1,976,498

228/624



)
)
(2021 455
2022
2021
77.970

16.380

30

9.315

31

(2021

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooooOoog
22.220 (2021 88.751
18.603 (2021 18.044
455
)
— — 632,564 632,564
— — 682,500 682,500
— 46,487 615,044 661,531
— 46,487 1,930,108 1,976,595
— — 532,775 532,775
— — 679,100 679,100
— 44,460 720,163 764,623
— 44,460 1,932,038 1,976,498
87.255 (2021
(2021 11.320 )
8.506 )

229/624
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OooooOodd
@
39(b)
(b)
© ( )
()
6.50 7.50
(2021 6.50 7.50 )
()
6.00 7.00
( (2021 6.00 7.50 )
) 6.00 7.00
(2021 6.00
7.50 )

230/624
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ooooooo
)

2022 2021
* — - 1.5

18-28 18-28

(
0.5 31.4
CoVID-19
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@
23
V)
11

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

349,550 229,363 254,802 833,715
— 664 23,953 24,617
— (284) 284 —
— (8,717) (19,930) (28,647)
— — ™3 ™3
349,550 221,026 259,036 829,612
(530) (24,789) (480) (25,799)
349,020 196,237 258,556 803,813
— 181,401 78,111 259,512
_ — 2,593 2,593
— — (63,921) (63,921)
— 3,240 1,118 4,358
— (184,641) (15,361) (200,002)
_ — 2,540 2,540
349,020 196,237 261,096 806,353

232/624



2021
®@

O)

11

31
354.225

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd

420,278 226,453 260,591 907,322
94 2,910 10,428 13,432

— — (5,184) (5,184)
(70,822) — (11,033) (81,855)
349,550 229,363 254,802 833,715
(530) (24,789) (480) (25,799)
349,020 204,574 254,322 807,916
— 186,890 59,808 246,698

— — 18,313 18,313

— — (151) (151)

— (5.489) (1,749) (7,238)

— — 1,890 1,890

— 181,401 78,111 259,512
349,020 385,975 332,433 1,067,428

265.973 (2021
2050

233/624
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2022 2021
3,470,028 3,470,029
4,849,175 4,300,538

— 104
(85,874) (6,377)
8,233,329 7,764,294
3,609,909 3,602,462




EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2022 2021
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
98.04  98.04
100.00  100.00
X (UK) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
REIT 56.96  56.96

( YTL REIT )
100.00  100.00

SARLE

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

235/624
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OooooOodd
« D
2022 2021
100.00  100.00
93.17  96.64
55.57  55.57
YTL
)* ‘
100.00  100.00
*
sV 90.00  90.00
2022 2021
51.00  51.00
( )
51.00  51.00
( )
( )
2022 2021
( ) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00 —
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
2022 2021
scl 100.00  100.00
t

236/624
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2022 2021

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
93.80  93.80
o 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

25 100.00  100.00
70.00 70.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

(
)
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
93.80  93.80
C )
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( ) +
100.00  100.00
©) *
90.00  90.00
100.00  100.00
70.00  70.00
100.00  100.00
99.22  99.22
100.00  70.00
THP JV

237/624
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2022 2021

100.00  100.00

REIT 100.00  100.00
+
REIT 100.00  100.00
t
74.89  74.89
( ) *
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
t
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
REIT
*
100.00  100.00
REIT * SGREIT
2022 2021
77.04  68.61
98.04  98.04
(Sg. ) 98.04  98.04
98.04  98.04
*
49.02  49.02
68.63  68.63
*
68.63  68.63
*
77.04  98.04
(o]
98.04  98.04
77.04  98.04
00
(KL) 98.04  98.04
& 98.04  98.04
77.04  98.04
00
ChMCM 77.04  68.61
98.04  98.04

238/624
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2022 2021

98.04 98.04

98.04 98.04

98.04 98.04

68.63 68.63

68.63 68.63

68.63 68.63

77.04 68.61

77.04 68.61

98.04 98.04

H 77.04 68.61
(

98.04 98.04

98.04 98.04
t

98.04 98.04

77.04 68.61

98.04 98.04

77.04 68.61

77.04 68.61

77.04 68.61

98.04 98.04

98.04 98.04

— 63.98

LA 77.04 68.61
(
)

LA 77.04 68.61
(

239/624
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« )
2022 2021
LA 77.04 68.61
(
)
LCS 77.04 68.61
(
)*
LCS * 77.04 68.61
LCS * 77.04 68.61
LMCB 77.04 68.61

(o]
98.04  98.04
98.04  98.04
98.04  98.04
*
98.04  98.04
*
35.00  35.00
77.04  98.04
00
77.04  98.04
00
98.04  98.04
PHS 77.04  98.04
00
PMCWS 77.04  68.61
*
—  68.61
N
P.T. 98.04  98.04
*
77.04  68.61
(
)
RC 98.04  98.04
77.04  68.61
98.04  98.04
77.04  98.04
00
( ) 77.04  98.04
00
shC o 77.04  98.04

240/624
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2022 2021

50.00  50.00

77.04  98.04

77.04  68.61

71.85  63.98

71.85  63.98

98.04  98.04

) 98.04  98.04
98.04  98.04

) 98.04  98.04
77.04  98.04

98.04  98.04

98.04  98.04

) 98.04  98.04

) 98.04  98.04
98.04  98.04

) 98.04  98.04
77.04  68.61

98.04  98.04

98.04  98.04

) 98.04  98.04
) 98.04  98.04
98.04  98.04

98.04  98.04

241/624
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2022 2021
80.00 80.00
80.00 80.00
2022 2021
56.00 56.00
70.00 70.00
MSC 60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00

2421624
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Ogoooood
REIT
( YTL REIT )

2022 2021
( X 56.96  56.96
) X REIT( 56.96  56.96
) X REIT( 56.96  56.96
) X REIT( 56.96  56.96
) X REIT( ) 56.96  56.96
REIT( 56.96  56.96
) ( ) 56.96  56.96
C ) 56.96  56.96
- ) 56.96  56.96
g ) 56.96  56.96
REIT( X ) 56.96  56.96
REIT G.K.* 56.96  56.96
REIT MTN 56.96  56.96

2022 2021
100.00  100.00
Cy 100.00 —
* 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

90.00 90.00

80.00 80.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

243/624
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

(
2022 2021
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
64.00  64.00
—  51.00
*N\
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
P.T. 1 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
*
RW 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
*
—  100.00
[e¢]
( 100.00  100.00
t
( 100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
t
( 100.00  100.00
+

244624
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2022 2021

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

* 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

t 100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
1CHM 70.00 70.00
( 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2022 2021

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2022 2021

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00

100.00  100.00

100.00 —

100.00  100.00

245/624
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2022 2021

93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64

93.17 96.64
65.22 67.65
93.17 96.64

93.17 96.64

93.17 96.64

PYP 93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64

93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64
SR 93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64
93.17 96.64

93.17  96.64
M H)

93.17 96.64

¢ YL )
2022 2021
# —  55.57
46.04  46.04

246/624
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( YL )
« )
2022 2021
1 55.57 55.57
46.04 46.04
*
33.34 33.34
*
55.57 55.57
t
— 55.57
N
1 55.57 —
55.57 55.57
33.34 33.34
( )
1 55.57 36.12
55.57 55.57
* 38.30 38.30
38.30 38.30
*
38.30 38.30
) 55.57 55.57
*
1 55.57 55.57
( ) 1 55.57 55.57
38.90 38.90
( 55.57 55.57
) 1
KJS * 23.34 23.34
33.34 33.34
*
55.57 55.57
+
* 55.57 55.57
P.T. 55.54 55.54
t
P.T. 55.01 55.01

2471624
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ooooood
C Y )
C )
2022 2021
P.T. 52.79 52.79
t
P.T. 44 .46 44 .46
*
55.57 55.57
*
55.57 55.57
*
SC GmbH* 55.57 55.57
SC GmbH* 55.57 55.57
SC 55.57 55.57
*
SIPP 38.90 38.90
55.57 55.57
55.57 55.57
*
55.57 55.57
*
* 38.90 38.90
55.57 55.57
t
55.57 55.57
t
55.57 55.57
*
55.57 55.57
t
* 55.57 55.57
55.57 55.57
t
55.57 55.57
*
55.57 55.57
*
55.57 55.57
t
55.57 55.57
t

16.34 16.34

248/624
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( N ( YL )
2022 2021
33.34  33.34
( —  55.57
) N
55.57  55.57
t
55.57  55.57
*
33.34  26.67
33.34  33.34
t
33.34  33.34
33.34  33.34
® *
55.57 —
*
DC No.l 55.57 —
*
DC 55.57 —
+
55.57  55.57
(UK) *
55.57  55.57
55.57 —
+
33.34  33.34
55.57  55.57
(UK) 1
55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
t
55.57  55.57
t
( 55.57  55.57
) *
33.34  33.34
t
55.57  55.57
*
55.57  55.57

249/624
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OooooOodd
( YL )

2022 2021
55.57  55.57
' 55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
X 55.57  55.57
31.75  31.75
55.57  55.57
31.75  31.75
N 55.57  55.57
X 55.57  55.57
X 55.57  55.57
" . 55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
' X 55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
' 55.57  55.57
X 55.57  55.57
( ) 55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
)(UK) i X 55.57  55.57
RE 55.57 —
! 55.57 —

*

55.57  55.57

250/624
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oooooog
( YL )
«C )
2022 2021
¥ 55.57 55.57
SIPP 38.90  38.90
+ 55.57 —
55.57  55.57
55.57 55.57
i 55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
i 55.57 55.57
i 55.57  55.57
55.57  55.57
i 55.57 55.57
i 55.57  55.57
i 55.57  55.57
. o)
* 55.57 55.57
Ezi) * 55.57  55.57
2022 2021
100.00  100.00
( ) * i 100.00  100.00
ES) . * 100.00  100.00

251/624
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2022 2021

S H -+

2023

252/624

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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@
(@)
( TPL )(
) 2022 31
2022 TPL
839,729
(771,915)
67,814
779,408
17,658
42,663
(67,814)
771,915
a)
11.9
b)
c)
2022 2022 30 95.3

2.5

253/624
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d)
2021 12 28
TPL
5.3
2022 2038

Q)
2022

)
2022

92,254
1,773

(2,982)

(61,033)

(14,035)

15,977

4,916

20,893

254/624



2021

)
2021 27

600,000,000 893

255/624
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( YTL )

) 100

YTL

66,731
7,819
18,288
6,551
40,373
65,906
64,353
697

(14,689)

(2,288)

253,741
58,620

257,620

569,981

569,981
(35,821)

(28,499)

505,661

(64,353)

441,308




(

)

2021 28
( YTL

3.67
YTL

YTL

YTL

( 11.34

256/624
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100 1,000,000

100
946,598
74,233
25,262
(659,601)
(526,749)

(113)

(140,270)
1,592

150,021

11,343

11,343

(8,253)

3,090

(25,262)

(22,172)




©

©)

NCI

NCI

NCI

2022

2021

12

2022

30

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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( MCB )
( YTLCB )
10
) 2021 21
( NCI )
YTL YTL REIT
44.43 43.04 22.96
2,909,427 667,554 926,310 77,444 4,580,735
736,517 9,863 17,947 85,538 849,865
38,990,888 4,758,782 8,664,312
12,010,329 143,468 1,760,970
(30,739,651) (1,417,182) (3,130,105)
(6,204,409) (712,320) (1,516,250)
14,057,157 2,772,748 5,778,927

257/624
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2022 30
17,804,728 363,857 2,705,272
1,185,269 83,872 82,085
1,670,954 134,838 85,463
1,305,699 112,560 244,238
(336,212) (12,164)  (1,626,940)
(
) (2,706,341) (119,365) 1,850,399
(1,736,854) (18,969) 467,697
NCI 161,981 30,699 —
YTL YTL REIT
2021
et 44.43 43.04 31.39
NCI 2,149,225 688,389 341,890 369,972 3,549,476
NCI 571,591 25,290 1,862 7,527 606,270

258/624



2021 30
2021 30
« )
)
NCI
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38,217,030 4,722,499 2,947,059
13,857,305 149,375 711,630
(31,834,534) (2,011,461) (449,738)
(7,332,376) (155,094) (667,482)
12,907,425 2,705,319 2,541,469
10,784,730 326,276 1,369,508
(103,128) 82,830 12,230
1,219,977 220,384 13,192
1,329,362 98,349 83,156
(1,126,263) (1,541) (39,165)
1,072,823 (142,007) 13,763
1,275,922 (45,199) 57,754

71,991 33,642 _

259/624
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16

2022 2021 2022 2021
2,159,384 2,136,563 358,780 358,780
1,062,871 1,329,763 205,241 205,241

552,755 843,574 — —
(70,687) (66,826) — —
3,704,323 4,243,074 564,021 564,021

260/624
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2022 2021

45.00 45.00
50.00 50.00
50.00 50.00
49.00 49.00
49.90 49.90
37.17 37.08
49.02 49.02
29.41 29.41
49.02 49.02
20.58 20.58

261/624
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2022 2021
30.00 30.00
Q
— 32.00
Q*#
Qx> 49.00 49.00
50.00 50.00
— 18.62
+*4
1 16.67 16.67
P.T. +* 11.11 11.11
*
Q 12 31
b3
+ P.T. 35.0
#
30

12 31

262/624
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P.T.
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
4,295,878 4,304,549 — 11,722,324 9,207,054 9,166,045
1,256,541 1,068,000 — 152,288 281,595 350,494
(636,364) (584,005) — (8,216,984)  (3,117,482)  (3,530,898)
(402,760) (377,162) — (1,937,427) (524,219) (144,864)
4,513,295 4,411,382 — 1,720,201 5,846,948 5,840,777
— — — — (315,357) (307,842)
4,513,295 4,411,382 — 1,720,201 5,531,591 5,532,935
878,196 883,965 131,613 155,880 167,288 173,297
— — 117,306 143,973 66,128 68,660
878,196 883,965 248,919 299,853 233,416 241,957
2,473,393 2,233,971 878,925 1,287,212 579,735 555,862
362,742 377,463 — — 98,026 59,473

263/624
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®
P.T.
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
) 4,411,382 4,746,519 1,720,201 1,334,380 5,532,935 5,435,515 11,664,518 11,516,414
— — — — 17,612 24,939 17,612 24,939
— — — — 25,743 11,066 25,743 11,066
878,196 883,965 131,613 155,880 167,288 173,297 1,177,007 1,213,142
— — 117,306 143,973 66,128 68,660 183,434 212,633
260,122 (140,636) 16,547 85,968 173 @) 276,842 (54,670)
(1,036,405) (1,078,466) — —  (278,288)  (180,540) (1,314,693) (1,259,006)
— —  (1,985,667) — — —  (1,985,667) —
20 ) 4,513,295 4,411,382 — 1,720,201 5,531,591 5,532,935 10,044,886 11,664,518
35.00 35.00 — 33.50 37.17 37.08
1,579,653 1,543,984 — 576,267 2,056,092 2,051,612 3,635,745 4,171,863
17.089 (2021 18.554 )
68.578 (2021 71.211
) 5.006
(2021 52.415 )
70.351
124 .888
(2021  54.537 )

264/624
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2022

23

(10.24

)
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

33.5 32.22
12.72

2,196,575

(230,007)

1,966,568

(665,198)

1,301,370
9,341

(38,452)

1,272,259




EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2022 2021
342,721 270,814
(60,226) (104,480)

(9.559) (4,286)
272,936 162,048
2022 2021

38.52 34.31

50.00 50.00

46.59 48.32

27.79 —

25.01 25.01

25.01 25.01

25.01 25.01

27.79 27.79

16.67 16.67

266/624
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@)
AP
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
10,171,057 8,737,246 8,874 10,493 770,153 —
100,228 53,470 226,501 254,370 49,571 —
(9,447,794)  (8,223,117) — — (535,173) —
(555, 952) (545,007) (201,628) (126,247) (15,547) —
267,539 22,592 33,747 138,616 269,004 —
« ) (78,889) (37,795) (108,701) (68,885) 150,745 —
312,684 137,848 — — — —
« ) 233,795 100,053 (108,701) (68,885) 150,745 —
— — 37,415 86,824 70,764 —
4,145 18,209 4,931 65,226 29,227 —
(4,236,826)  (2,838,900) — — (118,664) —
(5,202,829)  (5,096,265) — — (416,481) —
(28,710) (280,124) — — — —

267/624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
()
AP
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
) 22,592 (80,459) 138,616 214,230 — — 161,208 133,771
( )

— — — — 113,500 — 113,500 —

¢ ) (78,889) (37,795)  (108,701) (68,885) 150,745 — (36,845)  (106,680)
312,684 137,848 — — — — 312,684 137,848

11,152 2,998 3,832 (6,729) 4,759 — 19,743 (3,731)
30 ) 267,539 22,592 33,747 138,616 269,004 — 570,290 161,208

45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0 50.0 —

120,393 10,166 15,186 62,377 134,502 — 270,081 72,543

(120,393) (77,419) — — — — (120,393) (77,419)
— 67,253 — — — — — 67,253
— — 15,186 62,377 134,502 — 149,688 62,377

123.2 (2021 99.7
) 32.4 (2021 70.1
) 109.6
(2021 8.0 )

268/624
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2022 2021 2022 2021
18(a) 99,978 50,783 14,153 44,300
18(b) 241,550 254,935 9,598 9,599

341,528 305,718 23,751 53,899
18(a) 1,500,569 2,473,454 545,668 654,708

269/624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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2022 2021 2022 2021
3 349,572 — —
740,820 1,402,883 — —
— 7,771 — 7,771
— 23,842 — 23,842
5,708 4,853 5,708 4,853
8,445 7,834 8,445 7,834
85,825 6,483 — —
759,746 720,999 545,668 654,708
1,600,547 2,524,237 559,821 699,008
(105,517) (1,401) (7,405) (4,480)

270/624
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(b)

2022 2021 2022 2021
8,059 9,374 4 4
7,369 15,214 — 1

185,034 209,887 — —
21,215 20,415 9,594 9,594
19,873 45 — —

241,550 254,935 9,598 9,599

(65,685) (91,770) — —

271/624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooooOoog
19
2022
161,623 8,138,526 617,277 72,324 8,989,750
62 — 68,738 — 68,800
— 68,789 — — 68,789
4,142 195,316 (38,617) (860) 159,981
NCI — 119,338 — — 119,338
_ — (9,064) — (9,064)
165,827 8,521,969 638,334 71,464 9,397,594
(43,671) (112,762) (293,935) (39,307) (489,675)
(2,384) — (61,709) (4,669) (68,762)
(3,634) 1,880 17,359 119 15,724
(92,766) (51,159) (30,075) — (174,000)
— — 9,064 — 9,064
(142,455) (162,041) (359,296) (43,857) (707,649)
2022 30 23,372 8,359,928 279,038 27,607 8,689,945

2721624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2021
161,090 8,239,623 545,647 89,996 9,036,356
682 — 30,482 — 31,164
— (60,226) — (19,233) (79,459)
(149) 56,238 41,148 1,561 98,798
NCI — (97,109) — — (97,109)
161,623 8,138,526 617,277 72,324 8,989,750
(34,148) (122,040) (217,544) (31,530) (405, 262)
(8,506) — (63,304) (7,698) (79,508)
— 11,261 — — 11,261
— (1,269) — — (1,269)
(1,017) (714) (13,087) (79) (14,897)
(43,671) (112,762) (293,935) (39,307) (489,675)
2021 20 117,952 8,025,764 323,342 33,017 8,500,075

273/624
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OOooOoOoOoo
( cou
2022 2021
( A ) 4,789,825 4,604,676
( B ) 818,770 818,770
( c ) 988,945 988,945
( D 314,356 314,356
E ) 213,113 202,770
( F ) 204,107 199,151
( 308,734 301,381
722,078 595,715
8,359,928 8,025,764

CGU
CGU

CGU

2741624
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CGU

CGU

CGU

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2751624

oOoOooodn
2022
A B C D E F G
) 6.52 3.02 5.30 5.30 6.50 6.50 6.40
2.00 1.48 1.90 1.90 1.00 2.70 3.88
1.95 (0.17) 27.54 19.54 4.00 8.18 2.52
2021
A B C D E F G
) 6.30 3.11 8.00 8.00 7.40 7.40 7.60
2.00 0.31 2.20 2.20 5.10 5.10 5.32
3.46 0.04 19.00 19.00 4.00 4.46 2.28
CcGcu
CcGcu
A
ceu
B
OFWAT (2021
)
C D
ceu



CGU

CGU

CGU

(b)

(2021

1.269

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

15
15
CGU
2022
A B c D E F G
10.51 34.00 14.63 37.70 16.70 7.38 6.50
(3.61) 1.12 (15.05)  >(100.00) (21.60) 1.39 4.14
(2.49) (12.31) 21.14 13.46 0.80 (26.57) 2.26
2021
A B c D E F G
7.84 24.10 23.13 23.12 19.50 7.75 8.02
0.07 0.09 (41.37) (41.30)  (20.70) 4.66 7.06
1.32 (2.40) (28.40) (28.40) (1.20) (12.09) 1.93
CGU 1.159

276/624
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OoOoOoOoOodno
20
2022 2021
395 404
o 524,744 13,344
* 10,412 5,662
535,156 19,006
(332) (332)
C ) 534,824 18,674
8,075 8,049
9,128 6,257
32(a) 4,306 7,586
— 230,533
1,960,963 1,273,933
(27,208) (2,600)
) 1,933,755 1,271,333
FVTPL 275,745 269,178
2,766,228 1,812,014
*o 6.08 () 507.1
2027
* 18.603 (2021 18.044
2023 2029
13.25 2030 10
Q 15.00



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2022 2021 2022 2021
2,796,453 2,247,998 — —

6,261 17,240 — _

2,802,714 2,265,238 — —

(538,098) (537,206) — —

2,264,616 1,728,032 — —

458,345 411,203 8,307 8,077
(90,127) (87,524) (1,765) (1,765)

368,218 323,679 6,542 6,312

1,291,969 946,467 — —

(7,997) (8,191) — —

1,283,972 938,276 — —

609,980 476,686 171 444

32(a) 3,326 4,107 — —
197,802 235,992 1,575 1,071

4,727,914 3,706,772 8,288 7,827

ECL ) 38(d)

278/624
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2022

1,616,795 390,643 8,606
1,914,237 39,619 315
14,404 5,352 13,425
8,543 884 745
3,612 — 16
436,498 23,107

415,891 21,740

20,607 1,367

436,498 23,107

2791624
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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2021

1,327,465 282,959 7,313
1,456,748 6,799 12,220
140,091 380 15,215
519 — 1

2,239 42 38
290,180 34,787

263,719 34,074

26,461 713

290,180 34,787

280/624
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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C )
2022
2022 -
808,266 351,157 710,406 (710,408)  1,764.4 2024
(HSFO)
2022 -
331,696 21,909 27,195 (27,195) 445.3
2022 11
(LNG)
476,833 8,971 10,566 (10,566) 409.6 2022 )
(ICE : . g ’ : 2024
BRENT)
4.2 2022 -
1,914,237 39,304 52,602 (52,602)
2025
1.00
14,404 (8,073) (313,739) 313,739 426.0 2022 )
’ g ’ g : 2022 12
2021
2021 -
1,083,003 256,005 524,520 (524,520)  1,360.6 2023
(HSFO)
244,462 19,641 18,548 (18,548) 271.5 233;2 :
(LNG)
4.1
1,456,748 (5.421) (45,251) 45,251 2021 }
2023 10
1.00
2021 -
140,091 (14,835) (25,263) 25,263 312.8 2022

281/624
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@
24 (2021 24 )
®
31 (2021 28 )
©
(2021 )

(Uniform Singapore Energy Price)

282/624
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2022 2021
60,210 53,722
241,060 146,659
72,127 47,380
— 93,064
87,348 107,623
235,352 212,450
370,263 309,145
183,049 166,884
1,249,409 1,136,927

283/624



23

2022

14(a)

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

141,460

55,417

(12,904)

80,856 11,401 233,717

— 8,157 63,574
(1,468) — (1,468)
8,717 19,930 28,647

— — (12,904)

183,973

88,105 39,488 311,566

284/624

(1,468)
(6.272)
(7.,740)

303,826
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2021

74,397 80,856 11,401 166,654
58,085 — — 58,085
8,978 — — 8,978
141,460 80,856 11,401 233,717
(1,468)

(1,468)

232,249

285/624
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24

286/624

2022 2021
2,084 106

13 62
(28,638) (31,958)
205,692 192,587
24,663 25,003
(914,715) (1,182,102)
207,776 192,693
(943,353) (1,214,060)
(735,577) (1,021,367)
24,676 25,065
(277,524) (213,506)
(85,766) (224,212)
(327,394) (555,843)
(38,856) (24,284)
(6,255) (3.,127)
218 (395)
(735,577) (1,021,367)




@
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EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2022 2021
154,544 154,866
(1,718) (1,483)
3,916 1,070
(270) 91
156,472 154,544
368,050 342,138
(330,183) (356,986)
425,412 353,008
(29,283) 29,890
433,996 368,050




(

(

)

)

2022

30

MFRS 15

(2021

359.1

288/624
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2022 2021
24,738 27,316
39,378 36,419
(1,537) (3,043)
(36,088) (38,146)
(1,815) 2,192
24,676 24,738
2022 2021
11 33
24,665 24,705
24,676 24,738
)
(2021 10 )

oOoOooodn

413.8
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
()
2022 2021

(224,212) (43,418)

488,846 235,488

(336,553) (253,523)

(14,433) (164,396)

586 1,637

(85,766) (224,212)

17,088 18,751

(102,854) (242,963)

(85,766) (224,212)

130.022
(2021  579.619 )

(2021 )

289/624
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OooooOodd
2022 2021
(555,843) (198,784)
1,136,228 1,514,505
21,017 (21,430)
(928,796) (1,850,134)
(327,394) (555,843)
9.169
(2021 9.271 )
67.696 (2021  67.696
) ( KTMB
105.616
( SRSB )  SRSB KTMB 1993 12 (2000 12 21
KTMB ) KTMB
17.8
(2021  24.8 ) (2021

290/624
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2022 2021
38,856 24,284

2022 2021
24,284 29,934
48,569 74,424

2022 2021
6,255 3,127




EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

25

OooooOodd
2022 2021 2022 2021
@
6 24 — _
— — 946,573 1,338,469
31,195 22,080 4,535 4,082
36,509 39,614 46 48
33,755 31,192 — —
101,465 92,910 951,154 1,342,599
)
329 344 — —
— — 6,467 4,409
2,615 8,267 75 51
610 479 — —
31,977 29,321 — —
35,531 38,411 6,542 4,460
©
3.80 (2021 3.79 ) 5.5
(2021 26.6 )
') 40

292/624
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
26
2022 2021 2022 2021
8,230,733 11,522,776 160,328 247,147
3,167,824 2,155,871 36,371 3,071
11,398,557 13,678,647 196,699 250,218
31 (101,892) (26,051) — —
11,296,665 13,652,596 196,699 250,218
1966 ) 7A 7.125
(2021 3.938 )
2022 2021 2022 2021
0.01-2.20 0.01-4.90 1.02-2.10 0.01-3.35
365 (2021 365 )
100.566 (2021 62.012
) 31
RAM
P1

293/624
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OooooOodd
27
2022 2021 2022 2021
11,022,762 11,022,762 3,467,555 3,467,555
11,022,762,340 (2021  11,022,762,340 ) 58,675,950

(2021 58,673,950 ) 2022 30

( ) 10,964,086,390 (2021  10,964,088,390 )

( )

@

2021 12

2,000 (2021 40,750,100 )
0.64 (2021 0.74
) 2016

127

2022 30 11,022,762,340 (2021  11,022,762,340 )
58,675,950 (2021 58,673,950 ) 54,451,886

(2021 54,450,601 )

()

( ) 2021 ( 2021 ESOS )

2021 2020 12
2021 ESOS 10 2021 ESOS
( )

ESOS

294/624
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OooooOodd
( ) 2021 ESOS 2021 ESOS
( ) 15
(
)
¢ ) ( )
( ) 2021 ESOS
(a) 18
()
(
)
©
(d)
( ) 13 2021 ESOS
(
) 10
( ) 13
10
11

( ) 12.2

295/624
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OooooOodd
( ) 2011 ( 2011 ESOS )

2011 2010 11 30

ESOS  ESOS (

2011 ESOS 2021 31
2011 ESOS

( ) 2011 ESOS 10 2011

( ) 2011 ESOS ESOS

15
¢ ) ( )

) 2011 ESOS
(a) 18

(b)

©

3.1C )

)
( ) 2011 ESOS

10

( ) 13

10 11

¢ )

296/624
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2021 2022 30

2022 27 2031 0.50 — 324,249 (8,492) 315,757
2022 23 2031 0.53 — 8,790 — 8,790
— 333,039 (8,492) 324,547

2020 2021 30

2012 16 2021 31 1.65 119,495 (2,070) (117,425) —
2018 14 2021 31 1.21 247,973 (3,221) (244,752) —
367,468 (5,291) (362,177) —

2971624
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OooooOodd
MFRS

2021 ESOS 2011 ESOS
28.94 22.1 —23.6
4.99 3.6 —4.5
) 3.1 3.1 —3.4

2022 2021 2022 2021
4,370 11,558 4,370 11,558
2,618 3,517 — —
_ — (2,253) (6,859)
— ) — “@
6,988 15,071 2,117 4,695

2021

298/624
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Ooooooog
28
ICULS
1
2022
97,305 27,023 803,039 — 19,096 (124,255) 70,191 892,399
— — — — — (62,868) 161,850 98,982
— — 1,719 — — — — 1,719
— — — — — — 21,367 21,367
) ( — — 1,719 — — (62,868) 183,217 122,068
ICULS — (27,023) — — — — — (27,023)
— — — — — 166 — 166
— — — 5,825 — — — 5,825
(270) — (5,860) — 1,192 — 4,938 —
97,035 — 798,898 5,825 20,288 (186,957) 258,346 993,435
2021
97,170 27,023 480,495 111,351 19,692 (42,123)  (181,073) 512,535
— — — — — (90,447) 252,778 162,331
— — 320,571 — — — — 320,571
) ( — — 320,571 — — (90,447) 252,778 482,902
— — — — — 8,313 — 8,313
— — — 13,512 — — — 13,512
— — — (91,580) — — — (91,580)
— — — (33,283) — — — (33,283)
135 — 1,973 — (596) 2 (1,514) —
97,305 27,023 803,039 — 19,096 (124,255) 70,191 892,399
1

299/624
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2022
— 2,759 2,759
— 105 105
4,370 — 4,370
4,370 2,864 7,234
2021
80,022 2,759 82,781
11,558 — 11,558
(91,580) — (91,580)
— 2,759 2,759

300/624
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2022 2021
1,349,708 1,285,291
68,758 —
35,941 50,795
62,090 116,710
5,441 11,845
1,521,938 1,464,641

301/624



30

4.0

5.375
1.75

1.369 1.374

1.489 1.495 1.499

2.186

30(a)

30(i)

30(a)
30(b)
30(c)
30(d)
30(e)
30(f)
30(9)
30(h)
30(1)

30(k)

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2022 2021 2022 2021
2,630,000 845,000 1,000,000 —
— 1,726,924 — _
2,630,000 2,571,924 1,000,000 —
7,219,623 9,768,631 2,240,000 3,240,000
464,999 484,047 — —
1,853,563 1,995,257 — —
1,063,730 1,144,932 — —
1,250,886 1,302,127 — —
1,250,886 1,302,127 — —
1,172,833 1,237,197 — —_
404,202 399,300 — —
1,325,071 1,425,701 — —
1,577,145 1,696,814 — —
17,582,938 20,756,133 2,240,000 3,240,000
20,212,938 23,328,057 3,240,000 3,240,000
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2022 2021 2022 2021
2,630,000 2,571,924 1,000,000 —
5,584,622 5,158,957 740,000 1,240,000
11,998,316 15,597,176 1,500,000 2,000,000
20,212,938 23,328,057 3,240,000 3,240,000

2022 2021 2022 2021
4.45 4.69 4.25 4.25
4.60 3.82 — —
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2022 2021 2022 2021
52 277,377 309,401 — _
75 2,150,258 2,871,768 — _
375 1,164,432 1,432,230 — _
-75 1,616,416 1,934,326 — _
-369 1.374 1,768,908 1,905,210 — _
489 1.495 1.499 1,761,868 1,897,627 — _
-186 351,131 470,366 — _
0 — 1,739,531 _ _
5 920,823 1,138,740 — _
25 1,106,674 1,558,430 — _
9,780,755 10,882,630 3,146,461 3,118,920
20,898,642 26,140,259 3,146,461 3,118,920
@ ( MTN )
() MTN
@ ( cp ) ( MTN )
2019 17 50
500 P
( )
2019 25 500 MTN
500 MTN MTN 4.60
MTN 2034 23
2020 24 3.65
500 MTN MTN 2030 24
2020 3.10

240 MTN MTN 2023
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(

(

(b) 2013 26
MTN
2013 25
10
25
2016 11 11
500
2036 11 11
2016 11 11
500
2026 11 11
)
MTN
(a) YTLPI MTN 2011 11
MTN
4.99 (2021  4.49 4.99 )
10 13 2028 24 )
(b) YTLPI MTN 2017 20
) ( )
5.05 (2021
)
YTL REIT MTN 2016 11
MTN
810
(a) 2017 23
MTN 2022 23
(b) 2017 11 YTL REIT
385

-5.05 )
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20
4.38 (2021  4.38 )
MTN MTN 2023
5.15 (2021 5.15 )
MTN MTN
4.63 (2021  4.63 )
MTN MTN
( YTLPI )
MTN 50
4.49
2023 24 2028 24 (2021
(
( ) 25
2027
REIT ( YTL REIT ) MTN
1,650
(2021 :810 )
65 MTN
MTN MTN 2024 11
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(c) 2017 11 23  YTL REIT 265
MTN MTN 2022 11 23
(d) 2019 24 YTL REIT 10 MTN
10 MTN MTN 2022 23
(e) 2019 28 W
85 MTN MTN 2023 28
(F) 2022 23 75 MTN
80
MTN MTN 2027 21
MTN 3.27 5.05 (2021 : 3.31 5.05 )
) ( YTL )
MTN
2016 YTL ( KCSB
) ( ) ( ) 500
(
) KCSB
KCSB
2017 13
2017 13 KCSB  KCSB 100
180
4.40 4.80 2018 2020
2017 12 13 2019 10 KCSB  KCSB
100
5.00 5.06 2020 12 2022
2019 10 KCSB  KCSB 120
4.10

2020
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2020 13 2020 2020 12 11  KCSB  KCSB
180 120 100
2023 13 2023 2023 12 11 4.60
4.55 4.40
2022 KCSB  KCSB 100
2023 10
4.25
(b) 3.52 ( RPIG )
RPIG 30 30
3.52 2022 30
6.37 (2021  4.38 ) RPIG 2023 30
(c) 5.75
2003 10 15
( )
2033 350 5.75
( 5.75 GU ) 5.75 GU 2003 10 15
5.75 GU 350 346,914,254
(2021 346,717,774 ) ( ) 2022 30 5.75
el
5.75 10 14 2033 10 14
(d) 5.375
2005 10
( )
( ) 2028 200
5.375 ( 5.375 GU ) 5.375 GU 2005 10
5.375 GU 200 199,088,549 (2021
198,955,933 )( ) 2022 30
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5.375 10 2028 10
() 1.75
2006 31 (
) ( )
75 1.75 ( ILG
) ILG 2006 31
ILG 31 31 1.75
2022 30 2.84 (2021  2.61 )
2046 31 2051 31
(F) 1.369 1.374
2007 31 (
) ( )
2057 75 1.369
75 1.374 ( ILG )
ILG 2007 31
ILG 31 31 1.369 1.374
2022 30 2.23 (2021 2.23 )
2057 31
(g) 1.489  1.495 1.499
2007 28 (
) ( )
2058 50 1.489
50 1.495 50

1.499 ( ILG ) ILG 2007 28
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ILG 11 29 29 1.489  1.495 1.499
2022 30 10.45 (2021  2.96 )
ILG 2058 11 29
(h) 2.186
2009 (
) ( )
2039 50 2.186 ( ILG
) ILG 2009
ILG 12 2.186
2022 30 11.18 (2021  3.66 ) ILG
2039
(i) 4.0
2012 24
( )
) 2021 200
( 6U ) GU 2012 24
el
GU 200 2021 24
2012 30
( )
) 2021 100
( 6U ) GU 2012 30
el

GU 100 2021 24
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a) 1.5

2019 17

1.5
2019
2029

( 1.5 GU

17 2020
1.5

1.5 6U
)(

250

247,745,458 ) 2022 30

1.5 17

(k) 1.25

2021 12

1.25 1.25 GU

(
1.25 U

295,179,730 )(

(2021
1.25 GU

294,857,025

1.25 12
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2029 250
(50 ) 1.5 GU
15 50
248,001,336 (2021
1.5 GU
2029 17
2036 300
1.25 GU 2021 12
300
) 2022 30
2036 12
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2022 2021 2022 2021
31(a) 101,892 26,051 — —
31(b) 2,281 1,542 53 140
31(c) — 1,122 — —
31(d) 3,184,041 2,770,314 1,066,855 1,066,855
31(e) 934,142 4,262,079 — —
31(F) 58,929 30,864 — —
4,281,285 7,091,972 1,066,908 1,066,995

31(b) 5,337 1,905 55 —
31(c) — 2,417 — —
31(d) 2,348,880 1,554,092 — —
31(e) 15,407,742 13,096,000 — —
17,761,959 14,654,414 55 —

31(a) 101,892 26,051 — —
31(b) 7,618 3,447 108 140
31(c) — 3,539 — —
31(d) 5,532,921 4,324,406 1,066,855 1,066,855
31(e) 16,341,884 17,358,079 — —
31(F) 58,929 30,864 — —
22,043,244 21,746,386 1,066,963 1,066,995
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2022 30
101,892 — — 101,892
2,281 5,337 — 7,618
3,184,041 2,213,880 135,000 5,532,921
934,142 14,580,145 827,597 16,341,884
58,929 — — 58,929
4,281,285 16,799,362 962,597 22,043,244
2021 30
26,051 — — 26,051
1,542 1,905 — 3,447
ICULS 1,122 2,417 — 3,539
2,770,314 1,554,092 — 4,324,406
4,262,079 12,156,531 939,469 17,358,079
30,864 — — 30,864
7,091,972 13,714,945 939,469 21,746,386
2022 30
53 55 — 108
1,066,855 — — 1,066,855
1,066,908 55 — 1,066,963
2021 30
140 — — 140
1,066,855 — — 1,066,855
1,066,995 — — 1,066,995
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2022 2021 2022 2021
1.75 1.10 — —
ICULS — 7.49 — —
2.52 2.45 3.00 2.72
2.51 2.02 — —
2.75 3.92 — —
@
(b)
1.49 4.28 (2021 4.97 )
2.15 2.27 (2021  2.27 )
2022 2021 2022 2021
2,340 1,540 56 141
5,808 2,135 57 —
8,148 3,675 113 141
(530) (228) ®) @
7,618 3,447 108 140
© ( ICULS )
2011 2021 ICULS
2011 10 31
( YTL ) 10 ICULS

0.50 992,378,023

313/624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2011 2021 ICULS

( )2011 2021 ICULS (
3.0 4.5
2011 2021 ICULS 6.0
( )2011 2021 ICULS YTL
1.32
0.99
0.66
( )2011 2021 ICULS 2011 2021 ICULS
( )2011 2021 ICULS
YTL
2011 2021 ICULS ( 15 )
ICULS 2021 10 31 ICULS 0.66
(D
80.0 (2021 347.905
)
®
)
(a) 431,602,500 [75 ]
0.72 (2021  0.72 1.21 )

2021 22
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(b) 1,068.600 [200 1(2021  1,150.940
[200 D
50
2015 30 2.36 (2021  2.16 2.36 )
2015 0.74
1.60 (2021  0.74 0.94 ) 50
2015 2.19 (2021  1.99 2.19 )
50 2016 25 1.07 2.19 (2021
1.07 1.61 ) 2024 30 2025 25
(c) 1,068.600 [200 1(2021  1,104,902,400
[200 1))
934,596,379 [174,919,779 1(2021
1,097,047,188 [190, 634,992 D( ) 2022 30
1.09 2.20 (2021  1.09 1.82 )
2026 31 60 40 2021 31
(d) 66,787,500 (12,500,000 )
2024 11 29
1.54
)
@) 1,038.575 [250 ]
( YTLPI ) 2017 31
1,035,850,635 [249,344,206 1(
) 2021 30 1.28 1.41 (2021
1.29 1.38 ) 2022 31
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(b) 881.100 [200 1(2021  830.860
[200 D
2020 11 25 877,320,081
[199.142 1(2021 824,761,488 [198.532 D(
) 2022 30 YTLPI
1.44 2.41 (2021  1.44 1.50 )
2023 11 25
)
3,380.0
(2021 1,925.206 )
)
(a) 6,315.372 [1,995.0 ]
2017 14
2022 12 5,998,315,191
(1,894,843,060 )(2021 :6,006,549,854 [1,943,741,458
D( ) 2022 30 2022
2027

(2021
) 1.61 2.79 (2021  1.55 1.84 )
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(b) 728.088 [230.0 ]
2022
725,582,165 (229,208,417 ) ( ) 2022
30
2.51 2027
(2021 276.729 )

Q)

(vi)

®
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32
2022 2021 2022 2021

170,939 6,844 6,716

1,245,678 1,303,867 2,339 9,056

1,416,617 1,483,958 9,183 15,772

@
2022 2021
11,693 15,886
63 —
681 573
(4,805) (4,766)

7,632 11,693
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2022 2021
3,326 4,107
4,306 7,586
7,632 11,693
2022 2021

3,622 4,507

2,598 3,524

1,345 2,597

537 1,345

— 537

8,102 12,510

(470) (817)

7,632 11,693
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* 15(0) (1)
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2022 2021
661,614 596,669
(40,017) 48,011
(18,999) (21,548)
(14,035) —

32,092 38,482
620,655 661,614
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2022 2021 2022 2021
3,068,801 3,060,349 113 113
3,060,349 2,164,004 113 113

52,278 611,681 — —
40,115 599,755 — —
(1,621) (1,621) — —
2,491 3,602 — _
9,222 12,711 — _
(3,583) (167) — _
18,538 (301) — _
(37,702) 15,355 — —
(1,590) 335 _ _
26,408 (17,988) — —
(187,835) 179,819 — —
1,781 6,431 — —
142,228 98,414 — —
3,068,801 3,060,349 113 113
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2022 2021 2022 2021
(128,747) (176,227) _ _
36,315 (108,232) — _
(279,836) (231,759) — _
(13,576) (5,612) — _
(3,530) (1,963) — _
(45,759) (102,999) — _
(435,133) (626,792) — _
435,133 626,792 — —
3,433,725 3,619,999 113 113
48,931 47,077 — _
21,278 20,065 — _
3,503,934 3,687,141 113 113
(435,133) (626,792) — _
3,068,801 3,060,349 113 113
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2022 2021
1,628,244 1,379,207
2,905,487 2,682,431
372,524 167,565
(372,561) (352,695)
4,533,694 3,876,508
2019
2019 2018 12 31
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35 ( )
2022 2021 2022 2021
35(a) 6,620 7,048 326 315
35(b) 21,734 21,764 — —
35(c) (174,802) 437,922 — —
35(d) 15,225 21,996 — —
(137,843) 481,682 — —
@
V)
()
()
2020
28
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2022 2021

3.9 3.9

5.0 5.0

0.5 « ) 897,240 947,875
(2021 959,471 1,017,212

2022 2021

21,764 21,937

921 901

(951) (1,074)

21,734 21,764
2022 2021

21,734 21,764
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26

17 18
c24 )

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2022

21,764
(951)
72

849

21,734

2022

72

849

921

2019 30
2022

15 59

(c23 c24
(c13 )
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2021
21,937
(1,074)
70
831
21,764
2021
70
831
901
2019 30
30
) (c23



(

(

)

)

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

30

157.0

16.60
18.40
20.20
22.00
23.80

2022

(838.9

30

(88.7
(98.3
(107.9
(117.5
(127.2

16.6

3271624
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2019 30

2026

24.6
7.4 2023
(88.7 )



30
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2022 2021
437,922 869,245
64,258 73,632
(134,094) (120,782)
(589) 63,158
(542,299) (447,331)
(174,802) 437,922
2022 2021
3,207,024 4,722,344
(3,381,826) (4,284,422)
(174,802) 437,922




30

30
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2022 2021
4,722,344 4,424,366
(275,586) 407,168
88,320 75,574
52,444 55,850
— 556
(153,576) (142,257)
(1,294,428) (38,343)
«C ) 67,506 (60,570)
3,207,024 4,722,344
2022 2021
4,284,422 3,555,121
(274,997) 344,010
82,132 61,682
134,094 120,782
(153,576) (142,257)
(5,626) (3,334)
(684,623) 348,418
3,381,826 4,284,422
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2022 2021
52,444 55,850
6,188 13,892
— 556
5,626 3,334
64,258 73,632
2022 2021
53,887 54,165
4,183 5,575
6,188 13,892
64,258 73,632
2022 2021
3.80 1.90
2.10-2.90 2.10-2.90
1.90 1.90
RPI1 3.00 3.00
CP1 2.50 2.50
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2022 2022 2021 2021
60 25.9 28.5 25.9 28.4
40 47.2 49.7 471 49.6
S3P(M/F)A 105
CM12018
1.0
MFRS 119
0.1 (3.8
3.7 ) 53,430 3,207,024 3,260,454 (174,802) (121,372)
0.1 (CPI
2.5 2.6 RPI 41,675 3,207,024 3,248,699 (174,802) (133,127)
3.0 3.1 )
106,326 3,207,024 3,313,350 (174,802) (68,476)

331/624



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2022 2021
1,073,409 31.7 1,790,287 41.8
1,892,491 56.0 2,097,588 49.0
249,518 7.4 240,546 5.6
166,408 4.9 156,001 3.6
3,381,826 100.0 4,284,422 100.0

2022 2021
(602,491) 410,100

(@

2022 2021
12,254 19,310
2,971 2,686
15,225 21,996

14
2022 30
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2022 2021
19,310 17,261
(4,756) 2,209
(675) (659)
465 (765)
(2,090) 1,264
12,254 19,310
2022 2021
12,254 19,310




30
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2022 2021
19,310 17,261
465 (765)
1,219 1,179
1,203 1,030
(6,197) —
(675) (659)
(981) —
(654) 1,650
(1,436) (386)
12,254 19,310
2022 2021
1,203 1,030
1,219 1,179
(6,197) —
(981) —
(4,756) 2,209




(

30

)
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)

2022 2021
2,971 2,686

2022 2021
2,686 2,455
659 478
— 20
(76) (158)
(298) (109)
2,971 2,686




30

2022

30
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2022 2021
2,686 2,455
(298) (109)
659 473
— 20
— 5
(76) (158)
2,971 2,686

2022 2021
659 473
— 5

2022 2021
7.3 6.3
9.0 9.0

6.90 (2021 :7.04 )
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2022 2021
(723) 794 (935) 1,044
1,134 (1,055) 1,778 (1,631)
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36(a) 36(b) 36(c) 36(d)
— 4,035 39,328 105,618 148,981
— — 623 — 623
— — 869 — 869
— 6 (349) (6,044) (6,387)
22,343 (3,575) 892 1,343 21,003
— (276) — (1,437) (1,713)
— — (759) — (759)
22,343 190 40,604 99,480 162,617
22,343 190 18,959 99,480 140,972
— — 21,645 — 21,645
22,343 190 40,604 99,480 162,617
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©

)
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36(a) 36(b) 36(c) 36(d)

4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
— 19,250 — 19,250
_ 902 — 902
6 40 2,339 2,385
— (7,304) — (7,304)
(781) — — (781)
— (1,977) (95) (2,072)
4,035 39,328 105,618 148,981
4,035 11,576 105,618 121,229
— 27,752 — 27,752
4,035 39,328 105,618 148,981
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37

2022 2021 2022 2021
2,286,487 1,892,457 — —
575,044 380,589 511 1,102
100 9,266 — —
196,604 118,185 — —
* 1,466,864 1,295,442 27,406 26,956
4,525,099 3,695,939 27,917 28,058
*
30 180 (2021 30 180 )
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1:

[278

1.13 (2021

1(2021

174

1:

1.20)

868
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844

[278 D
[5,401 1(2021 )

1 : 0.87 (2021 )
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®
2022 2021 2022 2021
18,897,981 22,943,057 3,240,000 3,240,000
8,990,479 12,243,775 705,996 901,855
23,358,201 22,131,386 1,066,963 1,066,995
32,348,680 34,375,161 1,772,959 1,968,850
50
116.8
(2021 110.6 ) 5.3
(2021 5.3 )
10
9.0 (2021 12.2 ) 0.7
(2021 0.9 )
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( FVTOCH ) ( FVTPL )
AAA
FVTPL
021 : )
15.0 (2021 :24.7
) 5.5 (2021 : 6.5 )
770.404 (2021 1,789.730 )

14.153 (2021 12.687 )
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2022
13,770 10 1,377
756,634 10 75,663
2021
363,799 10 36,380
1,425,931 10 142,593
2022
5,708 10 571
8,445 10 845
2021
4,853 10 485
7,834 10 783
(CST180 )
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(D

ECL MFRS ECL

13

( GDP )
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90 91 120 120
2022
1,619,984 185,254 18,925 978,551 2,802,714
1,291,969 — — — 1,291,969
208,065 — — — 208,065
3,120,018 185,254 18,925 978,551 4,302,748
(45,608) (9,171) (2.862) (480,457) (538,098)
(7,997) — — — (7,997)
(289) — — — (289)
(53,894) 9,171) (2,862) (480,457) (546,384)
3,066,124 176,083 16,063 498,094 3,756,364
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90 91 120 120
2021
1,132,272 226,779 37,135 869,052 2,265,238
946,467 — — — 946,467
192,712 — — — 192,712
2,271,451 226,779 37,135 869,052 3,404,417
(57,781) (18,349) (6,723) (454,353) (537,206)
(8,191) — — — (8,191)
19 — — — 19
(65,991) (18,349) (6,723) (454,353) (545,416)
2,205,460 208,430 30,412 414,699 2,859,001

MFRS
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ECL
ECL
ECL
12 ECL
90 ECL
365 ECL
12 ECL ECL PDx LGDx EAD
PD( )
LGD( )
EAD( )

PD LGD
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2020
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537,206 8,191 19 757 90,456 636,629
116,166 413 270 206 31,028 148,083
(25,398) — — — (94) (25,492)
(68,597) — — — (4,911) (73,508)
(21,279) (607) — — 1,188 (20,698)
538,098 7,997 289 963 117,667 665,014
557,230 7,568 110 134 156,748 721,790
107,121 — — 623 4,752 112,496
(36,085) (78) 1) — (69,114)  (105,368)
(112,623) — — — (1,952)  (114,575)
21,563 701 — — 22 22,286
537,206 8,191 19 757 90,456 636,629
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2020
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©

2022

2021

30

30
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116,665 1,765 118,430
(79,680) — (79,680)
36,985 1,765 38,750
116,859 1,765 118,624

(194) — (194)
116,665 1,765 118,430
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2022

4,524,999 103,472 — 4,628,471
8,696,349 26,457,760 21,652,692 56,806,801
258,765 742,219 1,122,104 2,123,088
35,531 — — 35,531
13,515,644 27,303,451 22,774,796 63,593,891
8,053 1,298 — 9,351
262 69 — 331
13,425 — — 13,425
21,740 1,367 — 23,107
2022
27,917 — — 27,917
2,208,298 1,092,800 1,956,625 5,257,723
7,074 2,358 — 9,432
6,542 — — 6,542
2,249,831 1,095,158 1,956,625 5,301,614
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2021

3,686,673 179,350 — 3,866,023
10,742,683 21,586,915 25,260,213 57,589,811
288,825 871,706 1,096,338 2,256,869
38,411 — — 38,411
14,756,592 22,637,971 26,356,551 63,751,114
7,192 121 — 7,313
11,629 592 — 12,221
15,253 — — 15,253
34,074 713 — 34,787
2021
28,058 — — 28,058
1,208,125 2,155,560 2,035,200 5,398,885
7,074 9,432 — 16,506
4,460 — — 4,460
1,247,717 2,164,992 2,035,200 5,447,909
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2022

18

20

21

18

21

20

25

26

26

— 99,978 — 241,550 341,528
2,481,355 275,745 — — 2,757,100
— — 20,607 — 20,607

— 1,500,569 — — 1,500,569

— 884 415,007 — 415,891
4,117,934 — — — 4,117,934
101,465 — — — 101,465
8,230,733 — — — 8,230,733
3,167,824 — — — 3,167,824
18,099,311 1,877,176 435,614 241,550 20,653,651

353/624
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2022

29 — — 103,472 103,472
30 — — 17,582,938 17,582,938
31 — — 17,761,959 17,761,959
32 — — 1,245,678 1,245,678
21 761 606 — 1,367
37 — — 4,524,999 4,524,999
21 — 21,740 — 21,740
25 — — 35,531 35,531
30 — — 2,630,000 2,630,000
31 — — 4,281,285 4,281,285
32 — — 170,939 170,939

761 22,346 48,336,801 48,359,908
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2022

18 — 14,153 9,598 23,751
20 8,117 — — 8,117
25 951,154 — — 951,154
18 — 545,668 — 545,668
26 160,328 — — 160,328
26 36,371 — — 36,371

1,155,970 559,821 9,598 1,725,389
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2022

30 2,240,000 2,240,000
31 55 55
32 2,339 2,339
37 27,917 27,917
25 6,542 6,542
30 1,000,000 1,000,000
31 1,066,908 1,066,908
32 6,844 6,844

4,350,605 4,350,605
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2021

18 — 50,783 — 254,935 305,718
20 1,536,579 269,178 — — 1,805,757
21 — — 26,461 — 26,461
18 — 2,473,454 — — 2,473,454
21 — 42 263,677 —_ 263,719
20 3,230,086 — — — 3,230,086
25 92,910 — — — 92,910
26 11,522,776 — — — 11,522,776
26 2,155,871 — — — 2,155,871

18,538,222 2,793,457 290,138 254,935 21,876,752
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2021

29 — — 179,350 179,350
30 — — 20,756,133 20,756,133
31 — — 14,654,414 14,654,414
21 39 674 — 713
32 — — 1,303,867 1,303,867
37 — — 3,686,673 3,686,673
21 — 34,074 — 34,074
25 — —_ 38,411 38,411
30 — — 2,571,924 2,571,924
31 — — 7,091,972 7,091,972
32 — — 180,091 180,091

39 34,748 50,462,835 50,497,622
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2021

18 — 44,300 9,599 53,899
20 7,383 — — 7,383
25 1,342,599 — — 1,342,599
18 — 654,708 — 654,708
26 247,147 — — 247,147
26 3,071 — — 3,071

1,600,200 699,008 9,599 2,308,807
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2021
30 3,240,000 3,240,000
32 9,056 9,056
37 28,058 28,058
25 4,460 4,460
31 1,066,995 1,066,995
32 6,716 6,716
4,355,285 4,355,285
(b
() ( )
() ( ) (
)
() ( )
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2022

— 884 — 884
— 1,500,569 — 1,500,569
14,153 85,825 — 99,978
5,352 430,262 — 435,614
15,428 19,873 206,249 241,550
34,933 2,037,413 206,249 2,278,595
— 761 — 761
13,425 8,921 — 22,346
13,425 9,682 — 23,107
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2021

_ 42 — 42
— 2,505,067 — 2,505,067
12,687 6,483 — 19,170
— 290,138 — 290,138
24,588 45 230,302 254,935
37,275 2,801,775 230,302 3,069,352
— 39 — 39
— 34,748 — 34,748
_ 34,787 — 34,787
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2022
14,153 545,668 — 559,821
4 — 9,594 9,598
14,157 545,668 9,594 569,419

2021
12,687 654,708 31,613 699,008
5 — 9,594 9,599
12,692 654,708 41,207 708,607
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@
)
2022 2021
136,128 96,227
60,001 61,221
18,102 3,122
11,152 10,813
8,874 14,681
13,240 26,370
21,311 21,190
P.T. 65,918 61,949
REIT 79,661 62,889
12,657 83,833
62,228 62,017
IT
26,252 34,064
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2022 2021
7,418 7,698
(b)
2022 2021
REIT
7,140 7,140
100,094 162,343
2,335 2,335
©
( )
2022 2021 2022 2021
64,322 45,101 2,157 1,558
5,011 2,568 146 73
661 971 — —
69,994 48,640 2,303 1,631

366/624
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2022 2021 2022 2021
512,861 644,980 — —
1,751,039 711,181 2,688 —
2022 2021
36,668 74,912
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(b)
)

2022 2021
207,302 182,310
143,414 134,703
121,392 118,459
109,328 110,107

91,716 108,115
7,367 51,670
680,519 705,364
32(a)
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2022

EDINETOOOO

1,191,901 703,561 3,909,865 509,346
(55,673) (9,890) (18,890) (205,124)
1,136,228 693,671 3,890,975 304,222
8,870 457 39,050 6,004
(11,758) (23,064) (204,715) (536,129)
— 4,518 38,625 (758)
62,279 (58,364) 264,157 465,412
— 41,543 80,617 2,738
726,271 2,395,191 10,016,018 13,410,426
385,719 857,431 4,264,718 13,104,356
491,819 328,796 1,145,728 1,524,770
6,204 9,247 124,018 434,453
7,577 (195) (15,873) 174,033
14,294 70,062 357,931 21,325

370/624
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2022

892,622 17,518,522 24,725,817

(175,254) (19,483) (484,314)

717,368 17,499,039 24,241,503

13,835 3,307 71,523

(152,194) (658,712) (1,586,572)

62,362 337,304 442,051

«C ) 192,515 622,938 1,548,937

2,071,862 1,780,499 3,977,259

6,858,457 34,959,162 68,365,525

2,929,795 20,714,163 42,256,182

1,337,443 7,738,782 12,567,338

67,137 1,395,025 2,036,084

« ) (190) 131,474 296,826
149,841 1,258,189 1,871,642
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1,569,261 427,633 4,117,477 527,590
(54,756) (6,921) (23,968) (224,610)
1,514,505 420,712 4,093,509 302,980
15,227 969 25,192 6,422
(7,243) (24,568) (193,455) (536,962)
— (6,803) 18,019 (44,305)
217,403 (153,565) 562,886 (242,338)
— 37,204 64,538 9,629
1,049,612 2,604,370 9,743,672 13,138,067
129,169 952,306 4,340,163 14,376,067
726,384 325,952 1,103,323 998,478
11,608 96,748 118,474 34,984
— (9,279) 59,338 3,474
22,433 82,024 378,902 19,674
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541,685 10,590,970 17,774,616
(175,089) (18,853) (504,197)
366,596 10,572,117 17,270,419

4,539 6,011 58,360
(175,724) (617,095) (1,555,047)
61,499 367,113 395,523
(380,299) 627,707 631,794
2,073,320 2,220,431 4,405,122
7,075,623 35,847,100 69,458,444
3,202,830 22,073,908 45,074,443
1,348,740 7,948,285 12,451,162
23,235 1,733,705 2,018,754
(25,449) 21,738 49,822
147,703 1,262,606 1,913,342
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2022 2021 2022 2021
5,570,614 5,775,438 11,777,165 11,850,527
4,387,341 3,852,723 20,297,664 21,373,358

13,200,534 6,450,301 9,157,038 8,135,788
1,083,014 1,191,957 3,737,058 4,017,163

24,241,503 17,270,419 44,968,925 45,376,836
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2022 2021
31,943,103 32,120,318
1,552,929 1,712,517
1,976,595 1,976,498
806,353 1,067,428
8,689,945 8,500,075
44,968,925 45,376,836

(b)
10
2022 2021
7,946,821 2,620,109
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43

30

31

26

)

40
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2022 2021 2022 2021
20,212,938 23,328,057 3,240,000 3,240,000
22,043,244 21,746,386 1,066,963 1,066,995
42,256,182 45,074,443 4,306,963 4,306,995
(11,398,557) (13,678,647) (196,699) (250,218)
30,857,625 31,395,796 4,110,264 4,056,777
12,938,529 12,788,485 6,192,757 6,307,840
43,796,154 44,184,281 10,303,021 10,364,617

70 71 40 39
17/2005
) 25
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2022 23 25
2022 30
19
(101 )
2022 30
45
2022 29
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Income Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note REO00 RM'O00 REO00 RM'000
HAaveniie 4 24,241,503 17,270,419 396,617 460,976
Cost of sales 5 (20,618, 658) {14.111.193) - -
Gross profit 3,622,845 2159.226 396,617 463976
Other operating Incame 1,666,990 Loi5.068 10,522 19,991
Sefiing and destribution costs (588.833) (496,336) -
Administration expences {1.205.583) 1L167 406) {69,045) [76,910)
Other operating expenses [B01.961) (#19.138) - -
Fimanda costs B [1.586,572) 1L555.047) {170.9849) {1?0672)
Share of fesdts of associated companios
anil jpint vantsres, net of tax 442,051 355,523 x -
Profit bafore tax ? 1.548.937 31794 167.105 242525
Income Tax expens ] (363.003) [959.178) [12,455) {3073)
Profit/[loss} far the year 1,179,934 (327,384) 154,650 239852
Attributable to-
Owners of the parent 545,304 |367.664) 154,650 239852
Hon-controlling ifemssts 634,540 40,280 - -
1.179,934 (327, 384) 154,650 230652
Earnings/{loss) per share
- Basic (sen) q 4.97 {338)
- Dilutied {sen) 9 497 [238)
Dividend per cidinary share jsen) 10 2.50 -

The accomganying accounting poicies and explanatony nares form an integral pa of e financlal statements
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YTL CORPORATION BERHAD | AMWUAL RCPORT 2022

Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Group Company
2022 zoz1 2022 2021
RM'00D RMO00 RMO00 RMODO
Profit/{loss) for the year 1,179,934 [327,384) 154,650 259,852

Other comprehensive incomef{loss):-

Iterns. that will not be reclassified sutmecuenily
1o InCome statement:-
= reqmeasurement of post-employment benefit
chligations 408,354 354,623 -
dhanges in the fair value of equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensve income
[PV (65,685) {31,770 =
- foneign currency translation (106,903 206,670 -

Iterns that will be roclassifiod submeguentiy
to intome statamant::

= csh fow hedges
- lar valug gain 284,748 453671 - -
- neclassification 38.452 - - -

= lanpign currency translation, net of imaesiment
hedges of foreign oparations

- Gl 14,952 368,445 -
- reglassilication (9.659) {47,875 -
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 564,290 L245.964 -
Total comprohensive incemae for the yoar 1744.233 G1A.560 154,650 230,852
Total comprehensive inceme attributable to:-
Cramearrs aif th paront 834,368 12300 154,650 239,852
Maor-controlling interests B49_865 BO6.290 - -
1,744,233 918560 154 650 739,852

The A0 oirgEanying aconuntng polcies and explanatory nates fomm an ntegral part of the financda stalements
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Statements of Financial Position
as at 30 [une 2022

Group Company
zoze 2021 zoze 2021
Note RMO00 RM'000 RMO00 RM'000
ASSETS
Non-curmant assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 31.943.103 32120318 4,011 arao
Right-nf-use assats 12 1,552,929 Lrasg B.903 15,580
Imvestment properties 13 1.976,595 1976498 - -
Dinvvelopmient expenditures 14 806,353 1,067,428 -
Imvestment In subsidiares 15 = - 8,233,329 7,754,294
Investment in assocates 16 3,704,323 4243074 564,021 564,021
Imestmant in jgint ventures 17 272,936 162048 - -
LR T EY 18 341,528 205718 23,751 53499
ntanghle msets 19 8,689,945 8,500,075 - -
Tradé and ather recaivables 20 2.766.228 Let2o4 - -
Comigact assots 24 2,097 168 - -
Post-mmplayment henefit assets E - 174,802 - - -
Daviwatve fmandial insiruments £l 20,607 chda] -
52.251.446 51,975,319 B8.834,015 BA0LS14
Currant assats
Emventories 22 1.249.409 L136,927 - -
Property development (osts & 303,826 £32,249 - -
Trowde and other iecehalies 20 4,727,914 106772 B.28@ 7.827
Comiract assels 24 230,355 217590 = =
Devivative lnancia imstuments il 415,891 £63.719 - -
Income tax assats 163,352 134,979 7.977 66EY
Amaunts due from related parses &3 101,465 52,910 951,154 L342599
Bngestmerts 1a 1,500,569 2471454 545,660 554,700
Fleed deposits a1 8,230,733 11522776 160,328 247147
Cash and bank balances o6 3167 824 2155871 36,371 o
20.081.338 Z1.937. 247 1,709,786 2262039
TOTAL ASSETS 72,342,784 71863566 10,543,801 10,663,553

The atcomganying accounting poickes and evplanatony nares fom an integral part af the financlal statements
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YTL CORPORATION BERHAD | AMWUAL RCPORT 2022

Statements of Financial Position

as at 30 june 2022
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RMOO0 RMODO RHOO0 RMOO0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the
parent
Share canital = 3,467,555 46T 555 3,467.555 467555
Cihed resenves 28 993,435 892,399 7.234 2753
Retained camings 8,531,991 BAB2 962 2,772,420 2 H9L977
Treasury shases, at cost 2hal (54.452) [54,451) [54.452) [54.451)
12,938,529 12786485 6,192 757 6,307,840
mar-rontroSing interests 4,580,735 1.549.476 - -
Total Equity 17,518,264 16337581 6,192,757 B.307,.840
Mon-current liabilities
L term payabiles 29 1.521.938 1.464,641 -
Cantract lishilities 24 28,638 A58 - -
Bonds 30 17,582,938 20,756,133 2,240,000 3.240,000
Bottowings 31 17,761,959 14,654 414 55
Liease Rabsfitics Ers 1.245.678 1303867 2,339 9,056
Grants and contributions EE] 620,655 661,614 - -
Delermad tax Babiilies 3 3,068,801 3.060.349 113 nz
Post-anmphyymant behelit abigaions £ 36,959 481 RS - -
Prowision fog Habdities and charges b 21.645 27,758 - -
Dervative fmancial imstruments 21 1,367 EOE | - -
41,890,578 42443123 2,242,507 3249163
Current labilities
Trade and other payatles 3r 4,525,009 3,695,929 Z27.917 20,058
Contract Kabilities 24 014,715 1182102 -
Dertvative financial mstruments 21 21.740 34,074 - -
Amounits dus to felatod partssd 25 35,531 1341 6542 4 480
Bonds 20 2,630,000 2571924 1,000,000 -
Brarowings &1 4,281,285 FoaLaiz 1.066.908 1L066.5995
Lease labiities Erd 170,939 160051 b,H44 6,716
Prowision for liabfities and charges 36 140,972 121,289 - -
Post-employment henalit ochigatiors 35 6,620 7048 326 315
Intorme tax Nabiities 206,041 159,692 - .
12,932,942 15082482 2.108,537 1106544
TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,823,520 57.525,605 4,351.044 4.355.713
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES T2.342.784 731,864,566 10,543,801 10662553

The acrompanying accounting palces and expanatory notes tarm an infegral par of the financial sTalements.
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Statements of Changes in Equity

for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

L Antributable to owners of the parent —-——— 1
@ Non-distributable - » - Dintributabbe -2
Share Drther Treasiary Hor-
capital Tesenies Retaned shares cantralling Tatal
[Mobe27)  [Mobe28)  eamings  [Mote Z7[a)j Toml  interests equity
Group - 2022 RM000 000 RAMTOGD RH000 RHO0D R 000 RHTO00
A july 2061 3,467,655 92,308 @ 462992 {54,451) 12,788,485 3540476 16,337,961
Profit lor the year : - - 545,394 - 545,354 634,540  L17H.G34
ey e ookt e . S . = WA Ve TN
Total comprehensive income for the: year - 122,068 TrLIn0 - 4368 B4OBES 1744333
Transactions with owners
(Changes in oompastion of e Goup - = [|46L4G4) - |4bl4E4)  STES26 111462
Corwerson of TULS - {7023 12450 - 14,533 10,756 13777
R laSalara o upon drigorsdl of Fnabstranls
desgrated 3t P00 - 166 (215) E (44 45 .
Divicders i - = [Er410E) - [ZT4l02)  (402,337)  (67G439)
‘Share: Dtion exenses = 5825 . - 5,825 - 5,825
Tredsry dwres - - - (11 [}1] - [}1]
At 30 [wne 2022 3,467,555 293435 653190 [54452) 12998,529 4580735 17.519.264

Thet SECTIMpaNyinG S000UNENG poKes and Sqlanzmey notes fom zn imega e of the finincal cEements
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

fommere e — Attrikautable to ewmers of the parent ——-——— —3
oo Won-distribwtable 3 o Distributable -3
Fharo Other Trasury LiE
capital TESBIVES Retalned shares conirelling Tatal
[Note 27}  (Nole 2B}  eamdngs  (Mote 2Tjaj) Total  interests equity
Growp - 2021 000 AM'000 R 000 RMOD0 RMO00 RMO00 000
AL 1 by 2029 3467555 525¥F  E9E2083 (SOLA3T)  L2ABDIF 149508 15609922
ILosiipri for the o - [IEIEEY (367564 20 (eTIRy
Other comprehenshe income foe She yase 402502 197,072 AT A LM
Tiotal comprehornan incomodfioss) for the yoer 482508 {1050 izn BT 1L ]
Transactions with swners
(harges in compasition of the Group fALEED 2a6E0 BAESY @53
Belassilieation ipen deaposd ol Imestments
desigraed at W00 B33 [EEE | ] * 20
[ v - v . (2TL238} [N
Share ddend - [LER] 471000 - - -
‘Shate option enperses (ELAE] - E 13512 1351
Shunp oplion lapiad [51.580) G580 . . .
Subsidiany’s share option iapsed Fi26% Eoli =] - X} Eli] -
TreasEy BaEs . : (30,314} 0314 . [EAE L3
AL 30 jure 2021 3467555 92390 BAE25E7 [B4451) 1ZTBEMES  AWOATE 1633796

The accomamngng arcnunting pokcies nd exEanatvy nates tem an infegesl pan of the Anseclal statemants

383/624

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 107



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

Statements of Changes in Equity
Tor the financial year ended 30 june 2022

L ~— Attributable to owners of the parent ———--—--———ened
Lasmesnriss Non-distributable <o e Distributable - -oeee ¥
Share Other Treasury
capital TRSEnes Retained shares
{Mote 27) (Nete 28) earnings (Mote 27]a}) Tatal
RHODO AMODO REFODO RHO0O RHODO
Company - 2022
An ] July 2021 3,467,555 2759 2,891.977 [54.451) 6,307,840
Profie for the yeal, epresenting 1o%al
comprehensie income for the year - - 154,650 - 154,650
Transactions with owners
Owidends pad - - (274.102) - [E74,102)
Redassxcation upon depasal of
invesTments designated at P00l - 105 [105) - -
Shire oohion expenses - 4370 - - 4370
TWW&'”'-_FH = = - 1 1)
AL 30 |une 2022 3,467,555 7.234 2,772,420 {54,452) 6,192,757
Coimpany - 2021
A1 july 2020 3467555 2.TEL 1038045 (50L837) GOBGT44
Profit for the year, regresenting total
comprehensie income for the year - - 230652 - P licvd
Transactions with cwners
Share dadend & - 477,700y 477,700 =
Share oplion exXpenses - 11,558 . - 11558
Share optien lapiad . [31.587) SL5ED - -
Treasury shares - - - (30.314) (I0.314)
An 30 june 2021 A4GT.5R5 2753 2891977 (S A5L) B.307.840

The aCcomparying accouming palicies and explanaton notes. form an integral pan of e imancial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMODO RMO00 RMODO RMO0O
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Pratit befone rax 1,548,937 GaLTe4 167.105 242925
Adprstments fom-
Adiustment on fair value of investmant proporties [3.617) [FLTOT) -
Amnisaton ol contract costs 1,537 3043 -
Amortisation of deferred incoma (6.008) [5.924) -
Amomisation of grants and contritiutions {18,993) [&1.548) -
AmaiiEation al intangibie Fsets BB, 762 Ta508 - .
Harl debits r=coverad (4.540) {2940 - (50}
Bad debits written off Z.704 L327 - -
Depreciation of popety, plang and egquipmesnt 1,606,957 1,641,525 78]
Depreciation of rght-of-use assets 186,754 183038 6677 6,719
Dividend Income {4.082) [11.250) (381,823 {446.865)
Fair vadue changes of limancial assets 93,114 lEs 7.405 4,480
Gair an disposal of investments {17.479) {2L718) [2.183) {2.088)
[Gainoss on dsposal of property, plant and
Equipment (T6.620) (43735} [36) Z
Gairi an dispersal of associated companies - nat (1.271.456) - - -
Gain on dispesal of wbddianes 14,916) [#07 541} -
Gain on lease moditication and eassessmant (B55) {a34) - -
Gairn om lsase Temination {991 [575) - (125}
Imparment osses - net 296826 49,pz22 1387 2I6
Inefest expserme 1,586,572 L555,047 170,983 17GTE
Irterest income 63,524 (151732} {14.567) (22,855}
Irveniamnes written down - net 1490 997 - -
Irvestment properties written off - a.aia -
Irvestment writton aff 1 1
Develapment o penditun witton aff 63,921 5335 -
Property. plant and equipment written off 20,543 12Aail - -
Prosision for post-amploymant benafits 54,894 63329 =
Prowinn fesfwrite hark of) labiitios and charges 21,003 {7,304} -
Hent Cconcesson (1.062) - - -
Share aphon axpenses 6,588 15,071 & 117 #6595
Shane of results of associated companes wnd joim
Rl {442,051) {395.529) -
Unrealisad gain on forelgn exthange - net (29.851) (34.519) -
Operating prafit/(loss) befare changes in
wiorking capltal 3,514,442 3446269 {42,706) (41,435}

The A0 oirgEanying aconuntng polcies and explanatory nates fomm an ntegral part of the financda stalements
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 20 June 2022

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMOODO RM'DO0 RMOOO RM'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(CONTINUED)
Changes in working capital:-
Erventarios {m,mi 137,830 =
Froporty development costs. 2,917 [B#.063) - -
Recelvables (1,276,029) (B26.177) (461} {L674)
Coniract assils {16, 768) 29,184 - !
Contract liabiithes (356,294) 544,271 - -
Fayabias 1024.720 926,656 {130} 10632
Blated partios balances {11,435) {40,017 (72,055) {220,113
Cash flow generated from/(used in) operations 2.767,954 #1529 (115.352) {252,550)
Dividands meceived 488,722 a1LeH 381,823 440.H55
menest paid {L.445.680) [L354.148) {170,504) {170,108)
mienest recesvad 167.719 162,829 13,626 £2855
Faymaent to past-emplayment benafit abligations [135,796) 136,007 - -
nCome 13 paid {300,401) [287.272) [13,745) {G.B29)
Encorme Lax refunded 2,638 10.261 - -
Net cash flow from operating activities 1.544,156 3,010,303 95,848 40,133
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of additional shares in exdsting subsidianies {1.000) {7E} (&79)
Acquisition of new subsidiaries (net of cash acguised) (B54,.000) - - -
Additional imvestrent in associated companées and
jaint wentuee {78,113) {Z19pL) - -
Dewlopment axpendiures inturmed [27.210) {31.745) - -
Decrease in depasits mahwring mare than S0 days - 44576 - -
GranTs reLishpdd [0 nespect of nfrastuciung assers 32,092 38,482 - -
Increase in shareholder bans |426,221) {B0.E08) - -
Net disposal of subsidiaies/associates
{net af cash and cash equivalents) 1977117 419136 - -
MaturitiesAPlacement) of Income funds 853,102 [301,958) - -
Placement for participation imsestment (498,165) : -
Mroceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equpmant 101615 B7.443 58 0
Proceeds Trom disposal of invastmants 148,828 216,563 132,335 BES54
Froceeds. from finance |ease receivables 4,805 A.766 - -
Farrhama of intangitie assets (BA.BO0) 1FLIRE) - -
Purchars of (FpsEment (Eopermies {1,740} {37.065) - .
Purchase of praperty. plant and equipmient {1.906.348) [.910,842) (376} {BB1)
Furchase of imeestments {260,231) [Fe B - -
Purchade of rght-of-use 35515 [3,054) - -
Ket cash flow (used Injffrom investing activities (907.323) (L1DSAHT) 132,001 624

The atcomganying accoumting poicles and evplanatony nores. fom an integral part af the financlal statements
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMODO RMO00 RMODO RMO0O
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Druidends. pasd {274.102) E (274,102)
Dividends pad to non-controbng interests
by subsidiaries {402.337) 271,239 -
Capital repayment by a subsidary [1.960) - . -
Repurchase of awn shares by the company (at net) ) [30.314) 1} (30.314)
Repuechase of subsidiaries’ shares by subsidianes ) (38.047) - -
Proceads. Froim hards L.000 2,407,070 - FA0,000
Prosc s Trosm Baminandgs 6,406,467 L4z M = f
Proceeds from lssue of shares in subsidianes 1o
ron-controlng interests - 237,150 -
Regiayment of bonds (1.687.525) - - -
Repayment of borwings (6.719,896) (2901, 744) {191) (EB&210)
Repayment of ease llabikties [260.057) (236,856 (7.074) (074}
Upfront fees and discourts on bormowings (a2.808) {7475 -
Mat cash flow {usad in)/from financing activities (3017,220) 298,917 (261.368) 18402
Mat [decrease)/increata in cash and cash
equivalents (2.380,387) 2109733 (53,519) 6219
Etfects of exchange rate changes 24,456 /ey - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13.652.596 1L100.060 250,218 103954
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
(Note 26) 11,296,665 13,652,356 196,699 e30ZlE
NOTE TD THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Analysis of acquisition of poperty, pant and cqupment-
Cash 1.906,348 1910842 e &6l
Finance lease arrangemsant 5.698 - 159 -
Irterest expania paicpayable 36,306 23733 -
Transler of assets from cusiomers #3528 - - -
Payatles. 15,254 3.HE8 - -
Prosision for llablities and chargas = 11501 - -
2,007,134 14,044 535 Bel

The accompanying accounting palies and expdanatory notes tam an infegral par of the financal stalements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 20 June 2022

Reconclliathon of Habilities arising from financing activities:-

1. Bonds and borrowings
' Group Campany
Z0z2 2021 2022 2021

RM'O00 RM'000 RM'OO0 RM'O0O
AL July 45,074,443 43,586,244 4,306,995 #,250.205
Changes. troem Finanding cash fows
interest paid {1.445.680) [1,360.225) [170,504) {1A0108)
Proceeds from bonds 5.000 A0 000 2 Aa000
Proceads fram Do owings G.406,467 L1426 - :
Uptront fees an bamowings [B2,808) (7.473) - -
Rapayment of bands {1.687,525) - - -
Repayinent of bormowings (6, 719,896G) (2,900, 744) {191} [GB4,210)
Transactivns (osts paid n [3.223) - -
Qrhar chiarggrs in bonds snd barrenwings
Amaortisation of Luusnoe costl

urtedrkding of premium 193.889 1363 -
Bank gvendealts 81,491 (22,491} E
Conversian of ICULS nto ordnany shares {2.417) - - -
Desposal of subsidiary - (526.749) - -
Finahce lnases 355 = 158 -
Interest expenses 1,492,505 LA48.539 170,504 170108
Forekm excharge movement [L.058.635) 1202162 - -
At 30 June 42,256,182 45,074,443 4,306,963 4,306,995
2. Lease liabilities
Group Company
fradvrrd 2021 frd 2021

RMO00 RMO00 RM'OO0 RM'OD0
A1 july 1,483,958 16034681 15,772 a182
Changes from finanding cash flows
Repayment af ‘ease liablities [260.057) (238,856) (7.074) (7.074)
Diher changes in kase labtias
Aitiars 138,661 FRER: - 0L
Disposal of subsidiary = 113 = =
IFTarast aupenies Br.ar 92316 485 G64
Maditication 47,773 [k, 2BE) - -
Expiry/Termination |26, 425) |21156) - {6.931)
Trawrafis 1o payaliies {13.272) {30,485) - -
Forelgn exchargs mosement {41,920) 7183 - -
At 30 June 1,416,617 1,483,958 8,183 15772

The aCcompanying accouning policies and explanatory notes form an integral pan of e {nancial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
- 30 june 2022

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal acthvitles of the Company are those of an evestment koiding and management company, The princpal activities of
thr subssichiaries are o1 owt in Note 15 ta the fnancial statements.

The Company |s 3 imded Rability company, incorporated and doméiciled in Malaysla and Bsted on the Main Marke: of Bursa Malayska
Securities Berhad ard the Prime Markot Foreign Stocks Segmaent of the Tokyo Stack Exchange.

The addiess of the egistersd otfice and principal place of business af the Comparry i as follows:-

F3rd Flood, Marara YTL
205 Jalan Bukit Bintang
5100 Kuals Lumpur

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Growg amd the Comgany have been prepared urder historical cost convention [unlass stated
athenstse in the significant accounting polickes below] and In accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards [("MFRS™L
international Finangial Raparting Stendards [FRST) amd the roquirements of the Comparses Aoy 2016 in Malayesia,

The preparatian aof financial statements in conformity with the MFRS and the Compansss Act 2016 requires the Directors 10
make estimates and assumptions that aftect the mported amounts of aisets and llabdites and distlosore of contingent assets
and liablktsas at the date of the financlal statements and the repored amounts of revenus and expeises during the reparted
potiod. 1 alss requires thi Direclars fo cxercise their judgements in the process of apphdng the Group's scgowiing poicies.
AMthawgh these estimates and dgemants afe taeid on Directors” best knowledge of current events and Jdticns, actual resills
may ciffer.

The areds imobang 2 higher degree of judgement or comgrlexity, of areas whene assumplians and estimates are sgnificent 1o
the financal statements are disclosad in Note 3 to the financlal statements.

The financial stotements are presented in Ringgil Malaysia [RM] and all valees are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMO00)
axcept as othensrse indicated,
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{b) Changes in accounting policies
The actounting pelicles adopted are consmstent with those of the previous finandial year except a5 follows:-

O 1 July 2021, the Grown and the Company haee adaphed (e folowing MERS, IC Interprefations and smendments which are

mandatory for annual financial penods beginning on ar aftar 1 jly 2021,

Effactive for

annual periods

beginning an

Description or after

Amandmonis 10 MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS 16 Wionest Rxte Bonchimark Rofam’ 1 January 2021
- Phase 2

Amendment 10 MFRS 16 Laasas - COVID-19 Aelated Rent Concessions. Beyand 30 june 2021 1 April 2021

Thar adoption af the abawne nes Standards, I interpretations and amandments 1o pobliched standands hive nat given mse 1o

any material impadct on the financial stateméants of the Group and the Company.

Standards issued but not yet elfective

The standards and Imerpretatiors that we ssued but not yet effective up to the date of ssuance of the Croup's and the
Company's flinancial statements ate disclosed below. Thie Group and the Comgany intend 10 adopt these standards, il applicabile,

whan they become effective,

Effactive for

annual periods

beginning on

Description or after

Amendments 1o MFRS 3 Reaference to the Concaptual Framawor 1 [anuary 2022

Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Uise’ I |aniary 2022

Amendments to MFRS 137 Provisions, Conbingent Liabilites and Contingent Assets « Onenous 1 january 2022

Contracts: Costs of Fulliiling a Contract’

Anival impeovements to MFRS Standands 2018 - 2020

- mmerdments to MERS 1 'Frit-time Adogtion of Intemational Finencial Reparting 1 january 2022

Standards - Subsidiary as A First-time Adopter

= Amendments to MFRS 3 Financkal irstruments - Fees i the 103 test Tor donec ognition I jaary 2022

of Tinanciad liabitios'

- Amerdments to MFRS 141 ‘Aggiculiure - Taxation in Fair Valoe Measurements' 1 [mhidary 2022
MFRS 17 Tnsurance Contracts’ I January 2023
Aminidmants 10 MRS 100 Prosentation of Fnancial STatements'

- Ulassitication of Liablkties as Cument or Non-cument 1 [anuary #0239

= Dischosse of Aounling Policies 1 January #0294
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 june 2022
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e} Standards issued but not yet effective [continued)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
Deseription of after
Amendmeants to MPRS L0B ‘Accounting Policies, Oanges in Accounting Estimates and Enors - 1 jaruary 2025
Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amerdments to MFRS 112 Income tax - Defered Tao related 1o Assets ard Liabities arining from 1 Jaruary 2023
a Single Transacton'
Amendments to MFRS 100 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and Dl e
its Assoreate or joind Venture'

[d) Rewenue recognition

Bevenue is reccgnised to the extent that it s probable that the economic benafits will flaw to the Group and the revenss can
B relably maadured. Thie specific mongnition critema lor rovenue a0 it Toligen:.

() Rewvenue from contracts with customers

Aevenue whicth represents income arising in the cowrse of the Groug's ordinary activities s recognised by refierence to each
distinet performance obligaton promsed inthe contract with customa:. Arvenue fiom contracts with customers s measuned
At s traraction prie, boing the amant of copsidoration wiich (ha Group expocts o bo entitiod i oxchango for trarmfesing
promssed goods of services to a customer, net of goods and sendce tax, returns, rebates and discounts. Transaction price
s alocated 1o each perfosmance chégation on the basis of the relative stand-alene selling prices of each dstinct good or
sErices promiad in The contract, Depending on the substances of the mspective contract with the cusiomar, revens is
recognsad when the parformance obligation is satisfed, which may be at a pont n time or over time

o}  Sale of elactricty

The Group's elsciricity (s generated and soid into naticnal electnicity compay of market in thie respective countmes
I which the Craup oparalos.

Rewvenue from the sae of electricity i recognitsed ower time 25 Customers simuftanssysly receie and consuma the
benatits provided by the Goup's perfarmance when electricity is delivered based on contractual terms stputated in
respective agresments with tustomers.

Revenue are pretented, net of goods and sendce tax, penalties, rebates and éncounts. Collsction of the contract
consideration from customers is considered probable, Mo element of financing |s deemed present as the Group has
adegred the practical eapedient available in MFRS 15 wheme the interval between translor of the promised goods
or senices and payment by The customer it cxpoctod 1o be lest than 12 manthe

Eleetricity rovende inchudes an estimated value of the clecincity consumed by oustamer fram the date of the last
meter reading avallable and reporting period end, Accrued unbilled revenuo is recognised a5 receivables and is
rewersed the following manth when actual billings ocour.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ]15

391/624



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooood

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{d) Rewvenue recognition [continued)
() Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
by S of cheon woler and the eatment and Eposn of wasie woler

The Growp, under the llzense granted by tha United Kingoom | UK”) Gowernment, has e right [ suppy wates and
SOWErIgE SRACEs 10 ustomers, together with an abligation to maintain and dewsiog the netwonc and ensure i1
contined avadatifity,

Thae ratiete o (hin witor dnclusiny = the LB B sieh that i rcagndiion  subject 16 2 dages af satimatian,
The assessment of water sales 1o customers Is based on intermal data where final settlement data Is not yet available.
At the end of each periad, amounts of water dellvened to customers are estimaned and the camasponding billed and
unhilled reverne is assessed and recorded in revenup, For the purposs of the judgement, varous facton ae considersd
such as seasonality, histonc billing profiles. leakage data and general economic conditions.

For mptered customers. revenue i dotemined by the meter reading. For ynmetered customars, the amaunt to
wihich the Group hars a right to neceive |3 determned by the passage of time during which the customer oocuples
property within the Gooup's lioenced reglon, Revemae represants noome recevable in the ardinary course of busiress,
excfuding Yalue Addied Tex, for services provided. Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it & probable thn
economic banefits will How to the Crowg.

Deweloper senvices retated to the ol¥igation onder Statute 1o allow propey developers to establsh an anhorised
connection to the water and/or sewerage networic In obtaining the connection. the developer may require the Group
10 unclitaks one or mone ol thee telloedng -

i) Connections and meter installation in exchange for payment;
W) Recpisitions Of WaTE AR in e hange tor pEyment and
i) Addoptions of water and waste watir mains.

The developer |s also reculred to pay Infrastructue charges being a contribution 1o netwark reinforcement.

These activities ane not separable nor distinet and instead farm 2 bundie of activities necessary to establish an
autharised connection from which the netwoek access @n be obtalned. Mso, the Group has an additional obligation
under statute to boep the connaction in place Tor all current and futune cccupiers and Facilitale ongoing access to
the network for as long @ the property reguires sendce provision. Consequently, revenue from developer senvoes
will be delerred ower the sharter of expected pesiod of serice provision of the need 1o replace the aets at the
end of thelr waful life (ypically i the rapge GO to 125 yearsL

o etement of financing B desmed present a5 thit Group has adopted the practicel expedient avallabse in MFRS 15
wihea tha interval between transfer of the promised goods or services ol payment by the customer is expected
to b2 less than 12 months.

Unhiled raceivables s comsiderad 1o be & variahle considaration which i not constrained as the Group considers

it to ba highly probablie that a significant amount will not be reversed after year erd. Urbilled recelvables and the
varabike eamsdoration she Etmated using thi mest likely outcome poiosh
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[d} Revenus recognition (continued)
(i} Revenue from contracts with customars {continuad)
€} Sk of cernend and rekied groducts

Revenuse from sake of cement and redated products (s recognised 2t the point in time when control of tha goods 15
transfered 10 the customer.

A CONFEcT with CUSEOME: exsts whien the contract has commengia substance, the Gioup and Mesr cstomears hase
approved the centract and intend to perfarm thes respective obliganions, the Group's and tho customed's rights
regasding the goods or senvces to be transterred and the payment tesms an be identified and It is prooable that
thie Group will collect the consideration te which it wl be entified B exchange of thase goods or sendoes.

In determining the trantaction prire for the sale of cemant and relsted pnducts, the Group considers the effacks
of wariabde consideration,

IF thee conisidaration in a cortract inclodes & variable amount. the Groop estimales the amount of consideration fo
which thoy will be entitled In exchange foe transforring the goods 1o the customer Thie varkable conssdeation &
eutimatod a1 contract inception and consirained until i1 i highly prebable that a significant rvimu fevarsal in the
amount of cumulative reverue recognised wil not ooour when the associated uncertanty with the varlable consderation
ts sulmaguently resolved. Same contracts for the <ale of cement and related products prondde customers with prompt
payment ebatas and voluma rebates. The earty payment rebates, promgt payment rebates and volume rebatas gve
rise to vanable consideration

dl  Hotel eperitions

Thie Grosup genesratos mveiue manly from peoviding the sendce af room entals to tensnts within the hatel and ental
ol spaces Tor functions and banquats. Tha Group alsoe genprates revanua Trom 1ha saka of goods and sensces such
s food and beverage, a5 well 3s minor services such as telecommunication, Bundry, ivtemet and other minor services.

Revenue Is recognised when the terms of a contract hive been satisfied, which coours when control has: been
transferred to customers and performance obiigations ara satisfied. For oom revenua, this ooours evenly thioughout
the duration af the taants use an b straight-Ene badis, For functionm and banquets, redvomed is mcognised at a
paint in tima when the padormance chigation is satisfiad, generally at the provision of the spata.

&) Condfructan confiocts

Uinder such conracts, the Goup s engaged to corstruct bulldngs and relzted infrastructurs and in certain instances
1o supiply cauipments. Thss confracts may include multiple promisas 10 the (ustomess and thenofon accecnted far
s separate performance obligations, in this case, the trarsaction price will be alocated based on relative stand-alone
sefing price of the consderations of each of the separate perfommance obligations. When thase are not directly
observable, thiny are estimated based on expactod cost plus margen.

Revenue from constracton contracts |s measuwred at the fed fransaction prce agreed under the agreemeant.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{d) Rewvenue recognition [continued)
() Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
2 ConsixTion cantraes foonmninued)

Thee Grongp determines the trarsaction price ol & contract alter consdenng the effect of variable corsideration,
consiraning etimates of wirable corsiderstion, effec of sgnificant financing companent, nen-cash tonsideratkan
and corsideration payatia 10 customer,

Whan th fai valie o wielatls consfesation i uncaraln, tha Gioup sstimates the amoont &l eanscdenation by sing
the mast lkely amount method and ondy recognises to the extant that [s highly probable that a sgnificant reversal
In cumutativg revenue will not soour

Revenue & necognised as and when control of the asset is transfemed to the customer ard it is probable that the
Croup would collect thie consideration 0 wisch i will be emited in cxchange fof the 1556t that would b transtermsd
to the customer. ﬂ!ﬂnﬂd'ﬂq an the terms of the comract and the kews that apply to the contract, contiol of the
aszat may tramsfer ower time or at a point in time, Controd of the asset s transferred over time if the perfomance
af the Groug does nat create an asset wilh 40 alternative wse to the Group and the Group has an enferceabls ght
to payment for porfomance completed to date.

Il contral of the asset transiers over time, revenue is recognesed over the pediod af the cormract by reference o
Thi progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation using the input method. which i based
on the total actual construction cost inowred o date as compared to the total budgated costs for the respective
CONSTruCtion o s

IF confrol of the asset transfers al & paint in time, revenue |5 recognised at a poind in ime when the oustomes
obtalins contral of the asset.

1 Broodband and sefecommuninations

The Group genenates revenue from providing telecommmmication senvices, such as actess to the network, airtime
Usage, mestaging, and intemet sondces as well s from sales of products. Procucts and services may be sold separately
or in burdied packages, The typical length of a contract Tor burdled packages & 11 months 1o 24 monihs

For undied packages, the Group acoownts for ndaidual products and serwces separately I they are distin, Le. if &
peoduct of sevice |3 separately identifalle from other items in the bundied package and il & customer can berelit
from it The considevation B slocated betwisen separale oducts and services in g burelle bised an their Relative
Stand-alone Sefing Prices (RSSPT] The ASSP are detenmined bazed on the fist prices &t which the Group sels ihe
redurts and THECOMMUNCEaN servioes. ASSP are Dased on obsenvabie Salns pricas; hwever, where RIS are ni
directly observabie, astimates will be made maximising the wse of observable inputs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[d} Revenus recognition (continued)
(i} Revenus from contracts with customers (continuad)
1 Broodtard o TRlsCommumeRTans (confined)
I} TEECOmmLUnCEton SErices

Teletommunication reenue from postpaid and prepaid services provided by the Group B reoognised over time,
s ey Denedits of [elecommurication SenvCes ane simultaneoushy receied and (onsumed Dy The Cusiomer,

Revenue from orepald services is recognised when services ace rendered. Starter packs with a sim card and
relizad voucher |s atcounbed for as a single performance abligation as the sim card can only be used together
with the sefvices proviced by the Croup. Prepad credits are recognised as contract fability in the statements
of financal position, Revenue & recogrised when the credits ae wtilised or up 10 the point of customer chuem
Of LEpon Bupiry, whichever (s aarber,

Postpaid services are provided in posipald packages which consist of various services [Le, call minutes, mtamet
data, sms and BL.). As Thee services ane separatily kentifiable and the custamens can benet from each af the
SErvions on 15 own, dach Senete B stcounted for &% 3 separate perfofmance obligation,

Postpaid packages afe aither sold separmtely of Bundied tngether with the sale of deders 1o a customsr. As
perstpad packages and device ame capable of beirg detinet and separtely dentilishie. there are two performance
ohligations within a bundled transaction. Accordingly, the Group allocates the transaction prce based on the
RSSP ol the postpaid packages and device

iy Denices

Devices may b sold sepasataly or in bundied pacicages. The Group fadognises revenue whan tontrel al the
device has trenstermed fo the custamer vpon delivery and acreptance of the device 3t the pont of sake.

For devices sold separately, the consideration is received in full at the point of sale, The amount of reverue
recogrised s measuned at the comsideration specfied in the contract. For davices sold in bundled packages, the
customars wialy offoded B0 pay ata descounted pice on the devics, The amount of revenus recogninod for devioes
sold in hundied packages, & measured a1 the allocited consideration based on the RSSP a5 explained proviously.

Deevites that the Croup promises ta transfer s part af the bundied patkage with notwork serce plans ae
cormidered drtingt and thus accounted Tor 25 a separate performance obligation. Davices that ane frarsfamad as
part of a fiked Ine telscommunication serdoes bundied package which can only be used togethar with the seréces
peervidi by ts Group, ane conddered as 3 dngle performant o abiganiun n beloooemmmiLniCatisng Senic o fevenLE.

# contract asset |5 recognised when tha Group dedivers the devices before the payment ks cue. i the payment
happens batoro the delveny of devee, then i contract labdity is rof ogaised Contract awsets and comract labilities
are presented in the statements of Tinancial position

Ther Group generates revenue from tolecommuneation inlrrcructure butiness. Telecommunication infrastruciure
umsiness revenes is genesated from the leasing of space on the Group’s teletammunication Towers, whemn the
customers. install and maintain thes individeal communication neteok equipment. The revenue is recogatsed
on 0 Liraight-ine basss gver the Txed and non-cancellable tem of the lease agreement, irmespective of whien
payment are due.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{d) Rewvenue recognition [continued)
() Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

@ Propey coveRpment prajecrs

Contracks wilh cusiomers may include mstole promeses (o ustomes end therefore sccounled for 35 separate
performance obligations, The ransaction price will b alocated 10 sach performance abigatien based on 1he stand-
atone salling prices. When these are nof directly observable. they e ettimaled based on expected cost-plus mangin,

Thun risirrgs B [esnrty dosaslngunant |5 maasured an lisad TrAnsation pios agresd urdsr 1 <ile and prehise
agreement.

Revanue from property development i recognised as and when the control of the asset is transfermed fo the
rustomar and it s probable that the Group will callect the consideration to which it will be entithed in sxchanga for
the asset that wall be transfemed to the customer. Dependirg on the teims of the contract and the laws that apply
o the cantract, contral of the asset may trarmder ever time ar at o paint in tme. Contred of the asset i translered
over time if the Group's performance does not create an @set with an altemative usa to the Group and the Goup
has an enfedceable dght 10 payment far performante campleted o date.

The promised properties are spedlicatly ientified by i1s ket ard unit number and iks stibiutes (such as (s size and
lacation) in the sale and purchase agieements ard the attached kayout plan. The purchasers could enforce 15 rights.
T Wi proenised properties iF The Croup Seeks 1o sell the uril to anathar purchasar, Ths contraciuad restriction on
the Group's abélity to direct the promised property for another use (s substantive use to the Group. Tha Group s
entitied to continue to ransfer to the customer the development unids promised and has the rights o complete
the rarstictinn of the poperties and eoforra its dghts to full pagment.

If the cantrol of the asset transders over ime, revenue is recognised over the perlod of the contract by reference
o the progeass towands complete satisfacton of that perfodmance abligation, Diberwise, rewerme is recogniied a1
a point in time whan the customer obtains conrtol of the asset,

The Growp recognised revetue over time wing the input methad, which |s based on the stual cost infurted to date
on the property devalopment projects as compared to the totad budgeted cost for respective development profects.

Thee Group recognised sales at a point in time for the sale of completed propertses, when the contral of the properties
has been transfemed to the purchasers, being when the poperties have been completed and delivered to the
CUSTOMmEers and it 15 probabie that the Growp will colect the conskderations o whichi it will e enntled 10 in exchange
Tor Ehir assets Sold

The Group nas cetermined that it has a sgrificant Tnancing companent related 1 the saies of 15 MOpeTy unas
heing dmvelaped ondes the defered payment schema. As 3 it of this the amant of the promised ronsidenation

s adiursted for the significant financing component and the related inter est inoome is recognised using the effective
interest method over the Tarm al the deferment,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[d} Revenus recognition (continued)
{i} Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
bl Sk of steam
The Group's sale of steam 5 mainly denved from whosesale market customess. Revenus from sakes of steam is
retognised as and when the Group's ousiomers Sifllanéously redeive ard consume The benefits (Le. the customers
e ahle to utilise the steam for thewr benaflit as and when the steam s being suppliad) anising from the Group

perfoeming (ts ctibkgations based on the terms of e CoMiEcs with The custamers, Accomdingly, evenae fram the
Supply ol steam 5 redognised over Time: L a5 and wihe the steam supplad (S consumied by T (uStomes,

Na elemant of Nnancing s deemad present as the Group has adopted the practical espedient availabia in MFRS 15
whata ntervdl Betwean transtar ol the promised goods of services and payment by tha customer & expected o he
Iess than 12 manths

0 Otk
Diher incomi earmed by the Group 5 recagised a5 the Tollowing bages:-
i} Sale of fusl oil

Sate of Tued all s recognised when control of the products has transfermed, being when the products are delivered
fo the customer and there s no untulfiled obligation that could affect the customers acceptance of the products.
Delrviery Becurs when the products have bean transporied to the specific lpcatian, 1he ks ol obSolescence and
loss hanve been transferred to the customer, and either the custamer has accepted 1he products in accordance
with the wales confract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed. or the Group has obective evidence that all
oritisia Tor acoeplance haye e satstied

Revenue from these saes is recognisad based on the price specified in the comract and revenus 5 only recognised
1o e @l Tt it is highly probabile that a sigrélcant reversal will nat ccowr. Ko element of finanding is deemed
present & the Graup has adopled the practical expedient available in MERS 15 whane The mterval between
transfer of the promised goods o services and payment by the customer & expectad 1o be less than 12 months.

A recekable i recognisad when the goods ame delivered as ths is the paint in tme that the comsideration is
unconditianal becaise anly the passage of fime s required bafore the payment s due.

iy Sale of ratural gas

Reweriee trom sde of natual gas & recogresed os and when 1he Group's customers simuTaneou sy recens and
consume the benefits (L.e. the customers are able to wlilise the gas for their benefit as and when the gas Is
peing supglied) arking from the Growp perfoming its cbiigatkans based o0 the 12nTs of the contracts with me
ousiomers. Accordingly, resanue trom the supgly of gas is recognised over tima; Le, a4 and when the gas suppiied
Is consumed ty the customers, No slament af financing is deemed present as the Group has adopted the practical
expedient available in MFRS 15 where the imerva between transfes of the promised goods or sendoes and
[enyimenl By The cirtomer is sapoctad th b lews than 17 monthe

iy Dperanon and malntenance fees

Management fees is recognised over tha penod in which the senvizes are rendened.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{d) Rewvenue recognition [continued)
() Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Ot foavirinued)
v} Tank leasing fees

Tank leasing Tees from ooerating leases &8 recoguised on J siraight line basls over the baase tem,

vj  Rentheding of serdces
Reyenise from contracts with customsers i recognised when control of the services (s ransfemed 1o the customer
at an wmount that reflacts the consideration 1o which the Group and the Company expect 1o be entitled in
exchange for those services. The Group ard the Company hase generally concdudad that it &5 the principal i ifs
TEEILE ATanpements becaise It typicaly tantrals the serdces bedore ransfarming them to the oustamsr.

vi)  Revenoe from saes of kend
Rayerin fram sales of land & recognised when control of the assets s transfarred 10 the oustomer ard the
colectabsity of the related recesvables s ieatonably assured.

wvil} Hiring income
Hirirg mcome 5 recogrised on an ool bads

wilf] Commilssion income
Commission ingome is recognised on recetved and necefvable basis,

(i) Revenue from other sources
Specliic revenue recoghition critena for sthes revende and income eamed oy the Group and the Compary are as foliows:-
a] Intarest Infome

Interest incame = recognived a5 the interest income aconus, Takng info account the effectve yield on the asset.

b Dividend income
[Dtvidend income ks recognbed when the sharehoider's rght 1o receive the payment s establshed,

c}  Renisl incoms

Rental ingome fram aperating laases (et of any inCentives gaen 1o The lessecs) @ ecogresed on the stralght-fine
sl mvr The lsase tevm,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[z} Employee benafits
{i} Short-term employee benefits
Wages, salanies, socinl Secunty contributions, pald annuel eave, paid sick lenee, Bonases and non-monetasry benelits ae
recogrised 35 an expensa in the tinandal year when employess haye rendaned ther senvares to tha Group and the Comparry

EBarapuss are med ngnileed o an sapeiis whon thees 15 8 prowent, egal or ronstroctive ahligation to make uch paasenns,
At resull of past events ard whan A reliabie estimate can be mare of thie ammint off the ohligation,

(i) Paost-employment benefits
Thie Groaup has various post-emplayment Benetit schemes in acoordance with kacal condibons and practices in the industies
itk il operates
Thiese bonefit plars @ oither defined contrititon or defined benelit plans.

a)  Defined cantribution plan

A e linesd contributicn plan i 4 pansian plan under wivich the Group and the Company pays Teed conributions into a
separate entity (2 fund) and wil have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contrbutions if the find does
nint hold sutficient assets to pay all emplayess benelits ielating 1o eEmpkoyes senace in the cument and prion periads.

The Groups and the Company’s contributinns to 3 dafined cantribution plan are charged to the Ircome Statemant
In thee pedod towhich they elae

by Defined banafit pion

A delined Behalit plan i a person pln that detines an amount of pension beanelil to he provided. usually a5 &
function of one or more factors such s age, years of Sevice or compensation,

The liahikty in respect of a defined benafit plan s the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date mirus the fair value of plan assets.

The defined benetit obdigation i calouated annualy by independent actisaries using the projectad unit credit mathod,
The present vakie of the defined benefit obiigation is determined by descounting the estimated futune cash outflows
using intetest rates of hagh-guaity corporate bonds that ane denominated in the curendy inwhich the benefits will
b paid, and that harea terms 10 matwity approximating 1o the 1ermes of the related pertion obligation.

Re-mpasurement gains and losses of poat-amployment benefit abkgations are recogaisod n Other Comgirehorie
Income.

Past-senite (osts s rocognised immedtaly i the Incoms Statoments,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{e] Employee benefits [continued)
{il1) Share-based compensation

Thar Company and cerain subkidianies oporate equity-S@tel Sshare-based compansation plan Tor the empiayees of the

Growp. Tha Tair valus of the emplayee sarvices recaved in exthanga for the grant of the share options & recognised as
a0 expense inthe Income S{atement ower the vesting penods of the grant with a comesponding increase in equity,

T fatal armmmnt 1o be expenied over the vasting pariod & detarmined by reference 1o the fair value of the share options
grantied and the number of share options 1o be vested by vesting date. At each reponing date, the Group revises its
ostimates of tho number af shane options that ane expedied 10 Vst I recogaises thi impact of the revisian af odgina
estimates, (f amy, in the income Statament, with a comesponding adjustment 10 equity. Far options granted by the Company
o its subsidanies” cmployoes, the mpense will be recognised in the subcidiaries’ financial statements aver the vesting
periods of the grant,

Thee profeeds ieoeived net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital when the oplion
e Exercised.
{I} Borrowing costs

Bunowing tosts are capltalised as part of the cost of & gualying dasset iF they are drectly attributsble to the sogusition,
CosEruction of production of that zwsel. Bommwing costs ane capitzised until the assets are sulistantially competed for thei
Intendad use or sle,

All other bemowing Costs are recognised in Income Statement in the peniod they are incumred. Barmowing costs consist of
intarest and ather costs ihat the Grenn and e Company inceied in connectlinn with the hatmowing ol Moaids.

{g) Income tax and deferred tax

Income tas on the Income Statement for the financal year compeises ourrent and defierred taw

Current tax s the expacted amount of inkome taxes payable In respect of the tadable profit for the financal year and s
messned using the tax rates that have boen enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferrad fox i recognised in full, using the Kability method, en temperary differences arising between the amounts attribuable
to assets and liabivtes for tax purposes and thelr carrying amaunts in the finanoal statements. However, deferred tax is not
acoounted for o it arises ffom ineial recognition of an asset or kablity n & transacton that at the time af the transactian
offeces meithier accounting mw Eoxalie profit of ks,

Detarred tax a5ssais ane ragognised only o 1he extant that it is probabie that taxable prant will be availabie against which the
daductible temparary dfferences or unused tax losses can be utilsed,

Defertisd T = catermined wsing tax mtes (and fa aws) 1 have heen enacted or substantively paactod by the separting
rate and s expectod to apply whan the related deforred tax asset s realiad or the defenrad 1l liability s setiiad
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{h} Proparty, plant and equipment, and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment except for certain freshald 1and and beltings is stated at cost less aooumisdated depreciation
and aCcumasatod impairmient losses. Cost includes eapind ture that is dinectly attribufadle to the acquisition of the ilems. Cost
atia inchides Darrowlng costs nCumed Tod propedty, phant and squipment under constructon. The (oSt of Ceman [propey.
plant and squipment inciude e costs of dismantiing, removal and restoraison, the oblgation of which was incurmed a5 a
tonseguence of instaliing the asser

SUbEEQUETE COSES BN Included in the A558TS Carying AMount of recognised 45 & Separite asser, as appropiate, only when it
B probatie that Tuture economic benefits sssocansd with the imem will Bow 10 the Group and the cost of the item can e
measuied reliably. Thet carrying amount of the feplaced part is derecognised, All ather regairs aind maintenance e chargied
1o the incoms Statement during the financial year in which Bwey are inturred,

Cedtain freehold land and buiklings were revalued by the Direcions in 1983 based on valuations canied out by independent
professional valuers an the open market basts. In accordance with the tramitional provesions ssued by MFRS 116 Property,
Pant and Equipment, the valuation of these properties, plant and equipment have not been updated and they continue to be
stated at thalr previously revalued amounts less depreciation and impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of net book value and net
realisabie valua,

Freehald land and freeho’d ofl palm plantation are not amortised.

Aasets under eonStnuCtan ang Staled ot cost and ae nal deproedialed, Upan comphe tion, 155e0s under constnuction o transtesred
1o categalies of property, plant and cquipment depending an nature of assets and deprecliion commenies whon they ane
rady lar thoir ntended use.

Deprociation an ol othar property, plant and equipment it calculated on the straight ling badk o1 rates megquired to wiite off
he cost ol tha propery, plant and equipmant ower thisr astimated ueful life.

The principal anrmual rates of depreciation used are as follows:-

%%

Buildings 1-10
Leasehaold land 1-13
nfrastructune & site failities o8- 20
Plant & machimary 420
Furniture, ftures B ogulpmant 10 - 50
Vehides 10 - 33
Talacommunicstian agulpment 4 - 20

Boiduial valis, wsoful life and doprodtation method of ascets e rovissed 31 sach lnancisl yoar end to ensire that the amaunt,
mathad and penind of depreciation s conuds1ent with peevious estimates and e sxpectad pattern of consumpticn of te
Yuuira seannmic henelits smbodied @ the fems ol propecty, plant and aguepmant.

Ganine andd bosses on dispotats ane detormened by comparing ne disposal proceeds wih net carming amouant and ae recognised
in the kcome Statement.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{I} Investment properties

Imeastment properties include those portions of buiklings that ana hald for long term rantal yielids and/cs for capital appreciatian
and freehald land andor land uncer eases that s held for ‘ong-term capital appradation ar for 3 cumently indeterminate use.
Irvesimeit propsarties indlude propadies that ae being constructod of desveloped Tor fafure tse a8 iestiment propectioes,

Imvestmient properties are measured initially at cost and subseguently at fair value with any change theren recognsed in
Irnme Statemant Tor the period in which thay arse. wWhen thi Faif wikes af 1hoe Imestment roporty unded construeion i
not refably determinabie, the investmant property urder construgbon i measurad at cost until esthar its fair value bacomes
refiably determinable ar construction is complate, whichover is earfier,

Cost inchsded expenditune that B drectly attributabie to the acguisition of the imestment property, The cost of selfconstructad
Imvestment property includes the cost of materials and deect labour, any other costs directly attrbutable to bringng the
irvistment property to & working condition For ther intended use and capitaised bomowing costs

AN IvestmenT pogenty b denerogires) onils disposal, of s it s penmanently witlciasn T e and no fuliee somimic
Lspalies o extpectod Feom s esposal, Thie dilTerine bebwesen D v disposal (eogieds and Ui Carmying smaunt 1§ recmugnived
In tha income SEstemant in the peripd in which the item |5 derecogrizad The amount of consideration to be incladed n the
Daln o lnss arising from the derecognitan of investment progerty is determaned in acoordance with the reguirements for
datemining the trarsacton proe 0 MERELS Hevenue Trom Cantracts with Customirs”

Transfers ate made to {or from) iInvestment operty only when there s 3 change o use. For a transfer from investment
praparty to cemar-otiuped propertyfinventorias, the deamad cont for subsequant accounting i tha Talr vatue at the date of
change inuse. If owner-otcupied property becomes an investmant property, the Group acoounts for such property in aocardance
with the palicy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change n use

{il] Development expenditures

(i) Land held for property development

Land hoddl for proporty dovelopment congists of land whiore no dovelopment activitics have Boen camied out of whorne
development activities ame not expected to be completed within the normal operating cycke. Sach ind is classified within
nan-current assets and ks stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valua,

Cost comphives cost of land and all related costs incumed on attivities necessary fo prepane the land foe its intended use.
Land held Far pregidty development is ieclassified a5 propamy dovelopment costs and incuded unoer CUITent Fss5ers whin
oevelopment activitkes hie commented and whsne it can b demanstrated 1hat the devetopment activities con b
completed within the narmal operating cycle.

{ii} Project development expenditure
Deyelogiment pxpaerclitone incurtod B rapitaliasd whon i mests cortaln cotena that meicate 1hat i1 15 pratible than the
cnsts will give rite 1o future sconamic henefits and are amortined awer the pediod of tha projects. They are wittan dawn
to their recoverabla amounts when there is insufficient certainty that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise.
Development costs previousy recognised as an expense ae nol recognised as an asset in subsequent panods.
Copintadsed develapment capendite i stated o1 oost less accummdated smartization ard imgairment lasses
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Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 june 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[k} Impairment of non-financial assets

The caying amounts of assets am reviewsil #t each raporting date to determine whether thers 15 any indication of imparment,
it any such indcation exists, a0 asset's recoverable amoiunt is estimatad to determine the amount of impairmant koss,

An imparment loss is recognized Tor the amount by which the canying amaunt of tha asset exteeds its recoverable amoaint,
Th recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset's falr value bess cost of disposal and vahe-in-use For the purposes of
FELaGHnG EMPAFRARL a5L005 G0 croLpod 61 the bwast lovals Tor wihikh thore ang woparatoly idantifiabio cadh Taws {eash.
genarating unitsh, Mon-financial assats other than goodwill that sufferad impairment are reviewed lor ponsibie reversal of the
Impairmerit at each reporting date.

An impairment loss s charged 1o the Income Statement mmediately, unless the asset is camied at revalued amount. Any
Impalrmerit loss of a revalued asset fs reated s 3 revaluation decease to the extent of previously recognised revakuation
surphus for the sama assat,

Impairmsent losses on goodwll ace rt reversed. In respect of other assets, any subsequent increase in the recoveralie amount
of an auset b reod o reversal af the provious impaicment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carwing amaunt of
the assot that woukl have been detormined (net of amortisation and depreciation) bad no impairment lass been recagniscd.
The ressersal & recogrised in the income Statement immediately, unless the Fsset s camed at revalsed amount. A reversal of
an impasrenent less on o revalued psset 9 credited diregtly 1o revahuation surplus, Howeees, 10 the extent that an impaiement
loss on the same revalued asset was pravicusly recogresed as an expensa in the Income Statement a resarsal of that impalrmaent
lorss s recognised as income in the Income Statement.

{1} Basis of consolidation

The ¢omoldated hinandal statemonts compriso the Financial stitoments af 1he Company and its subsidianos as at tha roparting
date, The financial statemonts of the subsidanos used in the preparation of the consalidated financlal statements ane propared
for the same repadting date as the Campany. Contred & achicved when the Greug is exposed, o has rights, 1o varabbe retums
Trom its irvolvement with the imestee and has the alility to affect thase returns through its pewer over the mvesioe,

The Group conmrols an ineestes §f and ondy if the Group has all the fabowng:-

«  Power over the iwvestee (Le. existing rightts that give it the cunent ability 1o direct the redevant activities of the Investec);
Exporure, of rights, to vasiahle retuims fram i8S mvestment with the smwestoe; and
+  Tha abdfity 1o use s power over the mveston 1o affect As refurms

wWhan the Croup has less than a magriy of the vating nghts of an ivestes, the Croup conslders the folowing in assessing
whirther or not thee Group's vating sghts in an irvestes ane sulficient 1o give it power ower the investes:

= The cantractual amangementis) with the other wole nolders of e imeston,
* Rights arising from ather contractieal amangements; and
+  The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whethar or not it controls an investes f facts and ciroumstonces indicote that there are changes o
one of more of the three elements of control. Consobdation of a sussidiary begins when the Group abfains control over the
sulbsidiary and eeases when thi Group loes eonteal ol the substidiary. Azsets, llabithes, income and expenies ol 8 sulsidiary
acquined or drespased ol during the year are included in the consoldated financial statements From the date the Groug gains
comtra! untll the date the Gioup ceases to control the subsidiarny,
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{1} Basis of consolidation (continued)

Incame Statement ard each component of 00 are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and 1o the
non-cantrolling intesests, esen if this results in the non-controling interests hawing a dedicit balance, Whan necessary,
adjusimenis are micke fo the linancial statements of sulidanies 1 Bng thiie acoounting policies Into ling with the Groups
aceounting palicies, All intra-groun assets and liablites, souity. income, axpenses arel cash flows ralatng o transactions
hatwean members of the Group are edminated in full on consoidation

A change in the ownership intemsst of a subsidiary, without a koss of contral, s accounted for as an eguity transaction, If the
Greup loses contral over a subskdary, It

+  derecognises the assets (including goodwill] and Eabilities of the subsidany;

= dorecognses the carmying amount of amy non-controling infenesis;

+  detecognnes the comulative tramslation differences recorded In equity;

+  recognises the fai value of the consiceration received:

= recognises the faer value of any Investment retamed;

*  retognises any surphs o deficit in mtome Staement; and

+  relassifies the paents share of components previowsly recogrsed in other comprehensive income 1o ingome Statement
o retained earnings, &5 apgropriate, as would be reqused Il the CGloup had directly dsposed of the related assels or
Tibilicies,

Acquisitions of subsidanas &e accounted for by applying e purchase method Idenfiable assets acguired and lablites andg
contingent labilites assumisd i 3 business combination e measoned (rially & their fair values at e acquisition dae.
Adjistrnants to thase fair values relating to previously held interests are treated a5 3 revahsation and ecognised in other
comprehensva incoma,

The cost of a business. combenation & measiured a5 the aggregate of the falr values, at the date of exchange, of the assets
g, abifties incurred or assumed, and equity inctruments issued, plut any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. Any excess of the cost aof busdness combingtion over the Group's shane in the net Lair volue of the acquined
subsidiany’s identifiable assets, llabikties and contingent Sahilities ts eoorded as goodwl in the statamants of financial position.
The accounting pelicy for goodwil is set out in Mote 2{g) 1o the financizl staterments. Ay excess af the Goup's share in (he
net Tair value of the acquired subsidiany’s idemtifiable assets. Rabilities and camtingent labilities over the cost of business,
combinatson s recognised & Income i Income Statement on the date of acquisition, When the Croup acguires a Dusiness,
Embedded derivatives separaied Trom 1nie hast contract by thie aiquines ane ieassessed on aigusition unless 1he business
combination fesults in a changa in thia tenms of 1he contract 1hat significantly modifies the cash Tows that would gtherwise
be required under the cantract.

{m} Transactions with non-cantrolling Interests

Thi Group 1reats TansaC1ans wWith ron-controfing INtenesis a5 ransacnons wWith equity owners of the Group. For purchases
Fram nan-cantrolling intetests, the diference batwaen any cansidarstion pacd and the relevant shares acquired of the carmying
value af net assets of the subsidiary Is recorded in equity, Gains o losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recarded in equity,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[n} Investment in subsidiaries
A subsidiary s an antity aver which the Groog has all the Toliswing:-

* Power ower the st (Le exsting nghts that gee it the curment atility to drect the relevant actities of the imestsel
*  Exposure, of rights, to variahle retums from (ts investment with the imvestee: and
= The abifity 10 use its power over the invastes to atfect s returns.

I Tha Cmpany™ separale fmandial statemants, imestments in sabsifanes ae accopnted for al cost less accomalated
Impairment kosses, On disposal of imestments in subsdiaries, the difference betwesn disposal procesds and the casmying
Amauns ol The inyeaments ans recognised in Incemis SIATomoo,

(e} Investment in associated companies

Aesoriated companies are entities in wheh the Group s in A position o exense significant influence but which is netthar a
subsidiary noe an interese In & jont ventuee, Sgnificant infiuence s the power to participate in the financial and operating
palicy decmions, bt nat cantrad aver their polices, The axistence and effect of patential yoting rights that are curmently
asercisable or convertible are comsidered when assessing whather the Group has significant inflience over another antity,

rvestmants in associated companies aro accounted for in tho consolidatod financial Statemonts usng the aquity mathad of
atcounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment In associated companies Indudes goodwill identified
an atquisition, net of any accumulated impalrment loss,

In applying tha egquity method of accounting, the Croup's share af its assoclated companles’ post-acquisition prafits or bosses
ane recocnised in Income Statemant and Its shane of post- SCquisinon mevements in Iesers i recognised in other comprohonshe
mooma The cumulative post-adquisitioh movemants and dictnbutons recaived from the aviociated corpanies are adjusted
aganst the carrying amount of the nvestment. Whan the Group's share of losses in an associated company eguals or exceeds
s mtenest in the associated compary, Including amy other unsecured ohligations, the Group does nat recognise Turthed losses,
urihess it has obligations or has made payments an benall of the associated COmginy.

The mast recent available audited financial statemonts of th associatod companies e Used by The Group in applying the
eguity method. Where the dates of the awlited financial statoments wed are not caterminous with those of the Groug, the
share of results is arrived at from the last audies financial statements available and management financlal statements to the
end of the accounting pesiod. Where necessary, adjustments ane made to the financal statements of assoclated companées
1@ onsunn consistoncy of sccounting policies with 1hese of the Group

Unrealised gaing on 1ransaction bebwsen 1he Creup and its associated campanies are eiminated 1o the extent al e Group's
nterest in the assaciated companies. Uneealised losses are abio edminoted unless the tramaction provices evadence of an
impaimment of the assat transtesred.

Gains and kosses arising from partial disposals or divtions in investments in associated companies are eoognised In income
Statement.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{0} Investment in assoclated companles (continued)

Imastments in assoclated companies are derecognibed when the Group loses sgaificant inflence, Amy retained Interest in
the entity ks remaasured at Its fair value. The difference between the camying amount of the retainad investment at the date
whan significant influance i lost and it 1aiF valse & recogneasd in Incompe Statemant.

In the Company's separate linancla statements. nvestments in assoclated companies are stabed at cost less accurmulated
Impairment loscos. On dspasal of imsestmints in assaciated companios, 1he differancs botweon Ssposal proceods snd thi
carrying amounts of the mvestments are recogrsed in income Statement.

Jeint arrangements

A jaint arrangement ts an arrangement of which there |s contractually agroed sharing of controd by the Group with one o
more parties, wheno deciioms about the relevant acthvities relating to the jon1 arangement require unanimads onsent of
thie parties sharing controd The classification of a joint amangement a5 a joint operation or a joint venture depends upon the
rights and obligations of the parties 1o the arrangement. & joint veniwe s a joint amangement whearelby the joint venturers
have rights 10 the net axsoets of the arangment. & jgint operation is a jint arangemant wherely the joint cperators have
rights to the assets and obligations for the labilities, relating to the arragement,

i

Joint venture

The Group's intedests in joint ventuwes are accounted for by the equity mathod of accounting based on the audited financid
statements af the jint ventunes made up 10 the end of the Tinancisl year.

Equity accounting nvalves recognising m the income Statement the Group's share of the results of joint ventures for the
finaneial yaar. Tha Groig's investmants in joint wantisss ara tarded in 1his Statemamts of Financal Pasition st A amaunt that
refiacts its share of the net assats of the joint ventures and includes goodwill on acouisition,

Unreaimad gasns on trarmad oot batween The Group anid 13 joint ventunes 5 eliminated 1@ the extent af the Group's menss)
I thee jont wentures unredised sses are ako eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence on imparment of the asset
transferned. Whero rocessary, in applying the equity method, adjustments ae made 1o the financial statements of joint ventures.
to enwire consistency of accountng policies with those of the Group.

Ir 1he Company's sepasate financal statements, imestments in joint venlures are stated 81 codl less impairment losses

On disposal of such investments. the difference between net disposal proceeds and thelr camying ameunts Is incleded In
IFCOmE STatement.

{q) Intangible assets
i) Contract rights

Contract Aghts comprse aouined conmacts and nghts T Contracts from business combination. These ar amonised aves
the contractud period on a stralght line basis and are assessed al each reporting date whether thare = any indication
that the contract rights may be Impaired. Sae accounting policy Mote 2{k) to the financs statements on mmpairment of
nan-lirnanoial assets
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{7} Intangible assets (eantinued)
(I} Goodwill
Coodwall ks invtialy measured at cost Following the initlal recognition. goodwil s measuned at cost less aotumulated
impalmment Iosses.

For the purpose of impaimment testing, goodwill acquired s dlocated. from the acquisition date. 10 aath of the Groups
cash-gENErating Lnits that are expected 10 Benafin from thie synergies of the comination,

The cash-genarating wiil to which goodwill has been alliocated 5 1ested Tor impairment anmudly and whenevar there 15
an Indfication that the cash-generating unet may be smpalred, by comparing the camying amount of the cash-genesating
unit, including the allocated goodwill, with thie rocoveraile amount of the casf-geoegaring unit. Where i recoaeable
amaint af the cath-genprating imit s less than the camying amount, an impament ioss is recognised in pafie o fess,
Impaiment Iosses recagnised for gondwall are not eversed in subseuent pariods.

wherm gondwil forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of tha nparation within that cash-generating unit is depased
of, the goodwil assoclated with the operation disposed of s included in the canying amownt of the opedation when
dietarimining e galn ar lods aa dupasal of the oparation. Goodwill spased al in this cicurmstange & moasired hated
an the retatve Fair values of the operations disposad of and the portion of the cash-generating unit ratained

[lil) Software assels

Software assets comyyise in-house comguter software deselopment and speclaised computer sof reae. Software assets
e amodtsed over 3 1o 10 years and are asseswed at aach reporting date whathar thare s any indication that the seftware
assets may be impaired, See acoounting policy Nota 2(k) 10 the financal statemants on impairment of mon-financlal assets.

Sof bwear- i --s8fice afangertents an wervice conlriits providing the fght to atoess the cloud provider’s appleation
software over the contract period. Costs incurred to configure or customise, and the ongoing fees to obtan access o
the cloud provideds application software, ane recognised as operating expenses when the sendces are received. Some of
ther costs inturred reate to the disolopment af sof tware codia that enhances or modifies, o creates additional capabiity
1o, existing on-premise systems and meets the definition of, and the recognition critena for, an Intangibde asset.

(v} Others
@) Customer ists

Cirstonmer [ists are amorfised over the confrachual pesind on 2 straght line basis and ame assessed at each reporting
date whether there is any indeation that the other intangibee asters may be Iinpained. See acoounting poicy Note
2[k} o the flinandal statamets an impairment of non-firancial psse1s.

by Quaorry nghes
Qusrry rights are amort=ed on the stralght line hasis over the lease ferm less impaiiment iosses

) Emissian rights
The amisson rights that are agured by 1he Group are measuied 51 cost s any atcumilabed impaimmant losses,

The policy for the recognition and measurement of Impaiment losses s In accondance with Bote 2ik).
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{r] Financlal assets
(1) initial recognition and measuremeant

Finncial assets ane regognised in the Statements of Financial Position wihen, and onby wisen, the Group and tha Company
batome a party to the contractual provishons of the instrument.

Finamcial assate ane bwsibiod, at inisl fecogration, and sabaequently measaresd at amortised coct, fair valgs through
ather comprehensive income [0, or far value threugh profin or loss

Thar lassilication of financial sisets at initial recognition depends on the finandal aswrs contractual cosh Bow clanchenistico
and the Group's and the Company's busingss model for managing them, With the exception of trade receivables that do
nat contain a sgnificant financing component or for whech the Group and the Company have applied the practical capediont,
th Group ard the Company initlally measune a financal asset a1 s Faie value phes, in the cose of a fmancial assef not
at far value throwgh profit or loss, tramsaction costs. Trade recefvables that do not contain a signeficant financing companent
o lar whicn the Graup and the Company have applied the practical expedient are measired an the transacticn grice
duteringd under MFRS 15,

In order Tor a financal asset to be classified and measured al amortesed cost or PYOCL, It needs bo give rise 1o cash fiows
that ane solety payments of prindpal and intenest ("SPPC) on the princial amount outstandng. Thes assesament is iefemsd
a3 tha SPPI test and & performed at an instnement evel,

Thee Grenip's and the Company's husiness model Toe manadgineg financial assats relers i how i manages ds linancal wseis
imardar to genarate cath fiows. The business modal detesmines whathar cash fows will resilt from collecting contracheal
cash flows, seling the linanclal assots, ar both

Purchases or sales of finandal assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame establshed by reguiation or
corvention in the markst place (regular way trade<) are recognised on the trade date, Le. the date that the Group and
the Company commits 10 purchase or sell the asset.

{il) Subsequent messurement
Far pumposes of subseguent measurement, financlal sssets are classified in four categonies:-

+  Firancial pssets at amodised cost [debt instrumantsic

= Financlal assets at fair value through OC with recycling of cumulative gains and losses [debt imstrumentsk

= FEnancisl suets designated at Pair value Beough 00 with no fecycling of cumulatnee gains and losses upon desecogition
{equity matrumentsk and

*  Financizl assets at fair value through prolit or los.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[r} Financial assets {continued)
(i) Subsequent measuramant (continuaed)
@ Finmncie assels of amortisad Cos! (el mstraments)

This category is tha most relavant to 1he Group and the Company, The Crowp and the Company measures financial
asets at amortised cost (F bath ol the fallowdng condiions ane met:-

= The linancial assat 5 hetd within a business model with the cjective 1o hold Tinanclal assers in ander 10 colect
cartractual cash fows anid

- Tne contractual terms al the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
af principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effectve nterest rate (B method and
M0 Subject to impaement, Gains and los4es a0 moogaesed in the Ingome Startement wihen 1The asses 5 deredognised,
maxdified or imgared.

Thit Growp's and the Company's Tinancial assets at amoriised cost include receivables and amounts due from assaciates
ol jeint ventures inthudeg unded other non-curient Bitancial asses,

B} Finoneial assets designimted ot foir vokie throogh OCT fequity instrumants)

Upan initial recognition. the Group and the Company can elect to dassify rrevocably its eguity indestments as
Bquity irstruments designaten at fair valoe through 00 when they meet the oefinition of eguity under MFRS 132
Financeal Instruments; Presamtation and ae not hald for trading, The classification s gatemined an 40 instnement -
by« instrument asis,

G, vl Iersses an thase linantil assets jdre tever racydled 10 incaome Statement, Dividands are recognised i athar
Income in the Income Statement when the night of payment has been established, scept when the Groop and the
Company banafits fm ach pmossds a6 A rocowny of part ol the cost of the financial auser, nwhich case, such gans
e necardad in DL Enuity mstruments designatad at fair vahss throwsgh OF) are nat subject to imparment assassment,

The Group and the Company edacted 1o classify revocably s non-listed equiry investments under This category

)} Finoncal assets of fol vodue through prafit or joss

Finamcial assats at far valun thermigh prafit or 194 inlisds finantial sssats held fos rading, financial assets designated
upan nitlal recognition &t far value through profit or loss, or financlal assets mandatony required to be measured
atl tair vakio. Financlal asets are clacitiod a< hold Tor tradng (1 thay ae acgudied Tor the purpose of wlling ar
repurchasing in the neas tarm, Derivatives. including separated embedded derivatives. are also dassified as beld
for trading urless they ate designated as affective hedging Instruments. Financal assets with cash flows that are
niot solely payments of principal and interest ame classdied and measured at fair value through protit or loss,
Irespective of the business model Natwithstanding the oitaria for debt instremants ta be dlassified 3t amartised
cost or at falr value theough OC1, a5 described above. debt instruments may be designated at falr value through
profit or lost on initial recogaition i daing w0 eliminates, or sigrilicamtly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fasr value through profit or bss are caried in the statement of financial postion at faée valee
with net changes in fai value recognicad (n the INcome SEatamaent,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{r] Financial assets [continued)
(i} Subsequent measurement (continued)
€ Fnando pysers of foir vakae tvough prafit o loss feontinued)

Thits caleqory Inlues derfvalive instruments and ksted equity investments which the Group and 1he Compsany had
nat irrevocabily elected to clissity ar fair value theowgh OC1 Dhidends on equity indestments e also recognised
as other income in the income Statement when the right of payment has been estabilished.

A dorivative smbeddodg in o lybsid contraer, with & finsneial lahiliey ar poo-faancial bodn, B wsparmisd irom the
hast and accourted for as a separate dervative i the economéc characteristics and risks are not closaly related
to the host; a separate instrumant with the same tenms a5 the embedded derivative would mest the definibon of
a dirivatives and the hyboid confract is not messured at fair value through prafit or koss, Embedded denvatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair valse recognised in Income Statement. Reassessmert only ocours it
there s either a change in the terms of the contract that signiticantly modities the cash Tiows that would otherwise
b reguéred o o reclassification of o financial asset out of the Tair value through prafit o loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybeid contract containing a finarcisl asset hast is not accounted Tor separatedy.
Tihir Financial asset hast together with the embedded derivative is required to be chssifiod in its entirety 05 &
linancial asset at far valie tiough profit or loss,

{ili} Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applcable, a part of a financkal asset or pas of 2 group of similas financlad assens) is primarlly
darecognised (Le., removed Trom the statements of financlal positian} when:.

= Theerights 1o receshee cash Tiows fram the asset hae expined: or

= The Group and 1ha Company have transferred (s Aghts 10 ecehe cash Nows Trom the Jssel of has assumed an
obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-throwgh™
afANgETENT: a0 slthir (1] the Group and thi Company have traistornd substantially all the risks and rewands of
thie asset. or (b the Group and the Company have neither tramsferred nor retaned substantially ol the risks and
rewwards af the asset, butt has ransfemed controd of the asset

When the Group ard the Compary have transferred it rights 1o receive canh flows from an anset or bas entened imto &
pats-through arrangement. it evaluates if. and 1o what extent, it has retaned the risks and rowards of owmership When it
hurs medthir tramsfered nof petained substantaly sl of the ks and rewards af the awset, noe transfered control of 1he
asset, the Group and the Company continues (o recognise The transferred asset 1o the extent of its continuing invohament
In that case, the Group anc the Company also recogneses an atsocated labilty, The trarsfemsd asset and the assodated
liability are misxsured on a Bass that reflects the rights and obligations. that the Groud and thi Company have eaned,

Contrwing iwalvement that takes the fom of 2 quarantes over the tansferred asset s measwred at the lower of the
oviginal carrying amaunt of the #55et and the maximum amount of consideration that the Growp and the Company could
b required to repay.

134 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

410/624



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooood

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD | ANWUAL RLPORT 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{s} Impairment of financial assets

The Group and the Company recagnise an allowarce for expected credit lsses. (ECLST) for al debt imstrments nat held at fair
walue thmugh profit or loss. ECLs are bhased on the difference between the contractual cash fiomas due in acoordance with the
congract and al tha cash Mows that the Group and the Comparny mipact to moehe, decounod at an appradmation of the original
alfectiveintersst rate. The expected cash Mows will inciude cash fows From the sale of colienal held or ather cradit enhancaments
that are nfegra fo the contraciual tems

ECLs are recognised in two stages For cradit exponunes for which these has not been a significant increass in credit risk since
inutlal recognition, ECLs are prosdded fior oredif kosses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 -manths
" 1Z-month ECLT), For 1hirse crooi exposunes for which ther his Bodn a significant increase in cnedit fsk since initial recognition.
a loss alawance s required for credit Iosses axpected over the remaining life of the exposures, irespective of the tming of the
default ["a Metime ECLT).

For trade receivatbiles and contract assets, the Group and 1he Company applies a simpiified approach in caloulating ECLs. Therefoime,
the Group and the Compary does nat tradk changes in credit sk, but instoad recognises a loss allbwancs based on Betme ECLs
at cach reporting date. Tho Group and the Company has cutablished a provisian matns 1hat & baecd on it historical crodi loss
euparcnies adjisted for foreard looking factors specific fo the debtors and the cocopomic environment

Thie Group and the Company corseders a finonzial aset in delault whin contractual payments are 90 diys pest due. Hewewr,
In certaln cases, the Group and the Company may also consdar a financial asset to be in default when intemal or external
infeemation indicates that the Group and the Company |s unlikely to receive The outstanding contraciual ameunts in full bafose
taking into account army credit enharcements hoid by the Group and the Company. A financial asset is weitten off whim there is
no reasonable expectation af secovering the contractual cash flows.

Fuarthes discioswures nelating to impairment af finandal assets ane sl provided in e following notirs:

Hote
Trade and other recefvables Fanl
Finain ksl rk mariggumind =]

[t} Contract cost assets

The Group capitalses s3es COmMISS0Ns 45 Costs o odtain a contract with a oustomer when they are moremental and expected
1o b recovered ower moie than a year. The Group espects 1o eoover these costs in the futwe through telecammunication
services revenoe eamed from the customer. Thie G also cagitalnes. tha expenditum on assets suth as waler mains/sewers
or new comnections relating to contracts as they am incumed to fulll the contract and ae expected to be received over more
T ey i,

Sales commissions ae amortised on 3 stralght line basks over the term of the specific contract fo whidh the cost relates o,
Amartiation of contract costs ane induded a5 part of direct cost within Tost of sales” in the income Statemerts, While, the
aupanditung on assaty wa treated s oot ol Sales whan the contract K complits,

An impatrmant less 15 recognisad to income Statement ta the extent that the carying ameunt of the contract cost assets

mecognised exceads the remaning amount of comideration that the Group expacts to receive for the specific contract that the
cost relates fo less additional costs required o complate the spadfic contract
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{u) Contract assets and llabllities

Contract asset s the right to consideration in emchange for goods and services that the Group kas tramsfensad to a customer. 1
the Group transfers goods or services 1o 2 customer bafore the customer pays consideration or before payment ks due. a confract
aand s recognised tor this sarmed cohskkerteon that & condiignal, Contract 55e1s ame wubjact to mpaiiment SSSetamint hitad
o thia BCL maadial

Cantrast Iabikty = the urdstsficd obigation by the Group te trandor goods oF senees te 4 cuttamer Tor which this Group hud
recehved] comsidaration for an amount of consideration is dua) from the custamer, If a oustomer pays comsiidaration before the
Greup transfers goods or servites to the customes, a conract Bsbilty is recogrised when the payment s made or the payment
i e {wehichiwos s caricr), Contract Rabilities are rocegnised as revonue whon the Group perferms under the centract.

{v) Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities

Dieriviatives are Enitlally recognised at fale value on tha date a derivative contract s entered into and are subsequenthy re-measunad
a1 Their Tair vake, The method of recognising he resulling gain or iass depends an whether the dervative is designated 25 a
hediging irstiuiment, and if 4o, the natune of Ehi Rem being hedged. Thie Group designaties certain desfaathaes o either

[{]  Hedges af the far value of recognised assets o kabiites o a firm commitment (falr value bedge) or

() Hodges of o particular sk sssociatid with o mecognised aset or lability or a highly probatie forecast transsction (cash Tiow
hatge]: of

[i] Hedges of 3 net insestment ina forsgn operation.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship betwesn hedging instruments and hedged items. a5
well a5 its rsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking varouws edging fransactons. The Goup 2lse dotwments its
aspesamant, hath at hedge incaption and on an ongomg hadis, of whathat 1he derhatives that are ised i hadging Wanacton
e highy effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash Hows of hedged flems

Tt Fair vl of virious derivative itdtruments used for hedging purpodes s discimod in Rote 21 Mavamarnts on 1he hedging
resene n other comprehaensive income are shown in Kote 28, The full fair valee of a hedging dervative & dassified as a non-
CuETen? assot or fabdity whon the emaining hedged Hem (s mede than 12 months, and as @ curent assot o Eability whon the
remaining matufty of the hedged item is less than 12 monthe. Trading defiatives are cesslfied o curent asset or fatiding

{ij Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as farr value hedges are recorded In the Income
Statement together with any changes n the lair value of the hedged asset or lability that are atiribudatile to the hedged
sk, Thee Group ordy applies Fair watue hedge accounntng Tor hedging fixed interest rak on borrowings. The gain o lesa
relating to the affective portion of interest raze swaps hedging Meed rate bormowngs b recognased (n podin o s within
Tinane @ CosTs. T gain of 1265 relating 1o thie netlect e portion i (ecopnised in thi InCome Statemsng within 'other gains”
[Rriserk] « nat, Changes i the (e valie of tha hedge Toed mA1e Dorwings artiburalie o nlerest rate s anm recognied
in the Income Statament within Tinance costs,

IF the hedge no longar meats tha criteria for hadge accounting, the adjustment to the camying amount of 3 hacgad Bem
for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to income Statement over the period to matumnty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[w} Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities (continued]
{il} Cash flow hedge

Thae fair walue charges on thie effechive portion af 1he dermaties that ame desigrated and quality o6 cash lew hedges ame
recognsad i othar comprehensive ntoma. The gain o koss relating 10 the meffective portion & recognsed mmediataly in
Imcome Statement.

Bmaoimits accomiated in equity ane reclassified I Income Statement in the finanoa pernds when the hedged item affects
predit o inss (for sxamgle, when the farecast sale that s hedged takes place], When the forecast transaction that (s hedged
uvsailts in thiy rocogration of o mon:fnancial aeset (Tor example, irvemtory of Toed assots), the guins and lKses proioushy
defamed in equity are rarsfemed from equity and included in the infis messurement of the cost of the asset The daferred
amounts ae ulimately reccgnised im oost of goods sold in the case of inventory or in depreciation in the case of poperty.
plant and ecuipment.

‘when the hedgng irstrument xpines of i sold, of when a hedge no longer meets the critedia for hidge accounting, any
clamulathn gain or ket exiiting i oquity At that time rmairs in egquity and is reognised wian tha Torecast 1ratsaction |s
ultimately recognisad in tha income Statemant, When a forecast transaction is no longer expected 1o ooowr, the cumulatie
galn of loss that was eponted in equity i immediatoly transfenad to Income Statement,

(iii) Hedges of net investment in foreign operations

The Group applias hixdge accounting by designating a ron-dervative financlal Katulity as a hedge of a nat investmant in the
foreign operation, with the comesponding foreign curency differances ansing on the transiation being rectassified 1o the
Group's foreign curmency translation resarve. To the extent that the hedge & ineffective. such differences are recognised
in tha ingome staternent. Whon the hadged net imsestment = dsposed of, the relvant amount in thi fomign currency
transiation reserve is transfered to the intome statement a5 part of the gain or loss on disposal.

This Growp urkes ks a5 hedoe of it exposung to fareign exchange fisk on its nvestments in foreign subnidianes. The Group
documents at the inception of the transaction the relstionship between hedgng instruments and hedged items, as wel as
[ts risk management oljectives and strategy Tor undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group ko documents its
msessment, both 1 hedge incepton and on an ongoing bask, whether the hodging relatiombips are Righty effedtive in
offsetting changes in fair values of the hedged Rems.

[w) Inventories
rverdories are stated ot the lowver of cost and not malsabls vals,

Cost & detemmined on the weighied @verage or fist in, first out bass and incledes the cost of puchase and other costs inourmed
if bringing the imentones (o teir piesent lecation and condition.

The cost of finkshed goonds and work-in-progress consists of raw materials, direct laoour, othes direct charges and an appeopriate
progortian af production averheads [kesed on normal operating capacity).

Fuel and diesel oll held for generation of electricty are not written down below cost if the electricity generated s expected
1o obitdin & qroas mangin &t or abeve cost. Cost Fat this pumaose inchedes the applicable couts requined 10 anabbe the Tuel and
dirsel oil 10 be used for the genevation of electricity.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{w] Inventories {continued)

Imentaomies for ol trading are acguired with the puipose af sesing in the near future and genarating @ profit from Pluctuations
Iri jprice. These ara at fair value bess costs 1o well with changes in fair value less costs 1o sell recognised in the income Statemeants.
in the period of chamnge.

The cost of diveloped propesties comprises costs assodated with the acquisition of land, direct costs and appropriate proportons
ol Eemmon caits.

Met realicable valua is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and zpplicable
varlabile selfirg cxpense

{x) Property development costs

Proparty development cos1s comprise all costs that are directly attributable to devefopment activities or that can be allocated
o0 @ feasonable basis 10 such acthities. Property development costs are retognised when inCered

When the financigl outcoms of the development activity can be rellably estimated and the sale of the development urit b
aflected, property development revenue and cxpenses & e recognised m the ncome Staiement by reference to the stage of
completion of devHopment acthitks at Tthe reponing date in accorcance with MFRS 15 Revena Tram Contracts with Customers
The stage of completion |s determined by the proportion that property development costs incurrad for waork pedformed t
date 1o the estimated Total property developmeant Costs.

Where the finarcial mirome of 3 development activity cannot be reliably estimated, property development revemue ks recogrised
oy 1o the extent ol poperty dewslopment costs newmmed that is probable will be recoverabile, and peopery disvelopmaent
coats on propertas sold are recognised oL an axoanse in the period 0 which thay ane inourred.

Any expedtod oSt oh a dovelopimant projoct, Indudng casts to be incumed aver the defacts Gability perled, is recognized s
an expanse immediatoly,

Prapeny development 0o51s not recognised as &n expense ae recognised & an asset, which = measured at the kwer of oos1
and net realisable value.

Whiste e iecognied in the Income Statement exceed Dings 1o purchasers, (he balance 15 shiwn as CORLRact assels
(TR CLTTONE 3555, WINeRE Dilings 19 purchasers excead ravenus Foognised in Tha indoma STatement, th balance is shown
o contract Mabilities (within current labilities)

{¥) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalenis conast of cash and Dank Dalances. bank owerdrants, deposias hetd 31 call with Finandia insTruTiong
and highty Bepid irvestments which have an insigrificant risk aof changes invale, For the parpose of the Statemants ol Cash
Fiows. cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bark overdrafis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[z} Share capital
Orliniary shares are aquity Imstruments and recondad at the peoceeds reeelved, net ol directly attributable incrementa ransaction
fosts

DOividerds on ardinary shares are accounted for in shareholders’ aquity &% a0 appropriation of retained sarmings and atcrued
a5 habitty In the financial year in which the abbgation to pay |s established.

{aa) Troasury shares

Whaete the Company purchases (b5 own thares, the considenation paid incuding amy directly atteibutabio incremental costs,
netof tax, is deducted from equity attributable to the cwners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares ame cancalied,
g

Should such shares be cancelled, the costs of the treasury shares are applied in the reduction of the profits sthersdse available
tor distibution a5 diadends. Should such shares ane subsequently nelssued, any conslderation recebved, net of any dinecty
attributatik: intromantal trinaction casts and the related tax eifects, s inclugded in equity anributable 1o the awners ol the
Comparry,

‘Whaere the teasury shares ane sutriaquonily detibuned as dividerds 1o sharehobders, thi costs of the eaury shares o0 he
origing! purchaze are applied in the reduction of the funds otherwise available for distioution as dividends.

{ab} Irredeemable Convertible Unsecured Laan Stocks (“ICULST)

The ICULS are regarded as compound Instuments, consisting of 2 liabikty component and an eguity component. At the date
al issisn, the fair value of the Rakility companant it estimated using the prevailng markel interest rata far  similar instrument.
The difference between the proceeds of tssue of the ICLLS and the Tair value assigned to the Bability component, representing
tha cormviesion aption is induded i equity. The hability component is subsequently stated at amortksed cost using th effective
nlerest rte mothod untd eainguished on cormorsion or cancelation, whilst the value of tha equity comparent i not adjusted
I subsequent perods., Attrioutable transaction costs ane apportioned and deducted directly from the liabdity and equity
components based on thedr carmying amounts at the date of Ksue

Undor the effoctive imterest rate method, the intenost cxpense on the Eability component is calouated by applying the provailing
madket interest rate for 4 wmilar non-convertibile instrument at the date af lsue, The diffesence between this amaunt and
tha ntennst paid is added to the carrying amount af the ICULS

Thies ki af the conversson aption B net adjusted in subceguent pedos, except in tmes af ICULS canversion ima eedirany

shaces Upon comversion af the imtrument B0 ordinary shames, the amount credited 1o share copital i the aggregate of the

amadnts chassified within liablity and equity at the time of conversion. Mo galn or loss Is recognised In the income Statement.
[ac) Deferred income

The deferred imcome i in relation to maets tramdorred Trom customers in nespect ol sendoes which ane yet 1o be provided.
Such amoants are recorded s llabites in the Statements of Financial Position and s amartised to the boome Statements
oves the expected usetul economic Bves of the related assets.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{ad) Bonds and borrowings

Bonds anif borrowings 2e inftially recognised based on tha procesds recelved, net of transaction costs incurred, Subsequently,
bands and borroaings are stated at amortised cost wsing the effective yisid method; any ditference between procesds [net
of rEnuscTion codts) and the redemplion value i recognised in the Bcome Statément over the period of he bonds ar
hartoawings.

Irtadest felating to o financsl instrument clatulsnd o o Rability i reportod within financd codl in ths Rodms STlamants.

Bonds and borrowings are dassified as current Hablites unless the Croup and the Company have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of thi Rabdity Tor an heast 12 momhs alter the reporting date.

Ooirowing cost inturred to finance the construction of property, plant and equpment that meets the defintion of qualifying
aset are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets dufing the period of time that s required to get the asset ready for its
intendad use,

{ae) Leases
{iy Accounting as lessee

Ledses are recogrised 2+ right-of-use [ROUT assets amd a cormesponding labiity at the date on wivch te leesed ayset
is evailabde for use by the Crowp and the Company (Le. the commentement datel.

Lontracts may contain bath leate and non-lease components. The Group and the Company alocates the consideration i
the contract o the kease and non-lease components based on thelr relatrve stand-alane prices. However, for leases of
peipartied Tof which e Grosip and T Company s a lessea, i1 has electad i practieal sopedinm prowvided in MFRS 16
nat bo separate lease and non-kase components, Bath components are accounted for 35 a single kase component anid
payments for both components are indluded In the mesturement af hoase ablity,

ol Loose term

in determining the lease tesm, the Group and the Company comsiders all facts and circumstances that create an
ooonomic inCentve to axercise an extension option, or not 1o exercise a termination ootion. Extension optons (or
pesrcd after Wermination aplions) ane oy nchuded in the lase Tenm if th s is reasenetey certein to be extended
{or nat to ba terminated).

Thet Gratip and the Company reasiess the lease temm upon the ooturmence al & significant ewent or change in
cocummstances that is within the control of the Group and s Company and affects whether the Group snd the
Company &e regsondbly cenain 1o exsrche an option not previowsly induded in the determination of lease tem,
oF Ml T ENEICEE an ofition previously intluded in e deTermination of Rase Tenm. A revision In ease e s
in remeaspemant of the leasa llabilities, See atcounting policy 2{aei ) on reassessment of lessa Kabilities,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[ae) Leases [continued)
{i} Accounting as lessee (continuad)
b ROU pisers
ROLI 35515 are rifally measuwed at cost compeising the folowing:-

*  The amount of the initial measwement of l2ase Eabilitg

= Any lease payments made at or befong the cammencement date 1855 any kease Incentive received,
= Amy initial diredt coss: and

+  Decommissioning or restoration oosts.

ROU as5e1s thild are nol awestment groperties are subsequently mesxsured at cost, less accumulated depreciaion
and impairment koss (f any). The ROU assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s wseful fife
and tha lgase 1erm on 8 straight ling basis. If the Group and the Comgiany are easonatly cetain to sxercise a
puchase ogition, the ROU assats se deprecioted over the underlying asseTs uselul life. in addition, 1he AU xssets
e adusted for certain measwrament of the lease lahikties,

Thetr Grausp and thé Company presuents ROL assets withen wiach The corresponding underlying assets would be pretented
It thery were owned those assets are presented in the Statements of Financial Position s property, plant and
Eupment BOU rsets aa pecented a5 3 separate ine item in the Statements of Financial Position sxcept for abowe.

) Lease lobiktes

Leasa lahilities are wnitially measuned a1 the present value of the payments that are not gaid a1 that date. The lease

payments include the following:-

*  Fhoed payments (including in-substance ficed paymedts), less any ladsa incentive ratatvabile;

+ ariable lease payments that ate based on an index o a rate, initially measured wsing the index or rase at the
cammentement date;

*  The exercise pice of a punchase and extension option if the Group and the Lomgpany are reascnably certain 1o
peErcise that options: and

*  Paymonts of penallses fof Tarminating this lease, i 1hia kease teem reflocts tha Group and 1he Company eeercising
that option,

| e prmess are e cuinbise using tha interest rate implicit in th lease, IF That rate cannat be readily ceterminesd,
which = generally the tase for lawies in the Groop and the Compamy, tha lessea’s incremantal barrowing s used,
This s the rate that the ndividual lessee would have to pay 1 borrow the funds necessary o obtain an asset of
Simalar valiie 10 the ROU im & simelst SConnmilc eiviranmisnt with Simdsr tenm, secufty and conditiong

Lease payments are aliocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to Income Statements
owver [ leaa porviod 0 4% 10 produde a comtam pariodic rate of imarest on the remaining balance of the liability
for aach pericd.

Vanable lase papment that depand on sales am redagnised in the statement of comprebemshee intcame in the period
in which the condition that triggers thosa payments ooturs.

Thir Group and thie Company presonts kease Gabities a5 2 separate lng fom in the statement af firancad pasition.
Interest axpense on the kase llablty & presented within the finance cost in the Income Statement,
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{ae) Leases {continued)
(I} Accounting as lessee (continued)
) Regdsessment of leose babdiies
The Growp and the Company are also exgosad to potential futune iIncresses in variable lgase paymenis that depend
or an index of rate, which e not included Inothe lease labsiy until they take effect. When adjustments 1o ease

payments based on an index or rale 1ake effect. the lease liability & remeaswed and adjusted against the ROU
ASLAE

Lease Babilities is also remeasuned if there 5 a change in the Group's and the Company's assessment of whether it
will exarcse an extension option and there are moddications in the scope or the consderation of the lease that

woms not part of the original tesm,

) Shart-torm feases ond keases of ow value osscls

Short-term loases are keases with a lease term of 1.2 months or lets. Low-value assats comprise IT equipment and
sl ers of affice fumiture, Payments associated with shor-term leases of eguipmen and o lsases of low-valoe
assts e recognised on a straight ling bases s an expense in income Statements

{il} Accounting by lessar

As a lessor, the Group and the Company determing at lease inception whether each lease t a finance kease or an operating
liarsag, Tor cliassily wach lrase, the Grougy and the Commgreny makes an overall assessimnt of whethe (e s transfisns
sufrs Lanthally @ of the risks aimd rewdnds modental o the eemmeshio of e uanderfpng asset 1o the sses, As parl of
this assessment, the Group and the Company consicer certain indkcators such as whether the lease i Tor the maor part
ol Thi efonomic ife of the aset

o) Fance leases

Ihe Group and the Company classifies a lease as a finande lease if thie lease transfers substantally @ the risks and
rewants incidental to camership of an underying asset to the lesses,

The Group derecognisas the underlying asset and recognises a recavable at an amount equal 19 the net inestment
in a fingnce lease. Net investmant in a finance ‘aase s measwred at an amount equal to the sum of the present
valua of loas payments fram lesusa and the unguarantoed rewkdual value af the endarlying sset. knitial direct couts
are aka inthuded in the initial measurement ol the nat imeestment. Tha nat investments |5 subject 1o MARS 9
impairment {refer to Note 2[5} on impalrment of financial @ssets). in adoition, the Croup reviews regularly the
eatimated undguarantied residual valde.

Lease income ts recognised over the term of the kease wsing the net iInvestment method so as 1o rellect a constant
periodic rate of return. The Graup revises the lease incame allocatian if theee is a reduction in the estimated
wniguatanieed residual valug,
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[ae) Leases [continued)
{ii} Accounting by lessar (continued)
b Operofing ieases

Thit Group Classifies a ease as an operating fease i1 thi kease does not ansfes Substaniialty 38 the mks antd rewands
Intidental to ownership of an undedlying asset (o e lesiee.

The Group recognises kase payments freceived under operanng lease as lease iNcome on a staight-ine basis over
i Jinirsay Lo,

Rental income on operating feases s recognised over the term of the iease on a straight-line basls. Rental income
1% shemam et of refies and decoun s, Bantal inoome indhedes hass rent, percentage rent ard other rent refited
income from tenants. Base rent s rscognised on a straighi-line hasis aver the lease term. Percentaga mnt is recognised
based on sales operted by enants, When the Grons prosade ircentives of rebates to the tenants, the cost of
Incentives or rahates B capitalaed a8 deferrad lease incentive and i recognised mast the lease tem, on a straight-
line basis. as a reduction of mental Boame, Initial direct cost inturmed by the Groaip i negatiating and amanging an
operating ease is recognised &5 an asset (defered lease incentive) and amortised over the lease term on the same
bt a thir rental incom,

) Sublecse clossificotion

Lintil the finarcial year ended 30 june 2019, when the Group was an intermedlate essor, the sublaasas wens assified
s finance af aperatng leases by rolarence (o 1he usderying resets,

From 1 puly 2019, whan the Group is an infermediate |essor, it assesses the leass dassfication of a sublease with
reforence to 1he ROU asset arsing from the head lease, not woith sefeencoe to the underlying ssse. Fa head lsse
is short-term ke to which the Group and the Comgany applies the ecemption described abova, then it classition
thee sublease as an cpesating lease.

@ Seporating lease ond non-lease components

IF @n afratgoment conlaing lease and non- e companents, the Group and he Company allocates The condidaration
In the contract 1o the kkase and non-lease components based on the stand-alona selling prices in accordaree with
the principles in MFRS 15 "Bevenue from Contracts with Customears®,

[af) Grants amd contributions

Gaants and cantrbutions ae benslits moeosad in respect of specific quatilying oxpondities, and imeStment Tad credis and
tax benefits in respect of qualifying property, plant and equipment. These are released to the Income Statement over the
eupected economic uwseful lives of the refated assats.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{ag) Provisions

The Group ard the Company recognises provisians when it has a present liegal or canstnxctive obligation arising as a resuft of
# past event, and it s probable that an outfiow of econamic benefits will be reguired to settle the obégation and a relizble
wlimate can s mate, The recanding of provisint mequires the application af judgements about the ultimate resohition of
thesa abligations. As 4 rewilt, provisions are mdawed at each reporting date and adusted to reflect the Group's and 1he
Company's cument best estimate

{ah} Financial liabllities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Firamcial Eatalities ara classifod, 21 nitial recognition, a5 financial labilities at fair value through prafit or s or ae
amortized cost, as appropriate.

That Group's and the Company's finaacial llabdities include trade and athar payables, amounts due 1o relited parties, bonds
and borrowings and dervative financial instruments.

(i) Subseguent measurement
Thee measurement of financial liabiktes depends on thelr dassification, as described below:-

o) Fnancia! fiobiltes ot foir vofue through profir or Joss
Financial Babilities at fair vahse through profit or lees inchude finandal Rabiities beld for trading and finencial llabiites
designated wion indtial recognition as at fair value theough profit or loss.

Finuncid RabiBties @e clessified as beld for Dadiog § ey are incurmed Tor Uhe puepoese of sepuncheesdong e s
term. Thes category alsa includes derivative financial irstuments entered imo by the Company that are nof designated
a5 hedging |mstnements in hedge relatianships a5 defined by MFRS 9. Separated emboddnd derivatives are also
classifeed as held for trading unkess they are designated as effective hedging Instuments,

Gairg of lesses on labiitie: hold for trading are retognisad in the |ndome S1atament.

Financial labdities designated upon inifial recognition at fair walue through profit or koss are designated at the initial
date al recognition, and only I tha critarla in MFRS S are sathfied. The Group and the Company have nat designated
any financial Kability as at fair valse through profit or loss.

&) Farancied hobilites af amaviised coit

This is the category most relevant to the Growp and the Company. After initlal recognition, ai financial kabilitles are
subsequently measuted 81 amortised cost wsing the EIR method. Gaing and losses are recognised in the Income
Staternent when the llabilties are derecognised as well as theough the EIR amartisation process.

Ainudid Lo s calcutatbiod Dy Qakiing info accownil any dicount or primbem o ecguisition and fees of cosls tha
are an integr part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is intluded as linance costs in the income Stalement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{ah) Financial liabilities (continued)
{iii} Derecognition
A finaraial abekTy 15 derecognsed when the obligaton unde: the liabdity i dischaged or cancelled or sapires, When an
axisting financial liabdty s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing dshlity ae substantially modified, such an exchange or moddscation is treated &5 the derecogrition of the

angiruil bahiliey ard the meaginion of a nea Raldlicy. The ditfersnes in the renec e camying amoeits £ meognied in
1he Inrome Statemant,

[al}) Foreign currency
(I} Functional and presentation currency

mtems included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary econamic
@rECTEMENT i wihech Thr ity operates (e STunctional currency™), Th consolidated linancial SEalements ae presented
in Rmggit Malaysia (RM) which 15 aso the Company's hunctonal and presentation asrenty.

(lf) Foreign currency transactions
Forelgn ourency transactons are wansiated into the funcional cumancy wsing the exchange @ies pevallng a1 the dates
af the ransacions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resutting from the settiement of such transactions and from the
Trarmslation at year-end exthange rales of monatary assels and kablities denominated in Toneign cumencies are fecognised
in the mcome Statament.

{iii} Group companies

Thr el ared Tinardial porsition of o e Group enTiTes (rone of wiech Ras i cumency af @ fypennflationany scenomy)
That hae b funcrianal currency diffecent from the prasantation cusrency aha thanstated into presentation outenty a5 folioiws-

assiEs and Babdivies for gach statisment of linanoial position presented e randaied # this dosng rate at the date
of that statement of financial pasition;

= income ard expenses Tor each Income statements are translated #t average exchange rates; and

= all fesuning exohange CITTerinces are rdognised &5 separate Campanents of athir COmpRehensha incemae.

On consalidation, exchange differences arising from the transiation of the net investment in forelgn operations are t3ten
10 sharcholoers equity, When a faregn operation is partially dsposed of or soid, exthange diterences that wine recorded
in aquity ané recognised i the Intoma Slatement as part of the gain or lass on dsposal.

Condhill and Fair vitluo adpstmaents aising an the aoquisition ol a foneign entity on of after | iy 2001 are teaned a5 assets
and liatslities of the forelgn entity and transiated at the dasng rate. For acguisiton of foreign entities completed ior to
1 uly 2011, goodeell and fair value adjiustments continued 1o be recorded at the exchange rate at the respective date of
Erquisitions, This i in actondanda to ha adoption of MFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of Malaysian Firsneis Reponting Standands”,

{al) Segment reporting

Operating segrments are raported in a manner consistent with the intemal reparting orovided to the managing dirrctorsichief
executive officers who ane respansible tor allocating resounces and assessing perormande of The operating segments.
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{ak) Financial guarantee

146

(al)

Financial guarantes contracts e contracts that requine the Goup and the Company to make specified payments to rimburss
the holder for a loss it incws batawse a spedified debtor fads to make payments when due, in accordance with the tems of
& flebl imirument,

Financial guaraniee coniracts ane recognised as a inancal llabfity at the time the guamntes |s lssued. The lability is initally
mmansiired at Tair value dod subioquently mosturod at the highar af the amount determined in scerdantn with 1he sxpectad
credil loss moded undar MFRS 9 Financial instruments’ and the amount inftially recagnised less cumulative amount of income
recognised In accordance with the principles of MFRS 15 Rewvenue fiom Contracts with Customers’, where appropriate,

The fair value of finandal guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the
contractual payments uncer the debt instrument and the payments that would be required withowt the guarantee, or the
wstimated amount that sould be pay/able to o thitd paty for assuming the obiigations.

‘Where financlal guarantees In retation (o loans or paysbles of subsidiaies are proviced by the Comparry for no compernsation,
L Tl s da accounted Tor & contributiang anid recognised o5 part af s cost of irvestment i sabskliares.

Contimgent llabilities and contingent assets

The Croup and the Company do not recognisa @ contingent liability but cisciose its existence in the financial statements,
DNCEPT IN @ business combination.

A contingent liability is a possile chligation that arses from past events whose axistence will be confirmed by uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Group and the Company or a present oblgation that is not recognised because it s
nal prabable that an outflow af resources will be requined o settie the obligation When a change in the probabitty of an
outflow of economic resounes ooours and the outflow is probable. it will then be recognised a5 a provision.

A contingent awset |s a possible aaet that anses from past everms whase existence wall be confirmed by wncertain luture
events beyond the control of the Group ard the Company. The Group and the Company do not recognise contingent assets
but disclose thesr existence where inflows of economic benefits are probalie, but not vinually cerain, When inflow of economic
resouree s virfually certain, the msat & recognised.

In the axguisinion of wubskdlaries by the Gloup unde a Disness combination, the contingent labilities assumed ae measoed
ininiathy a1 Thas Tair vahos 07 The Doguisiion date, imespective of thie expent of any man-conereiing interess,

The Group recognises separataly the cantingent liabiities of the acquirees as part of allocatng the cost of 2 business
comtination whss the e values can be massuned redatily, Wheee 1he Fair valises cannat be medned resably, the resulting
affect will be reflacted in the goodwill arsing from the acquisitions.

{am] Ofzetting Fnancial instrumonts

Fimantial assets and kabilities are offset and thie net amount presented in the Statemants of Finanoal Position when there
is a fegally enforceable fight 1o offset the recogrised amaunts and thede is an intention 1o Lellla on a nat basis, or nealise
the asset and settle the liabikty simuttanecusly. The kegally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforeoablo in the nonmal course of Business aind in the event of deflault, Insalvency or bankrupiey.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[an} Contract costs
(i} ncremental cost obtaining a contract

The incrementsl €osts of abithining a contract are thase costs that the Group incurs to abtain i contract valh a tusiomsar
that it would not hawe incurred iF the contract had ot been abtained (for example, a sales comimission). These costs.
are recognised in contract assets it the Group expects to recover thase costs.

(i) Costs ta fulfil a contract

Thar incremental costs of obtaining & Conract am thase costs that the Group inCurs to abtain a contract with J customer
thaat It would not have incurred If the contract had not been abtained (for example, a sales comimission). These costs
Are reCognised in cantract a55ets i thie Group eapects to recover thase oosts.

These ranfracts rosts ane initially measwied at cost and amortised on a systematic hasts that & consistent with the
pattem of revenur recognizion 1o which the assets relate. An imgalrment Inss is rerogaised In the profit or koss when
thie carrying amaunt of the contract cokt exeaeds Ths sapestod resanis e oxpoc ted cost that wall be incurmed, Whods
the impaimmeent cardition no langer exists or has impaied. the imoairment loss is reversad o the extent that the camying
amount of the contracts cost does, nat excesd the amount that woulkd have been recogised had thirs been no mpasmant
loss rovog nesend proviously,

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimares and judoamants are continually pvahisaned and ane bated an histan al oxperience and other faciors, inziuding expeciations
of futura events that are believed ta be reasonable undar the cirmismatances.

Thie Group and he Company make stimates and asosmptions congeming thie feture. The e lting sooounting estimatis wi, by
daliritin, raraly aqual the rolatad actual esults. The estimates and assumplions that have a significant risk of causing & material
adustment to the camying amounts of assets and Labilities within the next financial year are discussed balowe-

{a) Estimatoed assassment of goodwill

The Group tests goeorwill for impairment annually, in accondance with its accounting policy. The eooverabia amounts of cash
generating units have bean determined based on walue-in-use caloulations. These calculations require the wse of significant
judgements and estmates as set out in kote 19 o the finandal statements.

Managament has factored in the polential impact with respect 10 the COVID-19 outhreak within the impairment assessments
based on the best estimate on the trajectory of recovary from the COVID-19 oubreaic Significant |udgement is invokeed as
thers may be patontial unceantie on thi full extent of Impact 35 a recuit aof COVID-19,

{b} Capitalisation palicy of property, plant and equipment on Infrastructure assets

The mfrastructure assets of he water and sewarage segmant comgrised cost incured 1o meet the developmeant and regulatorny
requiremnt of the business and this indudes amployes and averhead costs that are directly attributabie 1o the construction
ol thi auset.

Estimates and poigemrents are imyahed in determining whether cost incumed, specifically employes and overhead costs, meet
thin relovant eriaria for capitalication of propary, plant and oquipment.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{c] Estimated impalrment of property. plant and equipment
Determining whithier the property, plant and equipment are impalred fequires an astimation of value-in-use of the property,
prant and equipment. The value-in-use calulaton requires the managament to esttimate the future cash flows and an appropriate

aAco ] Fate in onder to raloulyts the present vilue of Futura cash Hows. Tha managament has eyausted such eqimates and
Is eonficlent that ra allmearde for mpalrment is necessany,

Thi Giawu msnagoment folaws its accountng palicy 468 aut in Note 2k} i detormining when property, plant and equipmon
e comidered mpaired,

It ks rocognised when cvents and clircumstances ingicote that these assets may be impaiied ond e Carrying amaunt
of these assets exceeds the recoverable amounts, in determining the recoverable amount of these assets, cartain estimates
regarding the cash fows of these assets are mada,

{d) Assessment on allowance for impairmant of trade receivables of water and sewerage

The dxpechid oedt loss on outstanding recorvablis is o key estimate undet MFRS 2 The Group estimate of recoverahbility by
grouping customers into similar econome profiles and applying a percentage foss rete basad on fowerd looking judgements
on the luiure collection rates that are Bikely to be acheeved, This has inchided additions! consaderations of the possible Impact
of Thi GEgeing eoneaic UNCEMANCY on the capected collection rmtes of outstanding receivabies.

{e) Estimated useful llves of property. plant and equipment ["PPE")
The Graup neviewis the useful lives of its PPE at each reparting date and amy adjustments are made on a prospective basis as
chenges In accounting estimates. The useful lives of the tefecommunications equipment ane assessed peniodicaly Dased on
the candtiang af the aguipment, market conditinns aned athar rgulatany rediitamaents.

{1} Fair value estimates for investment properties
The Group carmes investment properties at falr value, which requires exiensive use of acoounting estimates and judgements.
While wgrifscant components of fair value measurament wone datermined using veriflable objoctive evddence, the amourt of
changes in Fair value would ditfar | ihe Group wes diflerent valuation methadalogies. Any changes in Tair value of thase
Imvestment proparties woukd affoct income statement.

{g) Assessment of lower of cost and net realisable value
This Group recoghises ventodes o lowis of cost and net reslable valde
snificant udgement is required in determining the net realisable value which ts the estimated selling price in ofdinary course
ol Busness less the estimated cost 19 ssle,

{h) Assumptiens used in determining the post-employment benefit plans/{obligations)

Thie present value of the post-employment benefil plani obligatiorn) depends on a umber of lactors that are delerminsd
o an actuarial basls using a rumber of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/mcome are declosed
I Mot 35 10 the financis STatements Ay changes in ihese assumptons will imgact the Cahrsng amount of pos -empiayment
banefit assetsiobligations),
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTIMG ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEMTS [CONTINUED)
(i} Construction contracts

The Group has significant ongoing constnection contracts. For thase construction enntracts. revemes is reogiised over tme
by refarence to the Group's progress towards completing the constructon. The measure of progress ks determined hased on
the properton of contract comts incurred to date 1o the extimatod lalal contract costs (Tinput method™),

MHanagement has to estimate the total contract costs to complete, which are used in the input method to detesmine the
Canup's iezognition of constiuction rosania. Wb it is prababio that thi 1atal contract osts will sxtosd tho total eomutiu tion
revenue. 3 pravision Tor onerous contracts is moosgnised immediately.

Significant judgoment it used 1o estimane these 1018 contract coats 10 comgplote. In making those estimates, management has
relied on the expartise of the mtemal experts 10 determine the pogress of the constrction and atso on past experience of
comgleted projects

) Rovenua recognition from accrued income

The unbilled ncome accrual lrom metersd watas Lorvices of the water and fewerage segment faquires an estimation ol the
amaut of unbilled charges at the penod end. This & calodated using system generated mformation based on previous customer
WOl LiTe LS.

(k) Leases
The measurement of the “nght-ctane” assats and lpase labiity Tor leases where the Group is a lessee requires tha use of
significant jisdgements and assumptions. such as lease term and incremental bomowing rate,

Inu determining 1he loase tarm, the Ghoup and the Company considar all lacts and cimumstanées that cradte an economic
incentive 1o exetise an extersion oplion, or nat to exercise a termenation option, Extension options (or perods after termnation
aptons) are anly intuded in the lease team il the lease is reasonably certain 10 be extended (or not termnated).

The lease teym is reassessed f an option s exercised (or not ederclsed) or the Group and the Compary becomse obligated 1o
pxefCiee (NeT 1o exedcise) It The assessment of reasonable certainty (s only nedsed if & significant event of a signilicant change
in circumstances occunmed, which alfect this asessment, and that is within tho contral of the lessee,

It detarmitng the incrementas Bortowing rate, the Group ard the Company first determing he cbaest barroeing rate belose
using signficant |udgement 1o determine the adjustments requined to reflect the torm, sscurity, walue or economic enironmint
of the respective leases,

[} Deferred tax assets

Dederred Tax 255015 are refognised to the extent that it i< prabable that futue taxable profit wil e availible against which
temparary deiferences con be utilsed, This invaolvees |udgement regarding future financial performance of respective entities
whan the deferred tax assets are recognised.
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4. REVEMUE
Group Campany
2022 2021 o2z 2021
RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'O00 RM‘O00
Rovenue comprises. the following:-
Revenue from contracts with customens 24,044,845 17,067 603 227 256
Ravenue from other sources 166,658 2025616 396,390 469,720
Total revendie 24.241.503 17.270.419 96,617 AB8.976

{a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and other sources:-

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'OO00 RM'OO0 RM'OO0 RM'OO0
utiliehes
Sale af electriity 12,172,047 SAMR.292 - -
Sale ol clean water, ireatment ard disposal of
wiaste wated 4,108,545 iFlaza - -
Salg al steam 251,186 182,R30 - -
Broadband and IROommEmtcations e GE0,.288 524,020 - -
Cihers 297,017 £16,146 : _
17,489,083 1057207 - -
Cement and bullding materials industry
Sale of cement and related products 3.850,546 4076215 - -
Othesi s 40,415 15855 - -
3,890,961 4082070 - -
Construction
Construetion contracts 1,136,228 1.514,505 - -
Hotel operations
bl 1ooi and food and beverages 6B4.556 415,107 - =
Others 16,132 B,054 - -
700.688 A24,161 M
Praperty
Profect revenue 76,683 - - -
Sile al devalopmdnt propertios 5.736 . - E
Sale ol completed poperties 103,345 EEe G EE] - -
Sale of lands 402,494 26501 - -
iihers 16 480 14,4R5 2 =
604,738 r0E19 - -
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4. REVENUE ICONTINUED]
[a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and other sources:- {continued)
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMO0O RMIODO RMO00 RMO0O
Management services L others
Operatan and malntenanie senioes 97.634 111173 -
Licencing fee 21,150 - -
Property mansger fems 66,449 e - .
Food and DEvErages operations 7916 354 -
sadia ard adveriising sarvices 3173 1175 -
hers 27,425 5603 227 256
223,147 194,131 227 258
24,044,845 17,067.803 227 256
Revenue from other sources
Rental income 100,988 BE,4%1 - -
IMemest incoma 82,401 103372 14,567 22,855
Dividerd income 3.269 10753 381.823 46,865
196.658 20zela 396,390 ABS,TH0
Total revenua 24,241,503 17273419 396,617 #59,976
(b} Timing of revenue recagnition for revenue from contracts with cutomers:-
Grop Company
2022 2021 2022 20zl
RM 000 RMODO RMODO RM'O0O
- at a poirt n time 5,044,362 4663512 - -
= over tima 19,000,483 12.384.291 227 256
24,044, 845 17067803 27 756
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5. COST OF SALES
Inciuded In cost of sales are the following-

Graup
2022 2021
RM'GO0 RM‘000
Cost of Imeentonas 2,778,154 2430224
Construction coniradts costs 1,017,301 1254029
Cost of fuel raw materals and comumabia 12.967.7549 BISL220
Property developpment costs B.272 -
6. FINANCE COSTS
Graup Campany
2022 2021 2022 2021
Hote RM'OO00 RM'000 RM'OOD RM'D00
Interest expense
- Bonds 877,636 72 141,350 135188
- Borrowings 651,175 674,840 29,114 30,920
- Post-employment benef it ablgations 6,180 13,892 - -
- Livase liabiitios B7.879 Q2316 485 SE4
1,622,878 L5880 170,989 170672
Less: Amounts caplalised in
- Praperty. plant and equipment n [36,306) [23,733) - -
Interest expente of financial
liabilitins carried at amortisad cost 1,586,572 1,555,047 170,989 170672
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= 30 june 2022
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
L - S -
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RMODDO RMODO RMODO RM'O00
Profit before tax is stated atter
charging/{erediting) {other than
those disclosed in Note 5 & 6 to
the Financial Statements):-
Amonisatian of conract cosls 24 1,537 D43 -
Amortisatian of intangible asse1s ] 6B, 762 508 .
Auditors' remuneration
= slatutary audt
- cutrpnl fifancial i 10,253 W 1 244 244
- over proviskan in prior financial year Loz) {14 - -
= pithuss 1134 o5 16 15
Bad oabts written aff
- refevables Z2.704 1327 -
Cash Vow hedges, reclassified from hadging
reseave to cost of sales (331.254) (B0,144) -
Devalopment expenditure written off 63,921 5335 =
Depreciatan of property, plant and
equpment 1 1,606,957 1641525 222 71
Depreciatian af rght-of e assoers 12 186,754 183,038 6.E77 6712
Directors’ remuneratan
= praluments 53,569 30,8E0 1,413 T4l
- fois 1869 1,840 B90 B0
- benetits-in-kind 450 ThE = 24
Hadge ineffectivenass reoognised in profit
o loss 7171 2,869 - -
Impairment losses an
- ameaunt due fram subsidiaties IR} - - {79,600) {134}
amaiunt duee fram related parties FE[d) 206 G623 -
- contract assets 36(d) 270 - -
= intangdile Esets 19 174,000 L2E3 - .
- recetvabies - net of revesal 38[d) 122,115 BACE - -
- Investments, 5262 - 1,570 are
= Impestmant in subrsidianes - 79.497 -
- Investment In foint wenture 5.273 - - -
- property, plant and aguipmeant 1 - 41425 - -
bl ras b tune malnleronce experrsss 117.144 126,922 -
Ivwestmient properties written of 13 - B.a9lG - -
Ivwestment written off i - 1
Ivventores witten down 1,490 oa7 -
Leate expeniss Nt recognised in kease
liakiliticos
= shodt-tofm base 79,009 73,935 101 &1
- benw vidue assets 2937 2747 - -
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED}

Group Campany
2022 2021 o2z 2021
Hotae RM'OO0 RM'OO00 RM'O00 RM‘OO0

Prafit before tax s stated after

charging/{crediting) (other than

those disclosed in Note 5 & 6 to

the Financlal 5tatements):-

{continued)
Lo on Tardgn eschangs - nist

= tealrsesd 54,736 1468 1,455 949

- unealised 51,152 12078 - -
Mot far walue (gain}loss on financial

assete, at FYTRL {12.403) 380,785 - -
Property. plant and equipment written off 1 20,543 12411 - -
Riates 149,450 175,657 - -
Share option expenses 6,964 1507 2117 4695
And creditingf{charging) (other than

those disclosad in Note 4 to the

Financial Statements):-
Adjustment on far value of investment

propeties 12 3,617 70,707 - -
Amortisation of deferred income 6,008 5924 - -
Amartisation of grants and contributions 33 18,999 21548 -
B delns recoerid 4,640 3,330 . |
Cainless) an dieposal of

- Investments - net 17.4m 1718 2,183 2068

- proparty. plant and etuipment 76,620 43,735 IE {2)

- IsSociFed companies - i 1,271 456 - - -

- subsidiaries 4.916 407 541 - -
Gz on forelgn exchange - nat

- ratred 12.226 6 1BA 4.208 1411

- unrealisad 1,003 46597 - -
Caaint 00 l2ase tenmanation 991 575 - 129
Conift o i melification and

ragssassmant B55 ] -
Gros diidend from muated swestments,

wiithin Malaysa BZ3 537 -
Hiring neomas ram plamt, machineny ard

erplipman 21,266 29,089 -
Iritedast ineoime iram feancial st

measimed 3 amorsed tost

= Tismsil depsits 55,340 40475 - .

- others 15,502 A312 - -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX [CONTINUED)
Groug Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RMODDO RMODO RMODO RM'O00
And erediting/{charging) [ather than
those disclosed in Note 4 to the
Financial Statemants)- (continuad)
interest income - net investment in leases GEL 573 - -
Mt fair walue kot on iwestrments 18 {105,517) {1.400) (7.405) (4.480)
Operating loase intome 409 549 -
Rental inComse
= Other proferties 9.047 11,681 - .
Writes back of impairmant loss o
- propedty. plant and equipment n 10,300 - -
= COnlract aisets 38y - 91 -
|Prowsion Forkwrite back of labiitles and
thames E ] [21,003) Tac4 -
Directors’ remuneration

Detaits of the folal remuneration of each Directar af the Company meceived trom YL Corporation Sermad Group of Comparses,
categodised (rto approgriate components fof the finantal year anded 10 une 2022 and 40 une 2021 are as follows:-

Estimated
Defimad mondy valug
contributian ef benefits.
Foes Salaries Dot plan Onhers. in-kind Total
Groep - 2022 R 000 RM000 RMT0Q RMOD0 Llagiii] RM00D RMTOD
Executive Directors
Tan S (i) Frands: Yeoh Soct Fing.

M, KZE EEL 14,204 - L1693 L} 148 15,875
et Yeoh Seck Gan 09 6,333 - 75 3 «® 8,002
[Datn’ Vewh So0 M - 5.347 - sar 1 36 5,981
1Datg Vooh Sook Hong - 5,555 - 6 1 25 B350
a5 Michaed Yieoh Sock Song 2] 570 - Bl 2 51 BIB4
Tt Yenh Soa Eang - 4,848 - 582 2 49 5401
Diata Mark Yeoh Seok Kah . 5110 " 568 3 3 5704
Syed Abcilay Bin yed Abd Eadi - 548 - ] L! Fol 00
Kon-Executive Directors
[t Chory) Eaap Tha @

[heong Keap Tal 230 - - - 14 - 244
Dean’ Arnad Fusad By Mohd Dzhalan 420 - - - 20 - a0
Fart Bin shat 450 . ] 4B8
iz Noormss: Binti Raja Onhman 20 - 1 . 229

1LB55 48,501 - 4,981 ar 450 55868

*  Amount kess than RML,000
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED}
Diroctors” remuneration (continued)

Detaks af the total remuneration of each Director of the Company recelved from YTL Corporation Berhad Group of Comganies,
cateforised into appropriate comgomeints Toe the financial year endied 30 June 2022 arf 30 juse 2021 amne as Tollews: {continueed)

Estimated
Defined money value
contribution of bemefits-
Foes: Salaries Boeuis plan Others in:kind Total
Company - 2022 RMTOG0 RMOG0 RMDGD 000 RR OO0 RHTCO00 RMO00
Executive Directers
T 51 {5ir) Fearcis Yeoh Sock Pisg,
FiM KBE - - - - - - -
Do’ Yeoh Seok Kian - La18 - 146 - L3865
Db’ Yesh Se Min - - - - - -
Dato’ Yech Seok Horg - - - - - - -
Diat” 511 Hichased Yeoh Seck Siang & F . H f 2 _
Dt Yech 500 Kesg - . - - - - -
[t Mark Yeoh Seox Kan - - - - - - -
Syt Abduilih Bin Syed Ald. Kade - - - - - - .
Nor-Exgoutive Dirsctons
[ato” Dhong Kezo Thai @
[heang Keap Ta 230 - - - 14 - 244
Duatn” Almad Fusad Bin Hotd Datalan 210 - - - n - 221
Fatr B hak - - - 14 - 244
Raa Koorma Bt Aza Othman 280 - - - 9 - 29
Be0 1Lz18 - 146 453 - 2303
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX ICONTINUED)
Directars’ iamuneratien (continued)

Details of the total remuneration of each Directar of the Company meceived from YIL Corporation derhad Group of Comparies,
categodised into approprate companents Tor e financial year ended 30 june 2022 and 30 fune 2021 are as Tolloes:-(oontinued)

Estimated
Defined mamey value
contribution of benefits:
Fees Salaries Bonus plan Orthers in-kind Total
Growp - 2021 RN 00 RE0D RMO00 RMO00 RMO00 RMOCD RW000
Executive Directors
Tan 5 {5ir} Francic Yooh Seck Fing,

PsM, K3E wr 223 a4 ] 219 10344
Datn’ Vieoh Seck Dan 193 3901 30 I 4z arr
Mt Yo Sih Min - 255 ] ] B3 AT
st Yeph Seck Hong 1014 Eli] 3 58 1410
Dt S Michaed Yeoh S0tk Seeg - 3285 173 38 I 54 g
{Datg’ Yeoh So0 Eeng . 2441 . el I n a7
[iatg’ Mark Venn Seok Kah - 21% - b 3 B2 3055
Syped Abdullas Bin Syed Abc Tide . ] 28 1 25 m
Wan-Exslitive Direchors
{asg’ Cheng Keap Thai &

[Feong Keap Tal s 1] - o - br o f=12
Dte' Atenad Fuaad Be Mobd Dahelan 43 a2 453
Faur Bin shat 460 - . . 5 - 4%
33 Moo Bimh 83j3 Ottenan: 240 - - - 12 - i

10 a8 12 2540 2] [~ LELER
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED}
Diroctors” remuneration (continued)

Detaks af the total remuneration of each Director of the Company recelved from YTL Corporation Berhad Group of Comganies,
cateforised into appropriate comgoemeints Toe the financial year endied 30 June 2022 ard 30 juse 2021 amne as Tollews: {continueed)

Estimated
Defined money value
contribution of banofits
Fous Salaries Boeus plan Qthers in-kind Tatal
Company - 2021 RMTO0D RMO00 RMDOD RM000 RW 000 RMT00 RMD00
Executive Directers
T 51 {5ir) Fearcis Yeoh Sock Pisg,

F5M WBE - . - - - s 115
Dt Yieoh Seok Kian - 619 - A - L1 s |
Dt Yessh 5o Min
Dato” Yesh Seok Horg - . - - - -

Darta” 511 Michaed Yeoh Sock Song - - - - - -

Dt Yech S0 Koo . . . . . . .
[t Mark Yeah Send Kan - - - - - & 4
Mon-Expcutive Directers

[t Crong Keag Thai &

Cheang e Ta Zi0 - - - i7 - 247
Duat” Almad Fugad Bin Mod Datalan 2 (] 23
Falz Bin ishak 230 - - - 17 B 47
Figa Noarma Bnti Azga Othman 20 . - - 12 . w2

i 1] (i) . mi 54 b 1E#

Employee benafits expenses

Group :ﬂl‘l‘lﬂil‘l}
Z0E2 2021 Z0Z2 2021
RM'ODO ReM'O00 RM'OO0 RM'ODO
Employess compensation
(ewtiudng DFectors remunesation)

Wages, salaries dnd banus 1,004,853 Loogas547 17,329 17839
Dafined contribution plan 104,650 116,381 1,916 1,987
Datined benefit plan S, 894 63329 - -
Other henefits 46,816 44,173 Bo7 G4k
1211213 1228410 20,052 20,482
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B. INCOME TAX EXPEMSE
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Hote RM OO0 RMODO RMDOO RAMOD0
Current income tax
- Malayslan income tax 198,981 192,620 12.455 3,073
= Fareign incami tax 117.744 154,869 - -
Deterred tax 44 52,278 B11.6HY -
369,003 958178 12,455 3,073
Cunent incomae Lax
= Curtent Tinancial yea 333,558 385,484 3,207 5,501
= {OverfUnder provision in pror
Firamcisl years {16.833) (37.967) 9,248 [2.528)
Deferred tax
- Relating 1o origination and roversal of
temporary dif ferenies 52,278 611,661 -
369,003 o5a.178 12,455 3,073

A reconciliation of incoma tax edpense appliable 10 pralin belam G a1 B SIUTORY NComi [d rate B0 InCome Lax axponse al
the affective income tax rate af the Group and the Company |5 a5 folows:-

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RH'DOOD RMOOO RHOOO RMOOO
Prafit before 1o 1,548,937 631794 167,105 24L9es
Taxatich at Malaysion statutony tix rate of 24%

12021 24%] Er Wl 151,631 40,105 58,302
Hon-deductible expermes 510,580 556,541 56,659 57719
Incomi not sulject 1o tax (388.328) {1B0.967) {93,557) {110,420
Different tax rates in ather countries (e8,715) (B5,632) - -
Re-measwement of defered tax * - 540,507 - -
Doty dedutctible cxpemses {1.081) (B11) - -
|Ower)funder-prowision in pror years [L6.833) {31980 9,248 [2526)
Tay effect on share ol prfits of assocdated

companies and [oint ventures (106.002) (94,926 - -
Tay effect of unrecognised deferred tax assets 27,727 B - -
Income tax expense 369,003 a5 17H 12,455 1073

-

Thie e-miasurement of daterred tax dusing the preious finenclal year of RMSA0.S milion was doe 16 an increase in the United
Kingdom corparation tax rate from 19% to 25% (effective from 1 Aprl 2023) follewing the Manch 2021 Budget in the United
Kingdom. The deferred tax llability at 30 june 2021 has been calouated based on the rate of 25% substanthely enacted during
fhe financhal yeas ended 30 une 2021

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 159

435/624



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

Oooooooa

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

9. EARMIMGS/ILOSS) PER SHARE
{a) Basic earnings/|loss) per share

160

L]

Baslc eamings/(loss) per share of the Group s calculated by dividing the prafitdloss) for the year attributable 10 owmers of

thir parent iy 1he waignied avags number of ardnary shares i ssue duing thie finangial year,

Group
2022 2021
Profit/loss) for the financial year atiricutable 1o owners of the parent (RMD00) 545,394 (37 664)
Wesghted average numaer of ardinary shares in issue (000) 10,964,088 10,064,161
Basic eamings/(loss) per share (sen) 4.97 {2.38)

Dilutod sarnings/(lass) por sharo

Diluted samingw/{kess) por share of the Croup & caloulated by deeding the profitfilows) for the year attributable 1o owners of
the parent by the weighted sverage nmber of ordinary shares in issue s adjusted 1o assume corversion of all dilutive patential

pedinany shares.

Group
2022 2021
Profit/loss) for the financial year attributable 1o manars of the parent [RMD00) 545,394 (367.664)
Weighted average numder of ordinary shares in ssue (000) 10,964,088 10,864,161
Adjustments for ESO5 (000) 1,168 -
Wesghted average number of ordinary shaes for diluted eamings per shares (000) 10,965,256 10,864,161
Dilutisd earnings/ioss) ped shae {send 4.97 {3.38)
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10. DIVIDENDS
Group / Company
2022 2021
Grass Amaunt Gross Amaunt
dividend  of dividend. dividend  of dividend,
per share nat of tax per share net of tax
{sen) RMOD0 {sen) RMOD0
Dividand pald in respect of financial yoar
ended 30 june 2021;
Interim dnidend af 2.5 san par ordinary share paid
on 12 Dctober 2021 2.5 274,102 -
Dividend recognised as distribution to
ordinary equity holders of the Company 25 274,102 -

On 25 August 2022, the Board of Diectors declared an nterm dvidend of 3.0 sen per ordnary share for the financlal year ended
3 june 2022 Th Biook (e and paymon! dates in rdpact of the aloreisd doidend Sio 11 Movember 2022 and 29 Movoamlsar
2022, respectively. The financial statements for the current fimarcial year do rot refact this interim dividend, Such dividend, will
b accowmnted for in equity as an appeopriatian of mianed profits in the financlal year ending 30 june 2023

Thi Board of Directors do nat recommend a final dividend in respact of the fimarcial year endec 30 june 2022,
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Femiturn, Telecom-
Land & lsfrastraciure Pland & fimtures & MumCitors  RUSETE URder
Matw Bulding® & ute faciities nackinery esupsen| Wihickes suipnen]  conttruction Tetal
RMOC0: U] EH000 AMDG 000 AN EMT00 A
Girowp - 2022
Cettfabiation
M 17208 ILBERRST 10094392 25.007.509 L0 LDEaeE IS LA00A0E  SAOMALT
Agaston o susdam 1346 - ERLESH a8 B3l 2 = g
horftoey #1039 2410 163681 24,51 [£5 .3 1) JELTA 07,138
Cumwery Farmdation
-y i {50R.039] [LE-% H .55 (98,558} [F0.030 ) (L ATt R LT
Dupisah (23 it [5a582| (LB [92.651) [l 43 [155,006)
T o ki ] [67.331) TRE06) 1) & - (mom  [0zsel)
Fewersdl of mpaiment T 10,30 - - - - 13,30
Trarefsr o (oo ELE 36565 BES. 6 FLLS ) 4451 LERE T
Trarefer From Pupimen]
g E CR - - 169,784 84383
Travsfer Fromits)
rigital e aves ) 15005 - - - fiL5at) & 1504
Trarefer From gowicprest
apendnre Him * = £ # - 200,002
oo 1 mos @SS saee) ] 103 S765)  (uaes)
Ar 30300 12.284.560 SESLIG  EMEN L15348E m 1418507 L5010 SREETAR
Arrumudated
K11 M3l SMTE 15100090 LISLEDE TS 55T LEaTH = LS00
Loty varmdition
fa i 250,006 b5, 305 HLBI pLieid) [2E:] 137.006 ” L5l6.1%
Crarge For the francial
i n2%.910) (f94a7  (iB3sE) (4.4} {34061 2 (53565
Dpesdl of o sudrichry [0 [BAEL) (LES) B3} = e Toa)
Tt : & |53, 07] LBy (Ta.380] Loy
Travcfer o tmmessioning 1865 - e fLEdA) (4748 - - -
Trarsfer Fromiin
rigrl ot e e i 13876 - - - - (4281} - L5
et ' R4z g pesme ) iz ] - e
LLE 1 1847516 MAEls LSBT Lz 4 JoL7e0 Lif.ear i
Wt ok valee
Al 3068028 BATAR  AMIIN L9046 24,058 OLEl ZMEOD  LSEQLN 31103
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Fumitre, Telecar-
Lnd & Indrastructans Pani & fontures & sl Rl ol
Hete  bolidingn G st Pacilitien machinery equipment Vehicles  squipmest  enasiroction Tetal
RH000 N0 AHDX FMO000 RME0 MO0 RO L
Croug - 2011
ALLTA20 I6ATR AT HEATE LRI LOB0.267 L0/EHIE L1dz2BdE SERTIST
At L] & ELE o] T % 12348 LMETEET Lh8354L
iy s
oifferencen Eyli:.] o] AR ine i LT ] . jFedia ] L3581
<% eI A Lk e [E2453] HiE) 2] LLERETT
Deeilof sdsicory baLsas . (=L [Lea5 L1860 + - (5187
Bversd of ingaeTestles T ¥, ) . . - - - - F-¥ )
Tramite on comewsonng k- Lilg il ] 4 ALy 5% R =] (162231
Teamip 1 deweTent
Bt “ ! ! : B : : LEst| {LE30)
Trareelet 1 irvertories ‘ {0 ' . . : . 30250
Transter ryfrom
tght-tl-sie s 1 (2050 ‘ : . : BRES . 150G
Wrien o () L] ¢ (AILEET) il * A1 e (k]
At 3062 UBASS MR BONMAN RS0 Le IESST LMG4OR SaND
AFAE LG WBLE] L0909 bl LBaLE Z2An
ped fLial EISEG WEEEE 1556 A WG - LESO T
Cusvency barsiation
Blferee] i) FEFis] 5 ®4% (0 s ' L
Dk ik ) i i) s Lk ] [it) (LS
el of o cdary R ¢ oL} WA = f ; (AT
g kss ] SE . BLME - - - - 1w
Trnste (Riftom
ight-f-58 sy by [ 198 (I8
e off L 175 ] {30323} EA% [l [HL5T
AR ndE LR (AT LSS TE5E 12T . BUALH
Mgt bk vaiur
L1E ¥ AL oy L] S0RTHE LESET ten PAT LF 13 Lin4m RINTIE
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
* Land & buildings of the Group are as follows-

Building on long-term shart-term Factary
Freahald froehald leasehold leaseheld B other
land land land fand buildings Tatal
RMTOOO RHOOO0 AWM OO0 RMO00 RM 000 RHOOO
Gioup - 2022
Costiwaluation
At 172021
AL (ol 540,023 B,015.275 1,789,498 1076247 19.018 11,840,061
At valution 6.083 2,509 - - - 8,552
946,106 8,017,784 1,760,498 LO76.247 19,018 11,848,653
Argubition al sutridiaries 0,265 6176 - 108,040 - 123,401
Additons 428,859 1.561 4,131 a48 - 441,039
Currency transiatien ditfaences |26.126) (482, 089) 12,048 {10,652) - (506,819)
Despoia 258] [25) = = % (283)
Despersat of sutsidiary - {5.954) - - - [5.954)
Reversal ol Emparment - 10,300 - - - 10.300
Trafriters 193,706 830,035 [235,116) {437.005) B4E 352,456
wricten cti : (7.593] 13 (199) z (#,905)
At 30.6.2022 1551592  B,376,095 1,570,548 736,869 19,864 12,254,968
Representing:-
AE rosn 1,545 767 8,373,586 1.570.548 736, BES 19,864 12,246,634
A vaustion 5825 2509 - - - Ba34
Ar 3062022 1,551,592 B.376,085 1,570,548 TIEB69 15,664 12,254,968
Actumulated doprociation
and impairment
At 172021
At ot 40 2,645,957 673,704 384,104 Ft ) 3,711,516
AL vauation - 845 - - - 345
40 2,646,802 673,704 384,104 I 3,712,361
Charge for the financlal year - 194,948 39,059 15,239 TEQ 250,008
Curmency transiation o Herences - [145,320) 10,255 B.155 - [126,910)
Desponad of winidlary - (2.270) = 3 = {2.270)
Transfers - 68,094 5,541 {56,043) 149 17,741
Wweirten cif - [3.200) {13) {199) - [3.412)
At 30652022 40 2,759,054 728,546 351,256 8620 3,847,516
Het book valus
A oSt L545. 727 5615402 Baz002 385,613 1244 8,399,988
AL vALETION 5825 L1639 - . b TAGY
At 30.6.2022 1.551.55& 5.617.041 B42.002 385,613 11244 8,407,452
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11. PROPERTY., PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
* Land & buldings of the Croup are as foliows:-
Building Bullding
Building on long-term shart-term Factory
Freehold freeheld leasehold easehald & othar
land land ltand land bulbdings Total

RM'DOO RM'O00 RMO00 RM'OOO RM'D0O RM000
Groisp - 2021
Costfvaluation
A LT 2020
Aot 32937 7onana 1341916 9EINE 15,443 TLE25, 160
At waluation G083 2500 . - - 8592

35450 1813822 1341516 973116 16,448 1L633752
Aodtions = 4801 £0ad 91,750 = s
Cusingy arslation difurnce 597 418,081 (47575} {15.300) - 370185
Dispasals of sutmidary . - | 1545, " - (101.545)
Disposats [L5B6] (330,090) (L931) (392) - 333,999
Reversal of impakment - 25787 - - - 25767
Transders (378 85,638 [ELE] B2393 - 1ELADE
Written off . 35) {3 G380 [ 4] (G416
At 3062021 HEI06 BOIT. B4 1.769.498 LOTG.247 19018 1LB48653
Representing:-
AL goat 40023 B,0ES2TS L7E5.458 LOTe 247 1amsa 18.840,05]
At waluation &R 2509 . . . A592
A 3062021 S4EIDE BOI7T84 LTE2458 LO7G247 19018 1LB48 553

and impairmant
At L7020
AL gt a0 2577.050 66,700 G906 7431 AH4,167
At wvaluation - rar - - - a7
A0 26778087 TBE, 700 362,906 743 3,814,964

Thaige Tor the financial year - 172111 47,439 20650 07 £40953
Currpney tramlation diferonces . 130854 (62725} {11B5) . E6453
Dispasats of sutskdary - - {54, 008) - = {64,028
DEpals - {316.830) {Lo4a) {392} - {FIR262)
Enguairmeny loss - - 2425 - - 3426
Transfers . (17.213) (17,640} - 3 [34,853)
Written aff - {17 (428} 6320 (42 {B.792)
Ar 30E 2021 40 2546,802 E7L704 384,104 nm inzsl
Met book value
Atcost 933,983 5363318 LUSTH GoZE43 1307 Bl2A545
At wiluation G083 1664 - - - 47
At 3062071 G086 £370.982 L1784 Ea2L43 11307 8136292
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [CONTINUED)

Furnitura,
fittings &
equipment Vehicles Total

Hote RH'DOO RM'000 FeM'000
Company - 2022
Cost
A1 17202 7.627 9,083 16,710
Additions 358 177 535
Dposaby - (1o8) (1oa)
Al 3062022 7985 9,152 17,137
Accumulated depreciation
At 172021 7,346 5,644 12,990
Charge for the financlal year 129 93
Dposabs = {BEG) {86)
At 30.6.2022 7475 5,651 13,126
Het book value
At 3062022 510 3,501 4,011
Company - 2021
Cost
M L7200 7.385 9,292 16,687
Ackditions 232 429 661
Draposals - {B3@) (LeEL
AT INEL0E] 7.627 9,083 16,710
Accumulated depreciation
A 172020 716 5,719 12,835
Charge for the financial year 230 551 b
Despnsais = (626) (626)
Al 3062021 7,346 5,644 12,990
Het book value
AL A0EZ0E] 281 3439 3,720
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 june 2022
11. PROPERTY., PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
{a} Depreciation charge for the financlal year is- allocated as follows: -
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Mote RM00D RM000 RMOOD RMO000
Racogrised in Income Statements 7 1.606,957 1,641,525 222 Jal
Conmsiruction ¢onract 28(c] 9,163 9271 - -
1,616,126 1,650,756 222 TH1

by Adsats under financo ke
The net book value af the property, plant and equipment as at reperting date held under Fnance leases are a5 Tollows:-

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMDOO RM OO0 RMOOO RM'OO0
Fiant anit marhinery - 17.4F9 - -
VEhickes. H.156 £544 170 9r3
B.156 20,033 170 o7s

e)  Security

The nat book value of the Groug's proparty, plant amd equipment that have been pledged as security Tor the bank facities
and bonds: by way of ficed and floating charges ame as follows-

Group
2022 20z1
RMOD0 RMODO
Land 152,124 157962
Buillinigs 1,652,384 L22arsz
1,804,508 1367714

iy Barrowirg costs

Borrowing costs of RM3GI06 million (2021 RM23.733 millon) arising on Taancing specificaly antomd into Toe 1he construction
af praperty, plan and equipment weene capitaieed during the fmancial year.

That Growap reised thit usetul Ives af certain property, plant and squipment deting the financal year 2071 The revision was
accaurtad Tod &% & change n pccounting estemate and as a result, the deprecation thange Tor the finantial year endid 30 |une
A has decressed approzimatety by BM53 madlion
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [CONTINUED)
Impalrment assessment for property. plant and equipment (“PPE") of subsidiaries
(a) Utilities
Thir recowerable amourt of the PPE assessed as part aof a cash generating wnit {TTGUT) iS5 determined based on the PEr value
less costs of dispasal (FYLEDY) caloulation

Thie fellonwinig are Tha key assompptons appied in e FVLCD eakulation far mnpalmment asesoment of PPE af & subdinny in
the telacommunications bsiress diwsion.

2022 2021

Discount rate B1% TEH

Ayerage revenue growth rate 19.7% £7EH
Totminal year eamings befom intarest, tees. depreciation ard

amortrsation {"EBITOA") margin I.4% 53.1%

Thiy diseauint fate applied to 1 Codh Now pojections am Gorved Tram 1hi ookt of camial 31 ih @ate of 1he Ssessmont.

The cash fiow pojections used In the FYLED caloulation were hased on approved finandal budgets and forecasts covering a
Seyear pefiod adprsted to reflect markat participants assumptions. Caih Tlows beyond tha 5-year period were extrapalated a
further 13 (2021: 14) years representing the estimated useful lives of the FPE of tha subsidiary, wsing the estimated lang-term
grenwth rate aff 25% (2021 25%).

Fair value is held within Level 3 in fair value hierarchy disclosures,

The carrying amount of the CGU as at 30 June 2022 i RM2.4 billion [2021: RM2.5 billan). Mo imparment charge was recogrised
a5 the recowerable amount of the CGU was in excess of (s camying amount.

I thee ciscownd rate increased by 4% (2021 4%, 1he camying value will be redeced by approsimately RMIGE milion (2021
RAM4T mrillan). if the average revenus growth rate educed by 204 (2021 3.0%), the camying value will be reduced by

approimatety RM24S million 2021 RM1GE million), Alse, If the Terminal year EBITDA mangin reduced Dy S (2021 12%), 1ne
carmying walue will be reduced by approsdmately RMIE million (202]1: RMS0 milan).
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

11. PROPERTY., PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Impaimment assessmant for property, plant and equipment (*PPE™} of subsidiaries {continued)
(b} Cement
Thee reggmerabio amount af PPE o & toreign sulskliony compny wivk revsewad for engairment dunng the linanoiad ye dee
o bosses incurrad a5 a mesults of COVID-19 pandemic and change of political landscape.

The rereodabli smount i determined Prom the vl b o cale kdion By deicourming totuee cash o osing pre-tax decmmt
rate. The cash Tow projiections induoded spacific estimates for 5opears and 3 teminal growth ate thermafern,

Thr kv dsuimplions uted (0 1he sorimatian af valoein-ose calulsione i ok foliows:

2022 2021
Fre-tax dscount rate 6.5% TA%
Tarmanal grineth 1ale 0.1% B

Duwing the previous finandial waar, based on management’s assessment, impakment charge of BME7.192 millon was required
a5 the recovrabile amount of these aesets was lever than the carmying amaunts. Thene ang no reasanably possibie changs in
amy of the sbave key sssumptions that would result in additional materlal impairmant chame on the PPE
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Telacom-
munications
network
site anel Motar  Flanfand  Leasshold
Note Land  equipment  Buildings  vehicles  machinery lard Difsers Tatal
o RH'000 RM000 RMT00 RMO00 RHO00 RH'DDO RMO00 RMCO0
Grup - 2022
Mot ook Value:-
AL 1730 o658 56,231 530,302 Loy 3133 E3.12 218 LS
Adirions s 47,276 E2638 200 114 LG00 - 128,625
Acgyrstion ol subsidianies - - - - - 17,658 - 17658
Charge forthefrarcidyesr 7 (18071 (UAE33) QL3 (L) (186)  R0.423) B ne6Ts)
Cutraecy tamdation
defmences 953 - [eom @0 pes (E39) - e
Expiy Termination = (8387 (7408 “r = x + e
Modcatien LI/ 30,005 : i = (629 3 30844
Trzrster w0 vesament
[ioperies 13 - = [UL734) . - - . [L15.734)
Tezefer Bromlaj progerty,
pant and duipment ] - 1.220 [L.199) . - - . 6021
At 3006 022 83,715 356,602 481596 Lax 1574 G203 200 15524929
AL 3062022 ;
Lot 145,805 L246716 566,150 2307 7003 A4 200 2,008,691
Aogrmutsted depreciyiion (56,0900 [389.6LE)  [B4.554) (B&8) [6.12%] (3166596 9 {L353962)
Net back value 89,7158 F06.602 481596 L4x 1574 G2LBE 00 L5629
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 June 2022
12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Tolecom:
muniCagens
nattwertk
site and Motor  Plantand  Leasshald
Tiete Land  equipment  Buldings  wehicies  machinery fand Others Toeal
AMO00 RM000 RHD0G RH 000 RMTO00 RMOOD RH'000 EH000
Group - 2021
ML 1040 SEL135 LR 240 5293 SEAE1Y ¥ LeEDE
Addicrn 12800 2L k] . 1546 13280 . BEO
{harge for the fnandid ear 1 (R0 (ORSET (31.56M) [2%) 3428 FalLiLT] {157 (183,038
[urrenry trantdston
Giffaenges G . £LB0E T 3l 1568 - 2nAlT
Cipersal of sudriddary : 2 &4 - ‘ {ME75 : ]
Erpary Termrton [a56) T (%) (324 615 ] il (13650
Moditicatnn 243} [LB5H) m : ; i ¥ 12308
Transfer i investment
prepeties £ =) =
Tranfer fromyfic) property,
plant ard equprent 1] 2561 [0 LET : F 2310 v 138550
Trarfer from preqayment - - - - - EET. ] - L1
M EMA A A ok Ly 1133 6X9512 Paik] LI2Em
M MEMZ
(1114 120440 L20Z043 Bea145 2065 L2 S 157 Fal] 2938007
Accumlated doproclaton (BMY) ETR [T.B43) [~ [GE05y  |25A56L) [T e
Rzt ook valls: A A e 302 Ente) EVE ] G612 k] j P
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= 30 june 2022

12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Building
2022 2021

HNote AM'O00 AM'B00
Company
Het Book Values:-
AL 1 july 15,580 9,060
Additions - 20,031
Charge lor the fimancial yoar 7 [6.677) {6.718)
Expiry Termination - (B.801)
At 30 June 8,903 15,580
At 30 June
Cost 20,031 20,031
Accumulated depreciation {11.128) (4,451)
Net Book wakie 8,903 15,580

Thie Group and the Company have lease contracts Tor various items of land, telescommunications network site ond equpment,
butielirgs, motor vehicles, plant and mathinery, leasehald and and others used in their operations. Rental comracts duration is
typically botwoen 2 10 100 years [2021: 1 to 00 years) with extension options, Lsae teems sne negatisted on an indivicusl basi
and contain a wide range of @M erent teems and conditions,

The Gooup and the Company also have certain leases wih kase terms of 12 months or less and leases that have been determined

ta be low value. The Group and the Company apply the ‘short-tenm kease’ and Tease of low-vakie assets' recognition axemption for
these leases

The right-of-use assets relating to commescial proparties pesented under investment properties (Mote 13) s stated at fair value
and has a aTying amount # regorting date af RME23163 mdlion [2021: AMS25.083 milian)
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 june 2022
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Leng-term
leatahald
Freehold land land &
Hote E buildings buildings Taotal
RM'00D RMO0D RMOO0
Group - 2022
At beginning of the fimancial year 1,412,763 563,735 1,976,498
Moditions 115 1.625 1,740
Changes in far value:-
- Par valization 7 38,443 {16.223) 22,220
= Unbilled ‘aana Income 7 {9.190) (9.413) {18,603)
Unibillodd S incamp 9,190 9,413 18,603
Curmency trarslation differences (42.009) - [42,005)
Trarsfer 1o proparty, plant and equpment 1 (84.383) = (B4.383)
Traresfer from nght-of use ksets 12 115,734 - 115,734
Modification of lease labimies (13.205) - (13,205}
At end of the fimanclal year 1.427.458 £49,137 1,976,595
Group - 2021
Al beginreng of the financial yoar 1.24al 355 S6E,TED 1AL
Additions 7,065 = 37,065
Changes in fair value:-
= Par valuation 7 52,032 (2.281) BE,751
- Unbiledt laase income 7 (B, B} [0.154) {18, 044)
Unbsiiedd bease income BL.EERD q154 18,044
Currency tramsiation ¢ atentes 41713 . 4r713
Trarrfer from raght-of - use assans ¥ - 759 759
wiritten off 7 8413} (1503) (B.36)
At end of the financial year LA412763 563735 1.976.496

Ihie changas in fair value of mvestment properties of the Lroup amounting of BMS2240 million (RMBH, /51 milion] & after offsetting
untdled eate npome amounting 1o AMIAS03 milon [2027: BM18.044 milian)

Ivrestment properties with carmying amount of RMASS million (20211 RMA55 mdlion] are chaged as secunty for a barrowing gramted
T the Groap as disclosed in Hote 30 and Nate 31 1o thi finan i staiements
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= 30 june 2022

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM'O00 RM'DOO RM'O00 RM'OOO
Group - 2022
Resturrirg Fair walue mopsuemends -
Irvestment properties
- Commarcial praperies - - 632564 632,564
= M properties - - 682,500 6BZ.500
- Uiher properiies - 46,487 B15,044 B61.531
Tatal - 46,487 1.930.108 LA976.585
Group - 2021
Rewirring Fair valug measements.-
Irvestment prapertles
Cammencial propenie 532,775 B2 TS
« Hated proparties - - 675,100 G7R.100
- Oiher ploperties - A4,460 720,163 764,623
Tatal : A4 4060 1.932.038 L9458

Ramtal income from investment proparties of the Group during the financlal yesr amounted to RMBT.Z55 milion (2021: RMT7A70
milkon)

Diredct epevating exgetvses Tiom imeestmen ] gropeities b nesgeact of inoome and non-income genevating properties ol the Giouap
during the financial year amounted 1o AMAI1S milian (2021 RM1L.320 millien) and RMIESBE0 million (2021: RMBS0E millien),
reseively,
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
{a) Fair value information

The Croup's imestment proparties are valued based on sale companson spproach and unobservabie inputs and dassitied in
Leval 2 and Leved 3 respectivedy of the fair value hisarchy. The different leveds of the fair value hierarchy are defined in Mote
b} to the finantial statemants,

Dunng the curment linancal yon, thore was no Wansler botweon Livel L, Level & and Loyl 3 Far vidue missurements.

[b)} Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values
Leval 2 fair values of the Crowp's propertses have boen genanally derved wsing the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparabia propoies in dose praximay an adusted for diferences in key aniributes such & property site, The mest significan
mput into this valuation aporoach is the selling price per souare meter.

[e) Fair value measuramants uting significant unabservabla inputs (Level 3)

Thir Todloweing Table chows the valuation tachnigues wied in thie determsnation of Tair values within Leved 3, &% will s the

significant unabservable inputs wed in the valuation models.

{i} Commareial properties

Valuation technigue

Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-refationship between
significant unobservable Inputs
and fair valug measurement

Disonmtied cash flow approech which
invcham (he estmation and progection
of mceme stiesm over a pensod and
distouting the futue come stream
b arrivie @l The prisesil vl

(i} Hotel properties

Discount rate from 6.50% 1o 7.50%
(2021; BS0% 1o T.5006)

Estimate rental vaue per square feet
e manif

Thie higher the discount race, te fower
e Fasir e,

The higher the estimate rental per squane
Tt the Bigher thie faar value,

Valuation technigue

Income approach which rapitaise the
eslmate rental iNCone Steam. et
projected operating costs. using &
discount rate derived from market
yieid,

Discount rate of 6.00% o 7.00%
{2021: 6.00% 1o 7.50%)]

Intersralationship batween
significant unobservable inputs
and fair value measurement

The higher the discount rate, the lower
e fair vk,

Caplitaksatian rate of 6.00% to
7.00% (2021 &00% 10 750%)

The higher the captaization rate, the
Ewer the Tair value.

451/624
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= 30 june 2022

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES I(CONTINUED)
{c] Falr value measurements using significant unobsensable inputs [Level 3) (continued)
{iii} Other properties - UK

Range
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs 2022 2021
Hangars®  Discountod cashfiow WVisitor members = 1-15million pa.
Alrtield iscounted cashiiow Unit dersity per acre 18-28 18-28

® Ihe Bemboron Hangers i inniferred io SRepety. pand ond equismen! duing | he: fmanon! e [lowiiy INe S e I Droosed with B FIL
Arevar devpinpmont. Dunrg he previous financol yeor, the foir volue omed bosed on decouniod cosbfiow moado! prepomd by Evenpor o, a
paber indveneralin! Freesnmenl Daniing odiony firm

Tl irrySTmant properties ane valued sing 1he income captarsation method, whene a proporry's T value i estimated
basad an the nommaised net oparating Income genarated by tha property, which s dividad by the capitafation (discount)
rate based on cument market-derved yield rates which reflect 1he expected retum on nvestments commensurate with
the riik exposure asotated 1o the asser.

The significant unotsenable input fs the adjustment for factors specific to the properties. The extent and directian of
this adjustment depends on the number and characteristics of the ebiervabile market iranssctions n similar properies
that are used as the starting point for valuation. Althaugh this input 15 a subjective judgement. managament considers
that the averall valuation would not be matedally atfected by reasanably possible altemative asaumptions.

In determining this lay waue, he waluers have tsed valuation tecimigues which invole Cerlan estimatis. In elying on
the valuation repons, the Group has exencised s dgement and b5 satfsfied that the valuation methods and estimates
are refloctive of cument marker conditions. The valuation repeas e prepared In accordance with recognised aaprssal
and International Valuation Standards.

Ther pitimaters urndarlying the vaduation techniques Tor cammerial progenios and ono of tha magor otfed proporTies in
L in the naxt financial year may differ from current estimates, which may result in valuations that may be materially
afferent from the valuations as at ieparting date: A 0.5 change in the cisceunt rate wauld laad to 2 movement of RM3L4
milich |n the valation,

Management 5 satisfied the valuations reflected in these statements afe reasonadle, In moking this dssessment.
managament has revewed the estimated cosh Nows lor the development and the fulure fent ol whith continuee 1a
suppart the valuations presented within the financial statement=. Management corstantly moritors masket data which
shanws conditons have been sirong since the loosening of restrictions following the COVID- 19 pandemic, further justifying
v wall ik tions miclundied in these statements,
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 june 2022
14. DEVELOPMENT EXPEMDITURES
The movement in developmeant expenditures of the Group during the finandal year i as follows:-
Freehold Leasehold Development
land land costs Tatal
Group = 202 Hote RMO00 RM'000 RM'000 RMOD0
{a) Land held for property development
Cost
At beginning of the financial year 349,550 220,363 254,802 /33,715
Additions - G664 23,953 24,617
Raclassification made during the year - {2B84) 284 -
Transfer 10 prooerty development costs 23 - 8.71n {19,830) (28,647)
Toarsler (o mwesiory - = (73} {73
At end of the financal year 349,550 221,026 259,036 a29,612
Accumulatad knpalrment lossas
At beginningtend of The financial year (530) (24.789) (480} [25,799)
Tatat land hakd for property developmant 346,020 196,237 258,556 803,813
[b) Project development expenditure
At beginning of the financial yaar - 181,401 78,111 258,512
Additions - - 2.593 2.593
Charge 10 Incoms S1atemients - - (63.921) [63,.921)
Cumency translation diference - 3,240 11148 4,358
Transfer to property, plant and equipmant 11 . 184,641) {15.361) (200,002)
At ardd of the financial yaar - - 2,540 2540
Tatal development axpenditures 349,020 196,237 261,096 BOE6.353
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14. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)

The movemeant in development expenditwes of the Group during the financlal year Is as follows- (continued)

Freehold Leasehold Development

land land costs Total
Group - 2021 Nate RM 000 RM000 AM'000 FeM'000
{a) Land held for property development
At beginning of the financial year 420,278 226,453 260,591 a0y 322
Ardfition L 2910 10428 13432
Writien off = - 5. 164} {5184)
Transter to inventony R - {11,043) {ELESS)
AT end of the Teranciil yoar 349,550 225363 254 802 BIAFIS
Accumulated impairment losses
AL baginning/end af the Tinsnelal year {5309 [24.785) {480} (25.1a95)
Total land held Tor property deveiopment 45,020 204,574 254,322 o7 A16
{b) Project development expenditure
AL beginning of tha firanckad year N 1EGEXD S%808 246638
Additions 18,513 18313
Charge to Incame Stalements (151} {151}
Currency trarstation difference - {5.489] {1.709) (7.230)
Transter from property, plant and equipmant 11 - - LEG0 1LAa50
At end al the Tinanclal yoar - 161,400 Tl 2549512
Tatal development expenditures 4020 305,975 372433 1,067 428

Land heid for property development with camying amount of RM265.973 million (2021 BM354.225 milllon) are charged as security
for bomowing granted 1o the Gioup as discosed in Note 31 1o the tnanclal statements.

Progect development expenditure constst of kand acgusition costs, professional fees and refated costs was tramsfamed 1o property,
plant and equipment and wrinten ofT accoedingly during the Tinarcial year following & decsion of the Graup to achieve carban
neuTrEity in aperations by 2050,
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

wehiches

= 30 june 2022
15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2022 20zl
RMDODO RMO0O
Queded shares, at cost 3,470,028 3470029
Urmuoted shares, al cost 4,848,175 4,300,538
Uninuated ICULS, at cost - 104
L Accumukiied impanment losses [@5.874) [6.377]
8,233,329 7764294
Market value
= Quated thates 3,609,909 AENZALE
Detaits of e subsicianies are as Tolows-
Effective Equity
Intenest
Place of 2022 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities kL %
Held by the Company:
Arah Asas Sdn. Bhl Malaysia Property development 100,00 10000
Bistineas & Budget Hatel: Son Bhd Magamyia Management & irsestment haloing 100.00 10000
Cane Creatiors Sdr. Bhid Maiaysia Irvestment hoiding 100.00 10000
Cosniarstone Crest Sdn, Bhd Malaysa Irvedtment hilding 100.00 10000
Divine View Sdn. Bhd, Maaysi Commercial trading, property dezling & 100,00 10000
Irvestrment holding
intelleciugl Missian Sidn, Bhd. Maiaysia Education & traiming usieg advanced 100000 10000
1echnoiogy
Peisma Tulin Sdn. Bhd, Malayria Hatal mpsrator 100,00 0200
Tyadikal Pembiinasn Yisah Tiang Lay Madaysia Ciwil enginsericg warks, caastructian, 100.00 10000
Saln. Dty properly development & real estate
Imeastment, imvestmant holding & redabed
SEVEES
Itrwangsa Development Sdn, Bhd Mataysia Irvestment holding 100,00 100D
¥TL Cayman Limited! Cayman Blands  Investiment holding. awnership fechartering . 100000 10000
of yadhts & vossels
¥TL it Bevhal Maliysia Irvestinert hobdng, management compary - 98,08 S8.04
& hirlng of vehitles
¥TL Charters Sdn B, Matayzia Chartoding af aircrafis, holicoptors. ships & 100000 10000
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L' L
Held by the Company: (continued)
YL Corparation [UK) Plc* England ke« Walas  Inactie 100.00 100,00
¥TL Corp Fnance (Cayman] Limaeg’ Cayman llangds  InacTive l00.00 100,00
¥TL Carp Finance [Labun) Limited' Malaysia Special putpose vehicle lor issuance of 100000 100,00
secunlies & investment halkding
YTL e-Schutionms Beshacl Malaysia Inyestment holding. provision andg 100,00 10000
maintenarce of information technalogy
ardwane and sof fware Systems, network
ard internet cannectiity infrastniune,
web hosting services. content
isvebapmint, provisian of e-commerne
sy, hardwir sakiss and athar related
wervies
YTL Enengy Sdn. Bh. Malaysia Imsestmant holdng 10000 10000
YT (Casesrrwey) Limited” CaprTvsery Imestrent & praperty haldng 10000 10000
YTL Hospitakity BEIT ("YTLREIT) Malaysia Ieswatient i ieal istate 56.96 5696
YTL Hotel Management Sant Tropes France Hated operator & mansgemen sefsioes 100,00 100,00
sanL!
YL Hotels B Froporties Sdn. Bhd Malayiia Invstrmant hiolding B management sonices  100L00 . 100,00
YTL Inhuasivies Borhac Maliysia Inerstanan hakling, proparty development 100000 100,00
and property Fvestment
¥TL Land Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Froperty investment, property and project 100,00 100,00
managemsnt
YTL Land & Dewalopment Berhad Malaysia Investment holding & provision of 93.17 Gh64
management. finandal, treasury &
socrotanial sehvicos
YTL Paweer international Bermad Maliysia Invastment halding & provision of 5557 5557
[YTL Power* administrative & technlcal suppodt
evices
YTL Singapare Pre. Ld® Singapany Impstmaent holding & management company 100000 100,00
YTL-5V Carbon Sdn, Bhd Malayua Fraviskon of consultancy sarvices 90.00 9000
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)

Effective Equity

Interast
Place of 20ee 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn. Bhd.:
Bussiness. & Budget Hotels (Penang) Malaysia Hotel operatar 51.00 5100
Sdn. Bhd
Bumsiness & Budget Hotels Mafaysia Inactive 51.00 5100
{Seberang faya) Son Bhd.
{5 Bguadiation)
Held through Cane Creations
Sdn. Bhd.:
Cani Croatiars (Markating) Sdn, Bl Mayia Trading w1 car Fumiture, lecal asdicralts, 100,00 [0000
accessones & related services
Natmal Adventune Sdin. Bral. Malaysla Iractive 100,00 10000
Niche Retailng Sdn. Bihd Maaysia Retaling of fashion apparels anc elated  100.00 10000
BCTESSONAS
Fi* Refined Venture Sdn, Bhe Mataysia Retdling of fashion apparels anc related 100,00 -
BCCEESONES
Prestige Lifestyles & Living Sdn. Bhd, Mataysia Trading of fumiture and Moessoties 100,00 10000
Star Hill Living.Com Sdn. Bihd. Mataysia Profoct managemsent senvices, rading of  100.00 10000
pakntines. fomiture, sdoowoieds & related
SEITV.CEE
Teendy Retailing Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Iractive 100,00  |OQ00
Hald through Divine Viaw
Sdn. Bhd.:
5C1YTL Hotel: Saint Trope:! France Acquisition, managemant, renting B 100.00 10000
administration and/or resale of meal estate
Held through Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tiong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
Mgstasia Metal Sdn, Bhi® Maaysia Inactive 100,00 10000
Aurstarsi Timbers Maleysia Sdn, Bhd Matmysia Inactive 100,00  |0G.00
Buiiders Brickworks Son. Bhd Maaysia Inactive 93.80 93.80
Construction Lewse (M) Sdn, Bhd Maiaysla Loasing, hire purchase & crot 100.00 10000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 181

4571624



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L' L
Held through Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tlong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
{continued)
Dayang Bay Devedopment Sen. Bhd Malaysia Froperty investment and development 100.00 10000
Dayang Bunting Fasarts Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Fraperty imestment and development 100,00 100,00
Dynaric Markiting Son Bhd. Malaysia Trackng of huiiding & construclion matiisls 100,00 10000
First Commesthal Developmeant Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Fraperty imvestment 100,00 10000
Hatel 25 Sdn Bhed Malayia Hated pperaton 10000 10000
Eampung Tiong Development Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Fraperty development To.00 000
Lay Sieng Ol Palm Paniations Son. Bnd. Malaysia Cuilthation af all palms 10000 100,00
MNesthiwestem Water Son. Bhd. (formerly Malaysia Property investment and development 100.00 10000
knwi a5 Nerttwestem Development
Sain, Bhd.)
Ferma Proparty Mansgement Son. Bnd, Malaysia Inective 100,00 100.00
Sumi Travel & Towrs Sdn, Bha, Malaysia Rental of motor vehicles. air tcketng & 100,00 10000
other related services
Transpartable Camps Sin, Bhd Halaysias Traifing & rental of transpartable catsns & 100.00 10000
wond based products
Yap Yowe Hup Brickwarks (Perak) Malaysia Inaive 593.80 9380
Sdn, Bhd,
Yeoh Tiong Lay Reaity Sdn Bhd Malaysia Realty, imwestmeny B management sendces 100,000 100,00
Y7L Comstruction internationa Cayman Islands Imvestment hoddng n construction relatec. 100,00 10000
{Caryman) Limited activities
YTL Corstruction (S) Ple. Lid.* Singapare Construction telated acthities & redlestate 100,00 10000
developar
YL Civil Engimeering Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Civil engincering works & construction 90,00 a0.00
YTL Damansara 3 Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Froperty imvestment ard development 100.00 10000
YTL Devolopment Sdr. Bhd. Malaysia Froperty davolopment 7000 7000
YTL Project Management Senices Malaysia Frovisior of management services far 100,00 10000
Sdin, Bhd. anstruction projects
YTL Techmologies Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Servidng & hiring of equipment 99.22 12
YTL High Speed Rail Son, Bha, (Termiily Makiysia Inai e 10000 7000

knowm a5 YTL THR [V Sdn Bhd )
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)
Effective Equity
Interast
Place of 20ee 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through ¥TL Cayman Limited:
it Haritage Sdn. Bhd * Malaysia Managamant wervias 100,00 0000
Saarhill Chobal REIT Imvestmants Cayman klands  Imvestment hoiding 100.00 10000
Limitad!
Starhill Chobal KEIT Management Cayman klands  Imvestment halding 100,00 (000
Limitad'
¥TL Construction (Thailand) Limited® Thailarxl Construction aclivities 74,89 7489
¥TL Poreast Servicies Sali. Bl Malaysia Dpweration & malntengwe of power $lation 100,00 (0000
¥TL Progerty Imestmants Limited! Cayman klands  Imvestment halding 100,00 100K
¥TL Staehill Global Property Cingapors Progay Managoerment sondced 100.00 10000
Management Pte. Lid.*
¥TL Starhill Global REIT Management Singapare Irvestmint holding 100,00  [O000
Haldngs Pre. Ltd
¥TL Starnill Global REIT Managemenit Singapore Investment advisor, praoperty fund 100.00 10000
Liritad* managament sanioes and toact as the
Manager of SCREIT
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
Azsociated Pan Mataysia Cement Makarysia Manud acture and salp of cement ored cinker  77.04 BHE]
Sadn. Bhd
Batu Tiga Quarry Sdin. Bl Matinysia Quarry busingss & trading of granite 98,04 G0
gregates
Batu Tiga Quarry {Sg. Bulalhh Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Ouairy business & redsted senviies 9804 Sa04
Baijing Dama Snosource Trading The Peopss Trading of mechancal, electrica eqgupmant 58,04 98.04
Ca, Lid.* Repubilic of China and parts
Bentara Gemdang industries Sdn. Bhl Malaysla Quany business & relsted services 45.02 4902
Bon Tre Floo-YTL Coment Limited* Victnam Darmarit 6H.63 BAGT
Binh Duang Fico Cement Sngle Member Vietnam Mamifacturing and sale of cement 68.63 [
Limited Liability Campany®
Buildcon-Cimaco Concrete Son. Ghd " Mataysia Manfacture B sale of ready-mixed concrede 77.04 S04
Buildcon Concrete Enterprise Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Imestment halding 98.04 a5 04
Buildcon Concrete Sidn. Bhd™ Maaysia Fanufacture & sale of ready-mixed concrele T7.04 G604
Buildoon Cancrete (KL) Sdn. Bhd Makaynia Inactive 98,04 a0
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L' L
Held through ¥TL Coment Berhad:
{continued)
L, Quarrying & Marketng Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Quarry busness & related services 90.04 9804
L, Baadymid Sdn Bhd® Malaysiz Maraufacture & sabe of ready-mined concrete 77.04 9804
CMCH Pennisgaan Sdn. Bhid. Malaysia Distribiution of cement & bulkding materials 77,04 BaGl
Compatent Teamwork Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Imestment holding 90.04 9804
Conerite indusires Pre Lid* Sirupapon Desrmaay SB.D4 aa.04
Concrete Sta Limited Cayman lslands Imestment holdng L T OF04
Equity Compamticn Sdn. Bhd. Mialaysia Quarry busness & related senioes D0.04 o304
Fico Tay Hinh Cement joint Stock WVietnam Manufacturing and sae of cement 663 BEES
Compary®
Fiea-WTL Cearanl S il Mareeting Vininam Sap B markiting of comentitious products. BBLBS GEE3
Compary Limited*
Gemilang Pintar Sdn Dhd Malaysia Quarry business & trading of granite  GBLGI LRG3
aogregates
Gan Alam Environmental Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia ‘Waste management in suoplying, defivering T7.04 (=319
of afternative fuels & raw materials for
i In eirent manuf o luring sctivitios
Gen Alam Sein. Bhd. Malaysia Trading ot any type of cemantitious 77.04 RELRL

matarials widtile in the production of

cement or cancrete for use In the

construction industry

Green Enable Technologies Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Operation and maintenance of power plant 968.04 9804

and peovision of project management

and censultancy services including

municipal solid waste and schadded

wasTe disposal i cement pant

H Cement [Mataysia) Son Bhd Malaysia Manutacture and sale of coment 7704 =11
{formerly known a5 Holelm (Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd)
Hopefiald Enterprises Limited*® Harg Kong Imestmant holdng D004 GH4
irdustrial Procurement Limited' Cayman lslands Ittt halding 9804 aa.04
|afsa Quairy Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Quarry business & related services 96.04 985.04
|ummawah Shipping Sdn. Bhd, Malayia Shipping of bulk cement and vessels  77.04 BEBl
chartering
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)
Effective Equity
Interast
Place of 20ee 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
(continued)
JhEong Cement Limited* Singapore Imwestment holding & that of irporters. 58,04 ag.04
dealers af neacy-mix concrete & dry-mix
mortar products B busness of owners of
storage terming facfites i sales of cement
Kedah Cemeént Haldings Sdn. Bhd Malmyiia Irepsiment halding 77.04 GAG]
{farmerly known os Kedah Cement
Haldngs Beshad)
Kedah Comant Sdn. B Mainysia Manutacture ard sale o coment, cinker  77.04 BEEL
and redated products
Kedal Coment jetty Son. Shd, Maanyula Licensed jotty aporator 77.04 =2: 15
Kennatsan Consiruction Matenials Maiaysla Inactive 98.04 9804
Sdn. Bhd.
Kennaisan Northern Quarmy Sdn. Bhd Mataysia Manufacturing. selling & distribution of  58.04 Gg.04
pramix products, constrection & bulding
materials
Lafarge Concrete (East Malaysia) Sdn Mataysla Darmant - 53.98
Bhal,
LA $10nes (Kota Tinggl) San. Bna, Maaysia Quarrying and trading of grante and quarry ~ 77.04  BHED
(rarmeny ko a5 Latange produds
Apreqgates (Kota Tinggi) Sdn, Bhd)
LA Stones [Panta Remis) Sdin, Bhd HMiaysia Tradding & guarrging of aggregates & related 77.04 GR61
{Tarmerly known o Lafage products kasing of quarrying rights of
Apgregates (Pantal Remis) Sdn. Bhd.) mgregate & related matenaks
LA Stones Sdn B, (Formery known as Matanysia IresIment halding Trading and quarmying 77.04 Bl.E]
Lafaige Aggregates Sdn. Bhd ) of agaregates and related products
LLS Coment Marketing Pre. Lid Singapors Irvntmisnt haldng 77.04 BRG]
{Tarmarly kngwn a5 Lafage
Marketing Pte, Lrd.)*
LCS P Lol ™ Singapors Bulic impart and sale of coment and frading  77.04 BaG]
of ather bullding materialts
LS Shepoimg Pl Lid.* Singaporm Shapping of tulk cement and chartesing of 77.04 &AR.B1
vestaky
LMCE Hioddings Phe, Ltd* Singapore Irvestment halding 77.04 BA.61
Madah Sebaka Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Cuarmy business & related services 98,04 98.04
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L' L
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
{continued)
Malayen Cemant Berhad Malaysla Imestment holdng T7.04 BEBL
M-Cetrant Scii. B, Malayia Irsestirnit hiokding 7704 BaGl
Mini-Mix S Ehd* Malaysia Manufacture & sale of ready-mix concrete T7.04 G804
E hiring al vihicles
Mabiack Sea Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Business of granite quarrying & related  DE.04 98504
sevices
Muriual Prospact Sdn. Bhd, Malayia Quiarry businass & related sarvicos B0 8,04
Marryang Cement Fie. Lid* Singaporne Ciement teemninal operations, bulk breaking  SEU04 9304
Activithes anid trading B cement
Mhyu Anh Investment Joint Stock Wietnam Imestmant holding GA.04 aH04
Compary*®
Oasis Vision Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Production, selling & distribution of 35.00 3500
corAtiuction & bulding matedials
Pahang Cement Sdn Ahd ™ Malaysia Mamifactwe & sale of ordinary portlanc 77,04 Q.04
ement, chnkor B related products
Perak-Hanjoong Simen Sdn. Shd.® Malaysia Mamufactire & sale of ordnary portlanc 77,04 G804
ement, cinker b relaed poducts
Perrmodalan Hitoc Son. Bha Falinyiin Quarry butmess K related senvices SE.O4 GEO4
PHS Trading Sdn. Bhd® Falaysia Management of plart 7704 OH.04
PMCWS Entarpoises Poe Lid,” Singapon Inestment holding 77.04 GEGL
Pronuiders Centre Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dcanmind - BEGL
PT. ¥TL Semen indaonewa® Indonesa I tive DE.04 a8.04
Quickmix Sofutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Manufacture @and sabe of cement and drymix 704 == 1]
{Fanimaerty kst ad Lalasge Dryinix products
Sdn, Bhd,)
R Aggreraties Sdn. Bhil Malayiia Handling of ¢ansTruction waste matorials GE.04 ‘98.04
and sales of the recycled concrete
Aggregates
Sumen Utama Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Marketmg. trading & manufacturing of  77.04 BHBL
oot B related products
Siind Moblle anif Heawy Eguipanet Malaysis Trading & maritenance of tucks & pans 9004 aa.04
Sin, Bhd. & heavy equipment
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)
Effective Equity
Interast
Place of 20ee 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
(continued)
Slaq Cement Sdn Bhd " Mtaytia Manutacture & Lale of ordinory partland FT.04 S804
cement & blended coment ke
transportation services
Slag Cement (Southern) Sdn, Bhd® Mataysia Manufacture & sale of crdinary portland 17.04 S804
cement & blended cemant
SML Mix Sdn. Bhd.® Maiaysia Manifacture k& sale of ready-mixed concrete 77.04 98.04
Solarts Concept Sdn. Bhd, Mataysia Production, selling & distribution of 50.00 50,00
constructon & bulldng materials
Siraits Cement Sdn. Bhl.” Mataysla Production and sake of cement T7.04 a98.04
Suparmix Conorete Me, Lid* Singapore Irvestment holding 17.04 BH.6]
Suparmmis Industries Sdn. Bhd Maaysia Manufacture and sale of ready-mia cancrete 7185 63.98
{tormery known a5 Lafarge Concrete
Inclumiries S, Bhd )
Syt {Malaysia) S, Bhid, Malaysia Manufactione and salt of ready -me coicnsde T1.85 &3.98
{Taemerly kigwn as Lafage Concmete
{Malaysla) S Blvd.)
Tugas Sefahtera Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Imvestment holding 98.04 S04
¥TL Cement [Cambodia) Holdings Singapore Darmant 98.04 SEL04
Pra, Ltd®
¥TL Cement Cnterprise Sdn. Bhd Mataysia Irvestment halding 98.04 904
¥TL Cement [Hong kong) Limited® Heng Kong Irvestment holding 68.04 9504
YTL Cemnent Marketing Sdn. Brad® Mutaaysla Sale & markeling of cemervitiows products 77.04 S6.04
¥TL Comient Markating Singaparne Singapnre Sale B markiting of coment, comentitions 9804 =l
P, Lbd” prodiucts & ather related canstruction
products
¥TL Coment Myaniar Compaiey Myanmar Inactive S804 S99.04
Limratad*
¥TL Cement (Myanmar] Holdings Singapore Irmvestment holding 98.04 98.04
Pre, Lud*
¥TL Coment (Philippires) Holdngs Simgapare Darmant 98.04 5604
P, Lbl*
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame of Company Incorporation Principal Activities % %
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
{continwed)
YIL Cement Bewands Son. Bhd, Malaysia Management of loyalty programmes DH.04 GHO4
(formerty Enown a5 Pahang Lement
Markating Scn. B )
Y7L Cesteerit {Sakah) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysis Imestimet bolding, manulacture and <X 90.04 Ga.04
of ardsnary portland cement B blended
cement
YTL Cemant Sharod Senaces Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Accounting shared services, and 7704 GaGl
nanagemeEnt consulting senices
¥TL Cement Singapora Pta, Lid* Singapare Investiment holding & rent collection from 8.0 a8.04
its imvesiment properties
YTL Cement Termina Services SiNgEpane Operation of port terminals & handing of  9B.04 9H.04
Pre. Ltd.* cementitliou products
YT Cemant {Miatnam) Pro, [10,* Singapan Insstinant hioking 98.04  9AD4
YTL Corcrere (5) Ple. Lid* Singapore Manufacture of ready-mixed concrete,  GB.04 an.04
wholesale of structusal dlay & concrets
products & mioed construction activities
YTL Premix San. Bhd, Malaysia Trading of busldng materials & relsted DB.D4 9804
orvices
Znieflang YTL Cemant Marketng Tha Pecples Management sendce DE.04 985,04
Lo, Led* Republic of China
Held through YTL Charters
Sdn. Bhd.:
Iskaryd Alr Sdn, Biwd, Makiysia Charteding ol aircrafes B0, D0 B0
MNusantara Sakl Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Cariage of passengers & alr cemers B0.00 B0.00
Held through YTL e-Solutions
Berhad:
Airred) Services Sdn, Bhd Malaysia e tive 56.00 SR
Alrzed Broadband Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Froviding wired ine & wieless broadbard ~ 70.00 7000
Internet access services & developing,
producing, marketing, seiling &
maintaining software applications,
trseanth e dovalopment, comultancy &
melied senaces
Bizsurt M5L Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Inactive 50.00 6000
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of e rd Z0Z1
Name of Company Incorporation Principal Activities o %
Held through ¥TL e-Solutions
Berhad: (continued)
In‘osoreen Networks Lod* England & Wales . Imvestment halding 100,00 10000
PropertyNatia (Malayuia) Sdn, Bd Malaysia Inactive 100.00 10000
¥TL Info Screen Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Creating, provding advertising content, 100000 10000
mecia, web media & up fo date
Infeamation via electronic media
ax Sdn. Bhil Mataysia Inactive 100,00 10000
M Networks Sdn Bhad, Mataysia Prowieding computer networking & related 60,00 G000
infarmation technaology servioas
¥-Max Solutions Holdings Sdn. Bhd, Matayiia Irmeistmisng halding 100.00 10000
Held through ¥TL Hospitality REIT
(["YTL REIT"):
Starhill Howpitafity (Australia) Poy, Lid® fasaralia Trustoo company 56.96 56.96
Starhill Hosprality REIT (Australia) Aarstralla Real estate investmant 56.96 56.96
Trs®
Stanmill Hospitality REIT (Brivhane) famtralia Aeal astate investmant 56.96 56.96
Tt ®
Starhill Hospitafity REIT (Methoume| Mamtroalia Azl estde investment 56,96 56.96
Trust®
Staihill Hospltality RETT [Sydney) fartralia Real estile investmant 56.96 56.96
Trmst*
Siaitill Houpeaitg REIT {Australia) Malayula IFutFont haking CEOE 5606
Sel B,
Starhill Hate! [Ausiraka) Sdn, Bhd Mataysla Irnviestmment kg 5696 5696
Starhill Hotel [Brisbana) Py, Lid * fuistralia Hartel aparatar 56,96 56.96
Srarhill Hatel [Mefbourne] Pry. Lid.* Australia Hatel aporatar 56.96 56.96
Sarhill Hotel [Sydreay) Py, Lid.* Australia Hixlel operator 56,96 56,96
Starhill REIT (Australa) Py, Lid * Australia Trustos company 56.96 56.96
Starhill REIT Niseko GK.* Japan Purnchase. possession. disposal, lease and 56.96 56,96
management of real propertes
¥TL REIT MTN Sdn Bhd Malaysia To urdentaie the issuance of medium term 56.96 56.96
noles
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Hame af Company
Held through ¥TL Hotels &

Properties Sdn, Bhd.:
Autodome Sdn, Bhd

Bath Colonnade Praperties Limited
(THE)*

Bath Hetel & SPA BV.*

Batly Fotel snd SPA Limiied*

Bares Cosmacoutical Sdn. Bhd,

B Klard ¥illas Sdn. Bhd.

Cameron Highlards Basor Sdn, Bhd

Ciamand Recips Sdn Bhd.

Gansbarough Hotel (Bath) Lmited®

Ciasshouse Hated (Cayman) Limitod*

Glasshause Hotel Limited®

Happy Steamboat Sdn, Bhd,

Magna Bouncary Sdn. Bhd.

Marhle alloy Sdn, Bhel

Marble Valley Two Sdn Bhd,

M Hetel Management Pre, Lid*=

Mankey tsland Properties Limited®

vy Architeoture [Bray) Limaea®

Misako Village KL

Misakn Village [5) e, Ll
M. Land G

P.T. Jopun Bali?

Restoran Kisap Sdn. Bhd,

R Goweer Street Limited®*

HW Grearside Face Limited*

Rw Threadneodle Stroet Limited®
Samid Hoel 2 Ca. L™

190 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Place of
Incorporation

Malaysla
England & Walas

Netharlanids
England B ‘Wales
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
England & Wales
Caymun flands
Englard & Wales
Malayiia
Malaysia
Malaytia
Malaysia
Singanors
England & Walas
England & Wales

Indonisia
Malaysia
England & Wales
England & Walas
England & Wales
Thailanad

Operator of food & beverage outlets &
sub-letting af premises
Letting of pramises

Inastmant holding

Hiatied desnsioper dinl ogesetor

Developmant of holiday nisons

Dexmant

Hated & resort ooeralor

Opertor of food & beversge owtlet

Hated operations

Imastineat holding

Invastinent hokding

Ina tive

Hated & resort operator

Mariagerment B investman hodding

Hated operator

Hatel managament serices

Investment & praperty holdng

Heatet aperato

Owning, managing, maintaining and
devidaping the Noko Villige Reson

Inwestment holdng

Constructon, devolopmaont, sale k purchase
of real properties

Managing & aperating a hatil

InaC tive

Hated operator

Hated operator

Hated operator

Hiated aperator
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Effective Equity
Intarest

2022 2021

100,00 100,00
90.00 a0.00
a0.00 8000
100,00 100,00

10000 10000
100,00 10000
100,00 10000

100.00 10000
100,00 10000
20,00 9000
80.00  A0O0
54.00 6200
- 5100
100,00 100,00
100,00 10000

10000 10000

100,00 100,00

100,00 10000
100,00 10000
100.00 10000
100,00 10000
100.00 10000
10000 10000
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YTL CORPORATION BERHAD | AMWUAL RCPORT 2022

MNotes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2022

15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)

Effective Equity

Interast
Place of 20ee 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through ¥TL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.: (continued)
Sentul Park Koi Centre Sdn, Bhd® Mataysia Breeders, wholesalers, retallers b - 10000
distributors of kod fish
Starhill Hoted [Ferth) Pry. Lrd! fartralia Trustee compary 100,00 10000
Stahill Hated [Perth) Sdn. Bhd Maaysia IrppstmmiEnt holding 10000 OO
Starhill Hotel [Perth) Trust® farstrilia Real estale investmant 100,00  10G00
Stanbilll Hotid Dguratoe (Perth) PI:,I. L * Aariralia ot apisratar 100,00 § 0000
Starhifl Office (Parth) Pry. Lol fumtralia Trustes comparry 100,00 100K
Ciaitiill Retasl (Perth) Pry, Lt Mastralia Tristioe comgary 100.00 10000
star Hill Hotel Sdn. Bhd. Mataysla Hoted operator 100,00 10000
Thermae Develapmont Company England & Wales  Licence (o operate the Thermas Bath Spa 100000 10000
Limitad* oomolax
Threadneedes Hate Limited* England & Wales  Ireestment haldng 100.00 10000
¥TL Hesitage Hotets Sdn. Bhd. Maaysia Eoimant 10:0.00 1 adi]
¥TL Hotels B Marthesflans Irmeesament halding 100,00 10000
¥TL Hotels {Cayman) Limited Cayman Blends  Holel operator & hotel management 100,00 10000
S
¥TIL Hotals Cenfral Sarvices Sdn. Bhd Mataysia Darmant 100,00 10000
YT ICHM Sdin Bhd, Maaysia Providing professionsl & commercial 70,00 FO.O00
education i training in hespitality
¥TL Hitals (Sngapose) P Lio.® Singapare Travel and hosmtainy relatod nusines 100,00 10000
¥TL Majestic Hatel Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Hatal aparator 100,00 10000
Held through ¥TL Industries
Berhad:
Yeoh Tiong Lay Brickworks 5dn. Bhd HMaiaysia Inactive 100,00 10000
Yoeoh Tiong Lay Managemont Sdn. Bhd, Mutiryiia Fanagement and other sonaces 100.00 10000
Hold through YTL Land Sdn, Bhd.:
Katagreen Development Sdn. Bhil Maaysia Property leasing and management 100.00 10000
Heritage jourmaey Sin. Bhd. Makmysia Operator of Tood and beverage 100.00 10000
Pimar Projek Sdn, Bha Malaysia Management of real estate ivestment 70,00 F0.00
trust funds, licensing of trademancs &
brand management
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L' L
Held through ¥TL Land Sdn. Bhd.:
{continued)
Puncak Serundang Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Dicarrmaang 10000 10000
Seniul Park Kot Cenre Sdn. Bhd ® Malaysia Breeders. wholesalers, retailers & 100,00 -
irstrimgors of ki fish
YTL Design Services Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Dcrmmiant 100,00  100.00
Held thraugh YTL Land &
Development Berhad:
Amanresarts. Sdn. Bhi. Malaysia Dowrnant 9317 a5 il
By Development Sdn. Blwd, Malaynia Fraperty develapemen 9317 Q6 &
Budaya Bersatu Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Fraperty development 93.17 9564
Emaraid Hectares Sdn. Shd, Malaysia Dt B5.22 BT &5
Lakeframt Pie. Lid * Singapore Readl estate development 93.17 9564
Lat Ten Security Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Inective 2317 9564
Mayeng Sar Sen Bhd, Malaysia inactive 9317 9654
Noriwasa Sdn. Hhd Malaysia Decxrnagng. 2317 aa6E4
Pakatan Perakbing Sdn Bhd, Malayuia Froporty developenen 93,17 e Fien ]
Pirmacie Trend Son. Bhd, Malaysta Froperty development and property 93.17 Ybbd
STt
PP Serdirian Berhad Malaysia Froparty development 9317 9654
Sandy ddand Pra. LIL* Singapare Roa estate devedapment 93,17 9564
Satria Sewira Son. Bhd, Malaysia Dot 23.17 9564
Sentul Raya Sdn. Bl Malayiia Property development and property 93,17 956
mrwestinent
Seqiul Raya Colf Cub Berhad Malaysia Inaciive 93.17 o561
Sentul Rays City Sdn, Bhd. Maldysia Froperty developmen 93.17 9664
Sentul Pack Management Sdn. Ehd Malaysiz Park management 9317 kel ]
Spectacudar Comer Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Doemnins 9317 GaE4
SR Property Management S Bl Malayuis Prenrann o piropanrty Manaogoment o 9317 aE&d
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2022

15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)

Effective Equity

Interast
Place of 20ee 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through ¥TL Land &
Development Berhad:
(continuad)
Syarikat Memajuan Perumahan Negara Maiaysia Property development 9317 6.6
Sddn B,
Trend Acres Sdn. Bhd, Mataysia Property development a3ar 96.64
Udapakat Bina Sda, Bhd Makmysia Property developiment 9317 96,64
¥TL Land & Development {MM24) Malaysia Darmari 9317  OG64
Sdn B,
¥TL Land ke Development Management Singapore Provison of fmancal and management 9317 96.64
Ple Lal® LissulCar ey Seividins
Held through YTL Power
Intermational Barhad
["YTL Power"):
Abion Water Limited" England & Wales  Water supply and waste water services - 5557
Bel Alr Den Hasg Beheer BV " TR iands Ireestment halding 46.04 A6.04
Brabazon Estates Limitesd Englarid & Wales  Darmant 5557 GLEY
B, Hotel Bel A Den Haag* Mefhetands Hatiel bisingss 46.04 46,04
Lefiylar Sructures San. Bhd,” HMalaysia Inactive 33.34 31.34
Dials At Brabagan Managamont England & Walew  Darmant 55,57 5557
Comgarny Limited"
Entesprise Laurdy Services Limied™  England B Wales  Laundiy sehdces - 5557
Entrade Limited" England & Wales  Daormant 55.57 -
Equinax Solar Famm Son. Bhad Mataysia Development, ownership, operation and 55.57 5557
mairterance of solar photovoltaic power
plants and related enginesring,
procurement, construction and
COMMIissioning sendcas
Extiva Communications Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Iractive 3334 di34
{1 Eguadation)
Flipaer Limited” England & Wales Uity switching sendces 5557 612
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Hame af Company

Held through YTL Power
International Berhad
("YTL Power™): (continued)

FrogAsia Sdn Bhd

Frog Education Limited®

Frog Education Group Lemied®
Frog Education Sdn, Bhd

Ganeco EV (5) Pte, Lid®

Ceneco Limited!

Ceneco [South West) Limited

Clobial Irfiasticiur e AsSers Sdn. Bhd.

Gramite imvestments (Cayman islands)
Lirmizgsd

KfS Alinan Sdn. Bhd *
Kansoit s Jaringan Saiandged
S Bhad.®

Mavigator A1 Brabazon Management
Compary Lmited

PtrnSeraya Ple. Ltd*

P.T. ¥TL Harta indonesia’

P.T.¥TL Jawa Timur *

P.T. ¥TL Fower Services Indonesia®
P.T. Tanung [an Power Company™

Seraya Energy and Investmant
P Lid.*

Seraya Energy Pre Ltd*
SC Technalogy Deutschiand CmbH®
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Place of
Incorporation

Malaysia

Englard & Wales

England & Wales
Malayzia

Singapare
England & Waies
England £ Wales

Malaysia
Cayman tslands

Malaysia
Malayia

Enghand 5 Wales
Sngapare

Indonesia
ndonnsia

Indonesia
Indonesia
Singapors

Lingapare
Germany

License resefler focused on prowiding virual
lrarmiry) educaton platfonm

Sales into the edacation market and furher
development of the web endranmant
oduct

estiment holdng

Licemse reseller focused on prowdding virual
eaiming educatanal platiarm

Electric yehicke chaeging station

Food waste meatment

Food waste tragtment

Ivestment holding

Dormant

Imvastment holding

Plariend, (FIbMenATinn ani malmsnans
of wlecommunication Towers and

telecommunication related services
Damang

Tank leasing and sale af fisel ol
Indumstrisd estate

Constructioh managament. onsultancy
services and powar Slaton operation
Laryices

Dicmaend

Desagn and CONSTIUCTION of pOWEer gererang
tacility

Ivestment holiing

Laie of slectncity
Waste ireatment
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Effective Equity
Interest
2022 2021
% %
55.57 5557
38.30 3830
28.30 38.30
38.30 3830
55.57 5557
55.57 5557
557 E557
38.90 3590
5557 5557
2334 2334
33.34 3334
55.57 5557
5557 5557
5554 5654
55.01 55,01
52.79 5279
44,46 AdaAb
55.57 5557
55.57 5557
55.57 5557
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)
Effective Equity
Interast
Place of 2022 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad
{"YTL Power"): (continued)
S Technology GmbéH* S tzertand Irvestment holding 55.57 5557
SC Tedhnology Mederland BY.* Matherands Warste treatmant 5557 55.57
SIPF Powgr S0n. Bnd Maaysia Dosalapment. construction completion. - 38,90 36,90

mamtenance and operition af & boge
scale sclar pawer facility
Suria Solar Farm Sdn, B, Malaysia Dovelopmant, awnership, operation and 5557 5557
mairterance of selar photavodtaic pavwr
plants and refated engineering
procurement, canstruction and
COMMISSaning senees

Taser Power P Lud.* Singapare Ceneration ant sale of elericlny 55.57 55.57

Turnbull Infrastructure & Utilites England & Wales  Engineenng senvices 55.57 5557
Liirdtod*

Water 2 Busiress Limited® England & Wales Moo household water rataler 38.90 38.90

Wessex Concierne Limitpd' England & wWales  Irvestment holding 55.57 2557

Wessex Water Engmeering Services England & Wales  Darmant 5557 5557
Lipitad

Wimsen Wates Entermrises Limited® England & Wales  Powor gransiation and wasie reatment 55,57 5557

Wessex Wates Inrernanionat Limited" Cayman kslands  Darmant K557 5557

Wessex Water Limited* England & Wales  Investment holding 55.57 5557

Wessex Warer Pension Scheme Trustee  England & Wales  Darmant 5557 G557
Lirritad'

‘Wessex Water Services Finance Pic.* England & Wales Issue of bonas 55.57 5557

Wessex Water Services Limited® England & Wales  Water supply and waste water services 55.57 5557

Wissex Water Tiustoe Company England & Wales  Darmant 5557 5557
Limited'

Wessex Utility Solutions Limited" England & Wales  Emgincening semdces 55.57 5557

Yalkon Telesel Sdn Bhd,* Makaya Platwing, development, implementation 16,34 16,34

and managament of elecommunication
infrastructure and information
communication technoogias services
YesLine Sdn. Bhd Mataysla Imactive 33.34 3334
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L' L
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad
{"YTL Powar™): (continuad)
YTL Arena (Filion) Limited” England & Wales  Domank B 5557
¥TL Aresia Holdings Limlted® England k& Wales.  Imvastmant halding SL.57 5557
WL Ariena Limnitod™ England & Wales  Arona dovelopmont 55.57 5557
YTL Broadbard Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Frowision of wired ine and wireless 33.34 2667
loadbicid aicess and ollses tefated
wrvioes
YTL Communiations mtemational Cayman Islands Imestmant holdng 33.34 3334
Lismitat’
YTL Communiations Sdn Bhd Malaysia Frowision of wired line and wireless 33.34 3334
troadband access and other retated
servioes
YTL Communicatons (5) Pre Lid® Singapore Compirter systems Integration activites 33.34 3334
and system integration sorvices
YTL Dala Cenier Hoidings Pe, L1d.* Singapore Imestmant holding In companies that own 55.57 -
ani opiFane daka Centees
YTL DC Mol Pte, Lbd* Singapare Imestment holding In companies that oen 5557 -
and opovate data oontees
YTL BC Seath Scdn Bhel! Maliysia Devilogiment, aperation and marketing of 5557 -
data center projects and related
InTrastiuciune, senaces and activities
¥TL Developmenss [UK) Limited” England f Wales  Housing dovelopment 55.57 5557
YTL Digital Copital Scn, Bhd, Malayiia Invoastrsnt hokding S5.57 5557
¥TL Digitzl Paymments Sdn, B’ Malaysiz Processing of digital payments wa e-money 55.57 -
patferm
YTL Digital Sdi, Bhd Maldysia Ine tive 33.34 3334
¥TL Education (UK) Limited" England B Wales  Dommant 55.57 5557
YTL Emergy Holdings Sdn. Bhd Malaysiz Irsestment holdng 55.57 55457
YT Frgnearineg Limited! Englir & Wados, Dot 55T 5557
¥TL Evenits Lmited! England & Walss  Domant 55.57 5557
YTL Finance (Cyprus) Lid® Cyprs Finangial sendc s 55.57 5557
¥TL Global Nerworks Limiced* Cayman fslands  Donmant 33.34 3334
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)
Effective Equity
Interast
Place of 20ee 2021
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad
["YTL Power™): (continued)
¥TL Homaes Lid * England & Wales  Howsing development 5657 5587
¥TL infrastructura Holdings Sdn. Bhd, Maaysia Imvestment halding 55.57 G557
¥TL Infrastructune Limiteg' Cayman Blands  Imvisimint holding 55.57 2557
¥TL jawn Energy B, Nethertands Inwestment holding. financing and 5557 5657
Management sendoes
YTL avwiin O B M Holdings BV, Rt fands Ivestiment hoalding aml management 55.57 G557
SETVLES
FTL Jasars O e M Hesbdings Limited® Cyprs irnspatenent halding 5557 5557
¥TL Jawa Power BV, Natherlands Investment holding end managemant .75 Ims
S Ces
¥TL jawa Power Frnance Limited Cayman klends  Fnancial services 55.57 55.57
¥TL Jwwid Power Holdings B, Natheitands Irvpstment halding 3075 LTS
¥TL jawa Power Holdings Limited® Cyprus Irvestment holding & fimancing acthvities 55.57 5557
YTL Jardan Pawar Haldings Limitaed* Cyprus Irvesimesn holding & financing activities 55,57 GR57
¥TL jordan Sorvices Holdings Limdtod* Cyprurs Imeestment hoiding 55.57 5557
FTL Land £ Property (U] Lid England & Wales  irnvestmien halding 55,57 5557
¥TL Places Limitea' England & Wales Desrmiant 55.57 5557
¥TL Perer Anrstralin Limited Cayman hilands  Imvestiment halding 55.57 GR57
¥TL Poever Finance (Cayman) Limied' Cayman Blands  Darmant 5557 5557
¥TL Power Genaration Sdn, Bhd.* Mataysia Developing. constructing, completing. 5557 5h.57
malntaining and operating pawaer plants
¥TL Power Holdings Sdn, B, Mafaysla Darmarit 55.57 G557
¥TL Power Investments Limited Cayman Blands  Imvestment haliing 5557 G567
¥TL Power intemational Holdings Cayman klands  Imvestment holding 5557 5557
Limitad'
¥TL Pesved Resounies Sdn. Bhd, Makaysia Irvesimedit hiskding 55.57 G557
¥TL PowverSeraya Pte. Limited . Singapore The full value chain Invalved in the 55.57 5557

goneration and sak of electricity, This
incliades the trading of fuel related
deflvative Instruments, tank leasing
activitios and 8o of by.products from
the slectricity generation process
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Detals of the sbshdlaries are as followss- [cantinued)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2022 2021
Hame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L' L
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad
{"YTL Powar™): (continuad)
YTL Power | Thalland) Limited" Cayman lslands  Domant 55.57 5557
¥TL Pawer Trading (Labuan) Lid.! Malaysia Dicstrmiant S5.57 5557
YTL Proporty Foldings (L) Limtod® England & Walos  Houting dovelopmant 5557 5557
¥TL RE Hoddings Sin, Bhd! Malaysia Investiment hokding 55.57
¥TL Renewablos Fre, Lbd* Sirapon Transmision, disteibutan and ale of 55 57 -
alectricity. engingering dosign and
consultancy services In energy
managemant and dean enormy system
YTL Seraya Limited Cayman lslards Iimestinent hohing 55.57 5557
YTL Services Limitod' England & Wales  Dorman 5557 5557
YTL 58P Power Holdings Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Imestment holdng 368.90 3590
YT Sauthermn Solar Sdn, B! Maliysia Investment halding, development, G557
commissioning, operation and
inanienance of solar phatovaltale powes
lant and transmissian infrastmciue and
generation of elettricity from green
CRETOY SOUMeS
YTL LRiiiics Limigegd Cayiman fslamls  Imestiment hokiing 5557 5557
YTL Liilithes Fanance Limited® Cayman islands imestment holdng 5557 5557
YTL LHilities Finance 2 Limited Cayman Islands Imestment holdng 55.57 5557
YL LHifities Finance 3 Limited Cayman Islarets  Finanrial sendoes S5.57 5557
YTL Lrilities Finance 4 Limited! Cayman Islands. Financial services 55.57 E6.57
YTL Lriimias Fandange 5 Limiled Coyman slands  Imastimant hokdng S5.57 5557
¥TL Lhilitizs Finance & Limated® Cayman Islards. Financial sendces 55.57 557
¥TL Unilinies Finance 7 Limiteg' Cayman lSlands  InacTive 55.57 5557
¥TL Lntilitizs Holdings Lamited! Cayman Islards Imestmant holdng 55.57 547
YTL LHilities Holdings (5) Pl Lireled* Sirpajiare Iveestirient hokdig 5557 5557
¥TL UrHitias [5) Pte. Limitad® Singapare inestmant holding 55.57 5557
YTL LAifities (L) Limited® England & Wales  Ivestment hokfing 5557 5557
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (continued)

Effective Equity

Interast
Place of 20ee 2021

Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities a h
Held through YTL Power Services

Sdn. Bhe.:
¥TL Powver Services (Cayman) Lid! Cayman lands  Inactive 100,00 10000
¥TL Powt Services (Leb) SARL® Lebarion Dparation b maintenance of power slation 100,00 10000
¥TL Power Services [5) Pie L. * Singapore Cperation & maintenance of power station 100000 10000
Held through YTL Singapore

Pte. Ltd:
Guangrhou Autodome Food & Beverage  The Peoplas Inactive 100,00 10000

Management Co. Lrd® Riepubilic of Ching
Shangha Autodome Food & Beverage The People’s Inactive 100.00 10000

Ca. Lwd* Reputilic of Ching

* Sulnskficries not cukied by HLE Lev L Chewr AL

Dfssoived doring e finoncial pear

Enriries. e ihey ewimpded of fof STotutorily ieguined fo be ouekted
Firt audited finonco! siotements in 2023

Digporsingd cuning M finoncial pooy

Entemal Fesruchixng

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 199

475/624



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
{a) Acguisition of significant subsidiary
(I} Taser Power Pte. Ltd.

Pursuant 1o e Put and Call Option Agreement dated 31 May 2022 ertered o between the Croup and Tuasprng Pre.
Lid. FTPLY (Recaivers and Managers Appointad aver the Ralevant Charged Prooerty). the Group has acquired the power
piany and assodiated assets af TPLon 1 june 2022, As 2 result of 1he acquisition, the Lroup |5 expected [0 create ignificant
syringies arrass it podthalio ol uility Purindsws in Singapons, The Tair values of dentitiable st acquied and linhilitieu
asmemed have baen datermined on & provisicnal basis and will be finalised within one yaar after the acquisition date

Datails af tha contidoration Trardormed and goodwill recogni<od ane a5 Tollows:

RM'000
Cashi crmsideration #39,729
Fair value of net assets acquired (771,915)
Pravisional goadwill G7.814

Tha provwiiorally determined Fair values of the astets and liabilities a% at the cate of siouistion are o follows:

RM'000
Praperty. plant and equipment Fra.408
Right-of-use assets 17,658
Ineantonies 42,663
Deterred latdities (67,814)
Identifiable net assets acquired 77915

Al Acquisibon-related costs

The Group incuered acquisition-related costs af RMLELY milkon, These costs are included In “Administrative expenses”
in the Ircoms Siatements and in operating cash Fows 0 the Statements of Cash Fows

bl Gaodwill

Thiir prendsional gooddll drising lram tha acquiition consses largely of the symergios and seoncmbes of cals oapetod
from acquiring the business, Nona of tha goodwill is expected 1o be deductible lor incoima tax purposes,
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
[a) Acquisition of significant subsidiary (continued)
(i} Taser Power Pte, Ltd, (continued)
£]  Rewenue ard profit contnbution
The amuired business coninbuted evenuve and profit of RM35.3 million and RM25 million, respectivedy to the Group
far the period from 1 pune 2022 to 30 june 2022,
di  Deterred labithes

The Group has assumed lzbilities payable 1o a third party as stipulated In the agreement dated 28 Cecember 2021
which was novaied to the Group a5 part of the acqusition of the business. The Croup is requined (o pay an annual
eactritity fee of HM5 3 million 1o the thind pety a5 compensation for the temination of senetes provided 10 therd
party by TPL. The perid of compensation s effective from 1 June 2022 10 4 September 2036

(b} Disposal of significant subsidiaries
Disposal in 2022
(I} Albien Water Limited
On B March 2022, Wessex Waler Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company disposed its sharehoddings in Albicn Water
Limitied

The dsposal kao the follawing effects to the finandal position of the Group far the financial year

At date

of disposal

RMO00

Property, plant and equipmsant 92,254
A=celvables, deposits and prepayments 1,773
Payatdes and accrued expames (2.982)
Dedened noome [61.033)
Grants ard contrbutions [14,035)
Mot aants dispered 15,977
Gain oo dispasal to the Group 4,916
Total proceeds consideration 20,893

4771624
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
{b) Dispasal of significant subsidiaries (continued)
Dispasal In 2021
(i) Zhejlang HangZhou Dama Cement Co., L1d,

On 27 Apell 2021, ¥TL Cement [Hong Kong) Limited, & wholly-owned subsidiasy of YTL Cement Berhad [YTL Cementy
@sposed (s BO0ON0000 ordingy shares, represening 100% the eguity interast in Zhejlang Hangehou Duma Cemen
Co. Led, {*Cama Cement”) for a total cash consideraton of CNY 893 million. As a result of the disposal Dama Cement
ceased o be subsadiany of YTL Cement (Hong £ong) Limited and indirect subsidiary of ¥TL Cement and the Compary,

Detalls of the disposal and the net cash flow on disposal were as follows:-

At date
of disposal
RM'OD00
Property, plaivt &l sguipmen 66731
Right-ol-use assels 7819
Intargible aysety 182688
Deterred tox assets 68,551
Inwartodies 40,373
Retenvables 65,906
Cxsh andl cash equivalents Ga.351
Onher assets 637
Payables [L4.585)
Income tax liabilities (2288)
MNeat assets disposed 253741
Trangacton costs infurred 58620
Cain on dispess 1o the Crowp 257620
Tatal proceeds consideration 565,561
Total proceads consideration 565981
Liis= Exponses pail [35.821)
Lessz Batention [#H499)
Nat proceeds from disporsal SU566E]
Cash and casn equaaients disposad [B4.353)
Met cash inflow 1o the Group an disposal 441,308
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
{b) Disposal of significant subsidiaries {continued)
Disposal in 2021 {cont’d)
(i) ¥TL Westwood Properties Pie, Ltd.

On 28 jung 2021 YTL Land & Deswslopment Berhad [TYTL Land), & subsidary of the Company disposed s 1000000
andnary shares, reprasenting 100% of equety imerest in YTL Westwood Properties Pre, Lud (Y TL Westwood™) Tor o total
cash consideration of SGO3ET mllion (approxmately 1134 million). As a result of the disposal, ¥TL Westwaood ceasad
10 be subsisary af YL Lard and mdirect subsidiary ot 1he Company.

Detals of the dsposal and the net cash How on disposal were 5 follows:-

At date

of disposal

RMO00

Raghit-of 1m0 assets 100
Imventaries 546,598
Racaivabiles F4.233
Cash and cash equivalents Pt it
Payabies |E59.6101)
Barrowangs {526.745)
s Rabiities 113
Mot liablibes disposed 1140,27C)
Recawification af foreign eschange resene 1582
Cain on disposal to the Group 150,021
Het disposal proceeds 11343
Proteds fram dispesal 11343
Lass: ather receivable {B8.253)
Provesds rateived from dispasal 3,080
Cash and cash equivalents osposed [£5,268)
Hat cash outflow to the Group on disposal [E2172)

e} Internal restructuring of subsidiaries

0n 12 May 2021, the subsidiaries of the Company being Malayan Cement Berfad ["MCOB") and ¥TL Cemant Berhad (" TLCET,
respectively entered Into a cond tional share sale and purchase agreament, for the acquisition of the entire egety interest of
10 companies and thelr respective subkdiaries which ane inveheed in coment and ready-mixed contrete busines<es in Malaysia
{"thie Acquisition™). The Acguisition was completad on 21 September 20271,
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
{d) MNon-controlling interests In subsidiaries
Tha Group's subsidiares that have material non-controlling imerests ((NCIT) are as foliows-

Qther
Malayan  individually
YL Powier ¥TL REIT Cement immarterial
Group Group Berhad  subsidiaries Tatal
RH'D00 RMO00 RMO00 RMO00 RHODO
Graup - 2022
W af fective equity intenest 4L AT 43.04% 22.96%
Camying ameunt af MCI 2,908,427 BE7.554 926,310 77444 4,580,735
Prafit abacatad ta NCI 736,517 9,863 17,947 85,538 840,855

Surmnarised finandisl mermation before inter.company eliminatior: are s follows:-

As at 30 june 2022

Nan-curert assets 38,530,888 4,758,782 8,664,302
Current asiets 12,010,329 143,468 L760,970
Mon-cumert Habilbes [#0,739,651) (L417.162) (3,130,105)
Cunent Fabilities (6.204,409) 712,320  (L516.250)
et aaset 14,067,157 2.772.748 5,778,927

Year ended 30 June 2022

Reverue 17.804,728 363,857  E.705.272

Profit for the year 1,185,269 B3.grz2 82,085

Tatal comprehensive incame 1,670,954 134,838 05,463

Cash Tlow Trom aperaling stthities 1,305,699 112,560 244,278

Cash flow wsed in irvesting activities [336,212) (12.164) (LGZ6,940)
Cavh flowwr {used inj'from financing activities (2,706,341} (118,365) 1850399

Het changes in cash ond tash equivaients (L.736,854] (18,969) 467,697

Drvdend pakd 1o NCI 161,981 30,699 -
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
[d} Mon-controliing interests in subsidiaries [continued)
The Group's sutmsidiaries that have matedal non-controling interests [PHCT) are as follows!- {continuad)

Other

Halayan  individually

YTL Power YTL REIT Cement  immatesial
Group Group Berhad subsidiaries Tatal
AM'DOO RHOOO RMFO00 RMO00 M 000

Group - 2021

NI effective equity ntenest 44.43% FIO N 11.99%

Carrying srrount of NO 2148225 88383 41820 W972 1540476
Profit allocated o MO 5TLSSL 25090 Lee2 527 [ P ]

Summarised financial infarmation before inler-tompany elmination ane o4 folows-

Az gt 30 june 2021

Mon-furrent assets I/AT0I0 AF22A8E  2947,059
Clartont aesats 13,857,305 140,375 711630
Yom-current labdities (ILEIM534)  [2O010.461) (449, 738)
Currant Bahilities (7.332376)  (155094)  (BG7.482)
it asses 12,907 455 2705319 2541450

Year ended 30 june 2021

Hevenue 10,784,730 326276  1.369508
{LasspPmfin fos thie yoar {i03.128) B2.830 12,230
Tatal camprehensg income 1,219.977 220,304 131,192
Cash fow from operating acthities 1329382 0p, 348 3156
Cash flaw used In investing activitios {1.126.264) (L5441} {39,165}
Cash flaw from#used in) financing actiities 1072823 (142, 007y 13,763
Met charges in cash and cash pquivalents 1275922 {5199y 57754
Dwviddend padd to NE1 7.9t Fipd7 ¥
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSDCIATES

Group Campany
2022 2021 o2z 2021
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'OO00 AM'O00
Cuaatod thamos, ot cost 2.158,384 2136563 3ca.7a0 358,780
Unqueotod codinary shatos, al oo 1,062,871 1,329,763 205,241 205,241
Share of post-acquisiion resenas 552,755 BAISTA - -
Accumulated impairment losses (70.687) (B6,826) - -
3,704,323 243 078 564,021 564,021
Detaks af the associsle st as follows:-
Effective Equity
Intarest
Place af 2022 2021
MHame af Company Incorporation  Principal Activities %% 9%
Held by the Company:
Express Rail Link Sdn, Bhd ® Malaysia Operation & maintenance of the Express 45.00 45,00
Rall Limk railway sys1em betwesen Kusla
Lumgir inTernationa AVpet and Kuala
Lumpur International Alrport £ in Sepang
with Kuaa Lumpar Semral Station
Trans: Pacific Resorts Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Incc tive L0.00 50,00
Held through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn. Bhd.:
Business & Budget Hotels (Kuanian) Malaysiz Hated operator 50,00 50,00
Sin, End.

Hald thrawgh Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tlong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:

Morth South Developrmatt Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Roalty, inveitmont B munagoment yenicos 489.00 4300

Held through ¥TL Cayman Limited:

YTL [Thaisnd) Limited* Thasiland Investrngnt holding 49.90 45390

Srarhill Clohal Real Estate imvestment Singapare Imvastment in prime real estate I7A7 Ir08
Trust*

Held thraugh ¥TL Camant Berhad:

Cementitious Products Pie, Ltd.” Singapare Inmestment holding 49.02 4702
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Detalls of the associate are as follows- [conbinued)
Effactive Equity
Interest
Place of 20az 2021
Hame of Company Incorporation Principal Activities ¥ Y
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
[continuad)
Hangrhou Lnan Heren Consiruction The Propie's Larmant 29.41 2941
Matarials Lo, Lid* Hepublic of China
Superh Agiregates San. Rhd, Moy Trauhng of eonstructon & huiding matedals. 45.02 4507
Tan Son Company Limétod* Vietnam Irnactiye 20.58 2058
Hald through YTL e-Solutions
Barhad:
Enfiess Mamentum Sdn, Bha® Mataysia Irvesiment halding 30,00 30.00
Held through ¥YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.:
Eastern & Orlental Express Ld Ps® Bemmuds Dwniership & management of the luxuy - 32.00
frain servioes kriwen as the Eastorn &
Oisonital Express
Surin Bay Company Lid, % Thaitand Hail apiratar 49,00 4000
Trans-Patific Hhates Sdn. Ohd, Malaysia Inactive 50,00 50,00
Hald through YTL Power
International Berhad:
Electranet Py, Lid.+** Aarstralia Principal electricity tramsmission - 18.62
Ernedit paithan B, Mt hezibainy Trreess bl Fobdingg s Tinuining actntiss 16.67 16.67
PT, [awia Powed+® Indanesia Cparating & ooal-Tinsd thivmal powses Statien 1111 1K1

Coerpanies nof cudiing &y HLE Lav L Chiw PLT

Cowttpstvesh, weleh) Toerc i yver vl of 31 Devpinder

Entities one pither crempied or o shatutoniy reguined fo be oucibed
The Groug's dircef inferest bn BT jJawe Power & 350%

CEUTRE I T

As neated abave, the linancal year end af (enan associated COMPames are nel (o-terminaus with the Craup, Foe the epoce
of spphying the equity method of accounting, thewe companees” undudited fimancial statements made up o 30 |une were used in
congunction with their audited financial statements for the financial year endad 31 Dacember as the case may be.
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16. INWVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
The summarised financlal mformation af material associates adjusted far any differences in accounting policies betsaeen the Growup
and the associates and receaciliation to thie carrying ameunt af the Graup's inteaest in the associates are ak folows:-

{a) Summarised financial information:

Starhill Glohal Real Extate

PT. Jawia Powier Electrabet Pry. Ltd, Ievestment Trust
2022 021 2022 1 2022 2021
RD00 D00 MO0 BMO00 EM000 BMOK0
Nan-cimpnl gty 4,795 @18 4308749 . 1L7223N 0.207.054 916 15
Tured aeefs L.256.541 LisAO00 - 152708 i, 595 Tl 404
Non-cument labiitios (636,364 {584,005) - (AARE)  [RUTMEH  [153059)
Currond RabaliTied {402.760) [ELLA L] - (19304 [=24.219) [las 64|
het asmats 4,513,295 4411582 - 1720200 5.846,948 SE40.777
Legs: Parmetual seturina hobders funds - . . . {315.357) 084
4,513,255 4,411,582 - 1720.200 553L.5m 5532535
Paolit Pow thee Minenclal year B70.196 BEISGS 131613 155,660 167,268 PP
{rher comprehemsve icome - . 117,306 143973 56,129 BRGGD
Tl pompiehensie income B78.196 BEL 965 248,919 P9 A53 233,416 4LTET
Included In the lotal comprehesshe
Income i
Rirgerus AT Li3ian 678,925 LiErE 579,735 55566
Qthet inlamation.
Drders, neceseed fom assolates I[LT42 r4a3 = = 98,026 59473
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information of matenal associates adjusted for any diferances in aocounting policles between the Group
ared thr associaties @nd recondiliation to the camying amownt of the Croug's nterest in the associates ane as follows: (contimeed])

(b} Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount:-

Starhill Global Real

P.T. Jawa Poweer Electrabet Pry. Lid  Extate inwestment Trust Tatal
202 2071 2021 a0z 2021 2022 2021
RMOOD  AMO0D RMOO0  RMOG0 RMO00  RW0O00 RHO00  RMO0D
Dpiening nal 55t 1 jusy 4411387 4746515 L720201 L3430 R532.035 5435515 1LGG4.518  LLSI641L
Management fies payediedpad in
s - - - - 17,612 24,93 17,612 24,530
il sesnaesiment pla - - - - 25,743 LS 5,743 11066
Prefit for the frardizl yesr 678,186 8BS 13613 155660 167,288 173297 LIFR087  LA3le2
{Ithest comprehanse ingome - . 117,306 JEELEE] 65,128 BasED 183,434 f18E33
Cugrency tiaasdaton difesnces 260,122 (140536 16,547 5968 17 2 Ire,B4Z (54,6700
Divicend paid [L.036,405) (LOTA4ER) - - |Eve288) (160540 [L.314,683) (L254006)
Diposal E (1,985,567 - : - (1,585.667) .
(losing net assets, 30 june 4513205 a4l = L¥0s  553L581 5532035 10,044,886 116547518
mieest n asoiates drect hold
by itnaciany ot FR00% - FERL 1M .00
Camying amount L579,653 1543964 = 5267 2056092 091512 AGBTE  4171E63

Gocdwill smounting 1a RMLT.083 million (2021: AMIBS54 milkon) was inCluded 0 1he carying amaunt ol investmant in
associated companies.

The individwsly immatedal associates camying amount is RMES.S7E millish (2021 AM7L211 millian) and the Group's share of
total comprehenshee income i RMS.006 million (2021 loss RMSZA15 mlion],

Thie: Gresup s Aot recognised its shane of loss af an associhined comany ameunting to AMTOISE milian berause e Group's
cumulative share of losses eaceecs |is interest in that entity and the Group has no obligation in respect of those losses The
cumulative unrecognised losses amaunted ta RM124 888 million (2021 AMS4.537 mdlion] at the reporting date.
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16. INWVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Disposal of significant associated companies

{a) ElectraMet Py, Lid.

On 23 Maith 2022, YTL Power ivestments Limited, an mnciect wholly-owned subsldiary of the Company disposed off its
3355, intetast in ElectraNet Pty Lid for a cash cormaderation of RM3.222 bilkan (AUDLO24 billion) resulting & gain an dsposal
of &M1.272 bilion.

Thix disposal haed tha Following effects to the Finastial positicn of the Group for the financal yeae-

RM'OD0
Sales onssderation net af fransaction costs 2196575
Less: Larmying amaunt loan notes (&30,007)
MHet cash inflow to the Group on disposal 1,966,568
Less: Mat assets disposad (665,198)
Gairi an disposal before reclassification of other comprehemibe Income (tems 1,301,370
Retlassification of cumency translation reserves 9,341
Reclassification of hedging reserve (3\,452)
Gain on disposal 1,272,259
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17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
Group
2022 20zl
RMODO RMO0O
Uriquiated andinary shares, at cost 342,70 270,814
Share of past-aciuisiton reserves (G0.226) {104,480
Accumulated impainment losses {9,559) {4.288)
272936 162,026
Details ol the joint venures ame as folkows-
Effective Equity
Imterest
Place of 2022 2021
Mame of Company Incorperation  Principal Activities Lo T
Hald through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
Allare Concrete Singapece Pl Lbd Sitgapore Production and sale of ready-miccondrate 3062 4.1
Hald through YTL Hotals &
Properties 5dn, Bhd.:
Elite Dining Sair. Bht, Makinysia Operator of food & beverage outlet 0,00 50,00
Held through YTL Land &
Development Berhad:
Shomafront Develapment Sdn. Bhi Mataysia Property development 46.59 48.32
Hald through ¥TL Power
Intematienal Berhad:
AP1 Pie. Lid, Singapore Irvestment holding and opesations of data 27,79 -
CEMMETS
Atfarat Mining Company BV, athesancs Miming & supply of oil shala 25,01 2501
Artarat Operation and Malmenance Matherdands Operaticn & maintenance of Power Plant 25.01 2501
Company BY,
Attarat Power Holding Company B, Nethertands Irmeestment holding and financing acthities 25.01 2501
Brtal Whaissox Billing Secvicen Limited  England & Wales  Billing servicas 779 277
xehanging Malaysia Sdn, B Maaysia Mobile Intemet and doud-based technology  16.67 16.67

Sodthons
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17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Thie summarised finandial information of matesal joint ventures adjusted for any dfferences in accounting policies between the
Group and the int ventues and reconciliation to the camyng amount of th Croup's INGENest in e [oing veniures ang a5 foliows:-

{a) Summarised financial information:

Attarat Power Heldings Aftarat Mining
Company BV, Company BV, ARL Ple Ltd
FaiFrd 20l 2022 Fo kil 20Ee 2021
FH000 RM0O0 AH 000 RMO00 REMO00 RMD0D
Hean cLment assers 10,171,057 BTG BB 10,493 70153
Curvent asets 100,228 530 226,500 54,30 49.5M
hon-curent Kabiities 3447, 794 BEaunm n : (525,173
Currest Eabalities |555.952) FAL007) {201,620 (126247 [15,547)
hlet asisaty 26158 22,532 n47 138,518 250,004
Lo Prafit for the financial year (78, E0g) {37795 (108, 700) [ERERS) 150,745
[rher comgrehistse indnme A2, 604 137648 - - -
Totaf comprehansie incometflass) 23785 100,053 [108,.701) iz 150,745
Included in the total comprehemsive
Incame ls:
Reverue - A5 BEEM 70,764
Other information:
Lash and cash egursalents 4,145 1] 4531 E5236 29,227
Sharhaldars loan and reksted inteeess [4,Z36,826)  [283500) - [L16,664)
Brark bormowings [5.202.829)  (G0S5265) - - {416, 4i01)
Demvtive frarcial mssuments {28,710} (280124 . . -
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17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES ICONTINUED)

The summarksed financlal information of material joint ventures adjusted for any differences in accounting policles betwean the
Group and the joint ventures and reconcliation o the carrying amaunt of the Group's interest in the joint wontwes are a6 follows::
{eantinued)

[b) Reconclliation of net assels to carrying amounit:

Rttarat Pover Heldings Attarat Minirg
Compay BV, Company 8.V, APL Pe. Lid Total
2022 2021 me 2021 w2 it 2022 puitil
L] RMBO0 RMTA0 RMOO0 RAFBO0 RF000 R 000 EHO00
Dpering het Faetvikabiites, |y 22592 (45, 138616 L] - 161208 m
(L VPeodit for B Financial year (ra.62) (.76 (oB7ON)  (REEEE 150,745 [PEO45)  (L0GsI
Dthir tnmprefienmbe incoma 254 137843 - . . J12.684 e
Currency tramtlation & fferonces 11182 L 3832 i 4,759 10.743 A7
e red avets, 30 jure 26153 25 EERLY) 13HLEIR 265,004 570,230 {170
Irfizrent in jont venturss deect
Rold Oy setridary 45.0% A% A50% A5 50.0%

Gros monisd 120393 Lk 15186 BLan 134,502 270,081 Ti543
Elination of umieabied profis (120,353} {4 - . - - 120,393) 4y
Livecogrised share of net ionses - ¥ s ] - - - . - [1F=H
Camyin) amound - - 15186 BT 134,502 - 149,688 6237

The individualy immateriad jaint venlures’ carmying amount s BM125.2 millon (2021 RM9S.F milkon) Croup's share of pralits
K3 malion (201 KM milkon) and the Croup's share of total compnehensive ks i RM109 B million (2021 total comprehensive
incomie af RMELD million),
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18. INVESTMENTS

Graup Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Haota RMPODD RMODO RM OO0 RMODD
Non-current assets
Financial assots at Tair value theough
profit of joss 16a} 99,978 50,783 14,153 44,300
Financial assets at fair value thiough
other compreheniive noome 18(o) 241,550 254,915 8.598 9,559
341528 305,718 23,751 53559
Curfent assets
Fitwanclal assets a1 fair value thiough
prafit o loss 16{a) L1.500,569 AT A5 545,668 G54, 708
{a) Financial assats at fair value through profit or loss
The imestiments are in relation to the foliowing-
Graup Campany
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'O00 RMO00 RMO00 RM'O00
Ircome funds*
= Within Malaysia 3 349,572 - :
- Dutside Malaysls 740,820 1,402,883 - -
Equity funds
= Within Malaysla - .77 - 7,771
- Dutsioe Malaysia - Z£3.842 - 3842
Quated equity investments
- Within Malxysis 5708 4,853 5708 4,853
- Dutside Malaysiy B.445 034 B.445 ¥034
Unqusated eqisty invesiments
= Dugside Malaysia B5.B25 G483 - -
Linguaked unit trusts®
= Within Malaysia 758,746 F20.899 L45 GG E54 708
1.600,547 2524237 550,821 90,008
Mat fair value loss on investmants {105,517} (1401) (7. 405) [4.480)

Fnoncinl masts of for wrve deoagh amfit o doss oot of sesimind b income furts ond ot s ploved s eersed finoind inshitotions.
This inpom furoh amd i ruRts ane feghly g s iy convertible i coh
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18. INVESTMENTS [CONTINUED)
{b} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
The invesiments are in relation to the following:-
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMTODO RM'ODO RMO0O RMO00
Quated aquity nvestments
- Within Malaysia \.059 9.374 4 4
- Dutside Maaysia 7.3689 15214 - 1
Equity funds
- Ourtside Malaysla 185,034 200,887 - -
Unguoted egulty investments
= Within Malaysia 21215 20415 0.594 5594
Curtsiche Mialay'sia 19,873 a5 -
241,550 254,935 0,598 0,599
it fair vabue loss on invesTmEnts {G5.685) (3L 770) - -
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The detalts of intanglble assats ane a5 follows:

Contract  Goodwill on Software

rights consofidation assets Others Tatal

HNote RMrO00 RW000 RMFOOO RM'O00 RMTOIDO
Group - 2022
At cost
At beginning of the Tinancial year 161623  B6.138.,526 617.Z77 72,324  B.989,750
Adidetiains 62 - 60,738 - 68,200
Acquisition of subsidianes - &8,789 - - &8,789
Currency translation cifferences 4,142 195,316 {38,617) {a60) 159, 9a1
Rathassification from WCI - 119,338 - - 115,338
Transfer 1o proporty, plant and oguipmiem - . (9, 064) . {3.064)
At end af the finandial year 165,827 8,521.969 638,334 TL4G4 9397504
Accumulated amortisation and

Impairment

At bagirning of 1he finarcial yaar (43.671) (112.762) ([293.935) [39.307) [489.675)
Amortisation for the year L [2.384) - (61, 70%) {4,668 (BH.762)
Currency translation cillorences (3.634) 1.BED 17.359 119 15.724
Imparment loss T EES (51,159} [30.075) - (174, 000)
Transrer 1o Propemy. plant and equipment - = 5,064 - 9,064
A1 end af the financial year [142,455) (162.041) (359,296) (43,857) (T07.649)
Met camying amount
At 30 june 2022 23,372 8,359,928 £79.038 27,607 B,689.945
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS ICONTINUED}
The details of intancible assets are as follows: {continued)
Contract  Goodwill on Software
rights consolidation Fssens Others Total

Hate RM'O00 RMOO0 RM'000 RM0O0 RM'OO0
Group - 2021
At cost
At beginning of the financial year 161,090 B.239.623 S45.647 {9,996 9,036,356
Additions 682 0482 31,164
Disposals = (6228) - (19,233} {79,455
Cumency tramslaton differences (149] 56,238 41,148 1561 G 795
Reclasstication from MO . (97.109) B E ar1o9)
At and of the financal year 161,623 B.136,528 B1%.277 72324 8,969,750
Accumulated amortisation and

impalrment

A1 heginnitg of the finencial year (34,148] (122040}  [E17.544) [@L530)  (405.26d)
Amartisation for the year 7 {B505] . [B3,304) ({7.658) {F.506)
Dizporsal = 11,281 - - 11.261
Impairment lovs 7 - [L263) . - (L265)
Currency translation dfferences [.o1n {714} (13.067) () 4897
A end of 1he finanoal year [#3.601) (112 Mad) 1294.93%) [F9.307) [#H9.6.75)
Het carrylng amount
Ar 30 |une 2021 117552 8025764 323342 33,017 B.500,075%

Coodwl only arises In business combinations:. The amount of goodwil mitlally recognised |s dependent on the alocation of the
purchase price to the fair value of the identifiable ascots acoured and the Rablitses assumed. The dotermination of the fair value
of the assets and labilities is based, to a comadorable oxtent, on management judgement.
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the purposes. of Impatrment testing. goodwill i allocated (o the Groug's cash-generating units ["CGLST) identifed accomding to

i folkeeing DUSINESS SEQMEnts:-

Ml utilities busingess division (A7)
Water and sewerage division (87
Coment business daislon
= Prak, Malaysia [T
- Langkawi and Pasir Gudang, Malaysla {07y
= atram E7)
- Singapore (F7)
Management sarvices in Singapone (T}
Dthwers

Group
2022 2021
RMO0DD RMO0D
4,789,825 &G04 GFG
818,770 BIBTTO
988,945 GER.945
314,356 314,356
213,113 202710
204,107 199,151
308,734 301381
F22.078 595715
B.359.928 B025, 764

Canchaill it tested for impastmant on an annual basis by companng th Camyndg dmoun sith te edoverable amawnt of The CGLUS

Thie recoverable amounit of these COUs was delermined based cn vallie-we-use cabculations. Cash flow projectons used In these
calcutations weeni Bated on linancial budgets approved by managament cowering a five year period, Cash Mo beyond the Fee- year
period wore axtrapolated wsing the estimated growth rate. Tha growth rate did not @xceed the long term awerage growth rate Tor

thi seqment business nwivch the OGUs operates.

{a) Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations

The folfowing assumptions have been appiied in the value-in-ue calulation:

2022
A a = [+] E F G
o W LY B £ %% %
Pre-tax discounits 652 3oz 530 530 650 B.50 G40
Torminal growth rite 2.00 148 190 190 lo0 270 388
Resveruie growth rate 195 {(017) 2754 1954 4.00 B.18 2.52
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
[a) Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations {continued)
The following assmptions have bean applied in the walue-in-use caloulation (tontirsd)
2021
A B C o E F G
% % e Y L] a Y
Pre-tax discounts B30 in B0 aod 740 740 60
Terminal grawth rate 200 n 220 220 510 510 532
Hevenue growth rate 45h o4 19.00 1900 400 4,45 228

Thi dincount rates wso are po-tax and refloct spedific risks redating 1o tha COLL The distownt rates appdicd to the cash Tiow
progections are derrved from the cost of capital plus a reasanable risk premium at the date of the assessment of the respective
COLL

For LG ", cash flow projections used in the value-in-use caloulation were based on approved financial budgets and forecasts
covering a five-year penod, Cash flows beyand the Tve-year perod were extrapolated wang the estimated growth rates stated
abowe. The growsth rate did not exceed the long-term average growth rate in which the (0L operates.

The termina growlh rale indicates the expected growth of cash flows alter the forecast penod of Tve years

The revenue growth rate |s caloulated vsing the Compound Annual Crowth Rate method and applied on the cument year's
sales figuies oves 1he lorecast period,

For CGU B, cash flow progections used i the value-in-use caloulation were based on approved financiad budgets and fotecasts
cevering a three-year (2021 four-year) peried, to comlarm the final determanations appaaved by OFWAT, the econamic regulatar
af the water sector in England and Wales,

Foi TEU C7 ani? 00, oo T s o wiasd i Ehie valui-in-use caloulation e babied oin apdioded Bnanial budgets aind
Torecasts coverng a Tve-yeor perod.

The discown rales used are pre-1as and eflecn speclic isks welating 1o the COLL The cement seing price and sebes volume
iy prupiarivg U Consdy Dowe proged Uorr were detvermitisd based on et busneess pedformance aml management's expectations
an the cument market condition

The termind growth rale used s consistent with the average long-term annual growih rate fof the relavant industries,

Fof CGU E, cash Naw' profections wsnd (n thie valug-in-use calouldmon wien Dased on appowved linancisl budges and loecases
coveding & Frye-year period.

Fof COU F, cash Thaw profectians wied inine value-in-use caloulamon wen based on approved linandial bucgets and lorecasts
covering a fiflean-year period.

Fof CLU T, cash Tlow progecticns wused o the value-in-wse caloulation were hased on approved linancial Budgets and forecasts
covering a fifteen-year perod,
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
{b) Sensitivity to change in key assumptions

The circumstances whare a change in key assumptions will result in the recoverable amounts of goodwill on the COUS to equal
the cormesponding CHTYiNg amounts assuming no change ki the other vanales are a5 follows:-

2022
A B C o E F 1]
L T Ya ] o L] W
Pre-1a discouits 1051 24,00 1463 37.70 1670 7.38 650
Tenmiig growth rate {2.61) 11z {15.05) »{10D.00) {21.60) 139 414
Reverue growth rate (2.49) {12.31) 21.14 13.46 o.eo0 (26.57) 2.26
2021
] 1] C o E F G
L] W L) k] L] % b
Pre-fan dsoounts 784 £4.10 £31.13 2112 1950 b ] B0
Termina! grewth rate no7F 009 i) {41.30) [2070) 4EG 7.06
Revenue growth rate 132 [2.400) (2840 (26.440) [L.20) (12.0%9) 1.53

Duiring tha finantial year, a0 impaitment loss on goodwsl amounting 1o RMS1.159 milion (2021 RML265 million) was recagnised
In the Income Statemants a5 the carmying amount of the COUS was in excass of (ks recoverable amownt,
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£20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group
2022 2021
Mate RMO0O RMOOO
HNon-current
Trade recelvables 395 404
Cthes recenabies®* 524,744 13.344
Unibilied bease income® 10412 5662
535,156 13,006
Lisis: Allawance far impairment {332) {338
Other recohabiod (rot) 534,824 l&674
Deposits 8,075 0,049
Propay ments 9,128 B8.257
Mat nvestmant in bases A a) 4,306 1586
Recervables from assotlate company™ - 230,533
Recetvables from a joint venture” 1,960,963 L&r.533
Lisss: Alirwianc far smpalrmsnt (27.208) [2.600)
Recelvables from a joint verture {net) 1,833,758 127333
Other recervables. FYTPL 275,745 FariA |
2,766,228 LBELZ 014
** Jeher meivabes ncooe o mopsatie of RMS07.T mikon from o finorcial Imhitusion wth on offectie meest il of S08% per onjom. o mecavoie i
iopsyolie i full o [ e 2007,
= The inhiled jomse come of the Croup ave affer offsetting B chonges in foir volee of ¥ properties o to RMEELEDY milbon (2021

BRI 04 mdionl The rdied feote noome ane axpecled Ko Be blied from financial year JO07 ro ML
*  APcriaees [im TR COTRMSE Fee IR0 0018 B0 on O50Caie il on aavnge nires mne off 2175% per aonum wfiach wos sppcssd monee o
Octoder 2030, Thee arowunt wis repever during ths finoncio! pear a8 port af cmh conaide Foiiaany) he cisacsal of the Groug™ meestme i Bed oféer
Pry Lit
F Revenvubies M funt veviutes iy (omprie o Shorshoioer oon with gn inmeress it o1 15 O0% per anium. The shorefoionr bon ond tiened intenes)
e epoyobie on deTynd
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Z0. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Graup Campany
2022 2021 2022 2021
Hate RM'O00 RM'O00 AM'O00 RM'G00
Current

Trade recenvabies 2,796,453 2.247.558 - -
Sharehiolder amounts hisdd by solicioors 6.261 17,240 - -
2,802,714 225230 - -
Lews: Allowance For imparment (538.098) 1537.206) - -

Total trads necelvabies (nel) 2,264,616 L8032 -
Other recelvables 458,345 411.203 8,307 a.07?
Liss Allowiance for impairment [90.127) (B7.524) {1.765) (1.755)
Tatal olfher recahvabies (nat) 368,218 23579 6,542 532
Uniilied recelvabias 1.291,969 46,467 - -
Liss: Allwance for imparment [7.997) (8,191 = -
Total undilled recmvablis ner) 1,283,972 036,276 - -
Prepayments 609,980 476,686 im Add
Nt invesiment in leases = ] 3,326 4107 - -
Deposits 197,802 235,992 1,575 Lofn
4,727,914 3,706,772 8,268 Bz

Thie fair valui of recoivabios aparaimate Their cHrying ameonts,

Expected Credit Loss [ECLT) movement analysis is disclosed under Note 38{d) to the financial statements.
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's derivative financial instruments are analysed as follows:
Contractual Falr value
natienal
amount Assats Liabilities
RMO00 RM000 RMOO0
Group - 2022
Cash flow hedges
= fusal ol swiaps 1.616,795 390.643 H.606
= qurrency fonwards L.914.237 39,619 EiLT
= MRCTCiRy Tutunes 14,404 5.352 13,425
Fair value through profit or loss
= tuel oil swmps B.543 oH4 745
- turrency Fonwards 1.612 - 16
436,498 23,107
Cuftent porticn 415,091 21.740
Hon-oument portion 20,607 1,367
436,498 23,107
Growp - 2021
Cash flow hedges
= Tl il g 1327465 2A2.953 713
- turrency fonwiards 1AS6 748 63 12220
= ghectricity futures lanoal I60 15215
Fair value through profit or loss
= ity Tofwads =9 - 1
- eleLriiny futuras 22F3 A2 g
290,160 3, 7ET
Current partion FoER L 34,074
Nan-[urent portion L] 3
290,180 34,787
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Z1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED!
Hedging instruments wsed in the Group's hedging strategy.

Changes in Fak valae wsed
for calculating bedge
Carrying amaund Ingffectivensss
Weighted
Contractual Finassial avedage
netianal Assats/  wlatament Hadging Hedged  hadged Haturity
amount  (Lisbilities) line ftem Instrumsnt iem  rate date
RMOED RMB00 BH008
Geoup - 2022
Cash Pl hedges
Fusd e price ntk
- Fuk ol swap i hedge hghty pobabls. BOB.256 351157 Derivative TI0406  (FIO406) RMLTG4.4 per |uly 2022 -
maEactions (HSFO) Tinancial metric 1on Apil 2024
Instruments
= Pl ot i) 00 e ghily prebiatis 33,656 21309  Derivative 1% 27,195 RM4453per  |uly 2022 -
trapactions L4 financial bbb November 2022
Instruments
~ Fused odl swiap o hedge tghly probable 416833 BAT1  Derivative 10.566 (10565 RM409Gper  |uly 2022 -
trarractions {8 BRENT] Tinaszisd barrel Jumee 2024
instruments
Forign exchange risk
- Forwan (ontrars b hedoe highly 1.914.237 33,304  Derivative 52,602 [SZE0Z) RM4.Z: July 2022 -
probulbie tranartien finamcial Us01.00 |anusry 2025
Insiruments
Electricity hutures price risk
- Elecmicity futures to fesage highiy 14,404 {H6.073) Derivative (313,139 LTI RHAZEDpar  July 2022 -
prootuabie tansation finsseial MiH Decembar 2022
instruments
Group - 2021
Cash flow hadges
Fra ol price 1k
~Fuel o swap b hedge highty prohable. 1092003 FEODS  Dehvitve 2452 [B24320) RMLIGOGper by 2001 -
transations {+EF() financel matric ion e 2023
sty
- Fuel ol swizp te hedge hghly peobable e 19641  Dernatwve 18545 fIB58H) RMZSperoll by 2081
IrarEations (L) firancd Lne 2022
tnuments
Falsn pehame ik
- Forwan Gt b hedge highly Lask /ah (247 Oemvatve |42y 430h]  BMALLROLOO oty 0 -
prituitis Transacion financld Cetober @023
sty
Bl ity Mtuiis, e ik
- Beciricity futures to hadge highly 180,081 [L4BTY  Dedvatve (5063 2506 RMAZBper fuly 2091 -
prabudin Transaction Firancial M Hancn 022
hstuments.
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENMTS (CONTINUED)
{a) Fuel ol swaps

Fusd il wweaprs ae entered int o hedge highly probable Forecast fisl purhases that are expected 10 ocour 31 warious dates
within 1 to 24 months (2021 1 to 24 months) from financlal year and. The fuel ol swaps have maturity dates that match the
expactod peturrenoe of thew transactiarm., Cains and losses recognined in the hedging revan priar 1o the ccourtence af thewe
transactions are tramdemad 1o the inverory of fuels upon acquistion or cost of sales upon consumption of natural gas. The
galrs and losses relating to fuel ofl inventory are subsequently recognised In the Incoms Statements upon consumption of the
urdailying Mot

The fair walue of fuel oll swaps Is determined wsing a benchmark fual price index at the reporting date.

{b) Curmancy forwards

Cumanty lohwards are entered into to hedge highly prebiable torecast transactions denominated in foreign curmency expected
o pecur at vanious dates within 1 to 31 months (2021 1 to 28 months) from financial vear end. The currency forwards hawe
maturity dates that match the expected occurrence of these tramsactions.

Gains ard losses relating to highly probable Forecast fusl payments are recagnised in the hedging reserne prioe Bo the oumence
of these ransacthors and ane transferred to the imventory of fuels upon acquisition or cost of sales upon consumption of
natural gas, The gains and lasses relating vo fual il imeniony ane subdegquantly tramforned to InCame STateM@nTs upan
comsumption of the underying fisls

For thase currency forwants used to hodge highly probabile forecast foreign currency paymens of purchane of property, plant
and equipment, the gains and bosses are ncluded in the cost of the assets and recognised in the income Statements over
their estmated wseful lives as part of depreciation expense.

For those ourmency fonsards wiod to hedge highty probablo forocast foroign cumenty transactions for malntenance cantracts,
the gains and lesses are incleded In payments and recognised In Incomes Statements over the period af the contracs.

The fair values of forwand forelgn exchange contracts s determined wsing quoted forwand exthange rates at the reporting
date,
[c) Eleciricity futures

Electricity futwes sr entenod into to hedge highly probable farecast sale of electricity that are expectod to actur AR various
dites within 6 manths (2021 9 months) from financial year end, The electricity futures have maturity dates that match the
expacted eccurmende of these ansactions. Cans and lesses recognised in the hedging reserve prise 1o this coourrence af these
transactions are transdermed 1o the ncome Statements upon sale of the cectrcily.

Thee fair vabue of slecicity futures B determined with reference to the Uniform Sngapare Energy Price monthly and quanerdy
base Ipad slectricity futures prices quoted on Singapere Exchange.
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22. INVENTORIES

Graup
Z022 2021
RM'O00 RM'O00
Consumabile storos 60,210 L3722
Finishid goads 241,060 146,659
Fusel 72127 47,380
Land held for sales - 593,064
Progirty hild Tae wakes 87,348 107623
Raw materials 235,352 212450
Spare pars 370,263 09,145
Work-in progress 183,049 66884
1.249.409 1136927

£3. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Frachold Leasehold Development

land land COSLE Toral
Mate RM'DO0 RM'DOO RM'OO0 RM'OD0
Group - 2022
Cumuilative propery eaapment fosis-
At beginning of the financial year 141,460 BD,B56 11,401 233,717
Cost incunud duing thie Mnandisl yedr 55,417 - B.157 63,574
Transfer to inventorkes - (1.468) - [1.468)
Transfer from land held for propeny
deveopment 14a) . 8,717 19,930 28,647
Currency tramslation ciffersnces (12.904) B - (12.904)
At end of the fimandial year 183,973 88,105 30,488 311,566
Cumiilativie ¢t recagnised in Ineoma
Statemenis:
Al beginning of the financial year [1.468)
Reognised during the Tnancial yeae 5 (6.272)
AT endl al thi Firandial yoar {7.740)
Property developmen: costs at end of the
limancial year 303,826
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23. PROPERTY DEVELDPMENT COSTS (CONTINUED)
Freehold Leasehold  Development
land land costs Total
Note RMOO0D RMDOQ RMOO0 RMOO0
Group - 2021
Cumulatiee propesty develooment cosis:
At beginning of the financial year Fa.3a97 BOHSG 11,401 166,654
Cost inourred duning the financial year SHORS - - 56_DEBS
Cumency tramlation dilfeenies B.am . - Bam
At end of the financal year 141,460 Bla5s 11,401 FEE b
Cumulatiee cost recognised In income
Statamenti
At beginning of the financial yoar [LABS)
Recogrised during the finandial year 3 -
Al enad of The Tinancal year [LABE)
Propsrty davelopment oosts ot ond of the
financial waar 232249
24. COMNTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Group
2022 2021
RHODOD RM'OOO
Non-currant
Contract msots 2,084 106
Coniract cosl asols 13 &2
Contract fiabilities (28.638) [3L.956)
Current
Contract assets 205682 182567
Coniract cost assels 24.663 25,003
Conviract labilities {914, 715) [L182.002]
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24. CONTRALT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Graup

Z022 2021
RM'O00 RM'O00

Representing:-
Contrach asse1s 207,776 192,653
Contract Uabilities {943,353) [L214,060)
{735,577) {1.021.357)
Contract cost assets 24,676 25,085

Group

2022 2021
RMOOO RM'000

Representing:-
Utilities (277.524) [£13.506)
Property development [85,766) [2e4.212)
Construction [327.394) (555,843)
Hatad (38,856) (24.284)
Cement [6.255) {3127
Dithers 218 [395)
({735,577} (1.021,357)

{a) Urtilities

Sgnificamt changes in comract assets and lianiies:-

Group

2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'O00

Contract assots
Al beginning of the lnancid year 154,544 154,866
Transler to trade recelvables {1.718) (L463)
Aduitiore. arising From fevende recognibed dusiog the finarcial yoear 3,916 1070
[Alkraiarce Torlhwrite batk of (mparment of (ohltract asets (270) g1
Al end of the nancial year 156,472 154,544
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES [CONTINUED)
fa) Utilities [continued)
Group
2022 2021
RMO0O RMO0O
Contract liabllities
At beginning of the financial year 368,050 ELERE!]
Bevenue recognised that was inclisded in the comtract sbility balance at the
begnning af the financal year {330,183} [356,986]
wcreass dus to cash recelved, axcheding amounts recognised as revame during the
fimamcial yaar 425 412 353,008
Curreney translation dfferences (29.283) &9, RS0
AL end of Thie finandal year 433.996 ol 050

(I} Mszets recognized fram costs to obtain or fulfil 2 contract

Thee Group capitakises costs o abtaln of fufill a contract which nclude sales. comméssions when they are incremental and
axpacted 1o be recovered gver more than 3 year, The Group alse capitalises sxpendiire on assets such as witer mainss
SEWETS 7 new connectins relating fo contracts as they ane Inowred to fulfil the contracts, This is presented within
comract Cost assets within “contract assats” i the statements af finandal position.

Group
2022 2021
RMO00 RMO00
At begiming of the financial year 24,738 27316
Aty recoglsed Trom costs 1o oblalin of fulfil & contract during the
finantial year 29,378 G415
Amartisation recognsed during the financ.sl year {1.537) (3047
Charged to cost of sales during the financial year (36.088) (38,148)
Curency translation differences [1.815) PN P
At end of the financal year 24.676 24,738
Thi closing balahce ol ¢contract cost masts comsists af:-
Graup
2022 2021
RMO00 RMO00
Contragl poquisition cost n F
Cantract fulliiment oest 24 665 24,705
At end af the finandal year 24,676 24,748
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
{a) Utilities (continued)
(i)} Unsatisfied performance obligations

AS Al 30 Juna 2022, the dggiegate amount of he ransaction price allecated 1o undatistiod perdormance abigotions
resulting from contracts with customers is B4 138 million (2021 RM3550 millon) This wil be recognisad as revenue
i the senvices ane provided to customer, which is expected To ofowr over the next 1 to 9 years (2021 1 to 10 years)

T Groop applies the practical experdent in MPRS 15 and did not discase nformation aboot ursatisfied perfformance
oalgation for certain contracts, whene the transaction price cosrespands dinectly with the Groug'’s level of perfomance
in thi futum

{b) Property development
Moyement of contract assets and contract liabilities in ralation 10 property development is analysed as follows -

Group

2022 2021

RM'00 RM'000

At beginnng of the financial year (224,212) [#3.418)

Rewerise recogrised during the financlal year 488 @46 235,488

Progress billings diring the financia year {336.553) [253.529)

Lost ncuimed for project yet to be recognsed as ravenue (14.433) {164, 496)

Comsideqation payable To customer 586 1637

A end of the Tnancial year [B5,76E) (2ed.21e)
Representing:-

Cantract assets 17,088 18,751

Contract kabilities (102,854) [242967)

[B5,766) {224.212)

Rewriug From [Wopery cevesopment atiithes |s recogrised over timd wsng the input mathad, whech & based on The artual
o5t incurred to date on the property development progect 5 companed 1o the tota Budgetad cost for 1he respat bve developmen®
ProjEcts.

Unsotisfied parformonce ebligotions

Thi sggregate amaunt of the fransaction price allocated 1o the performance abligatians that ane ursatified of partially satisfiad
s at the reporting date was approximately AMIF00022 million (2021 RM579619 million). of which the Croup expects to
recogrise as revenue n the next one 1o thres years (20210 ene 1o twa yeas) fram the financial year end.
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES ICONTINUED)
e} Construction
Hovement of contract assets and contract labsities in relation ta constnecton is anatysad as folows:
Group
2022 2021
RMOOO RMODD
At beginming of the financial yeu {555,843) (158.784)
Revenus recognised dudng the finandal year 1,136,228 1,514,505
Cost incurred for project yet 0 moognied ovenue 21,017 (21430
Progress billings during the financlal yoar [928,796) [LES0.A34)
At aned of the financial yaar {327.394) {555,843

Construction contracts represent the timing differences in fevenue necognimion and the milestone bifings. The milestons blings
are strtured and/or neqotiated with customers ta reflect physical comaletian of the contracts

Conract assets ang transbemed to recaivablis whin the rghts to economic benefits become uncorditiondl This wiually ooours
when the Groun issues bling to the customer, Contract lakslities are recognised a3 revenue when perlosmance obligations
are satisfled

There were no signdlicant changes i the tontract axsats amd labilities during the financlal year,

michaled i ogipegate costs Boued 10 date of thee Group B O depeecation capilalsed daring te Ninandia year amounting
1o RMEBAES milicn (2021 RMEZTL million )

Incladed im thie conract Rabilities IS amount dui T customes an contract with amount RMET.E96 million (2021 RMGT.EEG
million) repratents the bakance of the total purchase consideration of not ks than RMLOS616 milian Tor the soguisition of
the Sentul Raya Development Progect Site from Keretapl Tanah Melayu Berhad [KTHBT), which is 10 be settied by way of
phased disveloment, ConSTRaOEan and completion of he Raibway Vilage by a subsidiany, Sentud Raya Sdn, Bh, ("SASE) far
ETMB at its sole cost and expense in accordance with the prowisions of the Development Agreement dated 8 December 1993
betwiesn SHSE and KTME, a5 amended pursuant ta 1he Supplemantary Development Agreemeant with KTMB dated 21 December
2L

Unsatisfied performance obligations

The agaregate amount of the transaction prie allocated 1o the perfermance cbligations that are unsativfiad or partialy satisfied
a5 51 the reporting date was approximately BML7E billion [2021: FHZAS bilien). of which the Group expects to be recognised
5 FOVERUE I Tho TIRancs SEMOIENTS [0 1750 faT 001 T0 TWD years (2021 one 1 thise yoars),

The ursatisied perfonrance obligation i yet 1o recognesed as revenue for amount due o CUsTOMer on Conract a5 i cannot
B measured reliably due T undeTain crcumstanoes,
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
{d) Hotel operations

The Groug recognises contract Babillties when a customer pays comideration. of b contractusly required to pay consideration,
batore the Group eoognsss the related revenue. The contract kabilities are expecied to be recognised as revenue within a

year.
Group
2022 2021
RM'OO0 RM'000
Contract kabllities 28,856 24,084
Graup
2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'O0O
Significant changes 1o éantract labilities halances during the yoa are as follows-
Contract kabliities as at the beginning of the year recogrised as revenie
duning the yaar 24,284 29,934
Addvances recoived during ths yies 48,569 74,424

Advances represent advance payment by customers for future bookings of hotel rooms, food and beverages and fransport.

{e) Cemant
Group
2022 2021
RMOO0 RM'O0O0
AMOUnt received in advanoe of delivery of goods B.255 4127

Revenue |5 recogresed when the control of the goods & transf ened to the cestomer, being at the pont the goods are deliverd
o the customer. When the ostomer inftially purchases the goods, the tramsaction price received at that point by the Goup
Is recognised as contract liability until the goods have been delivered to the oustomern
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED PRRTIES
Group Company
2022 20zl 2022 20zl
RMODO RMODO RMODO RMO0O
fa Ao due Biom related paries
Ameunits due frome-
- Holding comgany B 24 - -
= Sulrskliares - - 946,573 1338465
- Related companies 31,185 22080 4,535 4,082
- Ananlated crempankes, 36,509 9,A14 46 A5
+ jon venures 33.755 JLige - .
101.465 b= ] 551,154 1,342,555
by Amounts due 1o related parties
Amaunts due 10:-
- Holding comparny 3zg 344 - -
« Subrshfiaties - - 6467 4,404
- Aedated companies 2.615 8,267 5 51
- Agsotiatod companios 610 479 - .
- |mnt ventures 3977 2931
35.531 36,411 B.5492 4,460

] The armeurits dus framte melated paries portain maindy to rade recobvablos payaties, advancos and payments on bohall, T
autstandirdg smownts are unsecurad, inorest free and payaldo on comand except for advances given to subrtidiaries ameunsing
BMES5 million (20211 AM26.5 million) which bear intorest rate of 3804 per annum {2021 A79%, per annum).

[di  The significant mited parties' trarsactions of the Group and of the Compary are disclosed m Note 40 1o the financial staternents

26, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

Nate RMOO0 RMOD0 RMOOD RMODO

Deporsits with licensad banks 8,230,733 11522776 160,328 247147

Cash and bank balances 3,167 824 2155871 36,371 307

Cash and tash equivalants in the

stitamonts af finaneial potition 11,390,557 13678647 196,699 250218

Bark averdrafts 3 (101.892) [26051) - *
Cash and cash equivalents as per

statements of cash flows 11.296.665 13,652,556 196,699 et 5
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash and bank balances af the Group induded amounts totalling RM7125 milkon (2021 AM3938 millon) held pursuant to Section
7 of the Housng Davielopars. (Control and Licensing) ACT 1966, Those amaunts wene restrcied from wse in other opeations.

The range of mterest rates of deposts that were effective at the reporting date wera as follows-

Group Campany
2022 2021 2022 2021
W e B W
Daposits with licensed banks 0.01-2.20 0.01-4.90 L02-2.10 0.01-3.35

Depesits of the Groug and af 1he Company have maturites ranging from 1 day 1o 365 days (2021: 1 day to 3E5 days), Bank balances
are deposits held at call with banks.

Irchided in the deposits with licensed baniss amounting o RM100.566 milkan (2021 AMBZ Ol milion] is pledged as a security for
a Dol as. distioued in Nole 31

Thie Group and of the Company seek to imvest cash and cash equivalents salely and profitably with creditwortity local and offshare

licensed banks. The credit quality of the kocal and affshare licensed banks ame Pl as rated by RAM Ratng Senvices Bhd. and Moody's
Irrvistirs Semdce, inc. fos e tnky,

27, SHARE CAPITAL

Group/Company
Number of shares Amount
Z0z2 2021 Zoz2 2021
‘o0o ‘000 RM'GO0 RM‘DO0
Issued and fully paid:-
A1 beginning/ensd of the Finantis year 11,022,762 11022762 3,467,555 3467555

Ourt of a tofal of 11022762, 340 (20217 11.022.762,.340) ordinany shages lssued and fuly pad-up ordinary shares, the Company
holds 580675950 (2021; 586731950} ondinary shares a5 ressury shares. As at 30 june 2022, the number of ordinary shaees in
tssie and fully paid net of treasury shares are 10,964,066.390 (2021: 10.964,088,390)

The helders of ordinary shares (cxcopt troasury shanes) s ontitied 1o eoeive dividonds as and whan dedaed by the Company,
NI gedinany shares cary ane vote per share and rank egoally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

234 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

510/624



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooood

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD | ANWUAL RLPORT 2022

MNotes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2022

27. SHARE CAPITAL I(CONTINUED)
{a) Troatury shafes

Ihe sharehalders af the Lompany gramtad a mandate 1o the Company to repurchase its own shares at the Annual Genaral
Mmating hell on 7 December 2021, The Dectoss of the Comparty ane committed 1o enhance the vilue of the Company 1o its
sharehalders and bolliewe that the repurchase plan can be applied in tha best interest of the Company and its sharehoiders.

Dutnig thie liewant sl year, Uhe Compairy repuichasisd 2,000 (2021 40,750,100} orlndry shases of 15 isswed shate capital Tiom
the open marel, The average price paid for the shares repurchased was RMOGA [2021: RMO.74) per shave. The repurchase
transactions were financed by Intemally genarated funds. The shares repurchased are being held as treasury shares in
accordance with Section 1£26) of the Companies Act 2016,

s ot 30 |une 2022, the Company beld as treasury shores a total of 58,675,950 (2021; SA673,950) of ns 11,022.762.340
(20212 11,022.762.340) isswnd ordinary shares. Such treasiry sharet are hold 31 a carying smoant of RMSA,451L806 [2021:
AME4AS0EOLL

[b} Employees’ Share Option Scheme
(i} Employeses' Share Option Scheme 2021 ("ESO0S 20217)

On & faruary 2021, the Company implamoented o shore iStusnce schams knoan s the Empioyees’ Shara Oplion Schome
witiich was appeoved by the shareholters of this Compary 81 an Extracidinary General Meeting beld on 1 Decembn 2020,
Thee BSOS 2021 fs vishel for @ peviod of ten (10 ywears and is lor employess am) Diectons of tee Company andfon its
sutsidianies who meet the criteda of eligibilty for panicipation as set aut in the by-aws of the ES05 2021 [By-LawsT).
The sallent teems af the ES05 are as fobows:-

i The maximum number of shares 1o be allotted and isswed mesuant to the exercise of the options which may be
granted under the ESOS 2021 shall nat exceed filteen per cent (15%) o the total number of sued shares of the
Company (exgluding teasury thares, if any] ar such other porcentage of the total number of issued shares of the
Comgarry (excuding treasary thades, if any) that may be permitted by Bursa Securities or any others reevant authorities
from time to time throughaut the dusation of the ESOS 2021

(W) Any person whao s 8 Deector andior an emplayes of a corporation i the Grogm, who meets the follawing critena
a5 at tha date of offer af an opticn ["0ffer Date™) shall be aligihle for conddesation and selacton by the Ogtinns
Committes (s datined in the By-Livas) 10 participatse w the E505 2021

[a)  tho porton hes attaned o sgo of eightean (18] yaar, it nat an undischargod Banknpt and Is not subject to
anry bankruptey procoetings:

(b the person, save ol @ non-executhe Dirsoon, must be on the payrall of a compary within the Group and
I s employed on a full-teme basks, has not served & notice o resgn of recelved a notice of termington; of

+ I s sErving inoa specilc designation under an employment conteact For & fimed duration, e fuling hose
who are smployed on a shari-term contract or any other amployess under contract as may be determined
by the Dptions Committes;

g} the person's errproymedt, save fod a non-executive Duector, b for a period of at least one [1) year ol conbinuous
service priod to and up to the Offer Date, including service during the probation period. and |5 confirmed in
sericE; and

[ the persan fulfils eny other critera andfor Talls within such categoey a5 may be s21 by the Options Committee
From time to time.
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Z7. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED}
{b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)
(I} Employees Share Option Scheme 2021 ("ESOS 20217} (continuad)

i} Subject 1o the Bursh Secunties LisTing Requiements and any adustments in accordande with By -Law 13, the
subscription price for shares under the E505 2021 shall be detarmined by the Boand of Directors of the Company
upon recommendation of the Optons Committee and shall be fixed basad on the 5-day volume welghteo average
imathoet peice of shaes, as cuated on Bures Seouritie immesfiately rececing the Difer Date (a3 dedingd in ths By
Livars) of tha opticns with o discount of not more than 1en per cent (1094 iF deamed appropriata, or sch iewer o0
higher limét In accordance with any prevaling guidelines issued by Bursa Secunithes or any othier islevant authoritles
a5 amorsdisd from time 1o time during (e schoms pariod.

{iv) Subgect 1o By-Law 13 the Options Commitioe may, at any time and fram timo 1o time, befoe ar after an option s
granted Bmit the exercisn of the option to 4 maximum number of new ordinary shares of the Company andtor such
pemcentage of the tatal ordinary shares of the Company comprised in the options during such periods) within the
option perfod. Notwithstanding the abave, and subject to By-Laws 10 and 11, the options can only be exarcised by
thet g antes nd earfier than thiee [3) yoars Mter the Offer Date.

f¥]  Subgect to By-Law 122, a grantee shall be prohibited from dspoesing of the shares allotted and ssued to him teough
I exarcise of thit ogrions) Tor & period of o [L) year from the gare on which The option is exencised o such
other period as may be determined by the Optons Committee at its sole and abschite discretion.

{if) Employeas’ Share Option Scheme 2011 ("ES05 20117)

On 1 Apeil 2010, the Company implemsnted i new Shive sance scheme known as the Employies Shace Dgtion Schome
whirh was appriwed By the sharehelders af the Company af an Fsiraarfitary Genacal Masting hald on 30 Nowembies
2010, the ESOS is for elipale employees and directors of the Company andfor iis subsidiaries wha meet the critema of
wligibiity for particisation as set out in the by-laws of the ESOS ["By-Laws"). The ES0S 2011 has expired dunng the
firarial year on 31 March 2021

Thee alinmt-terms of e ES0E 2011 ane a5 follows:-
iy The ESOS shall be in force Tor o penod af ten (109 years, effective fiom 1 Apdl 2011
) The maximuen noember of shanes 1o D afiotlsd and BsuUed pursuant 13 the execise of he opbans which may be

granted under tha ES05 2011 shall nof axceed fifteen per cent (15%) af the tolal issued and paid-up shame capital
of the Company at the point of time throwghout the duration of the ESO5.

{il} Amy emplayes (indluling The divectacs) of the Group shall b eigible t participate in the ESO5 2001 i, a= af the
date of offer of an eption (Offer Date”), the person:-

{8} has attained the age of sighteen (10) years:
by s a director or an employee employed by and on payrall of a company within the Groue and

{£] 0 the caze of emaloyees, has been in the employment of the Group far 3 pericd of a1 least ene (1] year of
cantireous sonice prior to and up to the Offer Date, including senvice during the probation period, and is
confimed in service. The options committee may, at its discration, nominate any employes (Incuding diectors)
of the Croup 1o be an ebgibie employes despite the eigibiity critéra under Clawse 3140 af the By-Laws mat
by ek, il dny time and from time to time.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL [CONTINUED)
[b} Employees' Share Option Scheme (continued)
{il} Employees’ Share Option Scheme 2011 ("ES05 20117) [continued)

fivp The subscnpion price tor shares under tha ESQ5 2011 shall Be determined by the Boarm upon recommeandon of
thie options commuttes and shall be fiwed based on the weighlad average markat price of shares, as quated on Bursa
Securities, far the tive (5) market days immediately preceding the Ofer Date of the aptions with a discount of not
e thiih ten per cont [10746), @ desmed appeopdiate, or axh lewer or highes Bmit in aceardanca with any prowvailing
auidelines issued hy Burss Securities or any ather relevant mithornities as amended fmm fima 1o fime

) Suljoct To Clawse 13 of thi By-Laws, 1ho options committon miny, at any time and from Gime 1o time, boloos or aftar
an optian s granted. limit the exercise of the option 1o a mavimum mimber of new ordinary shares of the Compamy
andfor such parcentage of the tolal ondinary shares of the Comgany comprised in the options during such period(s)
wathin the opticn pariod ard imgioss amy other termn andfor conditions daemed appropriate by the oplions committes
In its sola discretion incliekng amendingvanying any terms and conditions imposed earter. Notwithstandng the abova,
and subject to Oavses 10 and 11 of the By-Laws. the options can onfy be exendsed by the grantes no earler than
thioe () years Mof the Offor Dat of such othor pedod as may bo doteimined by the options committea i1 it abkahne
discration, by natice in wiiling to the opticns commitiee, povided however that the options committee may at its
discretion of upon the request in writing by the grantes allow the options 1o be exanciced at ary earier or ather perod.

il A grantee shall be prohibited from disposing of the new odinary shares of the Company allotted and ssued 10 Him
for a penod of ane (1) year from the date on which the option is exercived o such other pegiod as may be determened
bry the options committee at its absolute discration,

The mowements during the inancial yoae in the number of share options of the Compay are 35 Todows:-

Number of share options over ordinary shares

Exercise AUl july At 30 June
Expiry price 2021 Granted Lapsad 2022

Grant date date  RM/share ‘000 ‘000 ‘oo 0o

LCheme

21012022 o5.01.203 0.50 . 324,249 (9.452) 35757

23052022 os0L2e3 053 - 8,790 = 8,790

- 333,039 (8,402) 324,547
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Z7. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED}
{b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)
The mavement during the previows financial year in the number of share options of the Company s as follows-

Humber of share options over ordinary shares

Exurcisa Al july At 30 June
Explry price 2020 Lapsed Expired 2021
Grant date date RMIshare ‘00d 000 ‘o0o ‘000
Scherme
16072012 31032021 LES 119,495 {2.000) 11 7.425) -
14032018 032021 1.2 247973 Erii] {244,752) -
367,468 {5291) [ELTA R

The fair value of options granted for which MFRS 2 “Share-based paymant” applies. were determined wsing the Trinomial
Wakiation medel

ES05 2021 ESD05 2011

Valualion assumHion-

Expet bered walatlity SRSdW  221% - 236
Expected dividend yeeld 4.959% 1.6% - 4.5%
Expected option e 1 years 3 years
Risk-Free mlorest rate por annum (based on Malaysia socutilios bonds) 1% 11% - 4%

Thie expeted volatility rellects 1he ssumption 1hat the historical volatility & ncicative of Tuture trends, which may ol
necessadly be the actual outcoms.

Walue of employee senices recelved for issue of share optons:-

Graup Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'OO0 RM'OO0

Shang opition axpenses
By the Company 4.370 11,558 4,370 11558
By the subsidary 2,618 517 - >
Aocation to subesidisies - - [2.253) {6,859)
Adocation to related companies - (%) - {4
Total share option Expeimses &.9688 1507 2117 4695

Thisfe were no grants vested dusing thie financal year under the Employess’ Share Option Scheme 2021,
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28. OTHER RESERVES
Farelgn
Equity oumency Share Total
Capital component wansiation  optiens  Statutory Hedging other

reserve  af ICULS reserve  reserve resanve’ Fvod reseive  resenves
RMDO0 AMOD0 RMOOD  RMOO00 RMOD0D  AMODD  RAMOOD  RMTO0DOD

Growp - 2022

A begiening of the francalyelr 7,305 27,023 B03,030 - 19,095 (124,255) 70,191 B92.399
Changes in Fak wakie - - - - - (62,868) 1GLBS0 08,082
Exchange diierences - - 1719 - - - - Lme
Realisation of cash fiow hedges

upon dispess] of an asseclato - - - - - - 21367 21367
Total comgrahermiig Fcome)

[ioss) for the year - - Lna - - (62A6H) 163217 122068
Convarsaon of ICULS = [Z70E3) . . . - = (27023
Reclisifcation upon dispotal of

investments desigrated at

Fwodl - - - - - 166 - 166
Share apkion expenses - - - 5625 - . - 5,825
Cureney tramlation diferances (270} - (5. 85600 - 1182 - 4,938 -
Arend of the fnancial year a7 035 - 798,898 5825 028 (186957) 258,346 903,435
Weste

b They repeieeeait if euene seitoh Al I it ! frade puruain i deimd shifutiny recoesmen? af in miifen rempeny
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Z8. OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Foreign
Equity  currency Share Tatal
Capital component translation  options  Statutory Hedqging ather

resarve  of ICULE  reserve reserve reserue’ FYOLl  reserve  reserves
RMO0O0  RMOO0 RMDD0 RAMODD RMO00 2 RMOD0 RMOOO  RMODO

Group - 2021
AL beginming al the financil e arim ET0E3  4B0A95 111351 19652 (4212%) (B1073) 512535
Charages it T vilse - - - - - {90447) 25278 162331
Exchiznge differences - - 320571 - - - - 320,571
Tatal comprehersive incomes
{loss) for the year - - 12057 - = (90447 2EATTE 4p2502
Riclassficatian upon dispasal of
Iryestments designated at
Fvo0 - - + + - B33 = 8313
Share option expenses - - - 15512 - - - 13512
Share cprTion Lipred = . - 191,580} - . = [51.580)
Subssidiary's share option kapsed - - = {33.283) s C B [33.283)
Currency transiation difetences 15 - 19/ - (536} z [L514) -
At erd of the financlsl year 9r.30s 7023 B0 - 19036 [124.255) mie BeeIm
Mot
F T pepreanIs O AeervE WRET) RS 10 De 450 GUde purLant o icn! SEOTutory equR RNt of o eisataled coepoey
Share Fair Total
options value ather
FRsSarde resane Lyt
RM'DOO RM'O00 RM'DDO
Company - 2022
AL begitning of the financksl year - 2,759 2.759
Reclassification upon disposal of Fvestments cesignated at FWOO - 105 105
SHarE S Capevises 4,370 - 4,370
A endd af the Minandial year 4,370 2,864 7234
Company - 2021
At beginning of the financial year 0,022 2,758 82,781
Share oplion capenses 11,558 - 11,558
Shate option lapsed {91.580) - {51,580)
At encl of the firandial year . 2759 2759
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29. LONG-TERM PAYABLES
Group

2022 2021
RMOO0O RMOOO
Defarred income 1,349,708 1285291

Deeferred Kabifities 6B, 758
Deposits 35.941 50,705
Payabile to non-controling interests 62,090 Nn&o
Oihe payabies 5.441 1145
1,521,938 1,454,641

The deterred intome Is in relation 1o assets transfesred from customers and services of the wiater and sewerage segment which
ar yol 1o be provided st sharshaldar laan intenest rovenue. The Tair vahio of payables apprasimates their carmying values,

30. BONDS
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RMODO RMOO0 RMODO RMO00
Carrent:-
Medium Tegm Notes 30(a} 2.630,000 B45,000 1,000,000 -
A0 Cuaranieed Unsecured Bonds 30(1) - 1, 726.924 - -
2,630,000 2571924 1,000,000
Non-curment:-
Mesdiuim Teem Nates 0(a} 7.219.623 9606 2,240,000 3.240,000
352% Rt Price Index Guaramesd Bonds  30{b) 464,999 484,047 - -
5.75% Cuarantecd Unsoourcd Bonds 300 1853563 1995257 -
5A75% Guarantesd Unsecured Bonds 30d) 1,063,730 44532 - -
L75% Inchox Linkad Cuarantood Bands 3a) 1,250,886 L30z127 - -
13659 and 1.374% Index Linked
Guarantod Bonds 0N 1,250,886 Loz 127 - -
145, 1495% and 1.439% Incex Lnked
Guarantend Bonds 0} 1.172.833 12371497 - -
Z1HE%: Index Linkad Luaranieed Honds S0y 404,202 F9U A0 = -
L.5% Guarantzed Ursetured Bonis 304} 1,325,071 L4251 - -
1.25% Guaranteed Unsecuned Bonds 30} L577.145 L696,814 -
17,582,938 20,736,133 2,240,000 3.240,000
Tatal 20,212,938 23,320,057 2.240,000 3,240,000
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30. BONDS (CONTINUEDY
Thee bonds. are repayable:-

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'O00
Mol later than 1 year 2,630,000 2571924 1.000.000 -
Latisr than 1 ysar bl not Liter than 5 yeers 5,584,622 5,158,957 740,000 1.240,000
Lates than 5 years 11,598,316 15597170 1,500,000 000,000
Tatal 20,212,938 23.328.057 3.240.000 3,240,000

The weighted average ettective interast rates af the bonds of the Group and of the Company as at the reporting date are as

followrs-
Group Company
Z0Z22 2021 2022 2021
% B % %
Medium Tarm Notes 4.45 4,69 4.25 425
Bonds 460 382 - -

The fair values of the bonds af the Group and the Company a4 51 the feporting date ane a% fallawi:

Gialip Campany
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'O00 RM'000
A.52% Retad Price index Guaranteed Bonds 277377 300,401 -
5750 Gustanteet Unsecuned Bands 2,150,258 2871768 -
5 375% Cuaranised Unsecuned Bonds 1,164,432 1,432.230 -
1.75% indiox Linkod Guarantoed Bonds 1.616,416 1934326 -
1369 and 1.374% Index Linked Guarantesd Bonds L1.768,908 LS05.210 -
1.489%. 1.405% and | 4005, indox Linked
Guararoeod Bonds 1, 761.6868 1.B97.627 =
21865 index Linked Gusrareed Bonds 351,131 470,366 - .
A% Guaranteed Unsecursd Bonds - 1733531 - -
1.5% Cuarantesd Unsecured Bonds 920,823 LI38. 740 - -
1.25% Cuarinieed Unsatwred Bonds 1,106,674 1.558,430 - -
Mol Tarm Motis 9,780,755 10,892,530 3,145, 461 3,118,920
20,040,642 26140.259 1.146.461 3118920
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30. BONDS [CONTINUED)
{a) Medium term notes [“MThs")
{i} Tha MTNs of the Company ware issuad pursuant to:-

Tl Commercil pagers (TP and Modium term notes (MTNGT) Programie wath o combsned master hmit of RM5.0 bilion
and a sub-limit on the [P programmea ot RMS00 milkon (collactively the “Bond Programmes™) pursiant 1o a programme
greement dated 17 june A0

A namimal value aof BMS00 millon of MTRS was issed on 25 Jue 2019 10 refinarica the Company's existing RMS00
millon nominal vale MTHs The coucin rate of the MTAS o 4 60% per annum, payabie semi-anmaly n arears
and Tha MTH4 ari rodoemalio on 23 |une 2034 a1 mominal wikoe

A nominal value of AM500 million of MTNs was lssued under the programme on 24 jily 2020 at 3 coupon rate 3659
par anhum, payable semi-annually B arrears. The MTHS are redecimable on 24 july 2030 o nominal value,

A nominal value of AMZ40 milion of MTMS was issued undor the programme on 4 Seplember 2020 at o coupon
rate AL0% por annuim, payable somi-anbually in arrpard. Tho MTHS are radeemable an 4 September 2023 01 naminal
walug,

) A MTHS msuance programme of up 1o RM2.0 billien cansnituted by a Trust Deed and Programme Agreoment, bath
dated 26 March 2013,

A naminal vatue of RM1.0 bllion af MTHS was Esued under the programms on 25 April 2013 a1 a coupon fate 4.38%
[@021: 4.38%) per annum, payable semi-annualy in arrears. The MTNs are redeamable on 25 Aprd 2023 at nominal
walic.

A naminal valiee of RMS00 million of MTRs wirs ssued under the programme on 11 Mevamber 2016 8t a coupon rate
5.015% (2021 5.15%) per annum, payable semi antually in ameam. The MTHNs are redeemabls on 11 Nevember 2036
1 nemindl wahae,

A naminal waluee of RMS00 million of MThS was ssued under the programme o0 11 Nevember 2016 1 a coupon rate
463 (2021: 4/63%) per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The MTRs are redeemable on 11 November 2026
at nominal value,

(ii) The MTHNs of ¥TL Power International Berhad ("YTLPI™) were issued pursuant to:-

fa)  The MTHS of YTL Pl wene issued parsuant 1o 8 MTHS programme of up to RM5.0 bllien constituted by a Trast Deed
and MTHS Agreement, both dated 11 August 2011 The Facility bears interest rates ranging from 4.4%% 1o 4.90%
[S021: 4.40%: to 4.99%) per annuwm and repayable in full between 24 March 2023 and 24 August 2028 (2021 13
Detaber 2021 and 24 August 2023,

fh) The Elamic MTNs of YTLP were tssued pursaant to slamec Medium Term Mates facility of up 1o RMZ5 billion in
nomingl valis: under the Shariah princiale of Murshahah (va Tawarmug Arrangement) which constituted by a Trust

Deed and Facility Agency Agroement, both dated 20 April 2017, The faclity bears a profit rate of 5.00% (2021:
5.055%0) per annum and repayable in full on 3 May 2027,
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30. BONDS {CONTINUED)
{a) Medium term notes {"MTHs") (continued)
(i1} The MTHs of YTL Hospitality REIT Group (“YTL REIT") ware lssued pursuant toi-

Thstt MTNS of YTL REIT wwere issued pursuant to 8 MTHS sSuande programme of up to AMLESD milion constiiuted by a
Trust Deed and Programme Agheemant. both dated 11 May 2016,

As at erdd of this repiarteng penod, RMEES millicn (20627 RMALD million] wens msossd as Foliaw.

fz} A nomenal vaue of AMGS mikon of MTRs was lssued on 23 May 2087 to fmance the renavation costs camed out
at The Ritz-Carfton, Kuala Lumpie - Sulte Wing and Hotel Wing. The MTHs had been redeemed on 23 May 2022 a
namins valle

(B0 A rdmena value of BMEBES million of MTNS was Bsued on 3 Revemibe 2007 0 finance e acguisitien of The Majestic
Hated Kualy Lusnput by YTL REIT. That MTNs are redeemabie on § Movember 2024 al noming valug.

el A nominal vatue af AMZES million of MTNS was issued on 23 November 2007 to refinance the extsting bomowings
of ¥TL REIT. The MTHS had been radeamead on 23 Movermber 2042 ot nominal value.

fd) A nomenal vaue of AM10 million of MTMNs was ssued on 24 May 2019 1o refinance YTL REIT axisting RM1O mdlien
marminad value MTNS, The MTNs g redesmable on 23 May 2022 a1 nominal value

o) A nominsl vaue of RMES million of MTHS was issutd on 28 june 2019 1 finance th renovation costs camied out
At W Marriotl Hotel Kusla Lumpur, The MTNs are redeemable on 28 june 2023 at nomenmal vilue,

i) A neminal value af RMB0 milllon of MTHS was ssued on 23 May 2022 1o redeem matured MTMs tofalling RM7S
million and 1o finance the mnovstion oosts camied oot at certain properties for RMS milicn. The MTs ane redeemable
on 1 May 2027 at nominal valee

Tsee MTNE boar coupon rates ranging from 3275 1o 505% [2021: 3.30%: 10 S05%) ped annum, peyabie semi-anmaly
In arrears and s secured by certaln proparties.

{iv) The MTHs of YTL Cement Berhad Group ("YTL Cement”) were issusd pursuant to-

I 200G, Kedah Cement Sdn. Bhol ("KCSET), & subsidiary of YTL Coment, fud estabished @ Suluk Wakalah Programms
[Sukuie Wakalah') for the issuance of up 1o RMS00 millien | nominal value of Sulosl Wakalah based on the Sharish
principle of Wakalah and Murabahah it provides KCS8 the flexibllity to rasse funds from time to time whech can be utised
to finsnce andfor to refmburse the acqwsition of property, plant and equipment/investments, to fund working capital
requrements and to refinance exmting bank bomowings of KCSE. The Sukuk Wekalah Programme has a terure of 7 years
from the date of first issuance of the Sulnk Wakalah which was on 13 January 2087,

On 13 fornsary 2007, KOSE made its first ared second issiance of AMIDD milion and RMLBD million in naminal ke of
Sudnk Wakalah respecthvely 1o fund working capital requicements of KCSB. The Sukuk Wakalah bare profit at 4.40% and
400% per annwm znd have been fully settied in 2010 and January 2020, respectively.

On 13 Decernber 2017 and 10 July 2019, K058 made its thid and fourth (ssuance of RML0O0 milon in rominal vale of

Suduk Wakalah bo furd the working Cagital (eguireimsenis of KUSE. The Suluk Wakakah bote polin al S00% and 5.06%
pat annuim and hive been fully settied in December 2020 and july 2322 nespectively,
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30. BONDS [CONTINUED)
{a) Medium term notes [“MTHs"] ([continued)
{iw} The MTHNs of ¥TL Cement Barhad ("¥TL Cement”) were issuad pursuant to: (continued)

O 10 futy 20015, KTSHE madke it5 10 th ssuance of RM120 million in nominal value of Sukuk Wakalh te furd the working
cepital requiremients of KUSH Tha Suluk Wakalsh bone profit at 4.10% per annum amd has baen fully settled in juy 2020,

On 13 farnuary 2020, 9 |uly A020 and 11 December 2020, KSR made i <iah, severth and dighih isasence of RMIED
millin, R0 mellian ane RM1OO million in nominad valie of Sukk Wekatah to fund the warking capital requiremants af
KCRE Thie Suluk Wakalah are due on 13 [anuary 2029, 7 july 2025 and 11 December 2023 and bear profic at & 60%,
A55% and A0% por ARnum raspectively,

On B July 2022, KCSB made s ninth issuance of BM100 million in neminal valee of Sukuk Wakalah to fund the working
copithl requirements of KTSE The Sukuk Wakalsh i due on 10 July 2023 and bear prafit a1 £25% par annim

{b) 3.52% Retall Price Index Guaranteed Bonds ("RPG Bands")

The RFIG Boswks of Wesser Water Senaces Finance Plc, baar intenest semi-annuslly on 30 January ard 30 july at an intesest
rate aof TE2% inftialy, indexed up by the inflation e every year, Thie effectiae interest rate as at 30 jJune 2022 & 63T
(2021: 4 3% por annum, T RFG Bonds will be rodeamad in Tl by Koo on 30 July 2023 31 thiir indaed valug togethar
with 3l acorues intecest.

fc] 5.75%: Guarantoed Unsecurad Bonds

n 15 Ortoher 2003, Wesses Water Sendoes Finance Ple. (Mssuer”), a subsiclary of the Groap, isssed GAPFS0 mélion nominal
wahia 5755 Duaranteed Urmecured Bonds due 2033 [5.75% GU Bonds") incoreftionaly ard imewncabily guarantesd by Wessex
‘Water Services Limitad, a subsidiary of the Group. The 5.75% GU Bonds are corstituted under a Trust Deed dated 15 October
2003, The nominal vake of 5.75% GU Bonds taued amounied (o GEPFIS0 milion and as at 30 jure 2022 CEP346,914,254
(2021 GRP34E,T17,774] emaingd cutstanding, nat of amonied fees and discount. Thi rat proceads of tha 575%: CL Bonds
were wsed for refinancing of eusting finandal indetiedness and for geneal corporate purposes.

The Boruls bear interest at 5.75% per annum, payable anmualy on 14 Oclaber of each year, The Bonds will be redeemad in
full by the Issuer on 14 Ociober 2033 at thelr nomins| value togeather with all accrued intevest.

[d)} 5.375% Guarantedd Unzecurad Bonds

On 30 March 2005, Wetsex Wator Serncos Finanoe PIC Clssue™), a subfidiary of (he Croug, Ssued CBP200 millich nominal
walus 5375% Cuaranteed Urecurad Bonds due 3028 ("5375% (L) Bonds”) untonditionally and irevacobly guaranioed by
‘Wessex Water Services Limited {"Guarantoe®), a subsidary of the Group. The 5375% GU Bonds are constituted under a Trust
Dieedd dated 10 March 2005

Thie nominal value of 5.375%: GU Bonds issued amounted to GEF200 million, of which GEPL 99,088,549 [2021: CHP196,955,233)
rairdined outstanding as o1 30 june J022, el of amartised fees and discount. Tha nat proceeds of the Bonds waere used far
rafinanting of existing financial ndebtedness and for genaral corporate pumposas.

Tho Bonds boar intorest at 5375% por annwm, payable snnually on 10 Mach of each year. The Bonds will be sedeemed in
full by the Iswer on 10 March 2028 at their nominal valua tegether with o8 acomed intarest.
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30. BONDS (CONTINUEDY
{e] 1.75% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds

On 31 |uy 2006, Wessex Water Senvices Finance PiC (Tssasr) issued two (2) tranches of GEPTS millon nominal value 1.75%
Iriex Linked Cuaranteed Bonds (LG Bonds 17) unconditionaily and irmevocably guarantesd by Wessex Water Sarvices Limited
[TCswantor), The ILG Bonds T was aach constinuted undar 4 Trust Deed dated 31 july 2006 and i unsecured,

The LG Bonds 1 bear interest semi-annually on 31 januany and 31 Juby at an imerest rate of 1.75% intialy, indexed up by the
irflation Fate gvary yoar. Thi offecthe intorest rito as 51 20 juno 2022 is 2B4% {2021 2619%) ped anpum. Thi Beads wil
be redeamed in bull by the ssuer an 31 july 2046 for one tranche, and 31 july 2051 for the other tranche at their indexsd
value 1ogether with all accrued Interest,

{f) 1.369% and L.374% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds

On 31 foryry 2007, Wessex Watet Seevices Finance Pie, v’} [shed GBPTS milkon nominal value 13609 Index Linked
Guarantead Bonds and GEPTS mikan nominal value 1.374% indax Linked Cuarantaed Bonds, both due 2057 (“ILC Bonds 27
unconditionally and Irmevocably quaranteed by Wessex Water Services Limited (Guarantor™), The ILG Bonds 2 were each
constituted under a Trust Deed dated 31 lanuary 2007 59d ahe irisecuned.

The ILG Bonds 2 bear interest semi-aniualy on 31 Jamuary and 31 july at an Interest rate of 1.369% and 1.374% initialy,
Irstheried L B Tha irTlanicdy race eyery yoar, TIe effeCrie INToest rne @S a8 30 june 2022 is 2.23% (2021 2.23%) pee annum,
The Bonds will be redeemed in full by the Bswer on 31 july 2057 at their indexed value together with @ acomed interest.

{g) 1.4B9%%, 1.495% and 1.499% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds

O 28 September SOOF, Wit Water Sendons France Pic, (T55er) issued GEPSO milion nomana vivue LAEY % Indi Linkod
Guarantead Aonds, GAPSD mdlian noming] walue T495% ndex Linksd Giatantead Boods arel CRPSO milkan mominal walis
1:499% Index Uinked Guarantesd Bonds. all due 2058 (LG Bonds T) unconditionally and irreworably quaranteed by Wessex
Water Services Limited (“Guarantor’). Tha ILG Bonds 3 were each constituted under a Trust Deed dated 28 September 2007
and arg unipood,

Thix ILG Bonds 3 bear interest semi-annwaly on 29 Novembor and 29 May at an inflorest rate of LAE9%, 1.495% and 1.499%
iritially, indexed up by the inflation rate every year, The effective interest rate as 3t 30 june 2022 & 1045% (2021 296%)
per arrum. The ILG Bonds will be redeemed in ful by the ssuer on 29 November 2058 at thelr Indexed value together with
#l acoiued Werest.

{h] 2.186% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds

On 7 September 2009, Wessex Water Services Finance PIC (Tssuer”) saied GBPSO million nomina vals 2186% indi Linked
Guaranteed Bonds due 2039 (TILG Bands 47) unconditionally and Imevocably quaranteed by Wessex Water Senvices Limied
["Guarantor). The ILG Bonds & wers constuted woer a Trust Desd dated 7 Sepramber 2009 and are urdeemsd.

The ILG Bonds 4 bear interest semi-annually on 1 December and 1 june at an interest rate of 2186% (rebally, indexad up oy
thie indlation @te svery halt year, The etfectie iN1EResT @te as at 30 [une 2022 15 11.16% (2021 266%) per annum: The ILG
Bonds will ba radeamad in full by the Ksuer on 1 june 2039 at thair indesed value togather with a1 accruad interast.
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30. BONDS [CONTINUED)
(i} #.0% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds

On 24 Jamary 2012, Wessex Water Services Finante Pic, (Cssuer”), a subsdiary of the Group, ssued GRPE0O mdlion nominal
walise 4% Cuaranteed Unseoured Bonds due 2021 ("4% QU Bonds™) unconditionally and imevacably guasanteed by Wessex
Water Servioes Limitad (Guaranter™), & subsitiary of the Group. The 4% GU Bonds e constfuted undar a Trust Daed dated
24 January 2012, Tha nat procesds of the 4% GU Bonds were used {or rafinancing of existirg financial indabtedness and for
general covporate purposes. The nominal value of 4% QU Bonds issued amounted o GEP200 million was repald in full on 24
Cegitambor 2020

On 30 August 2012, Wessex Water Servces Finance Ple. [Mssue], a subsidiary of the Group, ssued GEP100 million nominal
valisg &% Cuarantosd Unsered Bands owe 2021 4% CU Bonds™) unconditionay and irevacably cusramesd by Wessek
Water Senvices Limited (“Ouarantor?), & subsidiary of the Group, The 4% GU Bonds are constituted under a Trust Deed dated
30 August 2012, The et proceeds of the 4% GU Bonds were used for refinancing of existing financlal indebtedness and for
general corpatate purposes Tha nominal valse of 4% QU Bonds issued amounted to GEPIDO millian was tepaid in full on 24
Septamber 2021

(i} 1.5% Guarantecd Unsecured Bonds

On 17 September 2019, Wessex Water Serdoes Finance Plc, (Mssuer”), a subsidiary of the Grou, issued GBPZS0 milion nominal
walua 1.5% Guarntoed Unsecured Bonds due 2029 (retaning BRSO million] ("1.5% G Bands™) uncanditionally and imevacably
guaranteed by Wessey Water Services Limited (Cuaramior, a subsidiary of 1he Group, The 15% GU Bonds ane constituted
under a Trust Deed dated 17 September 2019, On 15 june 2020, the retained GEPSD million nominal value 1.5% Cuarantead
Unsatuted Bonds dus 2029 was issued,

The peminal vilue af 1.5% GU Bonds isucd amaunted to GAP250 milken of which GEPZ48.001, 336 (2021 GEP247,745 458)
remained outstanding as a1 30 june 2022 it of amorted Teos and dicownt, The not pracoeds of the 1.5% GU Bonds were
used for refinancing of existing financial indebtedness and for general corporate purpases.

The: Bords biear interest a1 15% per anrum, payable annwally on 17 September of cath year The Baads will be redeemed in
full by the Issoer on 17 September 2029 at thedr nominal value together with all acorsed interest.

(k] 1.25% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds

On 12 jJamsary 2021, Wessex Water Sorvices Finanoe Ple. [Tssuery, a subskiary of the Group, ssued GEPID0 mdlion nominal
wahn 1.255% Guarantaed Unsecured Bareds dun 2036 [71.25% GU Bonds™) uncondtionaly ard imeviocably guarantoed by Wb
Water Senvices Limited {"Guarantor™), a subsidsary of the Group. The 1.25% GU Bonds are constriuted under a Trust Dead dated
12 janassy 2021, Thie noiranal vilise of 1.25% GU Bonds iiued amauiited ts CBP300 milllion, of which CBP205,179,730 (2021
GErZ0, BS7.085) remvnusd autstanding s at 30 une 20282, net of amortised fees and discount, The net proceecs of The
1.25% Gl Bonos ware ised for refinancing of existing tinandal indabtedness and for general comporate purposes.

The Bonids bear interest at 1.25% per annum, payable annually on 12 jamsary of sach year, The Donds will be medeemed in
full by the Issuer on 12 january 2035 at thelr nominal value together with all accrued interest,
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31. BORROWINGS

Group Company
Z0z2 2021 Z0z2 2021
Hote RM'O00 RM'O00 AM'OO00 RM'O00
Current
Bank avendrafts Al{a) 101,892 26,0351 - -
Hire purchase creditars £V T 2.281 1542 53 140
Irredlopmalabe comrtibile irsecited Inan
stacks 31[r) - Liz2 - -
Revohing credit F{edy 4,184,041 EA ) 1,066, 855 1LOBEHESS
Termn loans 3li=) 934,142 A.2B20TY - ]
Trade facilities Jur) 58,929 3,864 = =
4.281.285 roaLarz LOB6, 908 1,066,%35
Hon-current
Hire purchase creditors E1EL ] 5,337 1,905 55
Iredeemable conventible wnsecured loan
stocks [e) - 2417 -
Renvobuing credit ey 2,348,880 1554092 -
Tesrn Inars ey 15.407.742 13,096,000 -
17,761,959 14651414 55 -
Total
Bank ovandfrafts l{a) lol. 892 25051 - -
Hire purchase creditars E1E ] 7.618 1,447 108 140
Irredlpaimialida fomaaribk ifved uiid Ban
stocks A1) - 3539 - -
Revishanig eredit Tty 5,532,921 4,324,406 1,066,855 1.066RERS
Teden Inams e 16,341,684 17,358,079 - -
Trade Facilities N 58,929 30,864 - -
22,043,244 21,746,386 1.066,963 LOGE935
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31. BORROWINGS [CONTINUED)
The borrowings. of the Group and the Company ane repayable as follows:
Later than
Mot later 1 year but not Later
than later than than
1 year 5 years 5 years Taotal
RMODD RMDOD RHODD RM'ODD
Group
AL 30 June 022
Bank overdrafts 101.892 - - 101892
Hre purchase oreditors Z.281 5.337 - 7.618
Revaking credi 3.184,041 2.213.880 135,000 5532921
TR o 934,142 14,580,145 BZ7 597 16,341,884
Tiade laciites 58,929 - - 58,929
4,281,285 16,799,362 962,597 22,043,244
At 30 |une 2021
Barik overdrafis 26,051 - - 26,051
Hire purchase oreditons 1542 1905 - 1447
KKULS 1lae 2Aal7 & 1532
Rewalving cradit 2770314 1,554,002 4,324 405
Term loans 4,262,070 12156531 q35.469 17,358,079
Tiads Taciitas 30,84 - - 30,864
7,050 872 13, 714945 4939409 FLT4RIAG
Company
At 30 |june 2022
Hife pUiChass Croditoes 53 L - 108
Revalving credit 1,066,855 - - 1,066,855
1066908 55 - 1066953
AL 30 June 2021
Hre purchase creditors 1530 - - 140
Ruwalving copdi 1066835 - - 1,066,855
11066995 - - 1,066,995

Thae eadrying amounis of i borremwings of the Group and of the Company a5 at e qoting date appeeodmated their tar values.
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31. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The weighted average effective interest rates of the bormowings of the Group and the Comgpany as 2t the reporting date are a3

Talkws:
Group Company
2022 2021 20z2 2021
W £ B o
Bank cueniralts 175 110 - -
ICULS - 749 . =
Revobeng credit 252 245 .00 272
T loans 251 202 = -
Trade Faciities 275 ELr -

{a) Bank overdrafis
All the bank averdraft faclites ane unsecured and repayable on demand.

{b) Hire purchase creditors

The Group's finance kase Dears INTerest rates ranging from LA%% to 4 28% (2021 156% o 4.97%6) per annum and the
Compaiwy's linance leasa bears interest rate af 2155 to 227% (2021 227%) per annuim,

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

RM'OOO RM'OOO RM'O00 RM'OOO

Payable not later than | year 2,340 1540 56 141
Payable later than 1 year and not later than

T ymars 5.008 2135 57 -

Total minkmum lease payments B,148 AeTS 13 141

Less: Finance chames {530} {228} {5) 1)

Present vahue of minimam lease payments 7,618 3,447 108 140

{c} Irredeemable convertible unsecured loan stocks (“ICULS™)
ICULS 200172021
On 31 Octobes 2011, ¥TL Land & Development Berhad (YTL Land'), a subsidiary of the Growp tssued 992,378,023 ten (10)
years 3% stepping up 10 6% ICULS at a nominal value of RMOS0 each,
The salient terms af the KLLS 20112021 are as lolows

(iy  The CULS 200172021 bear a coupon rate of 3.0% per annum from date of ssue (Clssue Date”) up 1o fourth anniersary
of the Bsue Date and 4.5% par annum tram the date atter ihe fourth anniversary of the Issus Date i 1o the seventh
anniversary of the lsue Date, Thereatter, the ICLLS 2011/202]1 baar & coupon rata af 5.0% par anmim up 1o the maturity
date. The interest &5 payable semi-armualy In amears,
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31. BORROWINGS [CONTINUED)
e} Irredeemable convertible unsecured loan stocks (“ICULS") {continued)
CIAS 20102021 (continued]

(i) The ICULS 200152081 ane conyesrtble ot any Tme on o afar TS isssnce date nto new ordinary shargs of YTL Land at
the comersan price, which s Hxed on a step-down basis, a5 Folioes-

For conversion at any tme from the date of Bswue wp 1o the fourth annlversay, conversion price s RML32;

= Forcomeersion at any time after fourth anniversary of fsswa up to the seventh annivessary, conversion price is BM0.99;
and

= For conwersion at any time atter seventh anniversary of issue up o the maturity fate. conversion price s RMOGA

{iily  The IS 201172021 ara pot redeemable and any IOULS 20002021 remaining immadiataly aftar the maturity data shall
e mandatorly corverted into ordinary shares at the conversion prce.

(i) The new onfinary shares ssued from the comersion of ICULS 2011/2021 will be deemed fully paid-up and rank pari passu
In all respects with all existing ordnary chares of YTL Land

A certain amount of the ICULS 201172021 are held by the Company (refer Mote 15 to the finandial stataments), The mievant
amaunts have been elminated in the Statements of Financlal Position.

The ICULS have matured on 31 October 2021 All the ICULS remaining immediatoly attor tho maturity date have boen avlomatically
comverted into ordinary shares at the comersion price of RMO0ES.

{d] Rewelving credit

Save for AMBNO milion (2021 AM347.905 milllon) royedving credit fadlity of the Croup which secured against properties of
the subsidianios, all the revalving credit faclities e unsecred and repayabie on demand

{2} Term loans
(I} Term loans denominated in Great British Pounds
Inchuded i the Term loans am;

fa) The term loans of AM4I160Z2500 [GBP7S million] were ursecwred loans of Wessex Walsr Services Limited and
wite guarantesd by Wessex Water Limited, The loans bear an interest rates rarging an 0,729 (2021 0.72% 10
1215 por armum and was mepaid in full on 22 july 2021,

8] Thi term bars of RMILOSE SO0 million [GEP200 milion] {2021: RM1L150840 milken [GEP200 millan]] s unsecuned
Iare ol Wessee Water Semees Limsed and ane quaramteed by Wissses Wated Limited, The first inan ol GRPSO milkan
was drawn down on 30 january 2015 hears an interest rata af 2.36% (2021 2.16% 0 2.36%) per anmm, the
sexnnd Inan of GAPSO milian was dreaswn down on 9 March 2015 hears interest rates mnging from 0.74% o 160
[ADP1: 0 74%: 10 0.94%) par anmam, th thind loan of GAPSO million was draven dewn on 9 April 2015 hears an
Interest rate a1 219% (2021 19599 to 219%) par annum, and the fourth loar of CBPS0 million was drawn down
on 25 May 2016 bears interest rates ranging from 10796 to 2.19% {2021 1.0 to LB1%) per annum. All the loans
e ropanyatibe in full botwoen 30 fanuary 2024 and 25 May 2025,
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31. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(2] Term loans (continued)
{1} Term loans denominated In Great British Pounds {continued)

€3 The term lears of RMLOGEE00 milian [CBPZ00 millien] (2021 RML04,502.400 [GEF200 milkan]) was drawn by
Wessen Wister Sendces Limited of which RMS34.596. 375 [CEPITA.S19 779] (201 RMLOA7.04T.168 [GEPLO0UGIA S52])
remained outstanding as 30 June 20£2, net of emortised fees. Thie Iaans Dear interest rates ranging from 1.09%
i 2205 (2027 10 tn 1 APSE) per arnum e afe mepaiible with & 50% bullet repagyment on 3] Januany 26
with tha remaining 40% being repaid in equal semi-annis imtalmants commencing 31 january 2081

o) The term boan of RMBE.TET 500 (COP12.500.000) was drawn down by Wesses Water Limited during the financial
year a0d s repayable i full on 29 Novenber 2024, The bostowing is an unsecumd loan and bears an interest rate
at L54% per annum,

Al e T 0T o0 unsecisesl

{il} Term loans denominated In US Dollars

Inciudid In thie tenm IDans are

{a) The term loan of BIL02E575 milien [US0250 million] of prevous financial yest was &rawn down by Y7L Powe:
Intemational Barhad (YTLPM) on 31 March 2017 of which AMLO35, 850,635 [USD249,344,206) romained outstanding
a5 it 30 june 2021, net of amortised fees The barmowing bears interest rates ranging from L26% to L41% (2021
1.29% 1o 1.30%) pod annum. The t2m loan faclity was fully sertied on 31 March 2022

(B The tesm loan of RMEELI00 milion [US0200 milon) (2021 RME30.860 million [US0200 mdion|) was drasn dawn
by ¥1L Utikities Finance 4 Limited on &5 November 2000 of which AMEZZ, 3200081 [US0199.142 milkon) (20212
RMEZ4, 761408 |USDIS532 milion]) remaned outstandng as at 30 june 2022, nel of amartised 1ees, Thie Tenm
loan is quaranteed by YTLP, The borowing bears interest rates ranging from 144% to 241% (2021 L44% 10
1509%) per annum and Is repayablie on 25 November 2023

All the tarm loams a'e unsecred.

{ili] Term loans denominated in Ringgit Malay<ia
Save for the tenm ban of RM3,380.0 millien (2021 RML.925.206 milion) af the Group which seowred agalnst quoted
ahaies and properties of the subsidiaries, ol the term loans ane unsecunid.
{iw) Term loans denominated In Singapore Dollars
Includied in the temm loan are;
o) The term loan of BMEB, 315972 milkon (5601.995.0 mion] was drawn down by Y11 Powsrseraya Ple. Limited on
14 Saptamher 2007 and repayable in full on 12 Septembar 2022, of which RM5,958,315.191 (SG00, 894,84 3.060)
{20211 FMB, 006 549,654 |S001.243 741 458]) remained oartstanding as at 30 june 2022 net of amortised fees
Tha bartewiig was refinanced an 1 juni 2022 and i regayabie i Tul on 1 june 2007, The tem loan iL dbewod

{2021 unsecwad kan) by charges over the assets and shares of ¥TL PowarSeraya Pte, Limited. The bormowing bears
interest rates ranging from 1.61% to 27904 (2027 1.55% to LE4%) per anmum.

252 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

528/624



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 june 2022

31. BORROWINGS ICONTINUED)
{2} Term loans {continuad)
(v} Term loans danominated in Singapore Dollars [continued)

i) The term ioan of RMTZE.088 millicn [SG0E30,0 malion] was drmn down by Taser Power Ple, Lid on 1 june 2022
of which RMFPZ5.502165 [S00229.200,417) remaned outstanding 45 3t 30 june 2022, net of amartised lzes. The
Term inan is serured ty Changes awed Thie assets and shares of Taser Power PTe. L. Tre hormoweng Bears an intemest
rale at 251% per annim and s repayable on 1 june 2077,

Save for the term Inan of BM nil (2021 AMETE.729 milkon) of the Croup secured by first Seed change aver the proneries
af the wubsidiarios, all 1 Worm aark 5 s,

{v] Term loans denaminated in Australian Dollars
Al the term l3ans ane sacured by first fived chaige over the properties of the subsdiaria

(v} Term loans denominated in jJapanese Yen
AUl thi Teem s a0 SECLted By NSt faed Change over the propertios of the Subsdiaries.

[t} Trade facilities
Al the bamers acceptances e unsecuned and repayabse on demantd

32. LEASE LIABILITIES
The details of iease liabd ties are as follows-

Group Company
202 2021 2022 2021
RM 00O RMO00 RMDOO RMOOO
Prosented as:
Curment 170,939 180,091 6,044 6,76
Kan currend 1,245,678 1303867 2,339 9,056
1,416,617 1LABLTSS 9,183 15772

The Growp's matuikty profile of ease Rabilibes are daclosed i Note 38(g] to the financlal statements

Extansan and tovimination options die includisg ina nuimbe of popery and equipment keases aoass this Groop and the Coingarmy.
Thess @e eed Lo rismise operational Nesdbility in terms ol managing the assets used i the Group and the Comgany’s uparatiom.
The inagaiity of extension and termination opthans held ate exercsable oty by the Group end the Comparmy and not by U resped e
Resisor,

Same OpETTY Ieases contan variable payment Terms that are kked 10 sales with petcemages ranging from §% o 5% of sales.
Warable ase payments that dopend on sales are tecosgniad in Intoma Statements in the pariod which the cond@tion that tiggers
those payments ooows,
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED]
{a) Metinvestment in leases

Group
2022 2021
RM'O00 RM‘O00
A1 beginnng af the financial year 11,693 15486
Additians 63 -
Iritef@st income GA1 573
Lease payments. receied (4.805) 14.766)
At end of the financial year 7.632 11,644

Graup
2022 2021
RM'OO00 RM‘DO0

Presented as

Currery 3.326 4107
Non-clment 4,306 7.586
7,632 11,633

Thir Grioup Weases mixer truks and equipment 1o third parties. Each al the Wases contans non-cancellabie period of 2 1o 7
yaars,

Thiese leases trantler sufstantially all the fsk and rewards incidental fo ownership aof the miver trucks. Thede leases do hot
irchude buy-back agreemants or residual value guaraniees,

That ke pliyrheiils b b decined & e as [oliows-

Group

2022 2021

RMO00 RM'00

Less Than T year 3.622 4,507
1to 2 years 2,588 3524
2 1o 3 years 1,345 25
3 1o 4 yoors 537 1345
4o 5 yeans - 537
Total undiscounted lease payments B.102 12510
Linaarnne infisesl memns (470} {BI7)
Het Investment In leases 7,632 11633
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33. GRANTS AND COMTRIBUTIONS
Group
2022 2021

Hate RM OO0 RMOOO
Ar beginreng of the fmanclal yoor 661,614 596,665
Currency framlation differarces {40,017) 48011
Amortisation of grants and comributions 7 {18.999) [2L546)
Disposal of & subsdary® (14.035) -
Recened during the financia year 32.092 38,482
At end of the financal year 620,655 B61.614

* Thi i ary neigtion 1o e gl off Albvon Wetor Limised o oferlosed i Aone 15D
Grants and contrixstions mainky CoMprise Qovdnment grants in forsign wubskdianes in respodt of spocitic qualitying expenditun an

il rr e assets and a cogeneratian plant.

34, DEFERRED TAXATION

Thia loflowing amounts, Getedmined after approprate cif sottng. & shown in the Stismonts of Financlal Positsor:

i By
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMO00 RMO00 RMODD RMO00
Deferred tax kabilities, net 3,068,801 3,060,349 13 13

The gross movement on the deferred Income tax account |5 as Tollows:

At beginning of the financlal year 3,060,349 2,164,004 13 113
Charged fo iIncome Statemants 52.278 B1LEE] - -
= Proparty, plant and equipment 40,115 599755 - -
- Proparty development {1.621) [Le&1) - -
= EWESTTRNE propenties 2,491 ae02 -
= Retirement benelits 8.222 12.m1 - .
- Paovision {3,583) 167} - -
» Unutised capital afowance 18,538 [300] -
- Unabsorbed tax losses {37.702) 15,355 - -
- Ly [1.590) 35 - -
= [nheds 26,408 (17,988} - .
Cumency tramslation diffenences {187.835) 179819 - -
Argutsition of subrsidiang 1.781 BA43 - -
Charged 1o Othar Comprehensivie Intame® 142,228 So4a14 - -
At end of the financial yoar 3.068.801 3060349 113 113
= This s i moktion #o e I off posd Moy ment Lovefit phigonoT.
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION ICONTINUED)Y

Dederrad 1ax assets and Eabilities are of fset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off income tax assets agalvst Income
Tax habilites and when the deferned taxes refate 10 e same (30 autherity. Thie Foliowing amounts deteimined alte approphate
offsetting arm shewn in the Statements of Financial Position-

Graup Company
Z0z2 2021 2022 2021
RMOO0 RM'D00 RM'OO0 RM'000
Dafarrod L aSsts proviclod ane in respoct of:
Dafered tax assets before offsetting
Unutilised capltal allowances (128.747) (176,227 - -
Rtirement bonefits 36,315 [108,232) -
Unabsorbied tax kosses (279,836) (23Lr5a) - -
Prowssion {13.576) E512) i s
Loases (3.530) {1,963) - -
[ithers |45.7549) {102.9949) - -
(435,133) (626, 79) = -
DrfseTning 435133 G26.732 - -
Daforred tax assets alter offsenting - - - -
Defermed tax kabilities provided are in respect of
Daferrad 1ax liabilities before affselting
Property, plant and eguipment
- capital dlowastis In oxcess of deprediation 3,433,725 A&19,999 113 n3
Land held for property developmen 48,931 47.0m - :
Dthars 21,270 20,065 i -
3,503,934 3,6B7,141 113 na
Dffsetting [435,133) (BB, 782) - -
Daferred tax aldlities after affsetting 3,068,801 3,060,349 113 n3
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34. DEFERRED TAXATIOM (CONTINUED)
Defarred tax assets hava not been recognisad in respect of the following items:
Group

2022 2021
RMO0O RMOOD
Unabsorted fax losses 1628244 LIre207
Uit capital allown: e 2,905,487 2ER24T
Deduc tible temporary differences are.se4 167,565
Taxable ternparary ditfedences - property, plant and cqupment {372,561} [I52.695)

35.

4,533,694 /TES0E

Thie unalsaibed Tax Kssed and uAilited capital allowances ane sUlyect 1o agreement with thie inland Revenud Boand On the othar
haendd, effectee fram year of assessment 20149 a5 anmounded in e Aancal Budget 2019, the unased Ta losses of the Group as at
3l December 2018 and thereatter will ondy be availaole for carry forward for a period of ¥ consecutive years. Upon expiry ot the ¢
years, thie unatsorned tax sses will be dsreganded.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/TASSETS)
Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
HNate RMDOO RMODO RMOOO RMODO

Dafined contribution plans - Current
- Malayssa 3543} 6.620 7.048 326 315

Defined benefit plans - Non-current
- Malaysia 350} 21,734 21,764 = =
- United Kingdem 5[] [174.802) 437,922 - -
= Indonesia 35} 15,225 21,986 - -
(137.843) 481,682 - -

[a) Defined contribution plans

Croup companies Incarporated in Malaysia contribute to the Employess Provident Fund, the national defined contribution plan.
Onie the conmti@nations have besn padd, 1he Gioup and thie Compaiy hiave na fuithies payinent oblgations.

[b)} Defined benefit plans - Malaysia
The defined benefit plans typically eaposes the Group 19 actuarial fsios such as longevity risk and salary sk
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/ASSETS) (CONTINUED)
{b) Defined benefit plans - Malaysia (continued)

{1} Longevity risk
Ther provsent vlue of the defined benelit plan Babdity |5 calCubated Dy malemenoe 1o the Dest estmate of the mortality of
pan participants during thelr employment, An incraase in the e opattancy of the plan participants will increate the
pan’s labiliny.

(i) Salary risk

Than prmennd vad of B dofined sanefit plan labiity ic et ulateed by roforsnes to 11 Pt salarieg of plam participants.
As such. an increase in the salary af the plan partkipants will increase the plan's labiity,

Thie moat recent sctuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were camad
out on 28 August 2020 by an external actuary,

Thir present value of the defined benefit sbligation, and the related curment service cost and st wendce cost, were masured
using the projected unit credit method

The principal actuarial asuimptians a1 the ond of the reparting perod ane as follees:

Group
2022 2021
£ %
Discount rate 2.9 3.9
Fuiure salary Increase rate 5.0 50

Sensithvity analysis

Significant actwarial assumption for the determination of the dafined benefit obligaton is the discount rate. The sensitivity
analysls helow has been detemingd based on reasonably pessibile change of the respective assumpticn ocourring at the end
ol the reporting peviod, whilis holding all other assumplions constant,

I the discount rate increased{decrease) by 0.5%. the defined benelit obligation would decrease by AMEET. 2400000 by
RM347.875 (201 defrease by AMIZ 471 increase by RM1,007.212).

The mavements in the net liablty recogrised in the Statements of Financial Position are as {olows;

Group
20z 2021
RM'OO00 MO0
At beginning of the Tinancial year ZL764 21937
Chaece foi this finardial year 921 a0l
Benefits pald/payabies. {951} {1.074)
At end af the financial year 21,734 F1.764

258 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

534/624



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD | AMWUAL RCPORT 2022

MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 June 2022
35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS) (CONTINUED)
[b)} Defined benefit plans - Malaysia [continued)
The amounts ecognisd in the Statements of Financisl Position are anaysed o foliowes:
Group
20g2 2021
RMTOO0 RMOGO
Present value of unfurded obligation 21.734 21764
HBeconciliation of the present value of unfundead obligation are as follows:
Group
2022 2021
RMODO RMOO0
AT Beginning of 1 financial year 21,764 21937
Benefits pakl/payables {951) [LO74)
Current sendce cost 72 70
inderest cost B49 a3
At and of the financal year 21,734 21764
Thee amounts tecognised in the income Statements aie as follows:
Group
2022 2021
RMDOO RMOOO
Current servie Cost T2 70
st cost 8493 CE]
Tatal chaiga 1o income Staements 921 501

[} Defined bencfit plans - United Kingdom

A suibreciary of the Group oparates final sakary defimed berefnt plars for is employecs in the United Kingdom, the assets of
which are hald in separate trustee-administered funds, The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was undertaieen by a gualified
actisary at a1 30 Septembor 2009, Th vauatian has been sdjustod 10 The feporting date as at 30 june 2022 taking acoount
of experence cvar the period singe 30 September 2019, dhanges in market conditions, and ditferences in the financial and
demographic assumptions by the gualified actuary.
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/ASSETS) (CONTINUED)
{c] Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom [continued)
(I} Profile of the scheme

Tha e Fined DereTit abigations inglude Denefits Tor cumnt amployess, Tanmaer empayees and current pensioners. Broadty,
about 26% of the Babilities are sttributable to cureént employess, 15% o formes employess and 55 to curfent
PENGONETS. The Scheme Gurathan is an indicator of e weighted-average tme untll benedil paymants ane made, For the
srhames 540 whalke, the daratian & acoiand 1718 e ellesctng the appeosmate <plit of the delsed henetit abligation
batween current emplayess (duration of £23-24 years), daferred mambars (duration of c23-24 years) and curmen?
pansioners (ouration of ©13 years)

{ii} Funding requiremants

LE legpiskation requires that pemsion schemes are fundad pradently. The kst funding valuation report. 30 Seplember 2019
showed a deficit of GBFLIS?.0 millon (RM338.9 milion). The subsidany is paying deficit contributions af:

«  GBEPIGED inlion (RMBET million) by 1 |uly 2022
»  CEPIEAD milkon (RMSE.3 million) by 1 by 2023;
= GEPZO.Z0 milken (RMI07.9 million) by 1 july 2024;
*  GEPZZ00 milkan (AMITES milkan) by § july 2025
«  GBFZIAD milion (RM1E7.2 milion} by 1 Aprl 2026

which, along with ireestment fetums frem foiurn- woeking assels, is eopectod t mako good this shortf 20 by 1 April 2026

The next funding valuation is due no later than 30 September 2022 at which progress towards full-funding will oe
ool

Thee subsidiary also pays contributions of 24.6% of pensionable salaries inrespect of current acoruad and non-irvestment
related expenses. with active members paying a further 7.4% of pensionable salaties on average. A contribution of
GBPTIGG milion (RMBELT millicn) B expected (o be paid by the subsidiary during the year ending on 30 june 2023,

(ili] Risks associated with the scheme

Assel volatiily - The Satulities are caloulated Lsang & dacount i2te sel wilhi relerence Lo Corpordte bond yields: il assets
underperform his yiehd this will create a gelicl. The scheme holds a significant proporion of growth assets (equities
Inchuding a dwersified growth fund and a global absolute retum fund) which, thoogh expected to outperform corporate
biareds in the long-tesm, create salanhy ard risk in the sharr-1emm. The aliocation 1o growth as521s (5 monitoned toensure
It remaind Approprinta given the schema's lang-Temm ohjeciaes,

Changes in bond yieids - A decrease in comporate bond yields will nerease the valie placed on the scheme's Bahilities oo
accounting purpates, although this will be partially aftsat by an inoroas in the waluo of e schome’s bend hoidings,

Inflation risk - The majority of the scheme's banefit obiigations ame linked to inflatien and higher infiation wil lead to
tigher liabilities (altheugh, in inost cases, caps oh the lovel af inflatienary Inercases e in plice 1o protect agenst cxtreme

inflation). The majosity of the assels are either unaffacted by or only loosely cormelated with inflatian, meaning that an
Increase in inflation will alsa increase the defidt
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS! (CONTINUED)
e} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom (continued)
{iii} Risks associated with the schame [continued)

- 30 June 2022

Lt et tancy = The majonty of the seheme's abligations ane 1o provde berefis for thee ife of the memrber, so increses in
lite eapactancy will result in an increase i tha labilties. Tha trustees isume certain benefits payable on desth before retiemant,

The mowbments during the Bnanclal yoor in the emourts seongrised in the Statements ol Financisl Patition are a folow

Group
2022 2021
RMOD0 RMOD0
AL fuly 437.922 B59,245
Pension cost 64,258 FENE
Contributions and benedins paid [134,094) (120,782)
Currency translation diferences i589) BLISE
fg-measwemant gan (542.299) (447,331}
At 30 |une [174,802) 437,922
Thi amounts fec ogricsed in the Stioments of Finandal Podition are analyood o follaw:
Group
2022 2021
RMOODO RMOO0
Presant walie of Tunded obfigations 2207024 4722344
Falr value of plin assets (3.381.826) [4.284 428
|Assetylabliity in the Statements of Financal Position (174, 802) 437922
Changes in present vahse of defined bensfit oblgations ane s follows:
Group
2022 2021
RMOOO0 RMO0O
AT july 4,722,344 4.424,368
Currency tramslation dif ferences (275.586) 407168
Inderest cost B8.320 75,574
Current sonvion (ol 52,444 55850
Past senvice cost - 556
et benefits pald (153,576 42257}
R rmerurermant (gain)lavs:
- Actuarial gain alsing from financlal assumptions (1.294,428) (36,343)
- Actuarial losaigain) arising from experience adjusiments 67.506 {60570}
Arewent value of dofined benedit abligations, at 30 Juno 3,207,024 4,722,344
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/ASSETS) (CONTINUED)
{c] Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom [continued)
(i1} Risks assoclated with the scheme (continued)
Chiarges in Tair widkoe ol plan @Ssets ane oS Polows:

Graup

Z0z2 2021

RMOO00 RM'O00

AL Juby 4,284,422 1.555,121

Currency trarsiation ditf erences (274,997) 344,010

Interest incame B2 132 G1Ga2

Cantributions by empaayer 134,004 120.782

Rat henefits paid [163,576) (142.257)

Administration eogenses (5,626) (3.334)
Re-measurement gaan:

- Return on plan assets excluding iniesest inoome [6B4.623) 485418
Fair value of plan assats, &t 30 june 3,381,826 4,284 422
Thet: pfvaion cost recognimed is anadysed a3 Toloaws:

Graup
&0z2 2021
RM'CO0 RM'O00
Current service cost 52,444 55,850
Interest cost 6,168 13,8592
Past servica cost - 556
Administration expenses 5,626 1334
Talal charge o Income Statements 64,258 b3
Thet charge to Income Statements was induded In the following ne items:
Group
2022 2021
RM'O00 ReM'000
Cost al sales 53.8a7 54,165
Adminstration eponges 4.183 5575
Interest cost G188 13832
Tatal charge to InCome Statements 64,258 FEL:EFS
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS! (CONTINUED)
e} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom (continued)
{iii} Risks associated with the schame [continued)
Thee principal assumatioens whed i e actuanal calculibons were as Tollows:

Discount rate

Rate of Increase in pensions

Rate of incneass In salanes - [ong-todm
Inflation - kP

Inflation - (A

= 30 june 2022

Group
2022 2021
L %
3.80 190
2.10-2.90 210-290
1.90 190
3.00 3.00
2.50 250

The martality assumptions are based upon the recent actual mortadity expedenca of scheme members, and allow for

expected future iImprovemerts in mortakity rates

2022 2022 2021 2021

Male Female Male Female

Years Years Years Years

Uil expeciancy - cuent age 60 25.9 8.5 259 284
Lile spectancy - curtent age 40 47.2 49.7 471 496

The morality table adopted is based upon 105% of standard tables SIPMAFIA adusted to allow for individual years of
Birth. Fuiure improvements are assumed to be indine with the CMI 2016 core projectian, with a long-term improvement
rate of L.O% pak Tor all membeds.

The key assumptions uted for MERS 119 "Employeo Bonodits” aroc discount rate, inflation and mortality, I different
assumptions are used, this could have a material effect on the results disthosed. The sensitivity of the results to these
assumptions ame set out befow, For the purposes of these sensitivithes, |t has been assumed that the change in the

dizgount rate and inflatian has no impact on the vahme of stheme ssets
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONSAMASSETS) (CONTINUED)
{c] Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom [continued)
(i1} Risks associated with the scheme (continued)
SRty anatyss: (continued)

Scheme liabilities Schema surplus
Increase Increase Increase Decroase Decroase
[-1'] from 1o fram ta
Key assumptions RH'DOO0 RMO00 RMOOO RM'O00 RM'0D0

A meduction in the descoun? rate of

(1% [Trom 20% to 3.7%) £3.430 3,207,024 3200454 (174,802} {121.378)
Anincrease in the mflatson

assumption of B1% (from 25% to

26% for P and 3.0% to 3.1% for

RPHY #1673 3,207,024 3,246,693 {174.B02) 133.127)
Anincrease in e expeciancy of
1 year DR, 326 3207024 1313350 {174,802} (GBATE)

The plan assets comprised the following:

2022 2021
RMOO00 L] RM'OO0 T
Equity instrumsnt 1.073.409 3z 1730287 418
Debt instrument 1,892,491 56.0 20597568 49.0
Pigipwily 248,518 74 240,546 &b
Otihers 166,408 4.9 156,001 16
3,381,826 1000 4284422 100.0

Graup
2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'ODO
Actiial retum on plan assats (602 491) 410,100
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS! (CONTINUED)
[d} Defined benefit plans - Indonesia

Summary of chiigations relating to employee henafits due under prevailing law and requiations a5 well 3% undar the Indonesea
subsidiany's requiiations are as presented balown

Group
2022 2021
RMD0O RMODO
Olsgation relatng 1o post-employment benetits 12,254 13310
Obsigation rekyling 1o athes long-tetrn emplayes benefits 2.971 268G
Tatad 15225 21,996

A subsidiary of the Coup has a defined contnbution pension plan covering its qualified permanent national emplayees in
Inclonesla Thie sulrsifiany's contributian is 5% of amplayss bash salany, while the erployoes’ coneibutian ranges fram % 1o
1494,

Thix conribunans mate 10 the defined cantribution plan are acoeptablie for funding the past-employment benedi1s under the
labour regulations,

The obiigations for post-employment and other ieng-tem employes Denetits were recognised with reference 1o actuzrial
reparts pregared by an mdepandent athuary, The latest actuaral report was dated 30 juna 2022,

(I} Past-employment benefit abligations
The movements during The finanoal year in the amounts recogrised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:

Group

2022 2021

RM000 RMODO

AL july 19,310 17,861
Pemion (credin)forst {4,756 2205
Contributions and benefits pasd (&675) (B55)
Cutency franslation diferences ABS {?B5)
Re-meanremant (pun]ioss (2.090) 264
AL 30 june 12,254 19310

The ociligations ralating to past-amaloyment benefits recogrised n the Statements of Financial Positlon are as follows:

Group
2022 2021
RM0ODO RMOOO
Present value of oblgators 12,254 19310
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS) (CONTINUED)
{d) Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (continued)
(I Post-employment benefit obligations (cantinued)
Changes i present valie of defined benefit obligatins are as Tollows:

Graup
2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'O00
AL Juby 15,310 172561
Currency trarsiation ditf erences 465 (=11
Intierest cost 1,219 1179
Current service cost 1,203 1,030
Past service credit (6.197)
Rt benalins paid (675} {B59)
Adprstment due o change in bensfit attribution method (981} -
Re-measurement [gainjfioss
= Adtuanal {gain)ass aing from finandial assumpticns (654} 1,650
- Artuarial galn arising from expenence adustments (L.436) {386}
Present value of defined benelit obligations, ot 30 june 12.254 19310
Thet pisneslean cost recognises can bir analysed a5 follows:
Group
2022 2021
RM'DOO RM'OO00
Current wervice cast 1,203 1,030
Interest cost 1219 LI7a
Past service credit [6.197) -
Adpsiment due o change in benafit anribution method [281) -
Totsl charge to Infore Statements {4.756) 2209

(i} Othar long-torm employee benafit obligations

Tha obdigations mlating to other long -torm employoe bonefits (Le. leng leave serdce benefits] recognisod in the Statoments
of Financial Position are a5 follows:

Group
2022 2021
RM'OO00 RM'ODO0
Present value of obligations 29n 2606
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(if) Other long-term employes banefit obligations (continued)

35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS! (CONTINUED)
[d} Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (continued)

= 30 june 2022

Thee mereeemaents duneg thi tinandial year in e amount recogrised in thi Statemants of Financiaf Postian are a6 folows:

Group
2022 2021
RMOOO0 RMO00
A july 2,686 2455
Penskon cost 653 L]
Artuadnal loss - 20
Contributions and benefits paid (76) {15&]
Cigrency franslation differences [298) 104)
At 30 june 2.971 2,686
Changies |i presen? valus of dofined bonelit obigations are s Fodows:
Group
2022 2021
RMDOO RMOO0
AL fuly 2,686 2455
Cwrrency franslation dfferences 298) {109
Custesnt sefvice £ost 659 A73
Actuanial lnss - &
Interest cost - 5
Mot borelis pakd {76} s
At 30 june 2.971 2,686

The amounts relating 1o other lang-tem employee benefits obligaton recognised in the income Statemants are as follows:

Group
2022 2021
RMDDD RM'OOD
Curment sendce cosl 658 473
IntEnest cost - 5

The change above was intuded in the cost of ales
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/ASSETS) (CONTINUED)
(d) Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (continued)
(i} ©ther long-term emplayee benefit obligations (continued)
T privecipal Assumplions used in The scTuanal COCubiTRns wire a5 follows:

Graup
2022 2021
L] k]
Distount rale 73 &3
Future salary increase rate 9.0 9.0

Ar 20 |une 2022, tho wisghiod. averago duration of this dalinod bonalit ablgations wat 5.00 yoas [2021: 7.04 yoars).

Reasonahiy possible changes to the koy assumptions. would kave affected the detined berefit obligations by the amounts
shanam bedoer
2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'G00 RM'OD0 RM'GOO
Increase Docrease Increase Docroase
Discount rate (1% movement) (723} a4 LE] 1044
Future salary increase rato
(1% mervement) 1134 [1.055) L778 1LE31)

This analysis depicts the approximate sensitivity of the benefits oiligation to & reasonabie possible change In assumptions,
bt oy il Lakae acconsnl off Ehis wanlalility i Uwe tirsteg of disbibution of beredid payments eapectieg wder e plan,
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3&. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Affordable Rectification Damages
housing works Restructuring clalms
36(a) 36{b) 36(c) 3G(d) Total
MNote RMOO0 RMO00 RM'O000 RMODO RMO00
Group - 2022
Al beginning of the financlal year - 4,035 39,328 105,618 148 981
Additions - . 623 - 623
Aocration of interests - - BE9 - 863
Curmency ranslation differences - [ (349) {6.044) [6.387)
Chargedi{credited) to income
Sratemani r 22,343 [3.575) anz 1.343 21,003
Hilizea - (276} - {1.437) {1.713)
Payments - - (759) - {759)
At end of the inancal yoar 22,343 190 40,604 99,480 162,617
Presented as fallows:
Current 22,343 190 18,959 99,480 140.972
Han-turrent - - 21.645 - 21645
22,343 190 40,6504 99,480 162,617
Group - 2021
AL biginning of e Tmanilal yeds - 4,810 ca 417 103,374 136,501
Additions - - 19,250 - 19,250
Aocretion of interests - - a0z - 902
Cumency tramslation differentes . 6 A0 2339 2,385
Credited 1o Intome Slatemerts 7 (7.304) [7.304)
Utilised - [FE1) * = {781)
Payments - {1977 {55) {2.072)
Ab e of the financal year - 4,035 19,378 105,616 148 981
Presented as follows:
Cumant - 4,035 1157 105.616 121229
Hon-curnent - 27752 - 27,758
4,035 39,38 105,616 148,981

(a) Affordable housing

This represents a pravision for foreseeabls losses arksing from the present obligation for construction aof low cost houses.

(b} Rectification works
This represents @ provision Tor estimated cost of rectification works for completed project.
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36. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES (CONTINUED)
{c] Restructuring
This represents a proviskan for scaling down of cperations, emironmantal labilities and asset retiement obligation,

{d) Damages clalms

This TEQresents a provision Tor propects undesiaken by subsiciangs and are reogrised lor expected damages claims based on
the teirmond the apiplicatls agresmento

37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Graup Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'D00 RM'000
Trade payables 2,286,487 1892457 = =
Dther payables 575,044 380,589 511 1102

Daferrad income 100 9,266 -
Socunity oot 196,604 118,185 - =
Accrued expenses® 1,456,864 1295442 27,406 26,956
4,525,099 A645,%39 27,917 2A,058

# Acrruse BxpetERs o COMprise MEENEET prpniies, reguiaITiy nosrs and copaol avpendimae.

The credit temms of frede payables granied to the Group vary from 30 days to 160 days (2021 30 days to 160 days), Other credit
TR e assesued and approved on @ case-Dy-gase hiis.

3H. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
T Growuip's aned The Comfany's aporatans ane sub@cr 1o foreign murrency eechange sk, mIpnes: @ nsk, price sk ooedit risk and
Tiepuidiny tisk.

Thie Group's and the Compary’s nancial risk management palicy seeks to ansune that adequate resoutes ae avaikable 1o manage
the above risks and to create vakee for it sharsholdars. Bt s not the Group's and the Compamy™s policy to engage i speculative
transactions.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures Far managing each of these rsks and they afe summarised
below:-

{a) Forelgn currency exchange risk

Fareign cumency exchange nsk is the sk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fimancial instrument will Huctuate because
al ehhnges in forenn ekchange mied

Thir Groswp is @xposed 1o tisks ansing from vanous curmency exposures primaily with respect to the Great British Pounds [ "GEF)
and Singapare Dolars ("SG07). The Group has imastmants in foaoign opermtions whote net assets ane expased 10 forkgn
cusTency transtation risk Such exposures are mitigated through borrowings denominated in the mspactve functional curenties
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38. FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{a) Foreign currency exchange risk {continued)

‘whare necessary, the Gmup enters into forsard foreign currency exchange contracts to Bmit its esposune an foneign curmancy
recalvaiies and payabies, and on cash fiows generated from anticipated Wansactions denominated in foreign curmencies.

There & no significant expose ta Toreign currency axchanga risk lor the Group and tha Company.

Hedge af o net investrment in Auctralia and japan

At tha reporting date, the Groug's investment i its Austraia and japenese subsidiaries are hedged by AUD term loan with a
fofal CAryirg amount ol RMBA4 milion [ALNZTA milion] (2021 RMARE mEon [ALDZ7E milkan]) and the B teem aan with
a carmying amount of fEM174 million [JPY5401 milkon] (2021 ml), respectively with the purpose to mitigates the curency risk
arrsing from the subsidianys net assets. The foteign currency koans ate designated as a net imvesimant hedge

The Group determinas the existence of an economic relationship batween the above hedging instrument and hedged Hem
pased on the currency and amount The Croup has established a hedge ratio of 1 @ 113 (20210 1 : 1.20) for Australla ano § :
DEF (2021 All) far [apan as the urdeilying rigk of the hadging instnamant K santical 1o the hedgod sk corpaneit. The Giolug
has assessed the etfectiveness of the abowe hedging relationship at the reporting date by compating changes in the camying
amaurt of the loan that ks attributable to changas in the exchange rate with the changes in the net imestment in the fereign
apOraTEn dud 10 MmavEments in (he exchange e

{b) Imterast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the falr valua or future cash flows of the Group's and the Company’s financlal instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market nterest rates

The Group's and the Company's exposure to interest rate risk arse primarlly from ther floating rate bonds and borrowings.
wihilch |s partially affset by the depostis and short-team irvostmaents held 3t variable rates. The Group and the Company manage
thair cash Tl int@ngsn rate risk by uting amix of fixed and vatiabla rate debts Darative Rnancial instremens s used,
where appropriate, to generate the desired interest rate profile,

The interest rate prafile af the Growp’s and the Companys signdicant interest baading Tinancial instuments, based on thelr
camying amounts 35 at the reparting date, are as follows:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMODO RMODO RMODO RMODO
Fixed rate instruments

Financiad llabdinies 18,897,981 22,943,057 3,240,000 3.240,000

Warlable rate Instruments
Financial assets 8,990,473 12,243,775 705,996 a0],855
Finarcial liabilties 23,358,201 22131386 1,066,963 LOGE.95%
32,348,680 34375161 1.772.959 1.568.4950
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED]
{b) Interest rate risk {continued)

At the reporting date, i the interest rates had baen 50 basis points lawear/higher, with ail other variables held constant. 1he
Groug's 2nd the Company's profit before tax and equity would be higherowes by spproximately HMETEE milkon (2021 RM1I0G
mitian) and RM5.3 milan (2025 RM5.3 mibon), respecingty, a5 a resul? of lowerigher inTeres! eapenss on borrowings.

The Group and the Company do not acoount for any feed mate instruments at fair value theough profit or loss, Therefane, a
change in intedast rates At tho reparting date wauld nat affect Thelr profit balane tis

The aucess funds of the Group and the Company are invested in bark depostts and other shart-term instrumenis, The Group
and the Company manage 1hir iguidy taks by placing such cxtess funds an shoet: torm maturities 1o match its cash fow
negds, f interest deposit rates increased/decreased by 10 basis paints, intarest income of the Group and the Compary for the
financial year would Increase/decrease by RMS.0 million (20£1: AM12.2 million) and RM0.7 mélian (2021 RMOS million),
respectively.

(e} Price risk
Inwestments

The Growp snd the Company are exposed to equity secwities and income funds pice risk arising from investments held which
are thansified on the Statement of Financla Position either as financial assets at fair value through ather comprehansive Bicome
[FYTOCT) and Minardial assets ot fa value thraugh profic or kss (FYTPLT)

To manage their price risk aising from mvestments in egty securities, the Group and the Lompany deversify thair portfolia.
Far intome furds and anit trusts, the Groop and the Compary maindy invest n AR mtad bonds and Morssy Marke! Funds
This investment is maant to achieve betier yield as compared to fized deposits. At the mporting date, (F the prices of the
ircame funds and unit trusts at FYTPL increasedfdecneased by 1% (20211 1%) with all other variables including tax rate boing
held earstant, the Group's and the Comparnys prafit aftar tae will be lowerigher by RMIS0 million {2021 BM24.7 milian)
and RM56.5 million (2021: RM&.S5 milion), respectivaly,

AL tha reponting dane, the Croup's and thir Compary™s oxpisunt 10 quated oquity invesimoents at Tiir vake are RM770,404
mitan {2021: RM1,789.730 million) @nd AM14153 milllon (2021 RM12587 million), respectivaly,

The follewing table demonstrates the indicative effects on the Croug's and the Company's equity applying remsonably foreseeable
market movements i the quoted market prices at the reporting date, assuming all other vanables remain constant.

Increases
Decrease
Carrying in quated Etfect on
amounts market prices equity
RMODOD e RMODO
Group - 2022
Local etpities 13,770 +1-10 1377
Farsign eruities 756,634 +4-10 75,663
Group - 2021
Local emuities 363,799 +1- 10 36360
Fareign eguities L4gs4541 +1 10 142.593
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
e} Price risk [continued)
Investments (continued)
Increase/
Decroase
Carrying in quoted Effect on
amounts market prices equity
RMOOD W RMOOD
Company - 2022
Local eqiities 5.708 A+ 10 571
Forsign equities B.445 +f- 10 B45
Company - 2021
Locol puitics 4853 w10 485
Foreign equities TH3 +-10 783
Fuel commodity

The Group hedges its fual commaodity price risk by the use of derivative instruments against fluctuations in fuel ol prices which
affect the cost of fued

The Group has contracts for the sale of electricity to the Singapore electricity pool at prices that are fixed in advance every
thiree manths and to retal cistomens & prices that are efiher fixed in anownt or in picing farmuea for perods U 1a 2 numbsr
af years, The fizing of the prces under the contracts i based Largely on the price of fuel ol requined to generate the oecnicity.
The Group enters into fuel oll swaps o hedge against adverse price movements of fuel ol prices. The Group typicaly enters
inlo & swap 1o pay a lieed price and recene a varable price indexed 10 a benchmank: fuel price index.

Exposure to price fluctuations arisng from the purchiase of fuel oll and natiral gas ee subistantialy managed via swaps whene
the price is Indexed to a benchmark fusl price indes, for examale 180 C3T fuel oil and Dated Brent, The Croup's exposure 1o
U Tl Ruation of Torwand price cone B imematerial,

[d)} Credit risk
Credit risk is thie patentlal financial loss resulting fiom this faiue of & comnbepany to setthe thisi obligations 1o the Group
and the Compary,

The Groug's exposure 1o credil (sk anises pimarily Diom rade @nd ol receivablies. Meamsile, the Company's Bxposmes 10
credil rivk atise from othar receivables. For other financla assets Encluding imestment seoutitkes, cosh angd cash equssalents
and dezivathve financal instruments), the Group and the Company minimses credit isk by dealing exclusively with high credit
rating {oumBIparties,
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED]
{d) Credit risk (continued)
Concentration of credit rsk

Due 1o the natwe of the Group's business, customers are mainly segregatied actording 19 business segmints. in the Group's
ot wtdities businéss in Smgapare, tredit reviews are performead on all crstomars with establishied credit Bmits and genarally
supparted by coliatesal in the form of guaraniess. For the Groug's water and sewerage business, the credit ik of recetvables.
is mitigated thiough <t collsction procedunes. The Deractor are of the wview that credt fisk arming From thede Butineasy
is imited due to the lame tustomer hase

Trade receivables, unbilled recaivables ond contract assets

The Graup applies the MFRS 9 simpified approach to maasune ECL wihich uses a lifetime expacted loss alowance Tor all trade
receivables, unbilled recevabies and conftract assets. To meaure the EOL, trade receivablas, unbilled receivabies and contrac
assets have baen grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due

Thir expectod loss rates are determmed Based on 1 year 1o 13 years of hivtorical ageing profile and the cormesponding historical
credit kosses experienced within this period. The historicad loss rates are adusted ta reflect forward-dooking information on
macmecanomic Tactioes alfecting the abdity of the customess to setthe the recerables. Same of the factars which the Gloup
has idernitified incluche unemploymment re, eooncmic Trends, and annual Grods Domestic Product (G0F7) giowth and has adjusted
thie histurical loss fetes based on expected changes in such factors,

On that basts, the loss alipwancs was determined a5 Tollows for trade receivables, unhilled recervables. contract assats and

related parties:
|- m e e -— Past due —eoe oo 1
Current 1-90days 91 - 120 days * 120 days Tatal
RMO00 RM'0D0 RM'DOO RMODO RM'O00
Group - 2022
Gross. Camying amaurnt
- Tradha recoivabies Lb&159,984 185.254 18.825 978,551 2,802,714
= Unbilled recowahles 1,291,969 - - - 1.291.969
- Contract assets 208,065 - - - 208,065
3.120.018 185,254 18.925 978,551 4,302,748
Allowance for impagmient
= Traha recoheabies [45.608) (9.171) {2.862) (480,457) (538.088)
- Unbilled receivales (7.937) - - - (7.997)
- Contract assets (29} = - - 289}
[53.894) {9.171) [2.862] {480,457) (546.384)
Met carrying amount 3,066,124 176,083 16,063 498,004 3,756, 364
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
[d} Credit risk {continued)
Trade receivables, unbilled recefvobles and controct assets (continued)
[ . Past due «rrreemrrrersmmananans| 1
Current 1-90days 91 - 120 days » 120 days Total
RM'O00 RMODD RMTOOO RMO00 RMODO
Group - 2021
Camss carrying amount
- Trade recesvzbies 1132.ere 286,774 ErAE -] BE3.052 2265238
Linbibed recaivablios 046,467 S46.467
= Contract assets 192712 - - - 192,712
2271451 2267 37,135 BEA.0G2 JADA 1T
ABgwarce far impairmant
- Trade recehvables {57,761} [18,249) {6.723) [A54.353) [537.206)
= Linhifiad recowabios (B.181) . . - (B.151)
- Contract assits {19 - - - )
85,9911 (18,349 16.723] [454.353) [F5416)
Net carrying amount 2205460 208430 0412 414,693 £H52001

At tha reporting date, the maximum exposise bo credit risk of the financlal assets of the Group and the Company are represented
by the carying amaunts i the Statoments of Financia Position, ascept for the Group's trade recenables an elecincity and
stoam sales where the Group will assess each customar individually and typically require collateral in the form of banicars’
guarartess or deposis from selected curstomers,

Cosh ond benk balances

The Graup and the Comgany placo 1% cath and bank balances with o numbor of croditwarthy finandal institutions., Tha Grow's
and the Compamy's policy mit the concentration of finandal exposure to amy single finandal instintion. While cash and bank
balances are alsa sulgect o the impalment requirements of MERS 9, the idenilied Imparment loss was immaterizl.

Derivative financiol instruments

Trarmac o iwalving derivative financial instruments e alowed only with colntarparties that ane of high ot quality. As
such, management does not expect any countemparties to fal te maet thelr obfigations. The Group and the Company consider
the risk of matzral loss on the event ol non:pefdormance by a financial counter party to be unlicely,

Other recelvables

Ther Geoup and the Company wse thie 3-stages approach for the ECL on the ather reetvaties and amaunt dus from nlated
parties. The 3-stages approach reflects thelr receivables’ credit nsk and how the loss afowance is determined for sach of those
Categories
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED]
{d) Credit risk {continued)
A summary of the sssumptions underpinning the Group’s and the Compary's ECL mode |5 a5 foliows-

Basis for
Category Group's and Company’s definition of category recognising ECL
Parfarmng Debiors have a low nsk of default and a strong capacity to meet 12 month ELL

confraciud cash floms.

Underperforming bebtors for which there is a significant incraase in credit risk ks presumed  Lifetime ECL
IF interest andior pincipal repaymens are 90 days past dus

Debtors and repayments are more than 365 days past due. Lifetimsa ELL

Non-perfomming

Write-odt Ihare is evidence indcating that there B no reasonabie expactation of Asset is wiitten ofl
recavery hased on unavailability of debtors sowrces ot noome o assets
16 genatate sulficent fulure eash s to regay 1he amaunt

Based on the above, |0 allowance |8 measuied on either 12 manth ECL of lifetime ECL using & PD x LGD x EAD methacalogy
whang -

* PO (pobability of defaut] - the likelibood that the detlar would not be able to fepay during the tontractual posiod,

= LGD (loss geaen didaull’) - the peropitage af contractual cash Towes wall nof be collectyd @ delaull happens, and

*  EAD (eporure ol default) - the outstanding amount thel is exposed to delaul sk

I deriving 1he PD and LT, the Grodip @nd the Company conssder histodcal gate by each debior Dy catsgory and adjists Tor
Torwand-looking macmedonomic data The Group and the Company hawve idemilied 1ha industry and peographical anea which
the debior operates in 1o be the most relevant factors. and accordingly acpusts the historical loss rates based on axpected
rharges in thede Rartors, Livss alowancn is measuned a1 @ peobahiling-sesighted amount that refiects the possibiny that a
crardit ks ofcurs andd the possibilty that o coedit lows ocours, o significant changes 1o estimation technioues of assumplions
were made during the reparting period.

The manamum credit risk esposure of the fimancial assets of the Group and the Company ave approxmately their carrying
amounts as at the ond of the reporting period.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
[d} Credit risk {continued)
Hovement on the Group’s and the Company's loss allowances |5 as follows
Trade Unbiiled Contract Redated Other
receivables  receivables ansels parties  recoivables Total
RM'000 RMODD RAM'OD0 RMDOO RM'OO0 RMOO0D
Group - 2022
ALl uly 2021 537,206 B.191 19 757 90,456 636,629
Allowance for impaiment
of retevabiles 116,166 413 270 206 31,028 148,083
wiite back of impairmant
ol retevatiles {25.398) - - - (94} 25,492}

wrritten off during the
fimanchal year as

uncoliectible (GB.587) - - - {4.911) (73,508}
Currency ranslatian

Efferances (21.279) (607) - - 1188 [20,698)
At 30 June 2022 538,008 7.997 2809 f63 117,667 BES5, 014
Group - 2021
At july 2020 557230 7.568 1o 134 156,748 21, ra0
Alcwiance far impaiment

ol retafvalies 107121 . . R 4,752 1249
Wit badk of impainmen

of retanables (2.085) (7,-1] {913 - {69,114} (105, 368)
Writien off during thie

financkal year as

uncolectible {112:62F) - - - [1.857) [114.575)
Currency wandlaion

it eren 55 £1.563 101 - - 22 22786
Al 30 |uie 2021 5372500 alal 19 757 G055 B3G50
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED]
{d) Credit risk (continued)

Related Cthar

parties recelvables Toral

RM'DO0 RMO00 RM'GO0
Company - 2022
AL puly 2021 116,665 1.765 1i8.430
Write back al maalrment of recchalbios {79,680) - {79.680)
At 30 june 2022 35,985 1,765 38,750
Company - 2021
AL 1 july 2020 11E,B58 1765 118,624
WWrite back of imaaimment of recelvables [194) - [194)
At 30 pme 2021 116,665 1765 118,430

{e) Liguidity risk

Liquidifty risk is the ridk that the Group and the Company will encouner difficulty n meeting Financlal chligations due to shortage
of Tunds, The Goup's and the Comgay's exposure 1o lgubdity sk arises peimardy from mismatches of the matwities of linanclal

anseTs and Habdities

The Group's and the Compamy's objective ae 10 maintain a batance betwean continuity of funding and flexitdity through the

s of Stand-ty crodit BaZdities
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38. FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{e} Liguidity risk {continued)

The tahla halw summarsas the maturity profile of the Group's and the Compamy's financial Bshilities a3t the eporting date
based on contractisal undiscounted repayment obfigations:-

on demand
or within 1ta Dwer
1 year 5 years 5 years Taotal
RMO0O0 RMO0D RMODO RMOD0
Group - 022
Hon-derivative:
Trade and other payables 4,524,999 103,472 - 4,628,471
Bonds and bomowings 8,696,345 26,457,760 Z1.652.682 56,6806.601
Lease abilities 258,765 T42.219 1,122,104 2.123.088
Reloted parties 35,51 - - 35,511
13,515,644 27,303,451 22, 770796 63,593,691
Derivative:
Tuel oll ywagps 8,053 1,298 - 8,351
Currency forwands 262 59 - EE
Electricity futums 13,425 - - 13.425
21,740 1367 - 23,107
Company - 2022
Non-derivative:
Tranle and other payables 27.917 - - 27.917
Bordd and barrmwings 2.208.298 1,092,800 1,956,625 5.257.723
Lrase iahilinies 7074 2,358 - 8.432
Bplated partles B.542 - - B.542

2,249,831 1.095.158 1,956,625 5.301.614
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED]
{e) Liguldity risk {[continued)

Tha tahile below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's and the Company's financial llab&ties at the reporting date
based on contractual undscounted repayment coligatons:- (continued]

On demand
or within 1to Drer
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
RM'O00 RMH'DOO RMOO0 RM'ODO
Group - 2021
Mon-derivative;
Trade and other payahles 3RBAGATY 178,350 - 1 ERANT
Bonds and borrowings 10,742,663 £1.586,915 250,713 452,585,611
Laasa liatwities cHELESS B/1.706 1.094%.438 £456.860
Redated parties IEA1L - ] FHA411
14, TS6552 22637571 26,356,551 63751114
Defivative:
Fuel ol swaps FAL:T 141 - FEIE]
Currency Toewarnds 11629 G52 - 12221
Ewnctricity huluris 1554 - - 15.53
34,074 3 - 3,087
Company - 2021
Non-derivative:
Trade and other payables 28,058 - - 28,058
Bonds and borrowings L20E, 125 2155560 2035200 5,398,885
Lease llatslities T4 5432 - 16506
Retated partses 4 460 B 2 4460
L247.717 164,952 2035200 5,447,909
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{a) Categories of finandal instrumants
The table balowe proyides an analyss of financial nstrumants eitegorised a5 follows
Financial Assets
Fair value  Derivatives
Amortised through used for
cost  profit or loss hedging Fvoci Total
Mote RMOO0 RMO0D RMO0D RMODOD RMODO
Group - 2022
Man-cumrent
nvestments 1:] - 99,978 - 241,550 F41.528
Trade and other receivables. 20 2.481.355 275,745 - - 2.757.100
Dergative Tinanckl inmtruments. 1 - - 20,607 . 20,607
Cumrent
e bima s 18 - 1,500,569 - - 1,500,569
Dervative finarcial imstruments. 21 - jilil] #15,007 - 415,891
Trade and other ieceivables 20 4,117.934 - - - 4,117,934
Amount due from related parties 25 101,465 - - - 101,465
Fined depasits 26 8,230,733 - - - 8,230,733
Cash and bank balances 26 3167024 - - - 3167824
Tatal 18,008,311 1877176 435,614 241,550 20,653,651
Financial Liabilities
Fair value  Derivatives
through usad for Amortised
profit or loss hedging cost Total
Note RMrOOD RMOO0 RMOGD RM'OO0
Group - 2022
Hon-current
Long-term payables £9 - - 103,472 103472
Bands a0 - - 17,582,938 17,582,938
Barrowirgs n - - 17,761,958 17,761.959
Loeass Rabilitios 12 - - 1,245.678 1,245,678
Dervatives financlal instruments Fil 761 BOE - 1,367
Cumrent
Trade and other payabias 37 - = 4,524,998 4,524,899
Derrvatiees financial insiruments £l - 21,740 - 21,740
Amaunt due 1o related parties 25 - - 35,531 35,531
Bonds 30 L - 2630,000 2,630,000
Barmowirgs £l - - 4281285  4.2681.285
Leasa Aabilities 2 - - 170,923 170,939
Taowd 761 22,346 48.336.801 48,359,908
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUEDI]
{a) Categories of financial instruments {continued)
The table below provides an amabysis of financial instruments cateqorised as loliews: (contimed)

Financial Assets

Falir value
Amartised through
cost  profit or loss FWhoci Total
HNote RM'O00 RH'00D RE'O00 RMH'O00
Company - 2022
Mon-curnent
Investments 10 - 14,153 9,598 23,751
Current
Trade and other recehyables 20 8117 - - 8.117
Amount due from related parties 25 851,154 - - 851,154
Irnriiments 18 - 545,668 - 545,668
Faird dioposits 26 160,328 B - 160,228
Cach and bank balancas Facl 36371 - - 36,371
Total 1,155,570 559,821 9,558 1,725,389
Financial Liabilities
Amartised
cost Total
Hote RM'000 RM‘OD00
Company - 2022
Maon-current
Homdas Elv] 2,240,000 2,240,000
Aouraadngs E 1] 55 55
Lease liabdites 32 £.339 £.339
Current
Trade and other payables r 27,917 2r. a1y
Amount due 1o related panies &5 G.542 6,542
Bonds 30 1,000.000  1,000.000
Boimowings an 1,066,908  1.066.908
Laase llabbiius 32 6844 G844
Tatal 4,350,605 4,350,605
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
{a) Categories of finandal instruments (continued)
The table below pravides an analyss af financial nstrumants categorised a5 Follows: {continued)
Financial Assets
Fair value  Derivatives
Amortised through used for
cost  profit or boss hedging Fuoci Total
MNote RMOO0 RMOOD RMO0O RMOOQ RMO00
Group = 2021
Non-currant
nyestmsents [1:] - S0.7HA - 5,935 5718
Trade and other recetvabies. 20 153659 263,178 - - LB05,757
Derrvative financial imtruments. 21 - - 26,461 - 26,461
Current
rvestments 1] 2473454 - - 2472454
Denvative financial instiuments. 21 Az ZIBTT 263,719
Tratke and other fecebables 20 3,230,086 - - - 3,230,086
Amaund dise from mlated partdes 25 92910 . - - gz.oi0
Fiued deporsits 26 1522776 - * & 1L522 776
Cash and hank halances 26 FALCE | - - - FALLY B |
Taral 18538222 £793.457 290,138 254,935 SLEMGTSE
Financial Liabilities
Falr value  Derivatives
through used for  Amortised
profit ar loss hedging cost Taotal
Naote RMO00 RMO0D RMO0DO RMO00
Group - 2021
Hon-current
Long-torm payaliles 29 . - 179,350 179,350
Bands 30 - = 20.736,133 20.756,133
Barrowlrgs £l | - - 14.654.414 14,654,414
Dermvatives finandial instruments 21 E:] a4 - nI
Lease Gabilities 12 - - 1303867 1,303,067
Currant
Trade and other payables 7 - - 31,686673 3,686,673
Derivatives financlal instrumeants 21 - 34,074 - 34074
Amaiant due 1o related parties 25 . . a4 841
Honds 40 - - 2571944 2571984
Borrowdrgs 1] - - 0914972 JoaLaTe
Loase Aabilitios 32 . - 180,051 180,041
Total e 34,748 50.462.835 k497622

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 283

559/624



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUEDI]
{a) Categories of financial instruments {continued)
The table below provides an amabysis of financial instruments cateqorised as loliews: (contimed)

Financial Assets

Falir value
Amartised through
cost  profit or loss Fvocl Total
Note RMO00 RM'DO0 RM'O0D RM'OOO0
Company - 2021
Mon-cLirrent
InvEsTments 10 = 44,300 9,599 53099
Current
Trade anid other recaivables 20 1383 - - 7383
Amount due from miated parties 25 L32599 : - 1342559
(TS [T 18 - B54,708 - E54,708
Fuid deposits 26 247047 - - 247,147
Cavh arudl bk balancas 25 2071 . - 071
Total L EOOL200 599,008 6,549 2,308,807
Financial Liabilities
Amartised
cost Total
Note RM'000 RM'OOO0
Company - 2021
Mon-current
Bonds 30 .o s Fa RN
Laasa liatsities 32 5,056 5,056
Current
Tradie and sther payaiies £ 28,0538 28,058
Amount due 1o related panbes ] #4460 4460
Boirawdings i 1,066,995 1,066,995
Lease |lablivios 32 BTG 5716
Total 4,355,285 4355285
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
{b} Fair value measuremant
The table balma anabyses financial instrumants carried at fair value, by valuation mathod, The different levels have haen
definad as. follows!
(i} Lawel 1 Quated pricss. junadjusted) in actve markets Tor dentical assets of labiktes.

iy Lowel 2 Inputs oiher than cuoted pices inciuded within Level 1 that ane observable for the asser of llabaay, either deecty
(i prices) or indiregtly (Lo, dorived from prices),

{Hiy Lewed 3 : Inguats For the asset or Eabdlity that are not based on obsesvable market data {unobsenvable inputs),

At the reporting date. the Group and the Company held tha Following finandial instruments camied at fair value on the Statements
af Finanoal Padithon:

Lavel 1 Laval 2 Lavel 3 Tatal
RMOO0 RM'000 RMODO RMO00
Group - 2022
AsSse1s
Financial assets at fair value through
prafin or boss:
- Trading derlvatives - aad - B84
= ncomefequity hunds - 1.500,569 - 1,500,569
= Equity imvestments 14153 85,825 - 99,978
Derivatives wied Tor hedging 5352 430,262 - 435,614
Financial assets at far value through other
comprehin o incomas 15,420 19,873 206,249 241,550
Taotal 34,933 2,037,413 206,249 2,278,585
Liabilities
Fimancial llabiltes at fair value 1hrough
peaafin o loss:
- Trading derivatves - 76l - 761
Derivative used for hedging 13,425 B8zl - 22,346
Tard 13,425 9.682 - 23,107
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED]
{b) Falr value measurement {continued)

AR the reporting date, the Group and the Company held the Tollewing financal irstruments camied 3t falr vahie on the Statemants
of Financial Fosition {continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
RM'DO0 RM'DOO RM'OO0 RM'ODO0
Group - 2021
Assels
Fornancial assets at fair vahse thiowgh

profit or loss:

- Trading derivatives - a2 - 42

= Iramiiguity furds - 205,067 - 2,305,067

- Eipuity ivesiiments 12667 BAE3 - 19570
Dt vatives used far hedging - 290,138 - 290,138
Financial assets at fair value theoigh other

comprehiensive incme 24 588 45 230,308 £54 935
Tutal 7275 280177 230302 A0E0.352
Liabilities
Friiicial Balnlities a0 falr walue thiough

profit or loss:

- Tradiing chisivathvs - 39 = 9
Dervating used for hedging = 34,748 - 34,748
Tatal - 34,767 : 34787
Company - 2022
Assels
Fnanclal assets at falr valse theough profit or

23] 14,153 545,668 - 559,821
Fnanclal assets at falr valse theough ather

camprehensive income & - 9,594 5,598
Total 14,157 545668 9,584 569.419
Company - 2021
AsLEIS
Financial assets at fair valee theough

profit or loss 12687 654,700 JLEl3 99,000
Foanclal assets at fair valee theough ather

carmprehesiye inoame 3 - 9,594 9,539
Total 12692 854,708 41207 08807

Cririreg the current financizl year, there ware no transters tetween Level 1 and Level 2 falr value measuremants.
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40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRAMNSACTIONS

Far the purpose of these financial stalements. parties are considered to be related to the Group iF the Group o the Company has
rha abilty, directly ar indirecty, to comtral tha party of exercse Sgnificant influance ovor the pany In madng financlal and operating
decisions, of vice versa, or whem the Group or the Company and the party are subject to comman control or commen significant
influence. Related parties may be indwiduals or other antities.

= 30 june 2022

Kay managemant parsonnel ara definad as those parsons having autharity and respomsibfity for planning, directing and contrmlling
th activities of the Group sither directly o indirectly, The key managemant personnel include all the Directors of the Group.

{a) Significant related party transactions

(i} inaddition o redated pamy disciotures mentkaned elunshers i Thi fnancial SEMEnTs, w0t out bilow ane othes ggnificant
related party transactions.

Group
2022 2021
Entity Relationship Type of transactions RMO0O RMOCO
Aliance Condrate foint yenture Sale of cement and concrets and 136,128 o 22T
Sengapare Pre. Lid, EompaEny relaned wervices
Beistol Weiiow Biling faii vedlure Billing and detits collection 60,001 61221
Servioes Limétod company
Information technofogy consulkancy 18,102 3122
and related sendces
East WesT Ventures Suliskiiany of Lease rental of imastment propary 11152 LT E]
Sain. B, haldng company
Rental ingamiz From outsource of B.874 14,681
hmotel rpoms and food & beverage
Inooemie
Elsttrabist Py Lid, Assodiated company  Inberest intome 13,240 26,370
Euprorss Rail Link Sdn,  Associated company  Progress hillings related to ciwl 2L311 2190
Bttt enginsering & canstruction waorks
BT, [aws Power Associated company Management, operation and 65.918 B1,944
mainfenance foes
Sl Glihal REIT Asanciatnd company Lease e 749,661 G2 ARE
Progress billing af canstuction 12,657 B3.833
works
Property management fees, leasing 62,228 B2017
commession, servicer lees and
uthir T
K¥ehanging Malaysia Jaint venlwe IT Consuttancy & mlated senvices 26,252 34,064
Sen. Bhd (Ompany EHPErEES
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A40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
{a) Significant related party transactions {continued)

(1) inaddition 1o related party decoswes mentioned elsewhate in the financial statements, set out below are other significant

related party transactions, (contimed])

Entity Relationship Type of transactions

Pinnacle Trend Sdn. Bl Sulssahiary Rental of prémises

{b) Related party balances

Company
Z0z2 2021
RM'O00 RM'ODO
7.418 7458

The sigrificant relatad party balance as at finandal year ended except distlosed in ather notas 1o the financial statements as

iodlows:

Starhil Global REIT
= Terunt degpnits
- Progress biings

Company refated to key management peronnel
- Trate receivables

Group
2022 2021
RM'G00 RM'000
7,140 7.140
100,094 162343
2,335 2315

{¢) Hey managemeant personnel compensatian

Key management persnang are thase persons having autharity and responsitiity 1or planning, directing and tontroling tne
activities ol the Group and the Company, directly of indrectly, incuding any Directar (whethor axecutive of othanwite) of the

Compary.

Key managemen parsonngl of the Group and the Campany Inckides the Directars of 1hi Company.

Graup Campany

2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'OD00 RM'O00 RMOO0O RM'ODO

Diractors” and kiy managament parsonnals

rermneration

- short-term emplayes banafits Bd. 322 45,101 £2.157 1558
= dlalindd pontritadion plars 5011 2,568 146 FE|
= beanefits-in-kind 661 571 - .
69,994 48640 £.303 1631
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= 30 june 2022
41. COMMITMENTS
{a}) Capital commitments
Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
RM000 RMODO RMDOD RMODO
Authorsed but not contracted for 512,861 B44,980 - -
Contracted but not provided for 1,751,039 711181 2,688 .

The abiove commitmeants malnly comgrise purthase of spare parts and property, plant and eguipment.

Group

2022 2021
RH000 RMODO
Capital commitmends in relation 1o addition imastment 35,668 74912

{b) Oparating lease commitments
(i} The Group as lessor

Thie Group feases out ity lend and buikEng, 1elecommunications equpment, plant and machinery, The Graup classified
thiese keases o5 operaling leases, becayse thay do nat tramfer sulstantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownershep of the assets. The foliwing table sets out the matwity schedwle of undiscounted lease payments o be
recetved after the reparting date,

Group

2022 2021

RMODO RMODO

Loss than 1 yoar 207.302 182310
Batwsen 1 ta 2 yaars 143,414 134,703
Between 2.10 3 years 121392 116455
Batwaren 3 10 4 yoors 108,328 110,107
Between 4 10 5 yoars 91.716 108,115
Later than 5 years T.367 SLETO
Tatal undiscounted lease payments to be received 680,519 705364

Thiose leases dassified as firance leases are declosed in Nole 32(a)
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42, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The Group has six reportable segments as described below:
{a] Comstruction
(b} Hotel operations
{t} Cament ard bullding matersts Industry
(] Mansgement services & olliers
{iel  Propenty imsestme B devlogmen
(Uit

Management monitors the GPEfating results of operating segments separately for the pumose of making dectskans atouT resowrces
o b allacated and of assessing perfomance.

Thie Litilities segment comprises power generation (contracted], mult utilities business {merchant) water and sewserage and mobile
broadband network. Thesa sub-segments have similar econome charactarstics, Catails of these sub-segmants ae disclosad in YTL
Power Intemational Barhad's annual repart which |s availabile to the public.

290 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information for the reportable segments Is as folows

Cement and
building Management  Property
Hatel materials services investmont &
Constructien  operations Industry & others developmaent Wiilitles Total
RMO0O BMO00 BM000 BMODO RMOO0 RMOD0 RM OO0

2022

Revenus

Total revenae 1.191.901 TO3561  3.900.885 509,346 BS2.622 17.518522 24.725.817
il =S ment Tririig {55.673) (9.890) (18.8590)  (205.124)  (175.254) (19,483}  (484,314)
Extermal revenue 1136228 693,671 3890975 304,222 717,368 17.499,039 24,241,503
Results

st inCome 8,870 457 39,050 G004 13,835 3,307 71523
Finanie (osts (11.758)  [23.064) (204.715) (536.129) (I52194) (G658.712) (L5B86,572)
Stare of resufts of

Fes0ckated companies and

a1l ventures - 4,518 38,625 (58] 62,362 337,304 442,051
Segment proditilass)

before tax 62,279 [58.364) 264,157 465412 152,515 622,938 1,548,937
Segment assets

reésirment i associsted
compeniey ard joant

ventures - 41,543 80,617 2738 2071862 1TBO499 3,977,259
Oher segment asssts 726271 2395191 10,006,018 13,410,426 G6,A58,457 34,959,162 6B365525
Segmen! liabilities
Bends and bomowings 385,719 857,431 4,264.718 13,104,356 2,929,795 20,714,163 42,256,162
Other segment Babilzies 491,819 328,796 1145728 1524770 1337443 7738 7B 12.567.338
Other segment

information
Copital eponditure E.204 9247 124,018 434,453 67,137 1395025 2,036.084
rpatrnent!{write hack) 7.577 {195) (15,873) 174,033 (190§ 131, 474 296,026
Depreciaton ard

amertisatian 14,294 70,062 357,931 21,325 149,841 1258,169 LB7LG42
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A2, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The segmant informatlon for the reportable segments is as follows: [cantinued)

Cement and
building Management  Property
Hotel materials services Investmant &
Canstruction  operations Industry & others development Utilities Tatal
BM'000 RMO00 RMOOD RMOO0 RMOOO Ri'ODO RMDOO

2021
Rovenue
Tata revanise 15RA.261 427533 £117.477 L27.500 G41585  IOSROSTD  17TT4ENR
Ingar-Seqmant revenue [54,755) {5921} [£3.068] (224 810 (175,085} (I8.H53) [504,197)
Extemal revenue 1514.505 420712 4,093,509 302980 365,598 05707 17200419
Rasults
Ingeress income 15227 969 25192 Baz2 4532 BON 58360
Finance costs [F243) {24.568) [193.455) [536.962) [LTaT24) (BLT0A5)  (L555.047)
Share of results of

associated companies and

it venres - {EB03) 18,019 [44,305) 6lLage 367,113 FE 523
Segment peafitfioss)

before T 217403 {153,565) 562566 [242.336) (38295 627,707 GILTH
Segment assets
Investment in assocated

companies and joing

WEMILES . g 64,538 BG5S ST 2200431 4,405,122
Ochar segment assets LDagc1 £.604,370 T3GTe 13130067 TOTRGER 35047100 GO458444

Segment labilities

Bonds and borrowings 129,159 952,306 4340083 1437R067 3202830 22003908 45074443
Ochar segment liabilities TIB3B4 252 Li03.323 G 4TR L3d4E 740 Toda.8s 12451162
Other segment

Infarmation
Capital enpendiure 1L.508 96,5448 18474 34,984 23,235 1733308 2008754
Impairment{write back) - {a.27a) 59,338 3474 (25, 425) 21738 459,822
Dapreciaticn and

amorisation 22433 H2,024 Ira.902 19674 147,703 LP62606 1913342
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
[a} Geographical information
The Group's six business segments oparate In thres main geographical areas:

= 30 june 2022

i Malayia - [Constiuction
- Hotel opsrations
- Cemant and buikding matedak industry
- Management senvices & others
- Property Irvestment & development
Liriitiers
(i) United Kingdom Litalities
- Hotel oparations
{iil} Singapome Lt
- Comant and buikling matenats industry
: Property imestment & development
Revenus Mon-current assets
2022 20Z1 2022 2021
RMDOOD RMODO RMDOD RMOOD
Malaysia 5.570.614 5175438 11,777,165 1850527
Unifid Kirgdom 4,387 341 FHSL 74 20,297 664 L3135
Singapare 13,200,534 B,450,301 9,157,038 B.135.70E
Other countries 1.083.014 1191957 3,737,058 4017163
24,241,503 17.2mA419 44,968,925 45,376,636
Nan-curment assets information presented aboee consist of the Tollowings e o presented b the S1atements of Fingncial
Position,
Non-currant assots
2022 2021
RMOOD RMOOO
Property, plant and soqupment 31,943,103 2120318
Heght-of wse assets 1,552,929 1712517
MWESTMENT properies 1,976,535 1.576,498
Develogment expenditures B06,353 LOGT A28
Intanginle assets 8,680,945 B.500.075
44,968,925 45,36 836
[b) Major customers
The following s the mapr ustoimer with ievenue equal ar mode thai 10 per cent of the Grow's dvenle:
2022 202
RMFODO RHODO Segment
Encegy Market Company 7:.946,821 520,109 Lhilities

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 293
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43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's and the Company's capital management are 10 ensure that it maintains haalthy capital ratios
In order 1o Support s edsing business and maximise sharenodders value.

Thie Groap and the Company manages ts capital strcture and makes adjustments toit, 0 the light of changes in economic condrtions
To mangan ar adpst the capital structiee, the Group and the Company may adjust the dividend payment 1o sharehaldars. ratutn
capital 1o shamholders or issue new shates. Thame ware no changes in the Group’s and the Comparmy’s appiaach 1o capital maragement
dising the year,

The Group and the Company monitors Capital tsing a debt - to capital rato, which s not debt divided by total capital plus net debt
Thie Group includes within net debt. total barmowings less cash and cash equivalents. Capital intludes equity attributablde ta the
mwners of the pargnt

Graup Campany

2022 2021 2022 2021

MHote RMO00 RM'D00 RM'O00 RM'O00

Bondds 3n 20,212,938 £3 378,057 3,240,000 A.240,000

Bormowings £l 22,043,244 21,745,306 1.066,.963 1066, 545

Bonds and bomosings 42,256,182 45074,443 4,306,963 4,306,995

Less: Cash and cash equivalents F.7 {11,398,557) (13678547 {196,699) (250.218)

Met debit 30,857,625 31,395,796 4,110,264 A0E6TTT
Eruity atiributable 1o owners of the

parent 12,938,529 12,708,485 6,192,757 5,307,840

Capital el et delit 43,796,154 44,184,281 10,303,021 10.364,617

Debr-to-capital ratk (V) Ja 7l 40 EE|

Undes the roguirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berad Practice Mate Mo, 17/2005, the Company |5 required to maintain 2
congoldated sharehaklers' equity equal To or not less than the 25 percent af the Haued and paid-up captal (excluding treasury
shares] and such shareholders’ equity = not less than RMA0 milkon. The Company has complied with this requirement.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june 2022

44. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The United Kingdom fiscal statement an 23 September 2022 indluded the rancefistion of the planned inorease In the Linited Kingdom
COrparation tax rane 1o 2506, The cancellation wis not substantvely enected @ a1 30 june 2022 and the date of thes repen, and
hance has nat been reflacted in the measuremant of deferred tax balances at the period end. f the Group's defemed tax balances
at the period end were remessured at 1995 this would result in a deferred tax credit of RM568 milion (GEP101 millian) to the
Incorme statements.

Save for the above, there was no other materlal events sutsequent to the end af the curent financlal year ended 30 [une 2022
that havo nat bean rellected in the finanol statomenis.

45. AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE OF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been authorised for sswe n accordance with a resolistion of the Board of Directors on 28 September
eg2

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 295
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Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2021 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 99 to 296.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2021, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

1. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 19 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

As at 30 June 2021, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM8,026 million which represents 10.9%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,
listed cement manufacturing business in Malaysia and water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom
(“UK™). The goodwill for these businesses comprises 86.5% of total goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation. The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 19(a) and 19(b) to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

» agreed the VIU cash flows of each CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;

« discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUs and assessed the potential
impact of COVID-19 outbreak of the VIU cash flows;

e checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries which included the impact of COVID-19
outbreak as at year end;

« checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows; and

« compared historical forecasting for the current financial year to actual results achieved to ascertain the
reasonableness of management’s estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

2. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) of the mobile broadband network business

The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 6.8% (RM2,196.7
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the segment which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD") cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
calculation of the FVLCD.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

» agreed the FVLCD cash flows of the CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors, adjusted to
reflect market participants assumptions;

» checked the assumptions used, in particular average revenue growth rate and useful life of the assets and
benchmarked against the comparable companies within the industry, including assessing the impact of
COVID-19 outbreak using industry data;

« discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Company’s historical experience;

» assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based on
inputs that are publicly available; and

» checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the FVLCD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

3. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The water and sewerage business's net book value of infrastructure assets comprise 28.4% (RM9,137.4
million) of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is a significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant and
Equipment (“MFRS 116").

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

» tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

« understood the nature of costs incurred in relation to employee and overhead costs through discussion
with management and corroborated with supporting information provided and checked whether the costs
incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with MFRS 116; and

« compared the level of employee and overhead costs capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant variances discussed and corroborated with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

4, Assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded defined benefit obligations of the water and

sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 35 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

As at 30 June 2021, the water and sewerage business's post-employment benefit obligations comprise
89.6% (RM437.9 million) of the Group’s total post-employment benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 35 (c) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the key assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded
defined benefit obligations and any changes in these assumptions will materially impact the carrying amount
of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

» understood and assessed the scope of work by the external actuary engaged by the management;

» assessed the fair value of the scheme assets by obtaining the valuation from the relevant fund managers
as at balance sheet date and corroborated with independent sources;

« assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

» obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the
present value of the funded defined benefit obligations;

« compared the key assumptions used by the actuary on discount rate, expected rate of increase in pension
payment, and price inflation against external market data and similar schemes with assistance of an
actuary expert;

» evaluated the impact of COVID-19 outbreak on the valuation of assets held within the pension scheme;

« compared the expected rate of salary increases used by the actuary against historical trend; and

» checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the post-employment
benefit obligations to changes in key assumptions, performed by the actuary.
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5. Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 20 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment accounts for 31.4% (RM543.1 million is net of
expected credit losses of RM248.7 million) of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2021.

As this segment operates in the UK, there is a statutory requirement to continue to provide water to all
customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the expected credit losses of
trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends and economic
trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of expected credit losses for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

» tested the operating effectiveness of the key IT systems used for generating billings and cash collection
data used for the expected credit losses assessment;

» obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and payment
methods and compared against the percentage of expected credit losses used by management against
each ageing bracket and payment methods;

« checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, which included management’s scenario analysis of the impact of COVID-19
outbreak; and

e compared the level of expected credit losses applied against similar companies within the industry in the
UK.

6. Revenue recognition from construction contracts
The risk

Revenue and cost of sales recognised from construction contracts during the financial year as disclosed in
Note 3, 4 and 5 to the financial statements is RM1,515 million and RM1,254 million respectively.

The Group has significant long term construction contracts. The recognition of revenue and profit on these

contracts is based on input method (on the basis of the entity’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation).
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Revenue and profit recognition on long term construction contract is a key audit matter because of the
judgement and estimates exercised by the management based on the assessment of performance obligation,
revenue recognition arising from variations to the original contracts, assessment of progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation and contract costs and appropriate of provision for
foreseeable losses and liquidated damages.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

» reviewed and assessed the forecast budget and appropriateness of assumption used based on historical
performance in the Group and industry knowledge, including obtained and assessed information provided
by management to determine whether the forecast assumptions are consistent with the terms of the
relevant contracts;

« evaluated the management’'s updated budget costs and forecast costs to complete by assessing the basis
of their calculation;

« recalculated the revenue using approved contract sum, actual costs incurred to date that reflect the
progress towards completion of the agreed works to customer and latest revised budgets; and

» inspected the actual costs incurred to the corresponding supporting documents.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT
201906002362 & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
03160/09/2022 J
Dated : 30 September 2021 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
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Our ref: GEN/0946/2022

Your ref:

7 December 2022

The Board of Directors
YTL Corporation Berhad
33rd Floor, Menara YTL
205 Jalan Bukit Bintang
55100 Kuala Lumpur

Dear Sirs,

You have informed us that the accompanying financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and the Group

financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries as of 30 June 2022 and 2021 together with our
reports thereon dated 29 September 2022 and 30 September 2021 are being included as part of the Annual
Securities Report.

At 7 December 2022, we are not aware of any matters which would prevent the inclusion of our audit reports in the
aforementioned Annual Securities Report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT
201906002362 & AF0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
Partner of the Firm
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Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2022 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 102 to 295.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2022, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

1. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(q)(ii), 3 (a) and 19 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

As at 30 June 2022, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM8,360 million which represents 11.6%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,
water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom (“UK”) and cement manufacturing business in Malaysia
as disclosed in Note 19 to the Financial Statements. The goodwill for these businesses comprises 82.7% of
total goodwiill.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation. The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Notes 19(a) and 19(b) to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

agreed the VIU cash flows of each CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;

discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUSs;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries;

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows; and

compared historical forecasting for the current financial year to actual results achieved to ascertain the
reasonableness of management’s estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

2. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) of the mobile broadband network business
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(h), 3(c) and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 6.5% (RM2,082.5
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2022.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the segment which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD") cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
calculation of the FVLCD.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

agreed the FVLCD cash flows of the CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors, adjusted to
reflect market participants assumptions;

checked the assumptions used, in particular average revenue growth rate, earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation margin, and useful life of the assets and benchmarked against the
comparable companies within the industry;

discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Group’s historical experience;

assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based
on inputs that are publicly available; and

checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the
FVLCD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

3. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(h), 3(b) and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The water and sewerage business’s net book value of infrastructure assets (RM8,724.6 million) comprises
27.3% of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is a significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant and
Equipment (“MFRS 116").

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

sampled capital expenditure costs in the year and agreed the costs to underlying support, including
timesheets and invoices;

challenged management’s assumptions used in allocating certain costs between capital and operating
expenditure. Specifically, this has included assessing the appropriate capitalisation of the various types
of costs such as overheads, interest, and infrastructure maintenance; and

understood the nature of costs incurred in relation to employee and overhead costs through discussion
with management and corroborated with supporting information provided and checked whether the costs
incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with MFRS 116.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

4. Assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded defined benefit plans of the water and
sewerage segment

The risk
We refer to Notes 2(e), 3(h) and 35 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The water and sewerage segment of the Group recorded RM174.8 million of defined benefit assets as at 30
June 2022, net of present value of funded defined benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 35 (c) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the key assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded
defined benefit obligations and any changes in these assumptions will materially impact the carrying amounts
of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

understood and assessed the scope of work by the external actuary engaged by the management;
assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the
present value of the funded defined benefit obligations;

compared the key assumptions used by the actuary on discount rate, expected rate of increase in
pension payment, and price inflation against external market data and similar schemes with assistance
of an actuary expert;

compared the expected rate of salary increase used by the actuary against historical trend;

assessed the fair value of the scheme assets by obtaining the valuation from the relevant fund managers
as at 30 June 2022 and corroborated with independent sources; and

checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the post-employment
benefit obligations to changes in key assumptions, performed by the actuary.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(r), 3(d) and 20 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

Trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment (RM474.4 million net of expected credit losses of
RM275.3 million) accounts for 20.9% of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2022.

As this segment operates in the UK, there is a statutory requirement to continue to provide water to all
customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the expected credit losses of
trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends and economic
trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of expected credit losses for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the key information technology systems used for generating billings
and cash collection data used for the expected credit losses assessment and the controls over
assessment of expected credit losses of trade receivables;

obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and
payment methods and compared against the percentage of expected credit losses used by management
against each ageing bracket and payment methods;

checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, which include management’s scenario analysis of the impact of economic
uncertainty due to inflation;

compared the level of expected credit losses applied against similar companies within the industry in the
UK;

performed substantive testing to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the reports used to populate
the expected credit loss provision calculation; and

developed expectations to generate a range for the estimated value and compared against the estimates
and assumptions set forth by management to ensure no management bias over the expected credit
losses.
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6. Metered income accrual
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(d)(i)(a), 3(j), 4 and 20 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The Group has recorded a metered income accrual of RM550.3 million as at 30 June 2022 relating to
revenue from the provision of water services to customers on water meters that had not been read at the
year-end date.

Revenue recognition in respect of the accrued income is particularly judgemental. It arises in relation to the
unbilled income accrual from metered water services. This income accrual requires an estimation of the
amount of unbilled charges at the period end. It is calculated using system generated information based on
previous customer volume usage.

Given the range of factors underlying the estimate, there is a risk that the metered income accrual and
revenue could be misstated.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

obtained an understanding of the process for the supply of measured services, meter reading and
related billing;

tested the key controls linked to system generated information and around the estimation process for
measured revenue;

compared the accrued income to bills raised post year end and compared management's history of
estimating the accrued income balance to bills raised in the subsequent year to assess the accuracy of
accrual income balance;

recomputed the accrued income based on customers' historical usage data for selected samples;
perform analytical procedures by comparing revenue balances for the year against expectation and
obtaining support for significant variances;

corroborated the key assumptions and estimates made by management in recognising revenue, by
obtaining internal and external data on factors that influence demand from customers;

tested contract terms and conditions were met and revenue recognised at the correct period;
performed journal testing over targeted manual entries related to revenue, particularly those recorded
close to the year-end; and

obtained an understanding of manual adjustments made to accrued income and reviewed the underlying
assumptions for those adjustments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

7. Revenue recognition from construction contracts

The risk

Revenue and cost of sales recognised from construction contracts during the financial year as disclosed in
Notes 2(d)(i)(e), 3(i), 4 and 5 to the Financial Statements, respectively is RM1,136.2 million and RM1,017.3

million, respectively.

The Group has significant long term construction contracts. The recognition of revenue and profit on these
contracts is based on input method (on the basis of the entity’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation).

Revenue and profit recognition on long term construction contract is a key audit matter because of the
judgement and estimates exercised by the management based on the assessment of performance
obligation, revenue recognition arising from variations to the original contracts, assessment of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation and contract costs and appropriate provision for
foreseeable losses and liquidated damages.

Our response:

Our audit procedures included the following:

reviewed and assessed the forecast budget and appropriateness of assumptions used based on
historical performance in the Group and industry knowledge, including obtained and assessed
information provided by management to determine whether the forecast assumptions are consistent with

the terms of the relevant contracts;
evaluated the management’s updated budgeted costs and forecast of costs to complete by assessing

the basis of their calculation;
recomputed the revenue using approved contract sum, actual costs incurred to date that reflect the
progress towards completion of the agreed works to customer and latest revised budgets; and

inspected the actual costs incurred to the corresponding supporting documents.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the

Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT
201906002362 & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
03160/09/2024 J
Chartered Accountants
Dated : 29 September 2022 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur

624/624



	表紙
	本文
	第一部企業情報
	第１本国における法制等の概要
	１会社制度等の概要
	(1)提出会社の属する国・州等における会社制度
	(2)提出会社の定款等に規定する制度

	２外国為替管理制度
	３課税上の取扱い
	４法律意見

	第２企業の概況
	１主要な経営指標等の推移
	２沿革
	３事業の内容
	４関係会社の状況
	５従業員の状況

	第３事業の状況
	１経営方針、経営環境及び対処すべき課題等
	２事業等のリスク
	３経営者による財政状態、経営成績及びキャッシュ・フローの状況の分析
	４経営上の重要な契約等
	５研究開発活動

	第４設備の状況
	１設備投資等の概要
	２主要な設備の状況
	３設備の新設、除却等の計画

	第５提出会社の状況
	１株式等の状況
	(1)株式の総数等
	①株式の総数
	②発行済株式

	(2)行使価額修正条項付新株予約権付社債券等の行使状況等
	(3)発行済株式総数及び資本金の推移
	(4)所有者別状況
	(5)大株主の状況

	２配当政策
	３コーポレート・ガバナンスの状況等
	(1)コーポレート・ガバナンスの概要
	(2)役員の状況
	(3)監査の状況
	(4)役員の報酬等
	(5)株式の保有状況


	第６経理の状況
	１財務書類
	２主な資産・負債及び収支の内容
	３その他
	４マレーシアと日本における会計原則及び会計慣行の主要な相違

	第７外国為替相場の推移
	第８本邦における提出会社の株式事務等の概要
	第９提出会社の参考情報
	１提出会社の親会社等の情報
	２その他の参考情報


	第二部提出会社の保証会社等の情報
	監査報告書

